Council

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES
SESSIONS HOUSE
MAIDSTONE
Tuesday, 6 October 2009
To:  All Members of the County Council

Please attend the meeting of the County Council in the Council Chamber, Sessions House,
County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 15 October 2009 at 10.00 am to deal with the following

business. The meeting is scheduled to end by 4.30 pm.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

w

Minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2009 and if in order, to be (Pages 1 -10)
approved as a correct record.

Chairman’s Announcements

Questions

Report by Leader of the Council (Oral)

Towards 2010 Annual Report (Pages 11 - 194)

© N o o &

Potential to Refocus and Restructure the Overview and Scrutiny
Function - to follow

9. Local Act for amendment of Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 - (Pages 195 - 206)
The Kent County Council (Filming on Highways) Bill

10. Kent's Policy Framework for Living Later Life to the Full (Pages 207 - 290)

11. Government Consultation on "Shaping the Future of Care (Pages 291 - 306)
Together" - The Green Paper on Care and Support

12. Minutes for Approval - Governance and Audit Committee (Pages 307 - 316)
25, 30 June and 16 September 2009.

13.  Minutes for Information (Pages 317 - 344)

Planning Applications Committee — 25, June, 14 July, 18 August
and 8 September 2009.



Regulation Committee — 25 June and 10 September 2009.

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership
01622 694002



Agenda ltem 3

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

MINUTES of a meeting of the Kent County Council held in the Council Chamber,
Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 25 June 2009.

PRESENT:
Mr J A Davies (Chairman)
Mr W A Hayton (Vice-Chairman)

Mrs A D Allen, MrMJ Angell, MrAHT Bowles, MrRW Bayford, MrD L Brazier,
Mr R Brookbank, Mr J R Bullock, MBE, Mr R B Burgess, Mr C J Capon, Ms S J Carey,
Mr P B Carter, MrNJD Chard, MrARChell, MrlS Chittenden, Mr L Christie,
Mrs P Cole, Mr N Collor, Mr G Cooke, Mr B R Cope, Mr H Craske, Mr A D Crowther,
Mr J Cubitt, Mrs V J Dagger, Mr D S Daley, Mr M C Dance, Mrs T Dean,
Mr K A Ferrin, MBE, Mr R Frayne, Mr M J Harrison, Mr P M Hill, OBE, Mr G K Gibbens,
Mr R W Gough, Mrs E Green, Mr C Hibberd, Mr D A Hirst, Mrs S V Hohler,
Mr P J Homewood, Mr G A Horne MBE, Mr E E C Hotson, Mr M J Jarvis,
Mr A J King, MBE, Mr R E King, Mr J D Kirby, Mr J A Kite, Mr P W A Lake, Mrs J Law,
MrRJLees, MrJFLondon, MrKGLynes, MrS Manion, MrRF Manning,
Mr R A Marsh, Mr M J Northey, MrJ Ozog, Mr R A Pascoe, Mr T Prater, Mr K Pugh,
Mr W Richardson, Mr L B Ridings, Mr M Robertson, Mrs J A Rook, Mr A Sandhu, MBE,
Mr J E Scholes, MrJ D Simmonds, Mr K Smith, Mr M V Snelling, Mrs P AV Stockell,
Mr B J Sweetland, MrR Tolputt, Mrs E M Tweed, MrMJ Vye, MrJ Wedgbury,
Mr M Whiting, Mrs J Whittle and Mr A Wickham

IN ATTENDANCE: Peter Gilroy (Chief Executive), Geoff Wild (Director of Law and
Governance) and Peter Sass (Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
1. Election of Chairman
(Mr P Lake, the present Chairman, presided for this item)
(1)  Mr P Carter moved, Mr J Scholes seconded:
That Mr J A Davies be elected Chairman of the Council
Carried without a vote

(2)  Mr Davies thereupon took the Chair, made his Declaration of Acceptance of
Office and returned thanks for his election.

(3) Mr Davies then paid tribute to Mr Lake and thanked him for the manner in
which he had carried out his duties as Chairman of the Council from May
2008 to the present day.

(4) Mr Lake responded in suitable terms.

Page 1



25 JUNE 2009
2, Election of Vice Chairman
(1) Mr M Angell moved, Mr R Burgess seconded:-
That Mr W A Hayton be appointed Vice Chairman of the Council.
Carried without a vote

(2) Mr Hayton thereupon made his Declaration of Acceptance of Office and
returned thanks for his appointment.

3. Apologies for Absence

The Chief Executive reported apologies from Mr Koowaree, Mr Long, Mr Parry and Mr
C Smith.

4, Declarations of Interest

Mr Sweetland declared a personal interest in item 15 on the agenda (report on the
senior management structure of the Children, Families and Education Directorate, as a
non-executive director of the West Kent Primary Care Trust.

Mr Daley, Mr London and Mr Christie all declared personal interests in items 12 and 13
(Terms of Reference and Annual Report of the Standards Committee) as having served
as Members of the Standards Committee in 2008/09.

5. The Returning Officer to submit the returns of persons elected to be
County Councillors until 2013

The County Returning Officer for the County of Kent submitted the Return, dated 5"
June 2009, of persons elected to be County Councillors for the Electoral Divisions of
the said County as reproduced in the papers for this meeting.

The Return was submitted for information.

6. Minutes of the meeting held on 30 April 2009, if in order, to be approved as
a correct record

RESOLVED: that the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 April 2009 are correctly
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.

7. Chairman’s Announcements
(1)  The Chairman welcomed all newly elected and returning Members to KCC.

(2)  The Chairman welcomed the Vice Chairman of Essex County Council, Mr
Rodney Bass, as his guest for the day.

Page 2



25 JUNE 2009
(83)  The Chairman formally announced the sad passing away of former Members:

Mrs Jean Newman

Mrs Jean Newman, who passed away on 7 June 2009; a former Conservative County
Councillor for Swale East. Mrs Newman was elected to the County Council in May
1995 and served until 2005. Mrs Newman was a long standing Swale Borough
Councillor and was also Mayor of Swale for two years, 1989 and 1991.

Mr Bowles, Mr Ferrin, Mr Dance and Mrs Dean paid tribute to Mrs Newman.

Mr Wilf Shilling

Mr Wilf Shilling, who passed away on 15 May 2009. Mr Shilling served as a Liberal
Democrat Councillor for the Maidstone Rural West Electoral Division. He was elected
in 1989 at the age of 76 and served until1997. He was also Vice Chairman of the
County Council 1996/7.

Mrs Dean paid tribute to Mr Shilling.

Mr Tony Hart CBE

Mr Tony Hart, who passed away on 13 June 2009. Mr Hart served as the Conservative
County Councillor for the Malling Rural West Electoral Division (1975 — 1992) and was
Leader of the County Council from 1984 until 1992.

The Chairman advised Members that Mr Hart’s funeral would be held at Shipbourne
Church, Shipbourne Road, Tonbridge Kent at 12.30 on Tuesday 30 June 2009. There
is limited capacity at the church but the family would be delighted if those Members and
officers who knew and worked closely with Mr Hart during his time at County Hall were
able to attend.

Mr Hart's widow, Mrs Wendy Hart and his daughter Sally-Ann were present at the
meeting. Mr Paul Sabin, former Chief Executive of Kent County Council, was also
present.

Mrs Hohler, Mr A King and Mrs Dean paid tribute to Mr Hart.

The Council stood in silence as a mark of respect to the three former Members.
RESOLVED: that this Council desires to record the sense of loss it feels on the deaths
of Mrs Newman, Mr Shilling and Mr Hart and extends to their families its deepest
sympathy on their sad bereavements.

4) Mr George Koowaree and Mr Christopher Smith

The Chairman advised the County Council that Mr Koowaree and Mr C Smith were

both recuperating well from recent operations and the Council wished both Members a
speedy recovery.

Page 3



25 JUNE 2009
(5)  Queen’s Birthday Honours

The Chairman was pleased to announce that Mr Avtar Singh Sandhu (Member for the
Dartford North East Electoral Division) had been awarded the Member of the Order of
the British Empire for Services to the Community in North Kent

(6) New senior officers

The Chairman welcomed Rosalind Turner, Managing Director of Children, Families and
Education and Mike Austerberry, Executive Director of Environment, Highways and
Waste, to their first meeting of the County Council since their appointments

(7) Environmental Management Award

The Chairman announced that Kent County Council had achieved the ISO 14001
international standard for environmental management across all its services. This was
confirmed following a 6 day assessment by Bureau Veritas at the end of April. KCC'’s
first accreditation was achieved by Commercial Services in 2003 and the stepwise
accreditation programme culminated in April this year when Adult Social Services,
Children, Families and Education and Kent Highways Services were all assessed for
the first time.

ISO 14001 is the international standard for environmental management and
organisations achieving this standard have demonstrated they are taking positive and
continuous steps to reduce their environmental impact, become more resource efficient
and prevent pollution. The Council was aware of only two other County Councils who
had achieved this standard across all its services — Suffolk and Warwickshire.

(8) The Lawyer Awards 2009

The Chairman announced that KCC Legal Services had won the Public Sector Legal
Team of the Year Award in The Lawyer Awards at a ceremony in London this week.

The Lawyer Awards was about the celebration of excellence in the legal profession
across private practice, the public sector, commerce and industry and the Bar and is
the biggest awards ceremony for the legal profession.

The Chairman stated that this was a fantastic achievement and the culmination of many
years of hard work from all the staff in Legal Services, which now sat alongside their
success earlier this year in the LGC Awards. Kent Legal Services was also short-listed
for the Legal Achievement of the Year Award in the MJ Awards, taking place that
evening. As no authority had ever won these three awards in the same year, the
Chairman wished the Director of Law and Governance the best of luck for the MJ
Awards ceremony that evening.

8. Election of Leader

Mr A King moved, Mr K Lynes seconded that Mr P B Carter be elected Leader of the
Council until the Annual Meeting of the Council in 2013.

Carried without a vote

Page 4



25 JUNE 2009
9. Appointment of the Leader of the Opposition

Mr M Vye moved, Mr L Christie seconded that Mrs T Dean be elected Leader of the
Opposition.

Carried without a vote
10. Report by Leader of the Council (Oral)
(1)  The Leader returned thanks to the County Council for his election as Leader.

(2) The Leader spoke about the need to review the Council’s approach to
Overview and Scrutiny, bearing in mind the significant majority for the
Conservative Group. He added that he was keen to learn from others and
innovate, which included a greater involvement for the public in holding the
Administration to account. He also stated that he wanted to examine
proposals to review how County Council meetings operated, by holding
debates about the major policy issues affecting Kent residents.

(3) The Leader commented on the major challenges ahead in the next four
years, which would be made even more difficult to achieve given the huge
cost reductions expected across the public sector. He stated that the key
aims of the new Administration were to improve the quality of core services
and increase customer satisfaction in all areas and he outlined the major
challenges in each of the main policy areas.

11. Report of the Selection and Member Services Committee
The Chairman stated that he had agreed to accept this report as an urgent item
because of the need to approve the proportionality statement and allow appointments

to be made to the various Committees and Outside Bodies.

Mrs P Stockell moved, Mr A King seconded the recommendations contained on page
four of the tabled report.

RESOLVED: that the County Council agree:

(a) the size of each main Committee and certain other Sub-Committees and Panels,
and the allocation between the political groups of places on them and various other
bodies as set out in paragraphs 2 and 3 of the report;

(b)  to delegate appointments to the various other authorities, joint committees and
partnership bodies set out in paragraph 4 of the report to the Selection and Member
Services Committee;

(c) to amend the Constitution to reflect the change in title from “Lead Member” to
“Deputy Cabinet Member”;

(d)  to note that the revised Terms of Reference for the Policy Overview Committees
will need to be considered by the next meeting of the County Council.

Page 5



25 JUNE 2009

12. Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel

(1)  The Chairman stated that he had agreed to accept this report as an urgent item
because of the need to have a Members’ Allowances Scheme in place for the new
Council.

(2) The Chairman welcomed Mrs Fiona Leathers, Chairman of the Independent
Remuneration Panel to the meeting and invited her to sit at the table to answer
Members’ questions on the report.

(3) Mr J A Davies moved, Mr W A Hayton seconded that the County Council
approve the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel with regard to
proposed changes to the Members’ Allowances Scheme for the four year period from
2009 to 2013, as detailed in Appendix 1 of the report.

(4) Mrs Dean moved, Mr T Prater seconded as an amendment:

“that implementation of the Remuneration Panel’s recommendations be deferred until
the next County Council meeting to allow public consultation to take place on the
proposed changes.”

(5) Following debate, Mrs Dean stated that she wished to alter her amendment, with
the consent of her seconder, as follows:

“that consideration of the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel be
deferred until the next County Council meeting to allow public consultation to take place
on the proposed changes.”

(6)  As the electronic voting system was not working at this time, the Chairman put
the amendment to the vote by a show of hands and declared that 8 Members supported
the amendment and a substantial number of Members did not support the amendment;
therefore the amendment was not carried.

(7) Following further debate, the Chairman put to the vote the motion set out in (3)
above when the voting was as follows:-

For— 64

Mr M Angell, Mr R Bayford, Mr A Bowles, Mr D Brazier, Mr R Brookbank, Mr R Bullock,
Mr R Burgess, Miss S Carey, Mr C Capon, Mr P B Carter, Mr N Chard, Mr A Chell, Mrs
P Cole, Mr N Collor, Mr G Cooke, Mr H Craske, Mr A Crowther, Mr J Cubitt, Mrs V
Dagger, Mr M Dance, Mr K Ferrin, Mr G Gibbens, Mr R Gough, Mr M Harrison, Mr W
Hayton, Mr C Hibberd, Mr M Hill, Mr D Hirst, Mrs S Hohler, Mr P Homewood, Mr C
Horne, Mr E Hotson, Mr M Jarvis, Mr A King, Mr R King, Mr J Kirby, Mr J Kite, Mr P
Lake, Mrs J Law, Mr J London, Mr K Lynes, Mr S Manion, Mr R Manning, Mr A Marsh,
Mr M Northey, Mr J Ozog, Mr R Pascoe, Mr K Pugh, Mr W Richardson, Mr L Ridings,
Mrs J Rook, Mr A Sandhu, Mr J Scholes, Mr J Simmonds, Mr K Smith, Mr M Snelling,
Mrs P Stockell, Mr B Sweetland, Mr R Tolputt, Mrs E Tweed, Mr J Wedgbury, Mr M
Whiting, Mrs J Whittle, and Mr A Wickham.

Abstain — 1
Mr R Lees.

Page 6



25 JUNE 2009

Against — 8
Mr | Chittenden, Mr L Christie, Mr D Daley, Mrs T Dean, Mrs E Green, Mr T Prater, Mr
M Robertson and Mr M Vye.

RESOLVED: that the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel with
regard to proposed changes to the Members’ Allowances Scheme for the four year
period from 2009 to 2013 be approved as detailed in Appendix 1 of the report.

13. Terms of Reference of the Standards Committee

(1) Mr J London moved, Mr A King seconded the recommendation on page 2 of
the report that the Terms of Reference of the Standards Committee be
amended as follows (alterations shown in bold type):

(@) Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by Members (including
any co-opted Members and church and parent governor education
representatives)

(b) Assisting Members through advice and training to observe the Members’
Code of Conduct set out in Appendix 6 of the Constitution

(c) Monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct and advising the
Council on its operation and revision

(d) Granting dispensations to Members from requirements relating to interests
set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct

(e) Seeking to resolve any concerns about a Member’s conduct by mutual
agreement to reduce the need for a complaint to be referred to the
Standards Committee

(f) Receiving complaints that a Member is alleged to have breached the
Code of Conduct and deciding whether the matter merits investigation;
taking appropriate action as defined in the Standards Committee
(England) Regulations 2008; and, reviewing decisions to take no action
on a particular complaint if so requested by the complainant

(g) Dealing with any reports from a case tribunal or interim case tribunal of the
Standards Board, and any report on a matter which is referred by an Ethical
Standards Officer to the Monitoring Officer

(h) Censuring, suspending or partially suspending a Member or former Member
in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Act 2000

Carried without a vote
14. Annual Report of the Standards Committee
(1)  The Chairman welcomed Ms Nadra Ahmed OBE, DL and Mr Peter Gammon
MBE, independent Members of the Standards Committee, to the County

Council meeting to answer questions on the annual report of the Standards
Committee

Page 7



25 JUNE 2009
(2) Mr J A Davies moved, Mr W A Hayton seconded that the contents of the
report be noted and Ms Ahmed and Mr Gammon be thanked for their
attendance at the meeting

Carried without a vote

15. Protocol for the spending of the highways fund devolved to individual
Members

(1) Mr N J D Chard moved, Mr D L Brazier seconded the recommendations
contained on page 44 of the Blue Book, as follows:

(a) the County Council approve the introduction of the Member Highway
Fund at £25,000 per Member per year; and

(b) the County Council approves the protocol attached to the report
Carried without a vote

16. Report on the Senior Management Structure of the Children, Families and
Education Directorate

(1) Mrs Hohler moved, Mr Ridings seconded the proposed senior management
structure for the Children, Families and Education Directorate, as set out in
Appendix 1 to the circulated report.

Carried without a vote
17.  Minutes for Information
Pursuant to Procedure Rules 1.10 and 1.23 (4), the Minutes of the Regulation
Committee (19 May 2009) and the Planning Applications Committee (26 May 2009)
were noted.
18. Motion for Time Limited Debate

(1) Mrs T Dean moved, Mr M Vye seconded:-

That this Council supports the Government's intention to engage in
consultation on altering the form of Local Government elections to one which

reflects residents’ choice rather than the first past the post system.

(2) Following a debate, the Chairman put to the vote the Motion when the voting
was as follows:-

For—6
Mr | Chittenden, Mr D Daley, Mrs T Dean, Mr T Prater, Mr M Robertson and Mr M Vye.

Page 8



25 JUNE 2009

Against — 65

Mr M Angell, Mr R Bayford, Mr A Bowles, Mr D Brazier, Mr R Brookbank, Mr R
Burgess, Miss S Carey, Mr C Capon, Mr P B Carter, Mr N Chard, Mr A Chell, Mr L
Christie, Mrs P Cole, Mr N Collor, Mr G Cooke, Mr H Craske, Mr A Crowther, Mr J
Cubitt, Mrs V Dagger, Mr M Dance, Mr K Ferrin, Mr G Gibbens, Mr R Gough, Mr M
Harrison, Mr W Hayton, Mr C Hibberd, Mr M Hill, Mr D Hirst, Mrs S Hohler, Mr P
Homewood, Mr C Horne, Mr E Hotson, Mr M Jarvis, Mr A King, Mr R King, Mr J Kirby,
Mr J Kite, Mr P Lake, Mrs J Law, Mr R Lees, Mr J London, Mr K Lynes, Mr S Manion,
Mr R Manning, Mr A Marsh, Mr M Northey, Mr J Ozog, Mr R Pascoe, Mr K Pugh, Mr W
Richardson, Mr L Ridings, Mrs J Rook, Mr A Sandhu, Mr J Scholes, Mr J Simmonds, Mr
K Smith, Mr M Snelling, Mrs P Stockell, Mr B Sweetland, Mr R Tolputt, Mrs E Tweed,
Mr J Wedgbury, Mr M Whiting, Mrs J Whittle, and Mr A Wickham.

Not carried

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda ltem 7

By: Paul Carter, Leader of the County Council
To: County Council — 15 October 2009
Subject: Towards 2010 Annual Report
Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:

In September 2006, KCC set itself 63 challenging and ambitious targets in the Towards
2010 plans for Kent. The third Towards 2070 Annual Report to County Council is attached
for approval at this meeting.

FOR INFORMATION AND DECISION

1. Introduction

In September 2006 we launched our priorities for the next four years (2006- 2010). Towards
2010 sets out how we will achieve the following overarching goals over this period:

Increased prosperity for Kent through business growth and job creation
Transformation in education

Reduced congestion

Improved health and quality of life

Quality homes in a well-managed environment

A safer Kent

Continued improvements in services while keeping council tax down.

Delivery of many of the 63 Towards 2010 targets requires cross-directorate and partnership
working. Each of the Towards 2010 targets is accompanied by a public action plan on
KCC'’s website that sets out how it will be met and which is updated annually.

Annual reports on progress are discussed and approved by County Council each autumn.
At this stage we are three quarters of the way through the term of Towards 2010.

Progress has been made since the last annual report in October 2008 and the current
status of the 63 targets is as follows:

e 12 (19%) ‘ Done and ongoing’
e 46 (73%) ‘ On course’
o 4(6%) ‘More progress is needed’.

NB Progress against Target 44 (Establish a Global Centre in Kent that will lead the world

in developing crops to provide energy, medicines and other products) will no longer be
separately reported as the world has changed since the original Towards 2010 concept for

Page 11



a Global Centre for non-food crops was first proposed and this target will not now be
achieved.

2. Format of the report

In order to help us focus on the difference that Towards 2070 has made to the people of
Kent so far, as well what we still need to do, the separate reports for each target have
been sharpened so that they set out the main outcomes achieved since the start of the
Towards 2010 term, and what we intend to deliver over the remaining twelve months and
beyond.

3. Approval process

Lead officers completed their draft reports in July for discussion and agreement with their
managing directors and portfolio holders. The reports have been quality checked by
Performance Management Group, Chief Executives Department, and discussed and agreed
with the Leader.

As in previous years, the draft report was discussed at each of the Policy Overview
Committee (POC) meetings during September to allow Members to have a chance to
comment and ask questions prior to County Council.

The third Annual Report against Towards 2010 is attached for County Council for approval
at this meeting. Once approved, it will be published on KCC’s website.

4, Recommendation

County Council is asked to APPROVE the third Towards 20710 Annual Report.

Contact officer:-
Sue Garton, County Performance and Evaluation Manager, Chief Executives Dept
Tel 01622 22(1980)/Email sue.garton@kent.gov.uk

Page 12



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Towards 2010:

Annual Report 2009

Page 13



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 1: Substantially increase the number of new jobs by increasing the number of
companies investing in Kent and the number of businesses starting up or expanding

AND

Target 2: Concentrate on the regeneration of Kent’s deprived areas and support business
growth in these areas, seeking maximum funding from Government and the EU to support
the necessary infrastructure, including roads, utilities, telecoms and other services

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:
Kevin Lynes David Cockburn Theresa Bruton/Mike Bodkin

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Locate in Kent, District Councils, Local Regeneration Partnerships, Area Partnerships, South
East England Development Agency, Department for Communities and Local Government
(DCLG), Department for Transport, Homes and Communities, Kent Foundation, Kent
Economic Board, Business Support Kent.

Additionally, we work with key stakeholders from other private, public and voluntary sectors
on specific projects.

Outcomes delivered so far:

These two Towards 2010 targets (1 and 2) are being reported together as they are so
interlinked. Delivery of both of these targets must be seen against the background of the
global recession which makes it far more difficult to achieve all of the outcomes we are
striving for at the moment. However, much has already been achieved and this is listed below:

Published KCC’s Regeneration Framework - KCC's draft Regeneration Framework was
published in January and consultation ended in April 2009. It was approved by the
Regeneration Board in July and will be adopted in autumn 2009. The Regeneration
Framework sets out as a high priority the need to develop a new relationship with business and
we are therefore developing a new Kent Sectors Strategy which will set out how we will
support the growth of the Kent economy, to be completed by December 2009. The Framework
has also led to the development of a number of other strategies including the Spatial Vision and
the Housing Strategy to be delivered over the course of 2009/10.

Delivered KCC’s ‘Backing Kent Businesses’ (BKB) Campaign - This campaign, launched on
10 December 2008, focuses on ten commitments by KCC to help Kent business through the
recession. Key outcomes to date are:

o 78% of Kent businesses supplying KCC are now paid within 20 days whereas this was
previously around 44% - and we are looking to improve further (see also Towards 2010
target 5)

e The Kent Enterprise Property Fund has been established with a number of properties
now being prepared as ‘oven ready’ joint venture schemes with the private sector

e The approved contractors list has been re-opened with more than 480 new applications
for inclusion on the list

e A new simple guide to KCC procurement has been published and we are working towards
streamlining KCC’s procurement arrangements (see also Towards 2010 target 5)

o Kent Business Support Centre, aimed at making it easier for local businesses to get
information, has seen over 30,000 visitors since the launch of BKB. This includes an
on-line business grant finder enabling companies to find routes to finance; a KCC

Page 14



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

searchable business directory containing details of around 50,000 businesses; a direct
link to KCC procurement opportunities over £50k; and KCC telephone contact points
profiled on the site so business can speak to people for advice (see also Towards 2010
target 5)

e A joint lobbying event led by KCC at Westminster in June 2009 highlighted how BKB
partners were dealing with the recession but stressed the challenges still facing business
such as the extraordinary amount of bureaucracy that exists, a planning regime which
does not support business, Operation Stack related problems including losses of income,
and businesses still finding it difficult to find finance from banks

e Breakfast meetings have been targeting specific opportunities for Kent businesses

e Launch of the Business Pledge campaign to encourage businesses to use local supply
chains.

Supported ‘Locate in Kent - Locate in Kent (LiK) exceeded its targets for both companies assisted
and jobs created in 2007/08 and 2008/09. At the end of the first quarter of 2009/10 LiK remains
optimistic that it will reach targets for 2009/10, despite the fact that the targets were set before the
economic downturn. Other outcomes include the following from April 2007 to end June 2009:

e 10,377 jobs created/safeguarded which are indirectly supporting a further 2,433 jobs
e 220 companies assisted to relocate, expand or set up in Kent

e 36 oversees companies assisted to relocate, expand or set up in Kent

o 2,022 jobs created and 4,043 jobs created/safeguarded indirectly by these companies

e £386.4m of capital expenditure in Kent made by all the companies assisted to relocate,
expand or set up in Kent

e Since January 2008, LiK have engaged with 417 companies regarding grants and
assisted 24 companies (in Kent and Medway) to apply - seven were successful (several
still to be decided) leading to the award of £806,778 of Grant for Business Investment

e Targeting sectors that offer good growth prospects such as offshore wind, sustainable
construction, biomass, life sciences and security software continue to ensure Kent is well
placed, and its offer well-known, once the economic upturn commences

e Major campaigns undertaken with partners to promote the benefits of the hi-speed train
to persuade companies in London and the south-east to invest in Kent.

Launched the Kent Excellence in Business Awards (KeiBA) - KCC, in partnership with the
Kent Messenger, successfully launched KeiBA early in 2009 and despite the recession there
were almost 200 entries for the 11 categories of awards (plus an outstanding contribution to the
business community award). The awards ceremony was held at Leeds Castle on 2 July and
around 500 people attended, making it one of the most significant business events in the year.

Launched the ‘Backing Kent People’ campaign - The ‘Backing Kent People’ (BKP) campaign
was launched on 6 April (see also Towards 2010 targets 5 and 29). Key outcomes to date
include:

e Using the Mobile Gateway, two events have taken place — one in Pembury, Tunbridge
Wells in April and another in Deal in May. This was developed further for the summer
2009 period with representatives from KCC, local district/borough councils, the Citizens
Advice Bureau (CAB), Kent Benefits Partnership and the Stop Loan Shark team offering
advice to members of the public

e A detailed contract has been agreed with CAB that will increase their capacity to provide
advice to more people, particularly in the areas of debt, benefit and employment

Page 15



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e The Kent Credit Union initiative should launch in October 2009 (see also Towards 2010
targets 9 and 61)

e A number of focus groups have been run with young people around Kent to understand
their views on money, what information they would find helpful and in what format

e The Kent Benefits Partnership is running a series of surgeries in localities such as
libraries and adult education centres offering advice on all benefits and a free benefits
test for all. These events are being promoted on the Kent.gov — BKP website

e Free home energy surveys have been offered to over 100,000 Kent residents with take-up
from almost 9,000 households. We are currently awaiting figures on cost savings
identified for residents.

Supported the URBAN programme - The programme, rated as the best in the UK, provided
seed core funding for training, economic and environmental initiatives focused on deprived
wards within Dartford and Gravesham. The £8.3m externally funded programme attracted
further public/private funds of £13.4m contributing to the wider regeneration of Kent
Thameside.

Supported Enterprise Gateways (support to micro and start-up businesses) - This provided the
following:

o  Workshops specifically aimed at women and promoting entrepreneurship among Kent
school students

e A training event aimed at black and minority ethnic groups to provide advice on self-
employment and setting up businesses

e  Support for the ‘Back to Work’ programme — a six-week course to prepare people to
return to work based around raising self-confidence, raising aspirations, being
productive, writing CVs and attending interviews.

Supported Quarterhouse, (formerly the Performing Arts and Business Centre, (PABC)
Folkestone) — (see also Towards 2010 targets 3, 6 and 25). Along with partners, KCC provided
grant funding towards the development of a new arts performance building in Folkestone. The
building includes 15 business incubator spaces. As of June 2009 four of the business
incubation units have been let, which includes a website/marketing business and one dealing
with leisure promotions. There is strong interest in the remaining units.

Overseen development in the following areas and projects:

Kent Thameside

e Agreement has been reached with government and local partners on a package of 11
schemes totaling £173m (at 2008 prices) of public and private sector funding to support
the growth of homes and jobs in Kent Thameside. A bid for £23m of funding from the
Homes and Communities Agency to support this programme has been approved in
principle and we are awaiting government’s final decisions later in the year

e A new Fastrack route A (by The Bridge) has been opened

e The introduction of international services to Ebbsfleet took place in November 2007,
with the grand opening of the new station in January 2008

e A funding bid was submitted to provide £7.1m improvements for Dartford Station
incorporating a new station building, a new forecourt area and better platform facilities
for rail users

Page 16



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

o At Northfleet Station a £8.3m project is about to proceed to a new, fully DDA (Disability
Discrimination Act) compliant station and a public subway providing more direct access
between Northfleet and Ebbsfleet stations for rail users.

Sittingbourne

Kent Science Park (KSP) is potentially a key economic driver for Kent by helping to increase
the number of new jobs and attracting new companies to the county in the knowledge or
science based industries. Recent developments at KSP include:

o The new Kent Science Resource Centre, which provides much needed technician
training to support the scientific industries on site and across Kent, is now affiliated to
the University of Kent. This helps support Towards 2010 target 6 on graduate retention

e An Economic Impact Assessment report (supported by KCC) has provided independent
scenarios as to how the KSP could develop to maximise its scientific and bio- sciences
base.

Other developments in Sittingbourne to support jobs and the economy include:
e Development of further training provision by KCC

e Completion of planning and design work for a transport node at Sittingbourne train
station to improve public transport access.

Isle of Sheppey
At Queenborough and Rushenden, KCC has supported courses to improve local skills and

training opportunities at the local Gateway Community Centre. Additional work is progressing
to investigate further courses and an apprentice training programme linked to the existing
Further Education Centre at Sheerness. However, following the radical restructuring of the
LSC's capital funding programme during spring 2009, and a recent Homes and Communities
Agency (HCA) prioritisation excercise, Swale Forward Board and partners, have unfortunately
been unable to progress the plans for Sittingbourne Learning Campus. In the meantime, the
Isle of Sheppey Academy has now been established and marks a step change in the provision
of education and skills in Swale and will be accompanied by very significant capital
investment.

Thanet

KCC is working with Thanet DC to enable regeneration opportunities at Manston. Working
through a joint venture company, East Kent Opportunities, achievements to date include the
following outcomes:

e Agreed a strategy for judicious land sales to encourage regeneration
e Pursuit of planning application at the Westwood site
o Two offers to purchase land received.
The Leader of KCC has also been in discussion with the Mayor of London about the

development of Kent International Airport as a regional airport and its potential in helping
alleviate the pressure on existing London airports.

Off-shore wind farms
To date the following has been achieved:

e At Ramsgate, more than 40 of the 100 foundation monopiles for the wind turbines are in
place for the Thanet Off Shore Wind Farm

e Project developer, Vattenfall, are soon to tender for the construction of a new operations
and maintenance base at Port of Ramsgate

Page 17



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Phase 1 of the London Array Offshore Wind Farm project has also started with the first
stage being the construction of the onshore substation at Graveney. Offshore
construction work is due to begin in 2011 following ecological and environmental
survey work

Starting work on the project will realise £300K for local community projects and work to
determine the local skills development and supply chain is being progressed.

Ashford

Ashford’s Future Company has been established to lead the delivery of the growth
agenda in Ashford. The key workstreams are development, economic development and
transport

The Ashford Ring Road restructuring was completed in 2007/08 with a two-way flow in
operation

Elwick Road Shared Space Scheme is substantially complete and has attracted
considerable interest in the national and local press and won several national awards

A Smartlink bid was prepared to significantly improve public transport in Ashford.
£16.7m of Community Infrastructure Funding (CIF) has been awarded for the
construction of support work at Victoria Way to open up land for investment and access
to car parking supporting Elwick Road that will make the area more attractive to
investment

Growth Area Funding is in place for work on the M20 Junction 9/Drovers roundabout

KCC is leading on the Gateway Plus project in Ashford to develop a new joint library,
adult education and registrar building (see also Towards 2010 target 29)

KCC has part funded, along with the Learning and Skills Council, a skills strategy for
Ashford. An action plan has been prepared and now needs to be delivered. Attention
has also been on establishing a Retail Skills Centre and work has been ongoing to
develop the concept and how it would be delivered.

What more are we going to do?

Future work programmes will be directed through the priority objectives in the Regeneration
Framework and its supporting policy and strategy base. This includes the following:

Across the county

We will have a major focus on the development of the Kent Sector Strategy, as a
commitment from the Regeneration Framework. The sector strategy will inform the
challenges facing each of the priority sectors and the support required to realise their full
growth potential

Take forward the ten commitments in the BKB and BKP campaigns

Explore with the Kent Foundation how to secure funding and further develop its
potential to deliver the important youth enterprise agenda

Continue to work with Kent universities to develop a response to graduate retention
through a new ‘Business First’ project to provide graduates opportunities during the
recession to work with Kent business

Continue to identify opportunities for workspace provision for small and start-up
companies

Page 18



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Support the development of the Innovation and Growth Team, to provide intensive
support to innovative and high growth potential companies in Kent. The programme will
commence from October 2009 and run for three years

e Assist development of an Innovation Strategy with a focus on Kent’s businesses. LiK
will continue to focus on emerging sectors which offer good prospects and quality jobs,
e.g. overseas companies which tend to involve bigger investments and higher quality
jobs than domestic investments, innovative products such as Launchpad, and ensuring
that investors, companies and intermediaries all understand the positive changes to
Kent’s business offer including hi-speed rail, new property products, and regeneration in
Kent’s towns.

Kent Thameside
e A new tariff policy will be developed by both Dartford and Gravesham BCs, through the
local delivery framework (LDF) process, to secure funding contributions from
developers for the Kent Thameside Strategic Transport Programme

e Subject to confirmation of funding, set up an Investment Fund for the Kent Thameside
Strategic Transport Programme

e Subject to the funding confirmation, commence work at Northfleet and Dartford train
stations

e Using £1.7m funding from DCLGs Parklands programme develop a new Cycle Activity
Park in Gravesham. The park will provide national standard cycle-sports and recreation
facility, and a key green space and Green Grid linkage, connecting Kent Thameside to
the surrounding countryside.

Swale
e Deliver two major road schemes - the Sittingbourne Northern Relief Road (SNRR) and
the Rushenden Link Road. Both schemes start in summer/autumn 2009 and finish in
2011

o  Working with partners, develop a training plan for Sittingbourne to improve training
provision and access to training opportunities

e With partners, continue to improve the tourism potential and ‘green profile’ of Sheppey
by developing a number of cycling/walking routes on the island under the ‘City to Sea’
initiative. The work will complete by March 2011 and will benefit tourism businesses
and local residents’ quality of life by promoting more healthy living.

East Kent and Thanet
o  Work with Thanet DC and the owners of Kent International Airport to ensure that
appropriate safeguards are put in place to offset the environmental impacts of the airports
expansion. In particular, engage in the development of the Surface Access Strategy for
the airport and ensure that this fits with Kent’s Integrated Transport Strategy

e Continue to work with partners to secure investment in Ramsgate to support the off-
shore wind farm developments to develop a base from which to attract complementary
business activities and support long-term sustainable jobs linked to the essential
operations and maintenance functions

e  Submit planning application for the EuroKent site in early autumn for a mixed use
development of the site providing wider regeneration benefits linking Westwood Cross,
Marlowe Academy, its Innovation Centre and the neighbouring Newington estate.

Ashford
e  With partners develop and deliver projects which will bring forward infrastructure and
town centre regeneration and employment opportunities, including a lead on Victoria

Page 19



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Way and Junction 9/Drovers roundabout, Eureka Business Park, Conningbrook and

Chilmington Green

e We are anticipating bids of over £30m for delivery of strategic highways schemes;

Junction 9 and Victoria Way

o Assist development of a Strategic Sites team that will provide an integrated approach
focusing on the key development sites for Ashford.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual Actual Target Actual Target
Number of jobs created/safeguarded 2,598 3,339 3,158 3,786 2,973%*
in Kent*
Number of new companies 64 66 70 70 70
investing in Kent *

*  Excludes Medway

** This is higher than in 2006/07 but lower than the last two years because of the predicted
difficult year associated with the economic slowdown

Monitoring completed by: Theresa Bruton, Mike Bodkin

Page 20

Date: 29 July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 3: Support a programme of town centre regeneration

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:
Kevin Lynes David Cockburn Theresa Bruton/Mike Bodkin

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Dover: Network Rail, Dover District Council, Dover Pride, London & Southeastern Railway Ltd
(LSER), East Kent Partnership and SEEDA.

Margate: Margate Renewal Partnership, Thanet District Council, GOSE, Turner Contemporary
Trust, SEEDA, Arts Council England, English Heritage, Homes and Communities Agency , KCC
Communities Directorate and Turner Contemporary Project Board.

Folkestone: Shepway District Council, English Partnership, SEEDA, and The Creative
Foundation.

Outcomes delivered so far:

The particular focus for this Towards 2010 target is Dover, Margate and Folkestone and
primarily concentrates on KCC's lead or contribution to the various projects. The
developments are set out below. Work in other specific areas of the county is also outlined in
this report.

Dover
KCC provides chairmanship of the Dover Pride partnership that oversees and promotes
regeneration in Dover town centre. Specific outcomes in Dover are as follows:

e In collaboration with Network Rail, Dover DC and Jacobs, we have been developing the
detailed designs for the £2.2m public realm improvements to Dover Priory Station
Approach project (work on site is due to get underway in September 2009)

e The Dover Sea Sports Centre opened in Summer 2009

e The expansion of the Western Docks, Terminal 2, scheduled to take place between 2011
and 2016, will provide local job opportunities in the construction, maritime and cruise
sectors

e KCC is pressing Government and the Regional Transport Board to improve the A2/M2
corridor between the M25 and Dover to encourage more traffic to use this route to access
the Eastern Docks

e KCC is leading on work on the provision of enabling transport infrastructure to support
the development at Whitfield, including securing £8m to provide transport improvements
across the town

e A successful bid to the Commission for the Built Environment (CABE) Sea Change
Programme for £7.75m will deliver substantial improvements to Dover’s waterfront and
the castle facilities and attractions to capitalise on the significant anticipated increases in
visitor numbers to the castle and cruise terminal by 2016

e On a wider scale, consultation is continuing with Dover’s business community regarding
labour and skills needs

e KCC is working with South Kent College to review its current performance and delivery
in order to raise the profile of the skills agenda in the area

Page 21



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

We are working with the Homes and Communities Agency, SEEDA and Dover DC to
provide a training centre and small business units at Aylesham funded by £8m DCLG
coalfield regeneration money. It is likely to include some provision for construction
training which would link to the proposed 1,200 unit housing development and will
probably involve local schools and FE providing the trainees. The development is
expected to begin during 2010.

Margate
KCC has largely focused its Margate regeneration activities on the town's eastern seafront, in

the area where the Old Town meets the sea between the Lower High Street, the Harbour Arm
and the Winter Gardens. The following progress has been achieved:

Funding was secured for construction work to begin on the Turner Contemporary
gallery in December 2008. Businesses and other investment have already been attracted
to Margate in anticipation of the gallery's completion in 2011 which will create many
more jobs. (See also Towards target 27)

A package of public realm work has been completed, creating stronger pedestrian
connections between the Old Town and the seafront. Fort Hill has been changed from a
dual to a single carriageway with associated upgrading of footpaths and public areas for
residents and improvements to entries to the Old Town along King Street and Duke
Street. The area has now become more open to the development of a stronger cafe
culture in anticipation of the opening of the gallery

KCC is working with CTM Architects to produce a hybrid planning application for the
Rendezvous site for a mixed-use development that will make a significant contribution
to meeting the running costs of the Turner Contemporary

A Wave 3 CABE Sea Change funding secured to create a bid under Wave 4 to bring
forward a Heritage Amusement Park around the listed Scenic Railway and to refurbish
the Grade II listed Dreamland building bringing these sites back into public use

Working closely with Margate Renewal Partnership, KCC is leading the delivery of a
parking, access and movement plan which to date has delivered major refurbishment of
the College Square car park, new approach car park signing, and identification of new
coach park for the town and revised signposting for pedestrians making it easier to travel
around the town and avoid congestion.

Folkestone
The programme is focused on the eastern side of Folkestone town centre where recorded
deprivation is high. Outcomes include the following:

The University Centre and new Adult Education Centre have just been opened, and the
Quarterhouse (formerly the Performing Arts and Business Centre (PABC)) will be
opened in March 2009 (see also Towards 2010 targets 1, 2, 6 and 25)

Folkestone was one of three towns, alongside Canterbury and Margate, promoted by the
Visit Kent Cultural Tourism project to support the coastal Kent cultural offer

The new high speed rail link from London, St Pancras International will open in 2009.

Swale

Sittingbourne Northern Relief Road scheme (SNRR) will enable Sittingbourne town
centre to be opened up for mixed-use development

KCC is promoting a range of projects including a community centre and potential café
linked to improved library facilities at Queenborough

Page 22



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

At Rushenden we are working with partners to develop a new school and
community/health centre linked to a proposed housing development of 2,000 units.

Gravesend

KCC is undertaking the refurbishment of the Old Town Hall building to provide community
facilities as well as commercial space for small businesses.

What more are we going to do?

Dover

Deliver Dover Priory Station Approach public realm improvements

Lead the work on a Marine Skills Centre and undertake a feasibility investigation (lead is
KCC Children, Families and Education directorate)

With partners work to improve the schools offer through the Building Schools for the
Future Programme and through the introduction of vocational diplomas

Provide input to the master planning of various sites including redevelopment of the
Connaught army barracks to provide 500 eco-homes, public realm projects in York
Street and the town centre, and environmental improvements to the Port area at Whitfield
through to Channel View Road

The scoping work for the development of the integrated passenger transit system is
underway. KCC and Dover DC are working to support a bid by English Heritage to fund
the system. The aspiration is to make this happen by the 2012 Olympics to showcase
both Dover and Kent.

Margate

Working with partners, we will continue to progress work on an increasingly pedestrian
friendly Eastern Seafront. The Turner build will be completed during 2010 (see Towards
2010 target 27) within an attractive public space and it is anticipated that plans will be
well advanced for the creation of a 3* plus hotel to the east of the gallery. Parking
provision will be improved and better signed for visitors

Specifically, during 2009, the mixed-use development on the Rendezvous site will be
taken forward, public realm work will be completed in front of the Droit House, a CABE
Sea Change bid will be submitted for the Dreamland site and a solution found for the
western gateway.

Folkestone

Continue to work with Shepway DC and Creative Foundation to realise the quality of
development in the Creative Quarter and proposals for the seafront (see also Towards
2010 target 6).

Ashford

KCC is supporting the developer partnering process for the Elwick Place site in Ashford
as the first key town centre regeneration site

Work has been ongoing to develop a high speed broadband strategy for Ashford,
ensuring that the infrastructure will be developed to put the town at the forefront of the
broadband revolution.

Measurable indicators:

None — This Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as having an ‘aspirational’ status
and progress is measured via qualitative means.

Page 23



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Monitoring completed by: Theresa Bruton, Mike Bodkin Date: 29 July 2009

Page 24



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 4: Support rural businesses and communities to build a strong entrepreneurial
culture

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Kevin Lynes David Cockburn Elizabeth Harrison

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

We are working with a plethora of rural stakeholders to take forward this target. Key partners
include:

Action with Communities in Rural Kent, Business Link Kent, Church in Society, Country and
Land Business Association, District Councils, GOSE, Kent Association of Local Councils,

Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, Kent Federation of Small Businesses, Kent
NFU, Kent Wildlife Trust, Produced in Kent, SEEDA, Emerging Local Action Groups of new
LEADER bids, Partnerships for the Mid Kent LEADER + and Kent Rural Towns Programme.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Support the Kent Action for Rural Retailers (KARR) initiative - KCC has supported the KARR
initiative to provide specialist retail advice to village shop owners and work with communities
to develop solutions to unplanned post office closures. In 2008/09, 203 visits were undertaken
to support 54 independent retailers remain in business across rural Kent. The initiative is now
fostering opportunities for village shop owners to network and exchange best practice e.g. a
new village shop retailer’s forum in west Kent.

Develop the Kent Rural Delivery Framework - We have worked with partners to develop the
Kent Rural Delivery Framework, an evidence-based, multi-agency plan for Kent’s rural areas.
This Towards 2010 target has been embedded and established as one of the priority actions
within the finalised framework and highlights the potential of rural enterprises to further grow
Kent’s economy.

Generate new rural funding:

o The Kent Rural Access to Services Programme has already supported the creation of one
community shop at Barham, which has also saved the village post office. Three more
community shops are currently in development and a community toolkit has been created
to support this process. The programme has also supported three entrepreneurial
community transport schemes and launched a promotion campaign to ensure greater
knowledge and awareness of existing community transport schemes (including Kent
Karrier)

e The LEADER+, Kent Rural Towns Programme and Rural Revival have delivered funding
to over 200 rural community-based regeneration projects and assisted a range of
community-led projects. Projects supported include:

e Wealden Wheels — a rural community transport initiative covering five rural
parishes to overcome access issues for older and younger members. The operation
is seen as an exemplar project

o Kent Food Trails project - four themed food trails promoting Kentish apples, wine,
beer and Romney lamb were developed to raise the awareness of the links between
Kent’s landscape and its local produce

Page 25



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e The Funding Buddies LEADER+ project was successful in generating an
additional £1million of funding for rural communities in Kent through successful
funding applications and has recently been awarded over £300,000 of lottery
funding to be rolled out across Kent

e The Sandwich Phoenix Centre project has created a refurbished space for youth
club activities, a drop-in centre, IT suite and a youth cafe. Renewable energy
technologies, energy and water saving measures and recycled materials have been
used throughout the building to minimise its environmental impact and reduce its
future running costs.

o The Kent Downs and Marshes Leader programme will bring in over £2m of new funding
to help rural businesses and communities to develop existing and new enterprises over the
next five years. To date, £150,000 in grant funding has been awarded to a range of
businesses and community projects in the LEADER area. Projects that have already
received funding include:

e Tilmangate Holiday Cottages — a farm diversification project involving the
construction of two environmentally sustainable holiday cottages in place of a
redundant barn. The cottages will be of traditional Kentish design and include
cutting edge energy saving systems, including sustainable drainage systems and
renewable energy generation (wind turbine and ground source heating), to
minimise running costs and any negative impact on the environment. The aim is to
make the project an environmental exemplar in holiday cottage lets, designed to
compliment and enhance the local and built environment

e Rippledown Environmental Education Centre - funding has been awarded for the
construction of a purpose built, straw-baled building containing two teaching
classrooms and a kitchen area for use in teaching the rural skills programme at the
centre. The construction of the building will be used as an exemplar of sustainable
building techniques providing 'on the job training' as well as a venue for teaching
courses.

e We have secured funding from the Commission for Rural Communities to develop a
‘rural business barometer’. This national pilot will seek to gauge the impact of the
economic downturn on Kent’s rural businesses.

Support Kent’s Rural Post Offices - To help mitigate the impact of recent post office closures
in Kent, along with partners, KCC launched a targeted business advice scheme for co-located
retailers. In addition, KCC organised a community summit with partners to examine the
opportunities for community enterprise-led solutions for communities affected by recent post
office closures. The scheme has helped support the development of a community run post
office scheme in Capel Le Ferne, a community café in Romersham and a new ready-meal
business in Bidborough. See also the reference to Barham post office on the previous page.

Support the land-based sector - KCC has also worked with the Kent Downs Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty Unit to pilot a new integrated approach to assist farmers wishing
to diversify in the Kent Downs. The scheme provides planning, environmental and business
advice to ensure that new farm-based business proposals are successful and well thought
through. An on-line toolkit has been published which is being cited as an example of regional
best practice.

Support Produced in Kent - Recent initiatives include:

e Launch of a new scheme in June to provide branded ‘Produced in Kent’ point of sale
materials for independent rural retailers

Page 26



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Media campaign in partnership with the ‘Kent on Sunday’ newspaper to promote
Kentish produce

Launch of two new food themed walking trails — Cherry Trail and a Seafood Trail.

What more are we going to do?

Complete an innovative rural economic study to quantify the size, shape and latent
potential within Kent’s rural economy. This will be used to feed into the sector strategy
and especially scope new initiatives to support the emerging, high-value home-based
rural business sector

Apply the findings of the research and the rural business barometer pilot to ensure that
key business support schemes and new policy developments, especially planning, meet
the needs of rural businesses and communities

Further develop the successful Kent Downs Rural Advice project and the Kent Action
for Rural Retailers initiative

Work with the Kent Rural Board and its business networks to support and help deliver the
rural dimension of the Kent Regeneration Framework, especially growing Kent’s £5.5bn
rural economy

Work with the Kent Rural Board to ensure that the planning system meets the needs of
rural businesses and communities and to continue to lobby for better broadband access
for rural areas (27% of Kent’s rural households currently have slow or no broadband
access)

Work with partners to successfully deliver the Kent Downs and Marshes Leader
programme

Continue to empower rural communities to develop entrepreneurial solutions to rural
access to services

Further develop the ‘Produced in Kent’ initiative.

Measurable indicators:

None — This Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as having an ‘aspirational’ status
and progress is measured via qualitative means.

Monitoring completed by: Elizabeth Harrison Date: 29 July 2009

Page 27



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 5: Ensure KCC uses its significant purchasing power to allow fair and open
competition

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Roger Gough Lynda McMullan Nick Vickers

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

‘Backing Kent Business’ campaign group incorporating the Chamber of Commerce, Institute of
Directors, SEEDA, Business Link, Federation of Small Businesses and University of Kent.
We are also working across the whole of KCC and thus engaging with our supplier base.

Outcomes delivered so far:

KCC Commercial Services procures high levels of goods and services from Kent-based
companies, for example: Kent Fleet (vehicles, supply and hire, maintenance and repair),
County Workshop (spare parts, tyres, windscreens and batteries), bus operators and taxi firms,
Landscape Services (grounds maintenance machinery, materials and equipment), and facilities
management.

A number of specific outcomes have been delivered as part of this Towards 2010 target as
follows:

Undertaken a review of the effectiveness of our approach - KCC spends £890m per annum on
goods and services with 90% of this spend in seven categories: adult social care, property,
highways, waste, IT, buses and taxis. Each of these categories has been subject to an external
review to look at the effectiveness of the overall approach taken to procurement and this has
identified many examples of best practice and highly effective procurement. Given how much
our service provision depends upon procurement this is a very positive affirmation of the
quality of the procurement work in the council.

Our procurement processes lead us in two main directions to achieve this Towards 2010 target:

e Procurement focused on SMEs (small and medium sized enterprises) - Large parts of our
procurement spend are already focused on SMEs, and by their nature with local
companies. The main areas where this applies are social care procurement, taxis for home
to school transport and the large property framework contracts which have recently been
reopened

e Major procurements with supply chain issues - Buildings Schools for the Future (BSF) is
an excellent example of where, because of its particular procurement processes, KCC has
been able to build in requirements for the use of local companies and the provision of
apprentice placements. Even in more conventional procurements such as the Highways
contract with Ringway and Jacobs there are significant supply chain issues, although
these cannot be stipulated in the contract, so Ringway use 55 small local sub-contractors
and 16 local suppliers putting an estimated £7m into the local economy. The contract
with Jacobs requires that 95% of the service is provided from Maidstone HQ and KCC
co-located offices to ensure local employment is supported.

Advertising tender opportunities - All KCC contracts valued at over £50k and not covered by a
framework contracting arrangement are advertised on the South East business portal. There are
now 1,452 Kent suppliers registered and as at June 2009 there were 12,848 visits by suppliers.

Page 28



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Paying suppliers in 20 days not 30 days - This is a tangible step to help suppliers’ cashflow
(see also Towards 2010 targets 1 and 2).

Delivery of the capital programme - The programme of £400m in 2008/09 and £450m in
2009/10 will provide employment opportunities for local firms in areas such as school
buildings, waste facilities, new road programmes, libraries and social care facilities.

Establish Property Enterprise Fund 2 - This ensures that the fall in commercial property and
land values does not reduce capital receipts and hold up the programme.

Expand the approved list of contractors - This is being done in the re-let managed by the
Property Group.

Establish Kent Business Support Centre - This is aimed at making it easier for local businesses
to get information. KCC already uses the Business Portal to advertise contracts over £50k and
KCC managers have been instructed to seek to use Kent companies for all sub £50k
procurements (see also Towards 2010 targets 1 and 2)

What more are we going to do?

The further achievement of this Towards 2010 target is now encompassed within the ‘Backing
Kent Business’ campaign. This is a multi-faceted programme aimed at supporting Kent
businesses through the recession. The main areas of activity which will now be delivered in
relation to this target are as follows:

e Increase the amount of our total spend spent locally - The spend data is being reanalysed
and we expect the proportion to have increased from 40% in 2007/08

e  Monitor spend - We will be establishing monitoring arrangements to ensure that the
instruction to give a priority to local companies for small contracts, below EU tendering
levels, is being enforced

e Encourage suppliers to operate apprentice schemes - As far as we can within EU public
procurement legislation we want to encourage local suppliers to operate apprentice
schemes in our tender documentation

e Streamline electronic tendering - Tendering arrangements can be onerous so we want to
streamline this for all suppliers through an eTendering module of the South East
Business Portal. It is small, primarily local, suppliers who find it the most difficult. This
should be live by late summer 2009

e  Maintain dialogue with suppliers - The Backing Kent Business campaign (see also
Towards 2010 targets 1 and 2) has been a very public declaration of KCC's commitment
to work with local businesses. This has meant that we have had much more feedback
from local businesses about what works and what doesn’t in how we procure and we
want to encourage this in the future

e Continue collaborative working with the Federation of Small Businesses - This is
particularly intended to help small businesses become part of the supply chain for larger
contracts with an initial piece of work being undertaken with Kent Highway Services

e Raise awareness of tendering opportunities - This relates to opportunities wider than
KCC and how Kent companies can be helped to win this business

e Continue to refine our data on procurement to give us better information on spend and in
particular local spend and we are working with the Federation of Small Businesses to
support their work on small and micro enterprises.

Page 29



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Measurable indicators:

None — This Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as having an ‘aspirational’ status
and progress is measured via qualitative means.

Monitoring completed by: Nick Vickers Date: July 2009

Page 30



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 6: Increase opportunities for graduates to work and live in Kent

Lead Cabinet Member: |Lead Managing Directors: Lead Officers:
Kevin Lynes/Sarah Hohler [ Rosalind Turner/David Cockburn Sue Dunn/Jim McKenzie

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Kent Higher Education and Further Education (HE/FE) sector, Higher Education Funding
Council, Department for Business Innovation and Skills

Outcomes delivered so far:

Increasing opportunities for graduates in Kent underpins the development of the knowledge
economy, which is vital to the future success of the local economy. The key is to increase the
pool of graduate talent, both locally grown and attracted from elsewhere, ensuring that the
development of graduate skills meets the needs of Kent business to enable innovation and
growth.

Achieving success requires a broad ranging approach which provides learners with the
appropriate attitudes and progression pathways for learning and skills development for the
workplace. Developing enterprise skills in young people, creating exciting and dynamic
environments for graduates to live and work, and increasing the opportunities for graduates to
live and work in Kent are all part of this process. In effect, there is a ‘journey of ambition’
which consists of three core strands:

e Schools and colleges developing the aspirations and positive attitudes of young people
and providing appropriate work-oriented learning and skills, leading through to graduate
level qualifications either through Kent universities or elsewhere

e Capturing and retaining these graduate skills through a dynamic Kent economy where
the graduate skills on offer meet business needs, and the business sector values what
graduates can bring to business growth

e Developing a supportive, creative and attractive environment in Kent where graduates
want to live and work and can realise their professional and personal ambitions.

KCC and its partners are delivering these strands through a variety of interventions and the
main outcomes are given below:

Schools agenda

Linking up the schools enterprise and vocational skills agenda with the involvement of real
businesses is important to the delivery of this target and KCC has been instrumental in the
development of the following:

e The Kent Skills framework is in the process of being developed with the Institute of
Education, London which will include Level 4 provision and enable schools to start
foundation degree modules in the sixth form. Foundation degrees are already being
developed at Invicta Grammar School, Maidstone

e School business incubator units have been developed at Abbey School, Faversham, and
Astor, Dover with real businesses linking with the education agenda

e New innovative vocational and technical training programmes are being developed by
KCC’s 14 to 24 Innovation Unit in a wide range of occupational sectors which will

Page 31



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

provide alternative progression into higher education (HE). These are being developed
by Kent and Greenwich Universities and include advanced apprenticeships

e  Work is taking place with the Kent Foundation in targeting young people to promote
enterprise skills and support business start-up activity. Targeted groups are school
leavers and graduates.

Universities and higher learning

The HE sector, of course, has a vital role to play in the provision and retention of graduates in
Kent and KCC has pursued a number of issues with the sector:

e Meetings have taken place with Kent universities to discuss graduate retention within
the county. They are already responding to the issues e.g. University of Kent has an
excellent careers advisory service which highlights opportunities in Kent. Liaison has
subsequently continued with the universities to explore further opportunities for
graduate retention. This work has been expanded because of the economic downturn
and the impact this has had on graduate employment opportunities

e The Kent Film Office (see Towards 2010 target 8) continues to develop the concept of a
‘Kent Creative Academy’ in association with Kent HE/FE sector to develop a single
‘front door’ entry for potential students of creative arts to profile the offer of Kent in a
co-ordinated way and importantly to link it with employers to increase opportunities for
Kent graduates to access Kent jobs

e KCC’s 14 to 24 Innovation Unit is working directly with the Kent Science Park to
expand the foundation degree programme and work directly with schools to promote
sciences as a positive career choice (see Towards 2010 targets 1 and 2)

e Negotiations have taken place with Portsmouth universities to provide foundation
degrees in Local Government for September 2009/10 for a target group of 20 within
KCC. This would provide a progression route for people working in KCC to achieve
graduate level qualifications.

Creating dynamic environments for graduates

e KCC is supporting the development of the Creative Quarter, Folkestone, led by the
Creative Foundation (see Towards 2010 target 3), a key regeneration programme
upgrading the urban fabric and providing workspace for the creative sector

e KCC is leading on the development of the Turner Contemporary (see Towards 2010
target 27), which will transform the offer of Margate as a place to invest and develop,
creating new job opportunities and developing the creative sector, one of the fastest
growing sectors in the UK economy with high graduate employment levels

e KCC acquired Manston Business Park, with the vision for it “to act as a significant
impetus to the regeneration of the Thanet and wider east Kent economy by the provision
of high quality employment land, and in turn high quality jobs, in a phased and co-
ordinated manner”. This follows the previous successful intervention by KCC in
developing King’s Hill. Manston Business Park is now part of a joint venture with
Thanet DC incorporating EuroKent business site to enhance the business and
employment opportunities with high quality jobs which will include graduate level jobs.

Creating graduate job opportunities

The creative sector is one of the most highly educated with 49% of the workforce educated to
graduate level or above. By 2014, projected demand within the UK is for 1.58 million

Page 32



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

employees at graduate level. KCC is seeking to expand this sector, and thereby graduate
opportunities through the following ways:

The Quarterhouse (formerly the Performing Arts and Business Centre (PABC)) at
Folkestone is providing workspace units adjacent to the new University College. (See
also Towards 2010 targets 1, 2, 3 and 25). The college and Quarterhouse are both in the
Creative Quarter. Some 16% of creative students look to establish their own business
upon graduating and it is well placed therefore to provide them with business
accommodation and start-up business support

KCC is developing the Kent Film Strategy to increase opportunities for Kent's creative
sector to be part of the film development process, and thereby to grow the sector (See
Towards 2010 target 8)

KCC is supporting MediaTree, for businesses in the creative sector to network with
each other to share best practice and encourage business growth. The University for the
Creative Arts (UCA) plays a leading role and is exploring opportunities for developing
a student/graduate placement scheme.

In addition to these four specific areas:

KCC continues to offer graduate opportunities through its Fast Track Graduate Scheme.
The two-year scheme is designed to ensure graduates learn a range of skills and gain
experiences to enable them to take on a managerial position within KCC. A wide range
of procedures/processes have been reviewed, developed and changed to enhance the
effectiveness and positive targeted outcomes of recruitment and selection and wider
workforce development initiatives. One example is the recent work on the age profile of
the workforce and the implications for succession planning

We also continue to work with Locate in Kent (see Towards 2010 targets 1 and 2) to
profile investment opportunities in Kent, focusing on key sectors such as media and
financial services which have high graduate inputs

A Dover Maritime Academy is currently being developed in conjunction with Warsash,
Solent University Southampton, Kent University and other partners. This will open in
September 2010 with the first courses which will offer level and degree programmes in
all aspects of the maritime trades. Major blue chip companies involved in maritime
trades are partners in this project

The National Skills Academies in construction are part of the Building Schools for the
Future programme and will deliver a range of degree equivalent courses within the work
place including foundation degrees. This work started in January 2009 and a number of
graduates have been offered placements on school construction sites

In September 2007 Pfizer announced that they were to cease manufacturing operations
at the Sandwich site with the loss of some 420 jobs. KCC and Locate in Kent are
working with Pfizer to see what alternative employment uses could be established on the
site vacated by the manufacturing operations. Potential exists, for example, for a
science park which would open up opportunities for graduates. Pfizer remains
committed to its research and development programme at Sandwich, which is one of
Pfizer's four key global research and development sites employing substantial numbers
of graduates. This is an important part of Kent’s knowledge economy

KCC has also been seeking to broaden the contribution of the wider knowledge
economy e.g. by supporting the media sector and the new sustainable technologies
sector. Potential also exists to boost the aviation sector at Manston in east Kent with
increased opportunities also being explored at Lydd. The aviation sector requires many
graduate level skills

Page 33



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

A workshop for students who graduated this summer and have not yet found
employment was held in July 2009. Over 25 graduates attended this session who will
now receive ongoing support from Department of Business Innovation and Skills, KCC
and the Innovation School.

What more are we going to do?

To establish an online resource for graduates in Kent, drawing together the range of
opportunities and support available into a single accessible location and promoting the
county as a destination for those seeking to establish graduate careers

This target ties in with delivery of Towards 2010 target 18 — see details on the planned
business conference on 4 December 2009

Expansion of the Foundation Degree Programme to include opportunities in sustainable
construction to be delivered through the National Skills Academy which promote
graduate opportunities via non-traditional routes while employed

A major creative and media event is to be held in the autumn which will promote the
graduate opportunities within this sector to 16 to 18 years olds

KCC’s 14 to 24 Innovation Unit will be promoting, through the new web site, ‘My
Right Turn’, which goes live next April, the FE sector degree programmes to ensure that
learners on the vocational programme are aware of the degree options being offered by
colleges (see Towards 2010 target 15)

A project with Locate in Kent and University of Kent is to explore the potential of the
university’s global alumni network to promote inward investment i.e. developing the
employment capacity of Kent knowledge economy

Investigate alternative progression routes into higher education by developing an
advanced apprenticeship programme e.g. an Open University for Apprentices

KCC is to develop a brokerage service to recruit the top graduates from across the
county to high quality work placements in Kent combined with a programme of cultural
activities to promote working and living in Kent.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/0712007/08 |12008/09 |2008/09 (2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target

UK graduate leavers in previous academic 3,565 | 3,730 | 3,877 *¢ 4,000
year who moved to employment in Kent

* Available late Oct 2009

Monitoring completed by: Sue Dunn/Jim McKenzie Date: 20 July 2009

Page 34



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 7: Fulfil Kent’s potential as a premier tourist destination

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Kevin Lynes David Cockburn Fran Warrington

Status: More progress needed
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Major stakeholder groups include Visit Britain; Visit England; Tourism South East; SEEDA,
Locate in Kent; Association of Tourist Attractions in Kent; Kent County Council: Kent TV;
Kent Film Office; Access Development; Sports, Leisure and Olympics, Arts and Culture,
Turner Contemporary; Kent district and borough Councils; Medway Council, Business Link
Kent; Comite Regionale du Tourisme, Comite Departentale du Tourisme Pas de Calais and
Nord; Westtour and partners; Visit Kent Investors.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Tourist-related business supports approximately 50,000 jobs in the Kent economy, which is 7%
of total jobs.

In 2008/09, the value of on line bookings made on the Destination Management System failed
to meet the target set (see PI table). It was directly affected by the current economic climate
including a cutback on the number of bed nights. Additionally, there has been an increase in
the number of commercial competitors including Expedia and lastminute.com. In 2009 we are
reviewing our role in this market to see if we can realistically compete and where we can add
value. Other Destination Management organisations have already taking different approaches
and are using different models from which we can learn.

Specific developments against this target are as follows:

Increased marketing - Research has demonstrated that £1.4million is generated into the Kent
economy generated through Visit Kent marketing per year. However, the ambitious target for
website visits wasn’t met in 2008/09 (see PI table), although there was a marked increase in
hits compared to previous years. To date:

e Visit Kent on-line bookings have generated £5,662,000 worth of income

e 12% of web enquirers visit Kent as a direct result of the information they received from
the Visit Kent website

e The Destination Management System is being developed enabling local information
which is input at a local level to be disseminated via constant datafeed to Kent TV
(What’s On), Tourism South East, Visit Britain and Enjoy England

e Research on the effectiveness of the Visit Kent Magazine as a marketing tool shows that
while 33% of readers were going to visit Kent before reading the magazine, a further
32% intended to visit in 2008 and 29% intend to visit in 2009.

Delivered specific campaigns — These include:

London Campaign - This was a three year campaign (2007 to 2009), supported by KCC and
Southeastern Rail, to encourage London residents to visit Kent by rail for day trips and short
breaks. Research demonstrated:

e 20% increase in travel to Kent as a destination

® 35% of those who saw the advert said they would now consider visiting Kent.

Page 35



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

European Campaign - This was a three year campaign (2008 to 2011) targeting European
markets of France Belgium, Netherlands and Germany. As a result:

e 28 new inward tour operator packages to Kent were created
e Over €1 million of press coverage was levered in through journalist visits

e Over €1 million worth of bookings to Kent were secured via Dutch Tour operator
‘House of Britain’ during 2008/09

o The trade activity stimulated by the campaign attracted international conferences

including Coach Tourism Council and Group Travel Organiser.

VIP Campaign - This campaign is a continuation of the three year campaign to position Kent
as the destination of choice for USA visitors focusing on famous people inspired by Kent. The
campaign has directly generated £1.7 million of business for Kent.

Delivered other innovative and opportunist campaigns — These include:

‘The Other Boleyn Girl’ campaign - in partnership with the Kent Film Office (see Towards
2010 target 8) which helped:

e Create a Hollywood Film location map for Kent
e Generate £745k directly into the local economy

e Generate £282k worth of press coverage.

The Cultural Tourism Campaign — which generated £929k through day trips and short breaks
to Kent.

The New Golf Campaign - in conjunction with the European Golf Championships Sandwich
Open in 2011 this is underway and to date has delivered:

e A guide to Kent golf courses

e A Micro Website

e Seven press trips for golf journalists hosted

e 15 new inward golf packages created in conjunction with tour operators

e A golf specific database

e 94% open rate to a targeted newsletter.
Cinque Ports Anniversary Campaign - with the historian Dr David Starkey and partnered with

Hastings BC and the Confederation of the Cinque Ports, this has delivered a new guide,
website, DVD and education pack for schools.

Cruise Campaign - The cruise economy is worth over £19 million to the Kent economy. The
Cruise campaign with the Port of Dover Kent showcased to cruise passengers what Kent can
offer. It involved:

e 7,225 independent passengers ‘greeted’ from 97 cruise liners
o Kent Shore excursions developed between Cruise Operators and Visit Kent

e Cruise web-site developed

Page 36



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Cruise data base created and mailed with a specific newsletter

e 900 high potential passenger contacts made.

Celebrating Kent - training and business support - This is an innovative programme raising
standards of customer service, and reminding all businesses and residents what fantastic assets
Kent has to offer. To date 281 businesses have participated.

Kent's Big Day Out - Kent resident familiarisation of what’s available is paramount and the
intention of this campaign is to encourage Kent residents to discover the attractions on their
doorstep in addition to the 32% of those visitors coming to Kent that stay with friends and
family.

e Previous success has encouraged the event to be held for a third year
e 150 tourism and leisure businesses are actively involved each year
e 12 local media partners are involved

e Over 47,000 free tickets are available overall with 22,922 residents enjoying a day out.

Due to the recognised success of the Kent campaign, Suffolk, Sussex and Nord Pas De Calais
are using skills and ideas created in Kent on a consultancy basis.

Kent Greeters Programme - The initiative is designed to improve the skills and knowledge of
Kent’s service sector business owners and employees and residents. People planning to visit
the area are invited to book a meeting with a local volunteer Greeter who will tell them about
local services and facilities. The programme was a first for Kent, Britain and Europe and came
second in the British Travel Writers Guild annual awards in 2008. A Kent Greeters microsite
has been developed to support the programme.

Due to the success of the programme Pas de Calais have launched a Greeters programme and
Brighton, London Development Agency, Visit Britain and SEEDA have requested advice from
Kent on a consultancy basis to implement Greeters in their area.

What more are we going to do?

e Further develop and extend the Kent brand

e Build relationships with partners in Europe by capitalising on the proximity of France to
develop new products and new unique selling points to improve Kent ‘s competitive
edge

e Support and strengthen investor/business liaison to increase the numbers participating in
Visit Kent activities

e Improve the quality of facilities and infrastructure to raise the quality of existing
businesses and actively seek entrepreneurs to develop new, individual and quality
products

e Promote skills development by supporting training of service sector employees in
customer care and product knowledge by 2012 and engage residents in visitor welcome

o Initiate engagement with young people in terms of career promotion, apprenticeships,
business/education liaison, tourism, visitor marketing, IT and skills

e Harness technology to market Kent and communicate with visitors.

Page 37



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual Actual Target Actual Target

Value of on-line bookings made on New £305,503 | £500,000 | £369,582 £lm
Destination Management System system
(cumulative since 2007/08)
Number of jobs in the visitor 49,555% 50,669 50,185 Available | 50,500
economy in Kent (Source in 2010
Cambridge Model)
Number of visits to Visit Kent 975,000 | 977,473 | 1,325,000 | 1,260,964 | 1,500,000

website

* Based on 2003 data

Monitoring completed by: Frances Warrington

Page 38

Date: 29 July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 8: Develop Kent as a major venue and location for film, television and creative
industries to benefit the Kent economy

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Kevin Lynes Peter Gilroy Tanya Oliver

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Kent Film and Television Board, Mediatree, Screen South, Visit Kent, Locate in Kent, Kent
district and borough Councils, Police, Highways, Maidstone Studios, National Trust, English
Heritage, Maeve Films, Courtyard Studios and the BBC.

Outcomes delivered so far:

o Since the launch of the Kent Film Office in 2006 it has brought £13 million (a
conservative estimate based on current information) into the Kent economy by attracting
film and television productions to the county and stimulating film tourism. It has also
facilitated 24 work experience places on productions such as ‘Little Dorrit’, “The
Calling’ and the new Lynda La Plante drama, and has hosted eight work experience
placements in the office

e The Kent Development Fund has been launched to invest in film and television
productions choosing to locate in Kent with the view of attracting more money into the
region. We invested in a local production company to produce a film entitled ‘The
Calling’. Our £75,000 investment made a £500,000 return into the local economy. The
film was premiered and short-listed for an award at the Edinburgh Festival this summer
and has help raise the profile of Kent as a premier filming location

e We successfully ran a tourism campaign in conjunction with Visit Kent to celebrate the
release of ‘The Other Boleyn Girl’. Visitor spend and PR generated around £1million for
Kent in one year

e ‘Film friendly’ documents have been written and are currently being signed by major
attractions, authorities and other relevant bodies to demonstrate to production companies
that Kent is a film friendly county

e We launched a prize draw, called ‘Close Encounters’, to encourage people to share their
stories and photos of when filming came to their town in Kent. The information collated
will be put together to form a Kent movie map to attract film tourism to the county.

What more are we going to do?

e Begin initial investment in film and television productions

e Secure more training opportunities for Kent residents on the set of visiting and local
productions

e Continue to deliver the Kent Film and Television Strategy

o Kent Film Office, together with KCC’s Arts Development Unit, Aim Higher and the
University of the Creative Arts (UCA) will produce a booklet which will inform students
of the routes they can take to find work in film and broadcast media

e Publish the Kent movie map following the completion of the ‘Close Encounters’ prize
draw.

Page 39



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual Target
Direct spend into Kent via the Film £1.2m £2.7m £4.5m £4.9m £6.0m
Office (cumulative since 2006/07) *

* Data revised following an audit to narrow the data down to confirmed known direct

expenditure. It is estimated that total economic benefits, including knock-on benefits to the
wider economy, may be double the above quoted direct spend figures, although wider benefits
are not precisely quantifiable. This PI does not include spend by crew on per diems (daily

allowance).

Monitoring completed by: Tanya Oliver

Page 40

Date: 30 July 2009 (updated September 2009)




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 9: Through our Kent Supporting Independence Programme, work towards
reducing the number of people dependent on welfare benefits

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:

Mike Hill Amanda Honey Pauline Smith

Status: More progress needed
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Department of Work & Pensions (DWP), Jobcentre Plus (JCP), Primary Care Trusts, Royal
British Legion Industries, Learning and Skills Council, central government departments,
employers, Kent Economic Board, KCC directorates, Slivers-of-Time, Kent Top Temps,
Connexions Kent, Kent Public Service Board, Kent Partnership and the private/business sector.

Outcomes delivered so far:

As can be seen from the PI table, the success of this Towards 2010 target is directly affected by
the current economic downturn being experienced, and therefore this has to be reflected in the
current status of this target. However, there have been some enormous successes delivered to
date:

Provided practical help for people who need it, helping individuals to move off benefits and
secure employment:

e  KCC has successfully tendered and won a contract to manage the Future Jobs Fund
(FJF) initiative across Kent. FJF (value £6.5 million over 18 months) will provide the
funding to cover the salary costs of 18-24 year olds currently unemployed and claiming
Job Seekers Allowance. FJF, which Kent will brand as ‘Backing Kent Jobs’, will
provide job opportunities for a maximum of 1,000 young people for a minimum of six
months in a variety of job roles. Posts will be paid at the national minimum wage

e Over 100 individuals secured full time employment and moved off Incapacity Benefit as
part of the Kent NOW initiative run between 2006 and 2008. The potential financial
saving to the public purse could amount to £5.8million (as per PSA2 Kent NOW
Incapacity Benefit report and finding)

e Through a variety of strategies, personalised support was provided to assist individual
Incapacity Benefit claimants with very complex needs. Many of these individuals had
been out of work for over five years and had lost all hope of ever returning to work

e Developed the innovative Health, Happiness and Wellbeing Programme of targeted
support for long term ill-health welfare benefit claimants which focuses on strategies to
empower individuals to return to work and liaises with employers to provide a range of
flexible work opportunities to assist those on the edges of the labour market back into
work. The programme started in spring 2008 and is being revised to include a web-based
element. It will be re-launched in October 2009

e Slivers of Time is a new, flexible way of getting people into work, launched in
Maidstone in March 2008. The scheme has been described as being based on the eBay
model of an online market place. Through the scheme, people can offer to work at times
to suit them by registering and noting the times they are available. Employers enter
details of work they need completing and the Slivers of Time database matches these two
requirements. It was developed as part of the Supporting Independence Programme
(SIP) and now managed by Kent Top Temps

e Folkestone Forward aims to deliver meaningful projects through sport and culture within
the four most deprived wards in east Folkestone. It is project managed by a dedicated

Page 41



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

SIP resource and specific projects will target three of the SIP Archetypes - young people
with low attainment and aspiration, welfare benefit claimants and vulnerable older people

e Motivational interviewing workshops were organised to help advisors engage more
effectively with their clients. Participants included staff from Sure Start, Kent Supported
Employment (KSE) and other KCC directorates. Due to the success and impact of this
event we are now developing a variety of themed events to support other organisations
such as Flexible New Deal (FND) providers

e SIP supported and advised the development of the content of the ‘Backing Kent People’
website (see Towards 2010 targets 1, 2, and 29) which was launched in April 2009.

Developed a deeper understanding of the issues, through focus groups, consultation events and
data gathering:

e SIP conducted a number of focus groups with people from all over Kent to help identify
the barriers they face in gaining employment. The focus groups were carried out with
lone parents, people with learning disabilities, people with drug or alcohol issues, carers
and incapacity benefit claimants. Views, opinions and insights were collected which
were shared with the organisations who deal directly with them. Plans are underway to
co-ordinate focus groups to gain information which will be used in the setting up of the
Kent Credit Union (see Towards 2010 targets 1, 2 and 61)

e We compiled a wide range of robust evidenced-based data and information relating to
welfare benefit spend, and welfare reform policy and strategy across Kent and the UK

e We managed and co-ordinated a wide range of consultation events to explore the views
of benefit claimants and the submission of all feedback into the corporate response to
the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) welfare reform consultation

e We co-ordinated a high profile seminar to highlight the specific needs and challenges
faced by the long term unemployed and long term ill health individuals for a wide
delegate list of employers, partners and stakeholders (DVD produced and procedures
designed).

Influenced policy and strategy at national and local levels:

e SIP leads and co-ordinates a range of innovative strategies to embrace and support all
aspects of key welfare reform. Expert support and the advice given to the KCC Leader,
Chief Executive, Cabinet and Chief Officer Group, internal and external partners and
stakeholders to strengthen the effectiveness and impact of associated service delivery to
support the welfare reform agenda is a fundamental aspect of the SIP strategic priorities
and accountabilities

e High-level discussions and engagement with government departments have taken place
to try to tackle the challenges and barriers encountered with the delivery of effective
welfare reform initiatives. These include LGA work on devolution of welfare reform to
local authorities, data sharing, and local freedoms and flexibilities

e KCC was selected as one of only three local authorities to explore the potential release
and sharing of a range of DWP and Jobcentre Plus (JCP) data

e We have contributed to the early exploration of opportunities related to regional
partnerships across the Thames Gateway and north Kent and Swale which have been
signed and submitted to central government

e  We support JCP as the lead partner for the outcomes on Kent Agreement 2 (KA2),
working with other key partners, to co-ordinate preventative strategies which stop

Page 42



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

people moving into a life of dependency with responsive work to support those already
on benefits into more independent lifestyles

Ensure that individuals and employers are unencumbered by bureaucracy to make the
transition to the workplace easier.

Shared best practice and enhanced Kent’s reputation:

A detailed report and case studies were produced to evidence positive outcomes and
strategies to develop when working with the Incapacity Benefits client group

SIP’s strategic contribution, vision and influence was specifically highlighted as
exceptional practice within the Authority’s CPA corporate assessment in 2008

The high profile publication of a booklet by the NLGN ‘The Local Journey to Work —
Localism, Welfare and Worklessness’ highlighting the wide range of welfare reform,
innovation and strategy was managed by SIP across Kent

A high number of visits/meetings from central government (Cabinet and Shadow
Cabinet), LGA, IDeA, NGLN all provided a platform for the Supporting Independence
Team to share KCC’s vision and the wide range of initiatives developed to increase the
support and opportunities available to individuals who are dependant on benefits. SIP
presentations have also been made at national conferences and workshops and articles
have been published in a wide range of national publications and journals.

What more are we going to do?

In partnership with JCP, tackle the current impact of the economic climate and identify
local solutions. Hit squads, active response teams and other initiatives to support
individuals and organisations are currently being considered

KCC’s SIP team will co-ordinate the FJF programme, matching job opportunities within
employer settings to suitable young people

Review Flexible New Deal (in October 2009) and other countywide JCP provision and
outcomes e.g. Pathways to Work. All national and local JCP-commissioned
programmes are performing well below agreed targets and the impact on individuals and
partners is under review and scrutiny

From December 2009 new support centres will be replacing programme centres, aiming
to enable JCP staff to call on provider services before a client reaches 12 months on
benefit. Flexible New Deal support is available

Explore with DWP and JCP local flexibilities required to embrace the development of
Apprenticeship opportunities for 16 to 24 benefit claimants

Continued support and co-ordination of KCC’s ongoing priority for devolved
responsibilities and accountabilities relating to DWP freedoms, flexibilities and
commissioning

Manage the roll out of the DWP data sharing pilot, findings and evaluation with central
government (Thanet)

Support the high profile awareness of the range of JCP financial incentives and benefits
established to support employers to provide opportunities for benefit claimants

Work alongside colleagues in Kent’s Integrated Workforce Planning Group (public
sector) promoting good practice and strategy relating to workforce development

Page 43



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Further development of KCC Employability group and local employer engagement
forums in addition to the JCP Local Employment Partnership (LEP) initiative

e Continue to support, develop and co-ordinate KCC’s ‘Backing Kent Business’
campaign and the vision and outcomes within KCC Regeneration strategy

e Increase engagement and involvement of ex or current benefit claimants in SIP welfare

reform activities and strategy

e Greater engagement of Kent Public Service Board and Kent Partnership in all aspects of

welfare reform and benefit spend in Kent

e Work closely with the health authority, other associated agencies and GPs to review
how they can help to get people back into work and liaise with employers to provide a
range of flexible work opportunities to assist those on the edges of the labour market
back into work. The SIP Health and Wellbeing project commenced summer 2009 and

will be rolled out this autumn

e Co-ordinate and manage a high level group of stakeholders to agree and develop a Kent

Employment Engagement Strategy which will bring about a strategic, joined-up

approach for Kent employers. This will enable them to engage more successfully with
programmes and initiatives to bring most benefit to people who are furthest away from

the labour market

e Work in partnership with other public sector partners on ‘Thanet Works’, an initiative

aiming to help people into training, education or work, to ensure effective use of

resources stemming from the Working Neighbourhoods Fund, targeted at the areas of

highest deprivation in Thanet

e Continue the excellent partnership with Swale BC in introducing an innovative
employment engagement project for Swale, and the Folkestone Forward Project.

Measurable Indicator (s) Aug Aug Aug Aug Feb Aug
2006 2007 2008 | 2009 2009 2010
Actual | Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target
Average weekly benefit spend in £531Im |[£5.20m [£5.25m To * To
Kent on working age benefits at reduce reduce
2006/07 prices (Incapacity Benefit,
Income Support)
Number of claimants of key working 83,040 (79,900 (80,400 To 93,130 To
age benefits (Incapacity Benefit, reduce reduce
Income Support, Job Seekers
Allowance and others on income-
related benefits)
Claimants in statistical category of 66,100 66,450 [66,230 To 67,040 To
incapacity, lone parent or other reduce reduce
Claimants in statistical category of 16,930 |13,450 [14,170 To 26,090 To
job seekers reduce reduce

* Data no longer comparable due to introduction of Employment and Support Allowance
(ESA) which replaced Incapacity Benefit and Income Support for clients with incapacity from
October 2008. Data on spend on ESA is not currently available.

Monitoring completed by: Pauline Smith

Page 44

Date: July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 10: Improve the quality of early years education by strengthening the links
between pre-schools/nurseries and primary schools, thereby improving children's ability
to learn when they enter primary school

Lead Cabinet Members: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Sarah Hohler Rosalind Turner Peggy Harris

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

KCC’s Educational Psychology service, Libraries service and Adult and Family Learning
service, 71 schools and 177 settings in the Surestart areas of Swale, Gravesham and Dover. 15
schools and 35 settings in the areas of Dover and Maidstone. 24 schools and 32 settings in
Gravesham, Professor Ferre Laevers, Leuven University.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Kent recognises that good quality early years education is a critical factor in developing a
child’s receptiveness to learn, building social skills and encouraging good behaviour, all of
which are essential elements to improving a child’s ability to learn when they enter primary
school. To support children to achieve we need to ensure that sufficient early years provision
exists and is of the highest quality. To date Kent has:

e Increased access to early years provision reaching over 42,000 children, doubling our
nursery classes to 70 and the planned creation of over 100 children’s centres

e Exceeded, one year early, the government target for the proportion of children accessing
early years education (89.6% 3 year olds and 95% 4 year olds) and increased the take
up of places by historically under-represented minority communities

e Developed a Strategy for Early Education and Childcare to support the emotional and
educational development of young children

e Worked with internationally renowned experts to develop new ways to improve the
quality, well being and engagement of young children

e Extended the ‘Leuven Project’ to 71 primary schools in Swale, Dover and Gravesham
as well as pre-schools/nurseries to enable the authority to strengthen the links between
schools and settings through joint training, network meetings and shared resources.
This training is enabling schools to use the Leuven Scales of Involvement, an
assessment tool that quantifies children’s levels of engagement and involvement. It is
known that when these are high so is a child’s capacity and receptiveness for learning.
These tools are also used to identify children with low levels of engagement and
involvement and identify actions to improve levels

e Seen an improvement in early years settings as evidenced by the improvements in
OfSTED inspection outcomes. For the inspection period September 2006 to August
2007 the number of settings graded outstanding was 3%, 51% were good, 41% were
satisfactory and 6% were inadequate. A new inspection framework was introduced in
September 2008 and outcomes for the inspection period until May 2009 has seen a
substantive shift in quality with 20% graded outstanding, 54% good, 24% satisfactory
and 3% inadequate. This will provide improved continuity for children into the primary
phase

Page 45




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Established a team of 23 early years advisory teachers and 25 special educational needs
co-coordinators in pre-school settings to work within their partnerships to provide links
between pre-schools/nurseries and schools. These teams are supported by a team of 75
designated leading early years practitioners employed by a range of schools, pre-schools
and maintained nurseries. They are quality assured by the Early Years (EY) team and
receive training to provide additional capacity at ‘partnership’ level to deliver specific
and targeted support to pre-schools/ nurseries where there is a clear need to improve
quality

Improved Kent’s Early Years Foundation Stage Profile for the second year in
succession. In the thirteen aspects of learning that are assessed at the end of the
reception year, twelve demonstrated improvement in 2008. Kent’s performance in the
percentage of children achieving the expected level in Foundation Stage was better than
nationally in eight out of the thirteen areas

Targeted 73 schools that had the highest percentage of children whose Foundation Stage
Profile scores were in the lowest 20%. Improvement in the expected levels in 2008
equates to an additional 525 children across Kent achieving a total of 78 points and at
least six points in both PSE (personal, social and emotional development) and CLLD
(communication, language and literacy development). The greatest improvement was
seen in linking sounds to letters with a 5.1% increase in 2008 making a total of 10.4%
improvement over two years. Boys made a 2.4% increase in writing and girls improved
by 3.4%

Seen continuous improvements in relevant National Indicators (NI) 72 and 92 with
excellent results for 2008/09 demonstrating a strong link with improved Ofsted
inspections and performance. NI 72 - Achievement of at least 78 points across the Early
Years Foundation Stage with at least 6 in each of the scales in PSE and CLLD — has
increased from 43% in 2006/07 to 50.8% in 2008/09. NI 92 - Narrowing the gap
between the lowest achieving 20% in the Early Years Foundation Stage Profile and the
rest — has decreased from 33% to 30.5% in the same timescale

Continued to increase the percentage of settings with working links to schools, as can be
seen in the PI table. Key work that strengthens the links between schools and settings is
the Kent Early Years Record of Transfer, which is shared and discussed when children
move from setting to school. This record is completed for all children, including those
with specific needs and includes parent’s contributions

Developed a further project, ‘My Unique Story’, which includes observations of
children younger than three, which builds on the current Kent Early Years Record of
Transfer and has involved pre-schools/ nurseries and schools in the Shepway and
Tonbridge and Malling Local Children’s Services Partnerships (LCSPs)

Expanded the CLLD project in the Dover and Maidstone areas to include the 35 main
feeder early years settings that link to the 15 schools in the project. In September 2008 a
new CLLD project was established within the Gravesham LCSP developing
collaborative working across schools and early years settings through joint training and
exchange visits. This work has been successful and improvements for children in Kent
are above the national and regional averages for those authorities in this project

Developed a single comprehensive data set for every pre-school nursery which
incorporates OfSTED outcomes, a local authority alert system, records of visits and
outcomes of the Early Childhood Environmental Rating Scale (ECERS) quality audit.
Early years settings have been given feedback on the ECERS audit and supported to
develop a focused action plan that prioritises key issues for the provision

Continued to develop new ways of working to share good practice and expertise in
partnerships with private, voluntary and independent pre-school providers. Early years

Page 46



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

settings and schools in the LCSPs of Thanet, Dover, Tunbridge Wells, Malling, Shepway
2, Tonbridge, Deal and Sandwich have undertaken a project entitled ‘Seeing is Believing’
which focuses on observations of children linked to assessment and children’s individual
progress

e Developed the Kent Quality Mark (KQM), currently being piloted in maintained
nursery classes and settings which incorporates key strategies and programmes in use in
Kent. KQM utilises the tools of ECERS and the Leuven Scales of Involvement and
links these to the ‘Every Child Matters’ outcomes and the statutory Early Years
Foundation Stage requirements (implemented from September 2008). This process will
support settings in becoming more confident in their self-evaluation and improvement
planning

e Continued to be innovative and influence national developments in early years. The
Leuven Project work undertaken in Kent has been shared both nationally and
internationally through conferences including the European Early Childhood Education
Research Association and the OECD Early Years Conference

e Continued to be at the forefront of national developments in early years through the
introduction of the Improvement Partner Role for settings. This work is being followed
closely by other local authorities and several have visited Kent to look at this work. The
Early Years team received in 2009 the CFE Quality Award for their work in this field.

What more are we going to do?
Evaluating and disseminating work from the partnership projects and Kent projects including:
e Further improving take up of free early education by vulnerable and minority groups by

raising awareness of early years settings and schools

e Increasing multi-agency engagement between early years settings and schools to help
secure rapid and sustained improvement and narrow the variation between partnerships

e Beginning to set partnership-specific targets for improving quality in pre-schools and
nurseries

e Further reducing the number of ‘inadequate’ Ofsted early years settings

e Continuing to develop and extend the Leuven Project and support practitioners in pre-
schools/nurseries and schools to implement the Leuven principles and the Statutory
Early Years Foundation Stage Framework

e Delivering the CLLD project with early years settings and schools linked in further
areas where attainment is low

e Expanding and building on the Early Years Forum Partnership groups providing shared
training and facilitating joint working

e Further improving quality through the phased implementation of the early years setting
improvement partner role

e Building further capacity in partnerships by developing a process to accredit practitioners
in early years settings as SIPs.

Page 47



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

with working links to schools

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006 | 2007 | 2008 2009 2009 2010
Actual | Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target
Percentage of early years settings 5% 17% 28% 30% 35% | 35%*

NB There are 744 settings in total plus 20 Children’s Centres

* Target revised upwards from 30%

Monitoring completed by: Jennie Landsberg

Page 48

Date: 28 July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 11: Help and inspire all our children to do well, with a particular focus on
ensuring that the results our seven and 11 year-olds achieve at Key Stage 1 and Key
Stage 2 improve faster than the national rate

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:

Sarah Hohler Rosalind Turner Peggy Harris

Status: More progress needed

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:
Kent schools and Local Children’s Services Partnerships (LCSPs)
Outcomes delivered so far:

Some improvement has been made but this has not been consistent or across the board. We
have only one more year left to achieve this Towards 2010 target.

Key Stage 1- This part of the Towards 2010 target has not consistently been met. The Level 2
results for Kent in 2009 for 7 year old children maintained the standards achieved last year in
reading, keeping it in step with the national position, fell behind the national rate for writing but
moved slightly ahead of the national rate for mathematics. It should be noted that at the higher
Level 3, results for reading, writing and mathematics are all above national levels.

During the year, the capacity of LCSPs to improve reading has been enhanced by training 23
reading recovery teachers as part of the ‘Every Child a Reader’ programme with a further 24
reading recovery teachers being trained. Sixty six schools are currently implementing the
‘Every Child a Reader’ programme and by July 2011, around 90 Kent schools will have one or
more trained reading recovery teachers in place.

Accelerated progress was made by 73% of children on the Reading Recovery programme in
2007. In 2008 that figure increased to 77% and initial indications for 2009 are that 80% of
children will have made accelerated progress.

A pilot ‘Numbers Count’, part of the ‘Every Child Counts’ programme, began this year which is
aimed at improving achievement in mathematics for 7 year olds. Statistics from that pilot
indicate that children’s progress was accelerated by average gains of 14.4 months from 20 one
to one sessions.

Key Stage 2 — This part of the Towards 2010 target has not been met. English results declined,
although they also declined slightly nationally at Level 4 and a large number of schools have
submitted written papers for re-marking as many errors were found. The Level 4 performance of
mathematics remained at the same level as last year in line with the national results.

Nearly 450 schools participated in training programmes to implement the New National
Framework for both literacy and mathematics. The Primary Excellence team and National
Primary Strategy team provided additional training for teachers of children in Year 6 to further
develop strategies to raise attainment.

Ofsted inspections have shown improvements in primary schools from 2006 to 2009:

2006/07 2007/08 Sept 08 — July 09**
Number inspected 153 188 130

Page 49



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

2006/07 2007/08 Sept 08 — July 09**
Inadequate™ 7% (11 schools) 3% (6 schools) 3% (4 schools)
Satisfactory 46% 44% 38%
Good 38% 44% 48%
Outstanding 9% 9% 11%
Percentage Good or
Better 47% 53% 59%

*  Refers to number of schools placed in category during the year
**  Awaiting four inspection reports

What more are we going to do?
e Support our most vulnerable schools to improve their performance

e Informally link our more successful schools with other schools to share their good
practice

e Work with LCSPs to identify good practice and share it across all schools

e Increase the number of schools using Reading Recovery and the mathematics equivalent,
‘Numbers Count’

e Support schools to develop a more creative curriculum while still maintaining standards
in English and mathematics

e Further develop opportunities for children in care, from ethnic minorities and with
additional educational needs

e Use School Improvement Partners to set challenging targets with schools and make sure
they have an effective system in place to track children’s progress towards them

e Continue to implement a differentiated programme of support in targeted schools from
September 2009 as part of Kent’s Improving Schools Programme (KISP) including:

o Intensifying Support Programme — 44 schools
e Ensuring Success — 32 schools
e Leading for Impact (a Primary Excellence Project) — 53 schools

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006 | 2007 | 2008 | 2009 | 2009 | 2010 Target

Actual |Actual | Actual | Target |Actual

Percentage of pupils achieving

Level 2 and above in Key Stage 1:

Reading (national rate in brackets) 83% 82% 84% | N/A | 84% | Improvement
(84%) | (84%) | (84%) (84%) | relative to

Writing (national rate in brackets) 78% | 79% | 80% | N/A | 79.4% | national rate
(81%) | (80%) | (80%) (81%)

Mathematics (national rate in 90% | 90% | 90% | N/A | 89.3%

brackets) (90%) | (90%) | (90%) (89%)

Percentage of pupils achieving

Level 4 and above in Key Stage 2 : Improvement

English (national rate in brackets) 77% | 77% | 79% | N/A | 77% | relative to
(79%) | (80%) | (81%) (80%) | national rate

Mathematics (national rate in 2% | 73% | 75% N/A | 75%

brackets) (76%) | (77%) | (79%) (79%)

Percentage of pupils achieving 66% 67% 69% | 77%* | 68% Improvement

Level 4 or above for both English | (70%) | (71%) | (73%) (72%) | relative to

and mathematics in Key Stage 2 national rate

Page 50




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

[ tests (N173) | | | | | |

* Target shown for 2009 is set by Department of Children, Schools and Families — but this
Towards 2010 target is for faster-than-national increase which is our local target

Monitoring completed by: Keith Ransom Date: 25 August 2009

Page 51



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 12: Work with headteachers to encourage a zero tolerance approach towards
disruptive behaviour, bullying and vandalism in our schools

Lead Cabinet Member:

Sarah Hohler Rosalind Turner

Lead Managing Director:

Lead Officer:

Joanna Wainwright

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Anti-bullying strategy group, schools, Clusters, Youth Offending Service, Police, Connexions,
Healthy Schools, social services, Fire Service, Alternative Curriculum, Youth Justice Board and

Youth Service.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Bullying

e There has been a reduction in the percentage of children and young people’s perception

of bullying as can be seen from the table below:

On-line bullying survey results Nov 2006 | Nov 2007 | Nov 2008
Number of pupil responses 6,017 6,419 8,246
Number of schools taking part 230 146 239
Percentage of pupils who had ever been bullied 55% 51% 50%
Percentage of pupils who were still bullied 29% 25% 12%
Percentage of pupils who thought their school was 76% 77% 85%
good at dealing with bullying

There has been an increased level of participation by children and young people taking
part in this on-line bullying survey and their views have been used to inform the
development and implementation of Kent’s anti bullying strategy and policy. (See also

Towards 2010 target 14)

e KCC'’s anti bullying strategy covering schools and settings was approved in 2007 and a
model school anti-bullying policy was developed in 2008. Kent Safeguarding Children’s

Board (KSCB) anti-bullying multi-agency policy was approved in June 2009

http://www.kenttrustweb.org.uk/UserFiles/KSCB/File/Policies/AntiBulling Policy APPR

OVED.pdf

e An anti-bullying co-ordinator is in post to support schools to develop effective anti-
bullying policies and practices across the county and a pilot has been delivered in two
pilot Local Children’s Service Partnerships (LCSPs) (Swanley and Dartford East) with
all schools gaining Kent Safe Schools (KSS) accreditation. The pilot has been expanded
to Maidstone 1 and Dover LCSPs plus an additional 36 schools across the county and
over 130 schools now have or are working towards KSS Anti-Bullying accreditation. The
pilot will be offered to individual schools across the county in 2009/10 whilst providing
ongoing support to existing accredited schools. Several special schools have also
expressed an interest in participating and the criteria are being adapted to meet their

needs

e Focus groups undertaken in early 2009 by Ipsos Mori provide qualitative research with
young people to help inform the Children and Young People Plan review and needs
assessment. In addition, Kent’s children and young people’s survey (of over 40,000

Page 52




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

children and young people) included questions relating to bullying, the results of which
have and continue to inform both strategic and local planning (see also PI table)

e There has been an encouraging result for National Indicator 69 (Children who have
experienced bullying) as follows - Kent 46.7%, statistical neighbours 49.9%, national
48%

o Kent is part of the south east Anti-bullying Alliance which supports authorities in
learning about new developments and sharing best practice

e During Anti-bullying week KSS services were delivered in over 40 schools to promote
anti-bullying and all LCSPs were given support, advice and guidance to help the delivery
of projects during that week

e Restorative Justice accreditation is being developed in six Kent schools with further
support and training being offered to schools across the county.

Disruptive behaviour and vandalism

The main approach of the anti-bullying co-ordinators is to embed low level intervention through
schools in the diverse areas of the anti-bullying accreditation scheme. This is enhanced by
effective partnership working with others including Healthy Schools, Connexions, Kent Youth
County Council, Extended Schools, Eco Schools, as well as contact with other local authorities
to utilise experience and develop best practice at a national level.

Restorative approaches are being piloted as a tool for repairing harm in school and other
educational settings. This action is still in the early stages of development so it is too early to
report on impact but examples of activity have included:

e The Launch Pad - a primary phase project aimed at pupils who have received fixed-
term exclusions using restorative approaches to successfully reintegrate pupils back
into main stream school life

e Awareness-raising with schools about the use of restorative approaches, including a
‘Managing Incidents’ conference and headteachers’ briefings

e Development and production of restorative justice booklet ‘Developing a restorative
culture in schools’.

Other initiatives promoted through the Advisory Service Kent include:

e Social and Emotional Aspects of Learning (SEAL) Programme: 75% of
primary schools and 50% of secondary schools in Kent are engaged in this programme

e Promoting vertical tutoring systems (creating mixed age group structures) which are
having a positive impact on behaviour with Years 10 and 11 taking strong leadership
roles with younger students

e A general focus on improving teaching and learning, concentrating on reducing
disruptive behaviour in classrooms by making lessons more engaging.

These interventions seem to be proving effective leading to a reduction in the number of school
vandalism claims:

2008 2009
Primary 104 50
Secondary 58 27

In addition, NI 86 - Secondary schools judged as having good or outstanding standards of
behaviour is showing an improving trend in Kent since 2006/07.

Page 53



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

What more are we going to do?

Roll-out safe partnership accreditation to increased number of partnerships across the

county as well as support offered to two schools in each LCSP

Continue the online survey and extend to include parents

Develop plans to mainstream accreditation and offer to all Kent schools

Support in every school during anti-bullying week

Share accreditation process with other authorities.

been picked on or bullied at school

Measurable Indicator (s) 2007 | 2008 2009 | 2009 | 2010
Actual | Actual | Target| Actual | Target
Percentage of pupils aged 11 to 16 who find 54% 52% | 50% * 49%
other pupils being disruptive a barrier to learning
Percentage of pupils aged 11 to 16 who have 31% 29% | 28% * 27%
been bullied in the last year
Percentage of pupils aged 7 to 11 who have 38% 37% | 35% * 34%

NB Sample survey of 31,000 Kent primary and 10,000 Kent secondary school children

* Next survey due in autumn 2009

Monitoring completed by: Peter Heckel

Page 54

Date: 14 July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 13: Continue to offer and develop further multi-agency support to parents by
helping them with the problems they and their children face in everyday life

Lead Cabinet Member: | Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:
Sarah Hohler Rosalind Turner Marisa White/Des Crilley

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Adult Education, Libraries, Youth Offending Service, Kent Safe Schools, Kent Drug and
Alcohol Team (KDAAT), Children’s Centres, Extended Schools, Attendance and Behaviour
Service, Parenting Order team, Youth Service, Early Years and Childcare, Advisory Service,
Youth Service, district councils, Health, KCC social care colleagues (both for children’s and
adult services), Teenage Pregnancy unit, Healthy Schools, Social Innovation Lab Kent, various
voluntary and community based organisations.

Outcomes delivered so far:

We continue to focus on preventative strategies, making sure help is available at the earliest
possible opportunity to respond to families in need and those who are vulnerable, including:

o Ensuring that all parents have access to antenatal and new born screening, including the
child health promotion programme that is offered to every child from birth to 18 years

e Increased participation in family learning and parenting programmes, attracting new
learners and families. Kent Adult Education Service has had just under 7,000 learners
engaged on family programmes this year, with in excess of another 4,000 through
family programmes with Kent Children’s University and Children’s University in
Schools. Evaluation results show parents have reported increased confidence in their
own parenting abilities and improved relationships with their children as a result in
engaging with both family learning and parenting opportunities. A number of the family
learning programmes develop literacy and numeracy skills, improving parents’ ability to
deal with everyday life and work situations and to move onto further learning. Family
and adult learning opportunities have also been expanded through Children’s Centres
where literacy, language, numeracy, IT and financial education opportunities are
available

e Expanding the numbers of Family Liaison Officers (FLOs) and Parent Support Advisers
(PSAs) (now 240) working to support parents and enhance relationships and
communication between parents and schools. This has lead to an increase in the number
of families accessing the most appropriate support from agencies, increased engagement
of parents with schools and with their children’s learning. Over 12,500 parents accessed
support and advice through their FLO or PSA this year. There is a particular focus on
ensuring that parents are informed and supported particularly when their children are
starting school or moving from primary to secondary education and this support is now
available in over 200 schools and through all 23 LCSPs

e  Growth in the number of Children’s Centres (now 72) enabling improved local access to
services and a range of support for families of children from 0 to age 5

e A pilot programme appointing three PSAs to work with excluded children and their
families, families of those at risk of exclusion and families with children out of school.
This was requested as a result of consultation with parents who wanted to have a link
professional to help them access the support they needed when they did not have the

Page 55



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

usual school support systems around them and this is now operating in Dover,
Gravesham, Thanet and Maidstone. These PSAs are currently working with in excess
of 30 families

e Expansion of the Family Group Conferencing (FGC) service and approach which works
with the wider family both to keep children safe within their own family setting and
reduce their chance of going into care, and brings in the wider family to support the
child/children at an earlier stage. The service has expanded to Ashford and Thanet to
include schools access to FGC approaches to deal with children with lower level
concerns such as absence or behaviour issues. A full independent assessment has been
completed which demonstrates the success of this method

e  Successful pilot of ‘Parents as Partners in Early Learning’ which has been operating in
12 Children’s Centres in Gravesend, Swale, Thanet and Dover with 185 parents
accessing the programme. Evaluation has resulted in parents reporting increased
confidence in their parenting abilities and improved understanding of their children’s
emotional development and needs, as well as improved ability to support their
children’s learning

e A new brokerage service offered by our Children and Families Information Service is
helping parents who are finding it difficult to access the childcare they need. This is
particularly useful for those single parents who need to return to work due to benefit
changes. 26 parents are currently accessing the brokerage service.

What more are we going to do?
We will undertake the following:

e Establish ‘Team Around the Family’ within LCSPs to ensure holistic family support

e Base family support workers in Children’s Centres serving the most deprived
communities

e Increase Children’s Centres from 72 to 102 with robust monitoring and evaluation in
place and parental involvement built into the way they work

e Strengthen the links between Extended Schools and Children’s Centres to ensure that
support to families across the age range is joined up and makes sense to families. Work
in developing best practice in service delivery across Children’s Centres and Extended
Schools is taking place in three centres and is being supported by an external
organisation

e Link the review of services for vulnerable children and families, putting in place a
robust approach to ensure that we can measure the impact of services and the difference
they are delivering for families. This will need to be linked to the work of the Care
Quality Commission in Health which is looking at indicators that will help in the
measurement of impact. We will also take account of the monitoring requirements for
Children’s Centres where the new database will be able to record their work against
Every Child Matters outcomes and the measurement of outcomes linked to the Parent
Support Strategy implementation plan and its links to national indicators

e Ensure that children and young people who are excluded or are out of school can still
access a range of extended services and opportunities and that these are resulting in
reintegration into school or college and improved education and vocational outcomes
for these young people

Page 56



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Capacity building of parents/carers and young people to be part of the delivery of local
support services and building in future community sustainability and local leadership to
tackle issues and provide support from within communities themselves

e Improve support to parents/carers whose children are excluded in order to help them
support their children to make a successful return to education

e Increase places and opportunities for children to play and young people to engage in a
range of positive activities.

e Improve access to leisure opportunities and extended services for children and young
people with disabilities and successful implementation of the disadvantage subsidy,
enabling children and young people where cost is a barrier to access leisure and
extended opportunities and engage fully in a range of positive activities

e Increase engagement with and involvement of fathers and male carers in the upbringing
of their children

e Provide targeted and specialist support for families of children aged 8 to 13 who are at
risk of, or are exhibiting anti-social behaviour through the delivery of evidenced-based
programmes with key workers to promote positive change for families who are most at
risk

o Key workers to work intensively with families of young people who are at high risk of,
or are behaving in an anti-social manner or have committed crimes. This is part of the
Youth Crime Family Intervention project that has been proved to be successful
nationally and utilises contracts with families that provide penalties as well as rewards

e Increase parental confidence in talking to their children about sex and relationships
through the delivery of the Speakeasy programme

e Build on and extend the ‘Parents as partners in early learning’ projects with schools,
early years settings and childminders

e Using the DCSF poverty pilot in four LCSP areas will test new and targeted approaches
to develop family learning, focussing on developing high levels of financial awareness
working with families to ensure that they are able to legitimately maximise their
income. The poverty pilot provides an opportunity for joint training between FLOs,
PSAs and benefits advice staff in Job Centres or gateway services

e Test the use of FGC at an early intervention stage and for families facing financial
hardship, enabling those families to develop their own action plan, so building resilience
and knowledge to do things themselves.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target Actual | Target

Number of parents supported through New 20,967 | 30,000 | 32,562 | 39,400
Children's Centres and Family Indicator
Liaison Officers™

* This indicator reflects the number of contacts rather than number of parents due to current
data systems.

Monitoring completed by: Marisa White Date: 16 July 2009

Page 57



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 14: Listen to young people’s views and opinions and develop their ideas to
improve education and life in Kent

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Sarah Hohler Rosalind Turner Anthony Mort

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Kent Youth Service, Connexions, Kent Children’s Fund Network, Surestart, Child Health
Commissioning and Christchurch University, Canterbury.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Consultation and participation with children and young people continues to develop so that it
becomes an integral part of services and ensures that young people’s views and opinions
improve education and life in Kent. In addition to the countywide projects, for example the
Kent survey of children and young people, there have been other initiatives to obtain the views
of ‘seldom heard’ groups such as young carers and disabled children.

Children and young people have influenced strategic developments in addition to more local
and school developments. Through active participation, children and young people are involved
in decisions that affect their lives, help design services that are more responsive to their needs
and assist young people in developing personal and social skills including active citizenship.

There have been a number of developments:

e Over 45,000 children and young people participated in the 2008 (NFER) survey, a
significant increase in the 42,000 who completed the 2007 survey. The survey is a rich
and extensive source of feedback and the findings are used to inform the planning of
children’s services at a county, local and school level. The results are also used in the
production of a needs assessment and as part of the review of the Children and Young
People’s Plan. The survey has identified concerns of some of the more vulnerable
young people and these have been followed up through qualitative focus groups to
explore the issues in more depth

e There continues to be an active Kent Youth County Council (KYCC) with over 60
young people regularly attending the meetings. In November 2008, 30,921 young
people voted in the KYCC elections, 77 young people stood for election and voting took
place at 150 polling stations across the county. Seven young people from the newly
elected KYCC have been voted onto the United Kingdom Youth Parliament. Feedback
from KYCC has helped shape services e.g. young people highlighted problems with the
costs of using public transport and this influenced the decision to introduce the Freedom
Pass and then to extend its use to other areas. The KYCC also successfully campaigned
for a ban on the ‘mosquito’ in Kent. The ‘mosquito’ uses high pitched sound to deter
groups of young people from congregating

e Over 8,200 young people took part in a perception survey on bullying. Their views are
helping to inform policy development and to target anti-bullying support to where it is
required. (See also Towards 2010 target 12). In addition, 1,168 Kent children and
young people completed the Ofsted ‘Tell Us 3 survey. This also produced useful data
for performance monitoring

Page 58



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

The ‘Framework for Participation with Children and Young People in Kent’ has been
produced, agreed by the Kent Children’s Trust and distributed widely to organisations in
the county. An inter-agency workshop has identified further actions to progress the
work on participation and revitalise the strategy including communicating good practice
through road shows and a ‘community of practice’, making sure the young people
consulted are informed of the outcomes of the consultation and encouraging
participation with young people who are ‘seldom heard’.

Approximately 40 Kent children in care were involved in an event in April 2009 to help
plan the development of a Kent Children in Care Council. Children in care and care
leavers have also had an opportunity to influence services through meetings with KCC
members and senior managers. Following residential events a DVD, ‘Care to Listen’ has
been produced to reflect children’s experiences of being in care

Ipsos Mori conducted 16 ‘mini focus groups’ with young people in Kent to follow up on
key issues arising from the Kent survey, in particular to explore their views on being
healthy, staying safe, bullying, attitudes to school, and life in Kent

In March 2009, 60 children attended the first Primary Children Council in Kent. This
event was in the KCC council chamber and gave younger children an opportunity to give
their views and gain experience of consultation and active citizenship

In February and March 2009, 190 disabled children attended events where they were
asked their views on what they wanted from the Kent short breaks programme. Disabled
children and their families in east Kent had their views taken into account in the design
and development of the Windchimes Centre

Children and young people including some from ‘hard to reach’ groups were consulted
on the Kent Children and Young People’s Plan (2008-2011). Eight focus groups took
place involving a total of over 100 young people. A group of young people also helped to
produce a young person’s version of the plan entitled “Your Life Your Voice’

Two reference groups, with 20 young people in each group, have been established to give
their views on issues being considered by the Kent Children’s Trust. The first groups met
in May and June 2009 and their views influenced the review of the Children and Young
People’s Plan and led to changes in the anti-bullying strategy

Young carers were consulted and engaged in the production of DVDs that will be useful
for other young carers and professionals. Approximately 25 young carers were involved
in producing the DVD. Seven focus groups have taken place during the summer 2009 to
review whether changes are taking place following the launch of the Young Carers
Strategy and to identify priority issues for young carers

Young people have helped to shape ‘House’, a very successful public health campaign
targeted at young people (see Towards 2010 target 50)

Young people from schools in Kent engaged with a KCC Members Select Committee to
discuss the issue of leisure activities for young people in the county

In school settings the number of active school councils continues to increase. The Kent
survey showed a slight increase in the percentage of 11 to 16 year old pupils who felt
they had a say on school issues, rising slightly from 66% to 68%. Many schools, such as
the Sittingbourne Community College, operate an active student voice scheme to provide
students with an opportunity to articulate their views and become involved in the
business of schooling

Other examples of outcomes following consultation include publication of an
information booklet on money advice for young people following consultation with
groups of young people. The young people were instrumental in designing the contents

Page 59



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

and style of the leaflet (the information will also be relevant for schools as part of the
PSHE lessons). Young people are frequently involved in the recruitment of new staff
where the role involves working with young people e.g. looked after children have been
involved in the recruitment of new foster carers. Children and young people have also
been consulted on the activities they want to access in summer holiday clubs and play
schemes.

What more are we going to do?

We will promote participative activity with children and young people so that it
continues to develop. This includes via the KYCC, school councils, the Kent Youth
Service and ensuring the views of children and young people influence the development
of strategies, policies and plans across the county (consistent with the new ‘duty to
involve’ requirements on local authorities)

The 2009 NFER survey of Kent children and young people is to take place in schools in
the autumn term. The survey provides valuable information for schools, LCSPs, as well
as county wide for planning and commissioning services

It is planned to hold focus groups to hear the views of young people who are deemed
‘seldom heard’ or ‘hard to reach’, including disabled children who might not otherwise
be able to complete a survey

We will implement actions from the Kent Participation Framework e.g. communicate
good practice, develop competencies and produce a participation pledge for young
people. We will also assist LCSPs with participation and consultation

We will continue to seek the views of young people through the Reference Panels

On 20 November 2009 it will be the 20" anniversary of the United Nations Conventions
on the Rights of the Child including Article 12 which sets out children and young
people’s rights to be involved in decisions that affect them. This will be an opportunity
to raise the profile of participation and consultation in the county.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2007 2008 2009 2009 2010
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual Target
Number of primary schools taking part 382 389 375 * Maintain
in the NFER survey high
Number of secondary schools and other 98 84 90 * participation
educational establishments for age 11 to rate

19 taking part in the NFER survey

* Survey due autumn term 2009

Monitoring completed by: Anthony Mort Date: 28 July 2009

Page 60




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 15: Raise the expectations and aspirations of our young people by giving all 13-
19 year-olds the very best careers guidance and by providing master classes presented
by business people, entrepreneurs and professionals

Lead Cabinet Member Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:
Sarah Hohler Rosalind Turner Sue Dunn/Pauline Smith

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Learning and Skills Council (LSC), Connexions Kent & Medway, all schools, colleges, work-
based training providers and employers

Outcomes delivered so far:
Masterclasses

KCC’s 14 to 24 Innovation Unit has delivered the following vocational sector-based
masterclasses presented by employers, entrepreneurs and professionals for 470 learners
throughout the county in different specialist subjects:

e Two-day masterclass delivered by dancers and professionals from the Royal Ballet
involving 15 professionals and 120 students from 20 schools, leading to a mini
production of Swan Lake to parents, teachers, carers, and dignitaries

e Three-day masterclass delivered by leading employers from engineering companies,
professionals from schools and colleges, and Brighton University to provide careers
materials for young people on engineering courses

o Two-day masterclass highlighting careers in the retail, fashion and business industry,
delivered by employers, entrepreneurs, professionals from further education (FE) and
higher education (HE), leading to an exhibition and fashion show delivered by 75
students from 30 schools/colleges to over 200 guests

e Two, two-day masterclasses in sustainable construction and building methods in
conjunction with Cambridge County Council and Cambridge FE

e A Celebration of Young Achievers of the Year event held in partnership with The 15
Foundation, with 60 hospitality and catering students preparing and serving at a black
tie event for parents, staff and dignitaries and 200 young people

e Motor vehicle maintenance and Go Kart challenge at Buckmore Park involving 74
students.

Careers guidance activities

e A pilot of a universal Kent Careers and Guidance programme started in September 2009.
This includes a new information platform with up to date impartial information on 15
vocational sectors linking directly to the area prospectus and post-16 websites

e The development of personal tutors in schools for all learners, to support choices and
provide careers advice to start in the autumn term 2009

e The Kent Area Prospectus has been developed which contains a programme, pathways
information and common application form for young people aged 16. Over 100,000 hits
from 16 plus learners were recorded between November 2008 to June 2009 on the Kent

Page 61



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Area Prospectus website with 61% of learners using this website saying it made a
difference and made them more aware of the programmes on offer

Quality work-related learning activities are being developed by the local 14 -19 planning
forums. Continued expansion of the masterclass and taster programme will underpin this
activity

KCC’s 14 to 24 Innovation Unit has funded the development of nine lead careers co-
ordinators to focus on careers, education and guidance developments. These teachers will
be used to develop a robust and impartial Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG)
system, and have already developed a Kent Careers Education Curriculum Framework

84% secondary schools have completed the IAG health check. This self-evaluation audit
highlights the strengths and weaknesses of guidance within schools and other 14-19
providers

KCC’s 14 to 24 Innovation Unit produced 15 information leaflets relating to the 14-16
vocational courses which were distributed to all the Connexions information points for
Year 9 and Year 11 learners. These leaflets will continued be modified to become an
interactive impartial resource for 14 plus learners hosted on KCC’s 14 to 24 Innovation
Unit IAG/careers guidance website on the Kent Virtual Learning Zone and Kent TV

The new inspirational information web site called ‘My Right Turn’ goes live in April
2010. (See also Towards 2010 target 6). This provides a media rich environment for
students to explore their possible careers pathway to help them make choices. Pilot
projects are in place to start this work with 600 learners in September

The September Guarantee was successfully implemented and the numbers of young people
without an offer of a place at 16 in education or training continues to reduce as the system
becomes more robust

A major evaluation of IAG by Warwick University has been completed. The outcome of
this research is being used to plan further developments to meet this Towards 2010 target,
especially the development of labour market intelligence to inform the provision of
vocational courses and post-16 programmes

1,000 young people have attended employer-led masterclasses, conferences and taster
days giving learners an insight into the world of work and employment

The ‘Brand You’ experience is a five-day ‘out of school’ programme designed to raise
aspirations, provide direction, raise confidence, increase motivation, and introduce the
skills of success. Events were held at Dover in June 2008, and Maidstone in February
2009.

What more are we going to do?

Research continues to identify the most effective ICT guidance tools which would link
to a web-based system. The Welsh system, Careers Wales, is a universal careers service
is a model that could be adopted in Kent. An IAG/Careers Guidance focus group
continues to research best practice and look at ICT platforms from other UK authorities
as well as Canada and Australia. A quality award for Careers Education and Guidance is
being rolled out alongside a quality standard for careers libraries in schools

The main challenge is to ensure that IAG is genuinely impartial, meets all young
people’s needs and is supported by a comprehensive and effective careers education
programme beginning in Year 7 in all schools. The Area Prospectus will be a key driver
in further developments

Page 62



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e For 2009/10, 10 vocational specialist master classes for over 800 Key Stage 4 learners
have been arranged by KCC’s 14 to 24 Innovation Unit. Alongside these, subject
master classes and taster sessions will be run for Year 9 learners to support learners’
choice of curriculum offer at 14. The employability conferences and the ‘Brand You’
experience will focus on four different areas of the county reaching 550 students before
the end of the academic year. These master classes need to continue to support learner
choices and be linked to the development of the Area Prospectus and Careers, Education
and Guidance. The masterclasses and taster days need to be extended to all 14 plus
learners

e Plans for the academic year 2009/10 also include a masterclass event linked to the
Olympic theme and a continued programme of taster days and employability
conferences. Also to be delivered is the development of an interactive web-based
resource called the ‘TAG/WRL learner journey map’. This is a tool for curriculum
planners to help them link IAG and work related learning (WRL), and sets out an
entitlement for students.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2007 2008 2009 2009 2010
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target
Percentage of secondary school pupils 43% 43% 50% * 60%

(aged 11 to 16) who think that their school
gives them very good careers advice

* Survey due autumn 2009

Monitoring completed by: Sue Dunn Date: 20 July 2009

Page 63



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 16: Expand our pioneering vocational 14—16 programme to more than 4,000
students, offering real choice in a diverse and stimulating curriculum tailored to the
needs of students and relevant to the real world

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:
Sarah Hohler Rosalind Turner Sue Dunn

Status: Done and ongoing

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

LSC, Connexions Kent & Medway, seven Further Education Colleges, University of Kent and

Canterbury Christ Church University, work based learning providers, 80 Kent schools, and a
number of major Kent employers.

Outcomes delivered so far:

o We’ve already exceeded this Towards 2010 target of 4,000 learners on vocational 14-16

programmes, as can be seen in the PI table

e KCC’s 14 to 24 Innovation Unit has funded and established over 25 vocational skills
centres across Kent over the past two years. These centres provide high quality
vocational/applied learning programmes and support the implementation of diplomas

and young apprenticeship placements by providing industry standard training facilities

and equipment. To date this has enabled over 5,000 14 to16 year olds to undertake a

vocational course a day per week over two years leading to a wide range of vocational

qualifications

e The Unit has also developed and expanded a high quality vocational programme,

supporting collaboration between schools and colleges which has significantly reduced

the number of NEETs (Not in Education, Employment or Training). This innovative

approach to curriculum delivery has put KCC at the forefront of 14 to 19 developments

nationally

e Ten specialist subject networks have been established which enable employers and
training providers to design and deliver an innovative curriculum across all industry
sectors

e An external evaluation has been undertaken by Glasgow University and an annual
Learner Voice Survey has also been carried out which evidences the benefits of the
skills centres for learners and teachers.

What more are we going to do?

e Develop centres on school premises which is a ‘self contained’ unit managed entirely by

the school but with monitoring and advisory support from KCC’s 14 to 24 Innovation

Unit. In some cases these units are within the school building and in others they are a
separate new building within the school campus. Staff would usually be employed by
the school or in some cases seconded from a partner further education (FE) college, for

example Thamesview Vocational Centre

e Develop centres on an FE college campus which is entirely managed within the college
portfolio, for example North Farm Construction and Engineering Centre at West Kent

College

Page 64



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Develop more off-site provision, which is usually a converted industrial unit or

warehouse on a trading estate, which is owned by KCC, for example Thanet Skills
Studio and Swale Skills Centre, but entirely run in partnership with local schools and
colleges, adult education and other partners

e Continue the expansion programme of skills centres with Dover Maritime Skills Centre
opening in September 2009, a new retail outlet and engineering/bicycle maintenance
training facility opening at Swan Valley School, sponsored by Giant Bicycles, and
provide and deliver more flexible, personalised learning pathways through the larger
skills centres, i.e. Thanet, Sittingbourne, Marsh, Dover and Gravesend. We will also
establish a new vocational skills centre embedded within Oakwood House, Maidstone

e Further expand and develop innovative approaches to vocational and applied learning
opportunities which will extend to 14-24 year olds and meet the additional demand
anticipated through the ‘Raising the Participation Age to 18’

e Develop apprenticeship programmes and training for employers which can be delivered
through the county network of skills centres.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target
Number of children on vocational 14 to 2,200 4,600 5,000 5,500% | 6,000%*
16 programmes
Percentage of young people participating 90% 90% 95% 98% 95%
in vocational programmes who agreed this
was having a positive impact on their lives

* Currently being confirmed
** Target revised upwards - was 5,500

Monitoring completed by: Sue Dunn

Page 65

Date: 20 July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 17: Double the number of participants on the Skill Force programme

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Sarah Hohler Rosalind Turner Sue Dunn

Status: Done and ongoing

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Hartsdown Technology College, Whitstable Community College, Swanley School, Minster
College, Archers Court School, Sittingbourne Community College, Walmer School, New Line
Learning - Senacre, Aylesford School - Sports College, Chaucer Technology School

Outcomes delivered so far

The contract with Skill Force to deliver this programme commenced in September 2007
for a period of three years. By September 2008, 400 student places were secured with
the Skill Force programme, reaching this Towards 2010 target two years early, as can be
seen from the PI table

As a result of the early success of this project 450 Key Stage 4 pupils will be on a Skill
Force programme in Kent from September 2009. Additionally pilot courses for 50 post-
16 (Key Stage 5) students started in January 2009. The Skill Force Leadership Award is
designed to engage students who traditionally have been in danger of becoming NEET
(Not in Employment, Education or Training) during their Year 12 education. The course
includes developing and accrediting wider key skills as well as working towards Duke
of Edinburgh Awards and we see this as an interesting curriculum offer which can
increase post-16 participation in schools and a further 50 students will take advantage of
this from September 2009

An evaluation of the pilot phase was conducted by the Institute of Education at the
University of London and concluded that Skill Force “provides a unique service to
schools and is successful in meeting the needs of many disaffected students improving
their motivation and social skills. It has reduced exclusions, improved behaviour and
attendance, and provided students with a range of vocational qualifications”.

What more are we going to do?

Continue to engage with the Skill Force programme, look for new funding opportunities
through the transfer of 16-19 funding to local authorities and engage learners in the feedback

Monitor and evaluate the impact of these courses on young people and review the destination
routes of young people ‘graduating’ from the Skill Force programme

Prepare for the possible re-tender of the provision in 2010 and increase both the number of
schools involved in the programme and places for young people to ensure that the Skill Force
programmes are more widely available across the county

Look at a model in Maidstone of accommodating a Skill Force programme that is off-site for
students from local schools to access

Broker links between Skill Force and those schools offering public service diplomas

Work with Skill Force to develop a framework for external providers to be quality assured by
KCC in order that they can offer their programmes directly to schools.

Page 66



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual Actual | Actual Target
Number of participants enrolled on Skill 200 300 400 500%*
Force programme from September each year

*450 Key Stage 4 places have been agreed from September 2009 plus a further 50 Key Stage 5
places. This is an increase from the original target total of 400

Monitoring completed by: Sue Dunn Date: 20 July 2009

Page 67



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 18: Introduce a Kent Apprenticeship scheme, offering at least 1,000
apprenticeship opportunities across the private and public sectors

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:
Mike Hill Amanda Honey Pauline Smith

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Learning and Skills Council (LSC), Connexions, KATO (Kent Association of Training
Organisations), district councils, Kent Police, Chamber of Commerce, Train to Gain, Business
Link, public and private sector employers.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Created a popular, high quality apprenticeship scheme in Kent, offering over 660 apprenticeship
opportunities to date (see PI table):

Kent Success, KCC’s innovative Apprenticeship Programme, is now a fully established
and formalised employment route of entry into KCC. Apprenticeship placements are
being offered across all directorates and departments and young people are undertaking
apprenticeships in a variety of different vocational areas. Kent Success provides much
more than just an apprenticeship qualification. The apprentices are provided with
structured training in confidence building, assertiveness, CV writing, KCC application
forms and interview techniques. They are brought together for quarterly peer group
meetings offering personal development opportunities and a chance for them to support
each other and share their experiences. It is largely based upon the ethos of workplace
training and assessment

Young people are initially employed on a KCC Apprenticeship contract and are paid
£105 per week (increased from £80 in January 2009). Young people are supported and
encouraged to secure full time permanent contracts of employment at all stages of their
training in addition to the successful completion of the apprenticeship qualification

Placement managers play a vital role in the development of the apprentices and the
successful integration of the programme. A manager’s guidance booklet and other
supporting documentation were produced to support and outline their roles and
responsibilities within the programme

To date, 199 young people have started on the Kent Success Programme and 70 are still
currently studying for their apprenticeship qualification. Of the 89 young people who
have completed their qualification, 60 have remained employed by KCC and a further 19
have found permanent jobs with other public or private sector organisations and the
remaining young people are being supported to ensure that they more forward positively
into employment and further training opportunities

The impact and positive difference made to all apprentices, and the staff and businesses
involved in the apprenticeship programme, is clearly demonstrated by the feedback,
evaluation and personal statements and case studies. Indicative of our success is the
measurement of the ongoing interest and increasing participation and engagement of
young people and employers.

Established a strong partnership, focused on shared goals:

Page 68



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

KCC is one of the only local authorities in the country to have already established a high
level strategic partnership with the agencies responsible for all aspects of the
apprenticeship programme

The Kent Public Service Board has championed the commitment to apprenticeships and
work is underway to develop apprenticeship schemes amongst voluntary sector
organisations in Kent

The Kent Apprenticeship partnership is an exciting development enabling Kent to
strategically lead the way in building apprenticeships and changing the landscape of
opportunity for young people, adults and employers countywide

In addition to the highest quality roll-out of provision, the partnership will be the
strategic platform in which Kent can continue to influence, inform and challenge national
strategy and policies

In June 2008, KCC established an innovative strategic partnership with the two

fundamental players in the delivery of apprenticeships in Kent, namely LSC Kent and
Medway (National Apprenticeship Service (NAS) from April 2009) and KATO (Kent
Association of Training Organisations). The main priorities for the partnership are to:

o Apply leverage to the new NAS, LSC and other key agencies to secure funding and
operational flexibilities and a strong strategic influence to work with central
government

e Address the real and perceived barriers to growth by developing and promoting an
casily understandable approach

e Support employers and employees in the current economic climate and train
managers of the future ensuring employers remain productive and competitive

e Ensure that Apprenticeship opportunities are reflective of the local economy and the
skills gap where one exists

e Define roles and responsibilities of all partners to maximise funding, eradicate
duplication and bureaucracy and develop a first class apprenticeship service.

Embedded the apprenticeships programme in KCC’s workforce development strategy:

The Kent Success apprenticeship programme is now an integral element of KCC’s wider
workforce development strategy and the Supporting Independence Programme (SIP) has
been working closely with KCC Personnel and Development to ensure that the
apprenticeship scheme embraces and influences other strategic priorities and targets. A
wide range of procedures/processes have been reviewed, developed and changed to
enhance the effectiveness and positive targeted outcomes of recruitment and selection
and wider workforce development initiatives. One example is the recent work on the
age profile of the workforce and the implications for succession planning

Work is ongoing to review the inclusion of apprenticeship and other employment targets
within the authorities and wider public sector procurement activities. Work is already
underway with the Building Schools for the Future (BSF) initiative to introduce 400
apprenticeship programmes as well as to the contractor for the Turner Contemporary
project in Thanet.

Enhanced the reputation of Kent — the KCC Kent Success model has success rates that are
amongst the highest in the country:

All Kent and Medway training providers are above the national benchmark for quality of
apprenticeship provision and performance and the success rates are above the national
average and highest in the south east region

Page 69



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Following a comprehensive tendering process, a marketing and PR contract was awarded
in November 2008 (ZEROS51) and a marketing and PR strategy and campaign has been
developed in partnership with KATO and LSC (NAS) ensuring a consistent Kent
approach to our shared vision and delivery of the Kent Apprenticeship Programme. A
series of events to promote and highlight Kent’s strategy, vision, developments and
progress ran alongside the national campaign (headed by Sir Alan Sugar) throughout
February and March 2009.

What more are we going to do?

Work towards delivering a ‘step change’ to meet the challenging target of one in five
young people accessing an apprenticeship

Continue focus, review and detailed monitoring on the impact nationally and locally on
the take up of apprenticeships within the current economic climate

Priority will be given to radically increasing the establishment of apprenticeship
schemes across the wider Kent public sector which accounts for 20% of all employment
but provides fewer than 10% of all apprenticeship places. We aim for 20% of all
apprenticeship places in Kent to be delivered by the public sector by 2014

Work with the key strategic partners to establish a pre-apprenticeship programme for
more vulnerable groups of young people, such as those leaving care and young offenders,
to ensure that they are able to fully access and explore opportunities open to them

Ongoing promotion of apprenticeships with schools, parents and young people in a
campaign managed by the Kent Apprenticeship Partnership. Particular links will be
made with the Vocational Education Programme making sure that those undertaking
Young Apprenticeships and vocational courses have access to appropriate post-16
apprenticeships

Co-ordinate the current review of education, skills and employment with the LSC and
other stakeholders and agree a development plan that fully embraces the innovative
vision for employment, education and skills for the 21st century

Explore different models of delivery, particularly with schools which have identified a
real interest in developing ‘school hosted’ apprenticeship pathways

Continue the review and development of the possibilities to develop new protocols and
targets in the wide landscape of public sector procurement

Review and explore awaited government decisions relating to employer incentive
payments and identify the impact and processes required for Kent employers

Continue to develop and enhance the ‘map of post 16 opportunities’ for school leavers in
Kent, ensure that all young people have access to high quality, impartial information
advice and guidance and that pathways to apprenticeships are made simple and clear.

Page 70



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

taken on by other public and private
organisations (cumulative since
April 2007)

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target
Number of Kent apprenticeships 60 128 200 228 250
taken on by KCC (cumulative since
October 2006)
Number of Kent apprenticeships 0 0 400 438 750

Monitoring completed by: Pauline Smith

Page 71

Date: July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 19: Introduce the Kent Community Programme, building teams of apprentices
to participate in community projects

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:
Mike Hill Amanda Honey Pauline Smith

Status: Done and ongoing

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Kent Safe Schools, Pipeline, CADET, Connexions, Youth Offending Service, KCA, Health,
Learning & Skills Council, Catch22 (Looked after Children), the public and private business
sectors.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Provided practical help based on the needs of the individual — over 100 young people have
completed the course, so far; and of those 78% were guided into further education, employment
and an extended work placement:

The Kent Community Programme (KCP) has been introduced, specifically designed and
established for young people aged 16-19 who are Not in Education, Employment or
Training (NEET). It is a programme, co-ordinated by SIP, delivered by Kent Safe
Schools, that equips young people with the practical skills that they need to continue
along a positive path of engagement whilst also addressing their individual needs and
providing support to enable them to make the next step in their lives whether that be
employment, further education or an apprenticeship

The significant focus on the importance of understanding and embracing the very
personal and differing needs of each young person ensures that we fully maximise the
impact, effectiveness and positive outcomes for each individual on the programme. This
individualised approach helps to support young people in raising their confidence and
empowers them to re-engage, re-motivate themselves and helps them to develop the
skills and tools they need to succeed further

Groups of 8 to 10 young people are enrolled on the programme for a three month period
for three days a week working on community-focused projects learning a wide range of
practical, hands on skills whilst simultaneously developing their numeracy and literacy
skills. For a further day a week the young people complete an accredited ASDAN
qualification in Community Volunteering and learning life and employability skills that
have been tailored to meet their individual needs

The overall average attendance of the young people is 80%, with a number of the young
people averaging over 90 %. This emphasises the positive impact of the programme;
historically the client group is one of the hardest to reach and work with successfully.
These figures show a positive trend where the young people who are becoming involved
and inducted onto the KCP are becoming successfully motivated and fully engaged to
complete the course and then moving into positive route of progressions at the end of the
programme

The positive routes of progression for the young people are a priority for the KCP project
teams. So far, 78% of the young people involved have been guided and supported into
either further education, employment or an extended work placement and out of the
NEET group from where they were originally classified

Page 72



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

At the end of March 2009, KCP had worked with 116 young people (all previously
NEET) across Kent. The main routes of referral have come through extensive
partnership working to ensure we are reaching the targets and making a significant
impact to the NEET and Towards 2010 agendas where possible. Referrals have been
received from Connexions, the Youth Offending Service, Children and Adolescent
Mental Health Service, E2E (Entry to Employment) and there have also been many self-
referrals from young people.

Developed a more positive profile for young people in their local communities:

KCP helps to raise the positive profile of the young people in their local communities.
Ensuring a strong community presence during the projects and maximising the
opportunities for positive progression routes for the young people are key priorities
within the programme

All the community projects are developed and designed closely with residents, partners
and local stakeholders and all KCP participants are engaged in all aspects of the project
design, planned outcomes and the evaluation and assessment of positive impact and
benefit to the community.

Completed a range of valued community projects across the county:

The success and very positive outcomes of KCP have proved extremely significant for
both the young people participating on the programme, and the local projects and
communities that continue to benefit enormously from the completed projects delivered
by the young people. The specific community projects completed to date have been
funded by KCC and include the following:

2007/08:

e Maidstone (Boughton Mount Horticultural Project)

Thanet (Community Bus -(Mechanics and Community Involvement)

Dover (repair, maintenance and water safety)

Sittingbourne (design and build of a community centre garden)

Ashford (construction based project where young people learn practical construction
skills and then put them into practice in a community project in their local
community)

2008/09:

e Murston (renovation of garden and communal areas in Community Centre)

e Whitfield, Dover ( barn project assisting the builder in constructing the
stables/barn)

e Dover (improve the look and usability of the garden at Ashen Tree House, a
community mental health support centre)

e Ashford (improve the look and usability of the garden for the clients and staff at
Southfields, a community respite and residential centre for adults with severe
learning and/or physical disabilities)

o Ashford (improve the look and usability of the garden for the service users and staff
at Braethorpe community mental health support centre)

e Dover (Porchlight Allotment Project)

e Dover (Nu-Steps centre - improve the appearance of local public areas and to
receive basic training and qualification in construction and tool use).

Page 73



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

What more are we going to do?

e KCP is now an established programme of positive engagement and is embedded within
the 14 -24 Innovation Unit. Further links will be made in 2009/10 to establish KCP
within Kent’s NEET strategy and address its sustainability and potential to develop into
16 plus mainstream provision

e Access and participation in KCP is of particular benefit and interest to vulnerable young
people and work is underway to increase participation and engagement of young people
with additional barriers and challenges. Links are well established with the Youth
Offending Service, 16 plus teams, the Teenage Pregnancy Partnership and the Kent
Apprenticeship Programme and these will be developed further to ensure that a higher
number of young people can access and engage on to KCP and move positively into
more sustainable and long-term opportunities and outcomes

e The exciting opportunities which can be achieved by the roll-out and mainstreaming of
KCP will support, address and embrace a wide range of targets and indicators reflected in
a number of local and national strategies and policies

o  Work will continue with the LSC and other relevant stakeholders to identify freedoms
and flexibilities that are required to improve support and provision for this very targeted
and vulnerable group of young people

e Further projects will be developed countywide ensuring that KCP develops and enhances
its contribution to the reduction of the number of young people NEET as well as
strengthening the positive outcomes evidenced by young people’s commitment and
participation in local projects and initiatives. Local projects being developed include:-
e Allotment Project, Dover
e Hereson School, Thanet
e  Chilham Sports Centre
e Ashleigh Gardens Care Centre
e Thanet Coast Project
e Future Life Homes, Rectory House, Harrietsham
e Folkestone Primary School Sports Day.

e Significant priority will be focused on the ongoing development and establishment of
the exciting Social Enterprise model in collaboration with Catch22. A comprehensive
feasibility study into the setting up of the social enterprise has been completed,
reviewed and agreed. The finer details and action plan are currently underway and an
expected project implementation date is targeted mid to late 2009.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08| 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target
Number of young people completing the 0 45 120 116 250
Kent Community Programme

Monitoring completed by: Pauline Smith Date: July 2009

Page 74



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 20: Build strong business-education partnerships that benefit both employers
and schools

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:
Mike Hill Amanda Honey Pauline Smith

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

80 secondary schools in Kent including the Alternative Curriculum Programme and Special
Educational Needs; Employers in Kent engaged to deliver work experience and work related
learning activity; Local Strategic Planning Forums across Kent; Connexions; Kent Association
of Training Organisations (KATO); FE sector; Learning and Skills Council (LSC): Enterprise
Kent; Canterbury Christchurch University: University of Kent; University of Greenwich; local
district councils; Medway Education Business Partnership; Creative Foundation;
Canterbury4Business; Gateway Knowledge Alliance; Employ Kent Thameside; University of
Creative Arts; Aim Higher; Kent NHS Trust Kent Vocational Training Programme (KVTP),
Industrial Trust.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Established a strong partnership between educational organisations and the business sector:

Kent Works, established by KCC, was awarded the Learning and Skills Council (LSC)
contract to deliver quality Education Business Links (EBL) across Kent. The contract
has proved exceptionally positive in laying the foundations and framework for the
ongoing development of business-education links within the county and year on year
Kent Works staff have exceeded the profiled contract targets set by the LSC

Excellent progress was made to develop, nurture and sustain relationships and
partnerships between education establishments and the business sector which has
provided a wide range of high quality and inspirational work-related learning and work
experience opportunities across the county.

Kent Works facilitated thousands of work-related learning and work experience placements,
7,000 in 2008/09 alone:

During the course of the 2007/08 academic year, Kent Works facilitated work-related
learning activity for over 7,000 young people across the county. This type of activity
included interview days, career awareness activity, and preparation for work experience
and enterprise

Work experience targets for 2008/09 were similar to 2007/08, at 8,000, but work related
learning targets increased significantly to 11,000

Employers and schools were supported in the development of a wide range of activities
which include offering work experience placements, giving talks to schools, hosting
school visits, assisting with school-based projects and working with education to develop
the curriculum to match and reflect the skills required in the marketplace. Focused
activities have provided exciting and motivational opportunities for students to develop
their understanding of the world of work.

Introduced other new programmes to help young people get into work, including innovative
programmes based away from school sites:

Page 75




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Specific focus in 2008/09 was dedicated to developing new and innovative work-related
learning activity in line with the requirements of the updated government framework.
New enterprise, employability and risk activities have been developed to assist schools in
meeting the student entitlement. Demand from schools for support with work-related
learning activities has increased year on year and it is likely that the target will be
exceeded

In addition to work-related learning events/activities held in schools, an increasing
number of innovative programmes that involve students working away from school sites
and into the realm of the employer are now commonplace. Construction site visits and
visits to other employer premises, walk-abouts with local authority environmental teams,
work shadowing and hospital visits are just some of the outcomes of strong business-
education partnerships facilitated by Kent Works

Kent Works is actively involved with each of the county’s 14 to 19 strategic planning
forums and has made contributions to the Diploma Gateway bids submitted by each of
them. It works with schools involved with Diploma delivery on work experience
placements, extended projects, professional development and other employer engagement
activities

Partnerships are now established with sectors embraced within the roll-out of diplomas.
In particular, the Industry Champions programme has raised the profile of EBL activity
and highlighted the changing needs of schools and students through the 14 to19
education reform.

Influenced strategy and policy:

A comprehensive Kent Work Related Learning Strategy along with a plethora of
guidance and good practice tools have been designed and developed by Kent Works
management team to ensure that national indicators and guidelines are well understood
by schools and other stakeholders and that all strategic indicators, guidelines and
outcomes are embraced consistently countywide.

What more are we going to do?

The direction of our plans in Kent will be influenced by changes arising from a national
review of work-related learning and EBL

The majority of the financial resource identified to deliver and promote EBL and work
related-learning activities is already delegated to schools. An exercise to review the
funding streams and potentially ‘marshall the funding’ will be an important role for
KCC in 2009/10 to ensure that the management and delivery of EBL/work-related
learning is focused and prioritised to successfully maximise resources for greatest
effectiveness and outcomes

Kent Works will continue to deliver EBL provision until April 2010 when the EBL
contract will be integrated within the Connexions contract for Kent. The EBL contract
for 2009/10 will build on the excellent standards already established progressing and
supporting schools in delivering a re-energised and re-focused relationship with the
business sector. Priorities include the following:

e Deliver a variety of high profile business education events to inform, engage and
increase the participation and development of education business partnerships

e Deliver sector-related events, developed in partnership with 14 to 19 planning
forums linked to the regeneration and skills needs of each area.

Page 76



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

o  Work closely with the established infrastructure of local partnerships (14 to 19 Strategic
Partnership, 14 to 19 Planning Forums, Local Children’s Services Partnerships, Local
Strategic Partnerships, Business Link etc) to define areas of responsibilities,
accountabilities, reams and explore strengths, identify challenges, reduce bureaucracy,
improve efficiency and maximise opportunities

o Further explore workforce development initiatives and relevant EBL links with public and

private sector employers

e Ongoing management of EBL provision in the transitional year and delivery of contract
commitments, targets and opportunities for young people within the academic year and

beyond

e The development of a longer-term, coherent county-wide strategy, involving all relevant
strategic and delivery partners and stakeholders

e Review and evaluation of current and historic EBL activity, funding and policy and the co-
ordination and production of a comprehensive strategy to support learners, schools (and
other educational establishments), employers and other key stakeholders.

businesses

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual Actual Target Actual Target
Percentage satisfaction rate of 75% 80% 88% 86.5% 90%
pupils
Percentage satisfaction rates of 56% 68% 70% 70% 75%

Monitoring completed by: Pauline Smith

Page 77

Date: July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 21: Launch and market a new website, “What’s on in Kent?”, that will list
sports and leisure activities and local organisations for all age ranges in the county.

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director:
Alex King Peter Gilroy

Lead Officer:
Tanya Oliver

Status: Done and ongoing

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Ten Alps, KCC Communities directorate, Visit Kent, district and borough councils, local
community groups, voluntary groups, public sector partners and Kent residents.

Outcomes delivered so far:

e ‘What’s On’ was launched in November 2008 as part of Kent TV. It is an interactive
site where individuals or groups can upload information on their own events across the
county and the technology supporting this ensures out of date information is removed.
From its launch until June 2009 the service has had over 10,000 events displayed on the
website. There have been 170,167 page views (up to end of August 2009)

e Quality assurance is crucial on this part of the site and Ten Alps, which runs Kent TV, is
responsible for ensuring this is delivered at a high standard through the contractual
arrangements. (See Towards 2010 target 24)

e A new system has been developed to make it easier for the attractions themselves to

upload and edit their own events

e 73 films have been made and attached to various attractions and events to give viewers a

flavour of what is available in Kent.

What more are we going to do?

o Continue marketing to raise awareness of the service

o Increase the number of page views and events uploaded

e Increase the number of events with video footage attached.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual Target Actual | Target
Number of website hits on ‘What’s On’ * * 83,631 200,000

* Launched in November 2008

Monitoring completed by: Tanya Oliver

Date: 30 July 2009 (updated September 2009)

Page 78




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 22: Establish a biennial Kent School Games and support Kent sports men and
women to compete in the 2012 London Olympics and Paralympics

Lead Cabinet Members: Lead Managing Directors: | Lead Officers:
Mike Hill/Sarah Hohler Amanda Honey/Rosalind Chris Hespe/Danny
Turner O’Donovan

Status: Done and ongoing
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Kent School Games: 15 x School Sport Partnerships, 15 x Specialist Sports Colleges, 14 x
Governing Bodies of Sport, Competition Managers, Facilities (Julie Rose Stadium, University
of Kent, Kingsmead Sports Centre, Canterbury High School, Polo Farm Sports Club,
Aylesford Rugby Club, Sevenoaks School), Canterbury City Council, KCC Procurement
Services (Management Contractor), KCC Arts Development Unit, Performing Arts College
network.

Supporting Talented Performers: Over 50 sports facilities across Kent, all local authorities, the
three Kent-based Universities, Clubs, Governing Bodies of Sport, Kent County Supplies (and
Maudesport), Kent Reliance Building Society, P&O Ferries, the Denne Group.

Outcomes delivered so far:

We established and staged the inaugural Kent School Games in 2008, involving over 500
schools and 30,000 young people, acting as a catalyst for additional competitive sport in the
county:

e The inaugural Kent School Games, with sponsorship from P & O Ferries, were run from
autumn 2007 with finals events in June 2008. Over 500 schools were involved in these
first Games with 30,000 young people participating

e The finals involved 23 different sports, over 50 events, seven venues and were
organised across several days. These culminated in approximately 1,200 medalists

e From the launch event through to the Kent School Games Celebration event, Olympic
and Paralympic performers, including Dame Kelly Holmes, Dame Tanni Grey-
Thompson, Danny Crates and lan Wynne were involved and supported the Games

e The 2009/10 Kent School Games will be launched in schools at the end of September
2009 through a pack of posters and DVD for every school to use in assemblies and at
other relevant events in the schools. This is being designed to encourage even more of
Kent’s schools to become involved and to generate maximum media interest

e Locally, several School Sport Partnerships have already organised competitive activity
in summer 2009, a non-Kent School Games Finals year, in order to build on the
momentum from the first year

e The Disability Archery Event benefited from the School Games and is now organised
on an area ‘hub’ basis prior to the finals events, providing an improved structure for the
event

o The organisers of the Kent Tag Rugby festivals (which are ‘badged’ events within the
Kent School Games) have reported that the Games have added significant value to their
event, in terms of the welfare structures and plans implemented in 2008

Page 79




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Area competitions and trials are being organised by the 13 School Sport Partnerships, 15
Sports Colleges and seven competition managers, throughout the Autumn 2009 and
Spring 2010 terms, which will lead to schools and teams qualifying for the finals in
June/July 2010

Plans are well underway for the finals events, where there will be an increase in the
number of sports involved. Plans are also in place to involve a greater cultural element
to the Games, involving the specialist arts colleges and KCC’s Arts Development Unit.

Supported over 700 talented sports performers through dedicated programmes, funding and
other initiatives:

District council’s have continued to work with KCC in supporting talented performers
through the Kent FANS (Free Access to National-level Sportspeople) scheme. This
provides over 50 facilities in the county for training, preparation and rehabilitation
purposes. Over the last three years this scheme has supported over 700 national level
sportspeople to access free facilities and these people can obtain discounts on
equipment, clothing and physiotherapy services

Good links have been established with the three Kent-based universities, which have
supported sports science workshops for over 100 coaches, performers and parents

Funding for talented performers (including disabled performers) has been secured
through a variety of sources, including SportsAid, P & O Ferries, the Denne Group, the
Kent Reliance Building Society and Pfizer

We have also developed an enhanced tier of support for 20 talented performers,
nominated through their Governing Bodies of Sport, including direct funding, dedicated
sports science provision and branded clothing. In addition, a ‘Rising Stars’ webpage has
been developed to raise their profile and links are being sought with both a media
partner and the Dame Kelly Holmes Trust to provide further profile and support for
these performers

A Coaches and Officials Scholarship scheme has also provided funding for several
coaches who either already coach at a high level or are recognised through their
Governing Bodies of Sport as having the potential to coach high levels thereby
enhancing the number of top performers in the county

Several major events, which can inspire future Olympians and Paralympians, have been
supported or will be coming to Kent. These include the Tour de France, the World
Handcycling event and the World Cup Archery events in 2007, the Margate Masters
Beach Volleyball event in 2009, and the Open Golf Championships in 2011

20 top performers have been directly supported with funding, branded clothing and
access to dedicated sports science support funded via KCC. In addition, a further five
performers have been supported through P & O Funding. This includes 10
disabled/Paralympic performers as well as 15 non-disabled/Olympic performers. All of
these performers are currently ranked very highly within their sport and have been
recognised by their national Governing Bodies as having true potential to reach the
highest levels

13 Coaches or Officials have been supported with funding to attend relevant courses to
upgrade their qualifications in order to be able to support higher levels of performers

The following achievements have been made by a number of the talented performers
supported (others’ seasons are only just starting):

Kezia Gore: (Gymnastics - Rhythmic) - Represented GB at the Youth Olympic Festival
in Australia in January 2009 winning team bronze and individual silver medal

Page 80



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Nicholas Boylan: (Swimming) -Selected to represent GB at the 2009 INAS Global
Games, Czech Republic & IPC Europeans, Iceland

Alexandra Adams: (Swimming) - Won six gold medals in DSE Junior Nationals 2009
Will Bayley: (Table Tennis) -Participated in Beijing Paralympic Games 2008. World
Ranking 10th

Liam Baldwin: (Athletics - Race walking) - Achieved third place at the UK Europeans
which were also GB trials for the European Cup

Candy Hawkins: (Athletics) - Achieved qualifying time for Deaflympics 5000m in
Taipei in September 2009

Nathan Milgate: (Shooting) - Achieved gold in the R1 10m air rifle standing SH1 in
Poland. Achieved gold at the Canadian Airgun Grand Prix. Achieved team gold medal
and individual bronze medal at the IPC Shooting Open Championships Jikji Cup in
Korea. Achieved gold in the Falling Target Rifle SH1 mixed competition and silver in
the R1 10m air rifle standing SH1 in the Turkish Cup. Achieved Gold in the
Wheelpower National Shooting Championships at Stoke Mandeville. Achieved bronze
in the R6 50m Smallbore Rifle 60 shot prone SH1 at the International Hessain Trophy in
Germany

Vicky Silk: (Athletics) - Selected by UKA to compete in Switzerland in the IWAS
Junior World Games in July 2009

Lewis Gray: (Table Tennis) -Won the 2009 English National Cadet (Under 15) Masters
competition. Selected to represent England at the European Youth Championships in
Prague, July 2009. Ranked England number 1, National Cadet Boys.

Enhanced Kent’s reputation, especially in connection with the London 2012 Games — KCC
was one of only five local authorities to achieve Beacon status in this area:

The Kent School Games formed an integral part of Kent’s successful Beacon
application

Several other counties have expressed interest in finding out about the Kent School
Games and it has been promoted at national events such as the LGA conference, as well
as a feature on the Games being written for a national leisure industry magazine

The Kent School Games was part of a presentation to a Sports Caucus made up of MPs
and Non-Departmental Public Bodies and there has been national political interest in
seeing similar County School Games across the country

38 of the county’s facilities feature as potential Pre-Games Training Camps in the
official London 2012 brochure produced for Olympic and Paralympic Associations,
including seven specifically designated as Paralympic pre-Games Training Camps -
more than any county in England. The Dartford Judo Centre has already attracted teams
from Canada, USA, Iceland, New Zealand and France to use its facilities for training,
Pegasus Gymnastics Club hosted the Slovenian national Gymnastics team and Meapa
Gymnastics club in Gravesend hosted the Ukranians. These teams trained alongside and
inspired young Kent gymnasts. Saudi Arabian and Latvian Sitting Volleyball teams also
trained in Kent in 2008 and the Chinese, Hungarian and Dutch Sitting Volleyball teams
are involved in an event in the county in 2009.

What more are we going to do?

Launch the 2010 Kent School Games on 1 October 2009, with the aim to engage as
many of Kent’s schools as possible

Run successful Kent School Games finals in June 2010, with increased number of sports
and competitions and an increased cultural element to the Games

Page 81



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Continue to support existing and newly identified talented performers with enhanced
funding and services in the lead up to 2012

e Track those performers provided with enhanced support to ascertain their levels of
improvement, hopefully leading into world class programmes and squads, as well as
success at major national and international events.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 (2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target

Number of schools participating in New 529 * * 550
the Kent Schools Games (Academic  |indicator
year)
Number of athletes supported to 360 526 570 732 740
compete at a national level in the run-
up to 2012 Olympics and Paralympics
(cumulative since 2006/07)

* Not applicable - next Kent School Games to be held in summer 2010 (Academic year

2009/10)

Monitoring completed by: Chris Hespe / Danny O’Donovan

Page 82

Date: July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 23: Facilitate and enhance the development of Kent Youth Theatre activities
Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Mike Hill Amanda Honey Sally Staples

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Academies and Specialist Arts Colleges (Performing Arts), Advisory Service Kent (ASK),
Arts Council England, South East (ACE), Borough and District Councils, ENY AN, Extended
schools, Kent TV, Kent Youth County Council, Kent Youth Service, Libraries, Media
organisations, National Association of Youth Theatres (NAYT), National Student Drama
Festival, National Youth Theatre, Schools, Sports Leisure and Olympics Unit, Surrey Arts,
Theatre leaders, Theatre practitioners and freelances, Venues and theatres, young people,
Youth arts organisations.

Outcomes delivered so far:

We have worked to achieve this target in two ways:

e Encouraging growth and development of youth theatre activity that is sustainable,
accessible and which supports professional development

o To develop a county Youth Theatre Festival that celebrates youth theatre in Kent and
leads to the county having an improved reputation in this field.
The differences we’ve made by focusing on this target are as follows:
Helped to create more opportunities for Kent’s young people to get involved in youth theatre
with over 5,000 young people reported to have attended youth theatre activity in the past year:

e The new inclusive Youth Theatre organisation, started by Theatre Royal Margate as part
of the new development, is working with KCC towards a national model of excellence

e Supporting the development of Strangeface Mask Company in their work and engaging
more young people in youth theatre activities

e  Youth arts contribution to the Kent School Games (see Towards 2010 target 22)

e Delivered opportunities by working with Canterbury Festival for 60 young people to be
involved in a professional theatre commission at Canterbury Cathedral

e  Worked with Trinity Theatre to create satellite youth theatre with one at Hillview Girls
School

e  Worked with the new theatre in Folkestone to develop youth theatre
o Developed the youth theatre concept for the New Marlowe with Canterbury City Council

e Development of a rural touring programme, and Young Producers Programme, working
with Applause Rural Touring to support delivery.

Built momentum and direction to drive further development of youth theatre in Kent, typified
by the inaugural Kent Youth Theatre Festival in Spring 2009:

o Kent County Youth Theatre Festival was successfully staged for the first time in spring
2009, based on extensive prior consultation of organisations in Kent and wider research.
This drew 150 participants, who enjoyed workshops on stage make-up, TV production,

Page 83



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

stage choreography, movement and new writing. The resulting energy and consensus has
enabled the start-up of new initiatives to drive forward youth theatre development

Capacity building: The need for better leadership for youth arts and youth theatre was
recognised specifically as part of the re-purposing of the Arts Development Unit, with the
creation of a post specifically to engage with the creative needs of young people. The
reach and networks created by this post, working with KCC Youth Service, mean strong
contribution to National Indicators 11 (Percentage of population who say they have
used/engaged in the arts in the last 12 months) and 110 (Young people’s participation in
positive activities)

Advocacy and strategic leadership: Youth arts development and the needs of young
people now enjoy much-improved profile in policy making and service planning. The
Youth Arts Officer post is a major commitment to engagement with youth art in the long-
term. It has created the long-awaited capacity to build relationships with youth theatre
organisations and key development bodies based on common goals. These are valuable
partnerships that will support and enable our future work, and future funding leverage

Improved Youth Theatre delivery infrastructure: New initiatives such as the Youth
Theatre Hub and Youth Theatre Development Network have brought a structure and
strategic thinking to the work of developing youth theatre. These initiatives directly pick
up and capitalise on the momentum of the Festival as fed back by a Youth Theatre leader,
“Thanks again, this was such a wonderful opportunity for similar minded people to get
together and share our visions. The young people behaved impeccably and had such a
good time, encouraging and congratulating each other without any competitiveness. Just
shows the power of the arts on young people”

Established a Kent-wide Youth Theatre Network (professional development forum),
Youth Theatre Hub (creative forum) and development of a Young People’s Arts Forum.

Encouraged development of high quality provision for young people in Kent, via organisations
such as the National Association of Youth Theatre (NAYT):

We have encouraged youth theatre organisations to align themselves with NAYT, which
promotes quality of provision with an emphasis on access for all. The Kent Youth
Theatre Festival was key to securing support for development initiatives, in order to build
on this first event by developing the capacity and capability of the Kent organisations to
raise and realise ambition, and increase profile and opportunity.

Established and shared a deeper understanding of issues and needs of young people and youth
theatre organisations by way of research activity and consultation:

Understanding needs: Consultation of youth theatre organisations about their aspirations,
challenges and expectations fed into the design and delivery of the first-ever Kent County
Youth Theatre Festival — a customer insight approach that we will continue

Research: A mapping exercise of youth theatre activity in Kent in 2006/07 gave
information on existing activity and how best to meet demand and create new and
exciting opportunity. It revealed that while rural areas were well supported there was a
lack of investment and diversity in events, poor accessibility to minority and excluded
groups, high provision in the north of the county, coastal towns and in Canterbury,
though overall the nature of activity offered limited challenge

Held ‘Theatre in the Square’, a sounding board event for young people on the
development of the Kent County Youth Theatre Festival

Used arts to help communicate and engage with young people on issues that matter to them,
such as bullying, smoking and drug misuse:

Page 84



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Theatre roadshows were delivered by the Arts Development Unit and other arts resources
(such as Hextable Dance) on tackling issues such as bullying, smoking and drug misuse

Shared good practice and enhanced Kent’s reputation by contributing to regional and national
events, and creating interest in the Youth Theatre Festival model:

e New capacity with in-depth understanding of the field has enabled advocacy and
networking at all levels of the potential benefits from greater youth engagement in
creative activity. Kent has contributed to regional and national conferences on youth arts
and youth theatre, presented overseas to international hosts (Finland) which has opened
up international links for Kent youth theatre. The excellent festival model is now being
cited by Surrey local authority as a model of good practice, with potential for roll-out in
their area.

What more are we going to do?

e Build on early links made with Extended Schools through the above portfolio of work

e Continue work with youth theatre network/hub, Young People’s Arts Forum and other
partners to develop the Kent County Youth Theatre Festival 2010

e Stage regular youth theatre network events to extend people’s practice, broaden their
reach, offer Continuing Professional Development, and opportunities for collaboration

o  Work alongside youth theatre groups, practitioners, theatre companies, youth workers to
extend their practice and engage more young people, particularly those who are harder
to reach

e Develop a partnership with the National Youth Theatre and support their doing more
community youth theatre projects in Kent, thus offering further opportunities for hard to
reach young people and raising Kent’s profile on the national youth theatre stage

e Develop international links with youth theatre groups

e Develop a Young People’s Arts Forum to develop young leaders, ambassadors and
organisers

e  Work in partnership with Kent Youth Service to offer professional development
opportunities for youth workers to enable them to engage more young people in youth
theatre

o  Work with KCC Sports Development to ensure quality arts elements in the Kent School
Games in 2010

o Ensure the Kent County Show offers more performance opportunities for young people.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual Actual Target Actual Target

Number of young people New 1,504 1,600 5,321%% | 2,000%**
reported as attending youth Indicator
theatre activity *
Number of youth theatres who New 17 [ 8#*k* 19 2(F***
are members of the National Indicator
Association of Youth Theatres
(NAYT)

* As reported by directly funded organisations, youth theatre groups and targeted schools

** Sharp increase in 2008/09 figure due partly to improved data collection systems

*** This target will be revised upwards for 2009/10 in the light of the 2008/09 outturn which

has just been received

Page 85



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

**%* These targets have been revised upwards drawing on data from NAYT on Kent
membership

Monitoring completed by: Sally Staples Date: July 2009

Page 86



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 24: Find new and innovative ways of communicating with the public, including
trialling webcast TV

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:

Roger Gough Peter Gilroy Tanya Oliver

Status: Done and ongoing
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Ten Alps, district and borough councils, NHS, Police, Fire, Maidstone Studios, Visit Kent,
Locate in Kent, business community, media community, community groups, voluntary groups,
Kent residents.

Outcomes delivered so far:

There are a number of different strands we have introduced to help deliver this Towards 2010
target — Kent TV, Pic ‘n” Mix, Kent and Medway Citizens’ Panel, Web jam and localism:

Kent TV

Kent TV was launched in September 2007 and so far the site has received just over two million
visits (as at the end of August 2009). It is an internet TV channel for everyone living and
working in Kent and is available 24 hours a day 7 days a week. Viewers are able to watch video
programmes on their computer about local issues, the arts, business, education, health, leisure,
local government, tourism and travel. Kent TV is operated by an independent media company,
Ten Alps Digital.

Specific achievements include the following:

e There are now over 2,000 videos available on the site, encompassing a wide range of
topics from business, education, history, and sport to tourism

e A number of competitions have been run to highlight and showcase Kent talent, including
Sound Clash which attracted 84 entrants and 12,000 registrations to vote and take part

e Kent TV launched KentTV.mobi at the request of its viewers to enable to watch Kent TV
on their mobiles

e [t has created training opportunities for young people in Kent including involving
Canterbury Christchurch University in a debate in which 20 students were given the
opportunity to work on set or make films for the project. Kent TV has also provided work
experience opportunities in the office on a monthly basis

o The site has undergone a refresh to enhance usability. A new channel was also added
entitled ‘How to’, giving viewers information on how to become a police officer to how to
write a will

o Our successful policy of enabling viewers to embed our films on other sites ensures that
videos are placed on other relevant sites, widening Kent’s reach

e The ‘What’s On’ channel has been launched (see Towards 2010 target 21) detailing events
happening in Kent from boot sales to jousting tournaments

e Kent TV located to new offices in Maidstone Studios in April 2008 and has used its new
location to forge new links with other creative businesses in Kent. Kent TV is working
with Maidstone Studios to offer young people studying for a creative and media diploma
an insight in to the creative industries. The diploma is in its early stages but students, as

Page 87



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

part of their studies, will partake in a range of activities which could cover filming and
researching for Kent TV

e Kent TV has been short-listed for the European e-government award.

Pic ‘n’ Mix

Pic ‘n” Mix aims to revolutionise the way in which the public are able to access, re-use and share
publicly available information. The project uses IBM software and free applications that are
readily available on the web. Citizens can use these tools to ‘mash up’ information from a variety

of sources, to create information that is truly relevant and customised to their needs. They are
encouraged to share their 'mashups' so others in the community can benefit.

The pilot has been running for two months and has received positive feedback from the 20 SMEs
(small and medium sized enterprises) involved in the project. From September, a planned
programme of work with schools will engage students and young people. Other community
groups and voluntary organisations are also contributing to the project.

The Cabinet Office, DWP, DCSF, LEGSB and IDeA have all shown an interest in Pic ‘n” Mix.
'Mashup' technology has the potential to enable data to be shared between directorates, agencies
and partners, and this exciting opportunity will be explored more fully.

The Kent and Medway Citizens’ Panel

The Kent and Medway Citizens’ Panel (KMCP) is a joint initiative between the Kent Messenger
(KM) and KCC, giving residents of Kent the opportunity to give feedback on ideas, services and
products, by responding to three or four questionnaire based surveys each year. The panel marks
a first in that it is the only citizens’ panel in the country to be run jointly by a local newspaper
and a local authority.

The surveys are conducted by Ipsos MORI and can be carried out online, by telephone or face to
face. To date three surveys have been conducted:
e The original survey carried out between February and April 2008

e A snapshot survey carried out in November 2008

o A follow up survey carried out in July 2009.

The KMCP has its own website www.kmcp.co.uk where new panelists can join and existing
panelists can see the results from the surveys they responded to.

There has been a recruitment drive taking place across the county to encourage more people to
become panelists, which the KM are advertising both through their papers and on their radio
stations to encourage more sign ups (the Primary Care Trust (PCT) has also agreed to help recruit
new panelists). There are currently 705 residents signed up to the panel.

Web jam

In February 2010, the KCC is proposing to hold a public ‘web jam’ session. This will enable
residents of Kent to ask questions or write comments on a particular subject within an on-line
‘real time’ environment. The sessions will be interactive allowing moderators and
KCCl/partners’ staff to respond to the questions asked.

KCC will be hosting the web jamming session on behalf of the Kent Partnership. It is due to last

between two/three days and we will be procuring appropriate technology assistance shortly. KCC
previously held an internal web jam between senior managers, however this will be the first time

Page 88



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

that the format has been used by KCC or any Kent Partnership partners to engage with members
of the public. It will have a target participation rate of up to 20,000 people and residents will be
asked to post comments and questions regarding a key area of policy, such as health. This will
link directly into the review of the Vision for Kent, Kent’s sustainable community strategy, and
its core priorities.

The web jam presents a new way in which citizens can get involved in shaping public policy and
informing KCC and partners what they feel is important. The comments and questions raised
during the web jam will be used to inform the Kent Partnership’s strategic priorities beyond
2010.

Localism

Working with our partners KCC has been piloting a range of models of community
engagement bringing together the three tiers of local government - county, district and parish
councils - and in some models the police, PCTs and voluntary sector.

Neighbourhood Forums - In Dover and Gravesham there are neighbourhood forums embracing
all three tiers of local government. Although joint neighbourhood forums and KCC local boards
have existed for a number of years now, the Gravesham neighbourhood forums are looking at
new ways to engage with local residents. The forums currently meet 12 times a year, in various
parts of the borough, at which members from KCC, Gravesham BC and the parish councillors
attend to discuss with local residents issues that are affecting them.

KCC and Gravesham BC are exploring the possibility of webcasting the forums to enable local
residents who are unable to attend the meetings to be involved. A bid was submitted to the
government for funding to pilot innovative ways of communicating with the public, including the
possibility for viewers of a webcast having the facility to email questions they would like to be
addressed by the meeting. Unfortunately the bid was unsuccessful. However, our webcasting
contract is currently being re-negotiated and Public-i, our current webcast provider, is about to
provide us with a quote to lease equipment so that we can webcast some of our forums.

Arrangements are being made to establish neighbourhood forums in Maidstone and discussions
are taking place with our partners across the county.

Other forums and ways of engaging - In Swale, local engagement forums have been
established which include the PCT and Police. Canterbury City Council has area member
panels and Tonbridge and Malling BC has a Tonbridge Forum and Parish Partnership Panel in
which County Council members are participating.

KCC is exploring a range of other initiatives which will enhance KCC’s community
engagement strategy, for example:

e A number of elected KCC members are piloting events where the community make
bids for a contribution from the members community grant

e A scheme for e-petitions is also being established which will allow the on-line
community to petition KCC on issues of concern

e New technology is being explored including blogs, video uploads, social networking
and the creation of a ‘virtual county hall” where communities of interest can contact
KCC

e KCC is exploring the idea of webcasting some of the meetings for engaging
communities e.g. neighbourhood forums etc, as explained earlier

Page 89



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e KCC is also exploring a project whereby county councillors promote democracy in
some of the schools within their electoral divisions.

What more are we going to do?

We will deliver the following actions:
Kent TV

e Submit an Interreg bid with a European partner to create video content about both Kent
and Belgium which should encourage tourism to the region

e Continue to raise awareness of Kent TV

e Continue to create opportunities for Kent to showcase their talents and opinions.
Pic ‘n’ Mix

e Engage new groups in Pic ‘n’ Mix and respond to feedback

e Continue to secure accurate and relevant data from KCC and partners

¢ Raise awareness of Pic ‘n” Mix via networks, forums and social media

The Kent and Medway Citizen’s Panel

o Continue to raise awareness of the panel and market it through the KM and the Kent PCTs
o Increase the number of citizens signed up to the panel to meet the challenging target of
8,000 in total.
Web jam
e The web jam will be held in February 2010

e The project will enable KCC to engage directly with up to 20,000 residents of Kent and get
their views on what matters to them

e The comments will be collated to help inform KCC'’s strategic priorities beyond 2010.

Localism

e The Gravesham neighbourhood forums will pilot the interactive meetings and report back
on its successes

e The community liaison manager will explore whether this can be expanded to other forums
and local boards in Kent.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2007/08 2008/09 2008/09 2009/10
Actual Target Actual Target
Visit numbers for Kent TV 198,210* 250,000 1,349,231 | 2,000,000*
(cumulative since Sept 2007)

* Kent TV started on 20 Sept 2007

**Based on original April 2007 Cabinet paper estimate of 50,000 visits per month

Monitoring completed by: Tanya Oliver, Robert Hardy, Paul Wickenden
Date: 30 July 2009 (updated 3 September 2009)

Page 90



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 25: Promote Kent as a centre for the arts, encouraging the development of a
network of music and cultural venues across the county

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: | Lead Officer:

Mike Hill Amanda Honey Sally Staples

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Arts Council England, South East (ACE, SE), arts organisations (Kent-based), Creative and
Cultural Skills, Creative Foundation, creative businesses, Creative Margate, Development Trusts
Association, East Kent Festivals Cluster, English Heritage, Future Creative, Further and Higher
Education Institutions, Greening The Gateway Kent and Medway, KCC Economy and
Regeneration, KCC Research and Intelligence, Kent 2012 Arts Sectoral Task Group, Kent Film
Office, Kent Tourism Alliance, Kent TV, Kent and Medway local authorities, Liberty Property
Trust UK, Performing Arts Network Kent (PANeK), professional and voluntary cultural
organisations, South East England Development Agency (SEEDA), Screen South, town and local
area development partnerships, Visit Kent.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Providing access to greater activity for residents and encouraging visitors to Kent is the focus
of this target. Key to its implementation is repositioning the KCC Arts Development Unit and
development of a Kent Cultural Strategy to increase opportunity. We have helped position
Kent as a centre for the arts by:

Developing venues and cultural events across the county, working with organisations such as
Turner Contemporary, Quarterhouse in Folkestone (see also Towards 2010 targets 1, 2, 3 and 6)
and the Theatre Royal Margate:
o We offer advice and partnership working in order to broker support that can lever in
funding and develop opportunity for arts projects and programme growth and for new
arts and public facilities

e Venue-based organisations with which we work include Turner Contemporary (in
construction), Theatre Royal Margate, Quarterhouse in Folkestone (launched this year),
and ‘Beeping Bush’ film and media centre in Margate

o  We support the work of Performing Arts Network Kent (PANeK) to increase the
amount of theatre and other live performances available, offering professional
development, masterclasses, mentoring and specialist business advice to ensure that
professional companies are able to survive and thrive. A lead officer is allocated to each
funded arts organisation, who works with them to maximise the impact of the grant and
support their development

e Organisations we have supported in this way include: Applause (rural touring), Strange
Cargo, Future Creative, Strange Face mask theatre company, Chalkfoot Arts (rural
touring), Cohesion Plus (new ethnically diverse arts organisation in North Kent),
Broadstairs Folk Week, Canterbury Festival, Deal Festival, Trinity Theatre, Stour
Valley Arts, Whitstable Biennial and Meltdowns (art metalwork foundry and
workspaces). This represents a broad spectrum of activity and reach, and we have
supported many more organisations through advice and information.

Profiling major local events and projects, including supporting the Kent 2012 campaign and events
such as the Folkestone Triennial, Whitstable Biennial and Deal Festival:

Page 91



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Turner Contemporary (see Towards 2010 target 27) is building a momentum and focus
for visual arts in Kent and we are working with the team on targeted projects (e.g.
teenagers project, visitor economy)

e The Folkestone Triennial was the most significant international art event in the south
east in 2008 and the Whitstable Biennial has developed a strong reputation for
identifying emerging talent

e Strange Cargo’s ‘Other People’s Photographs’ project achieved national and
international recognition and won six awards

e Deal Festival is highly respected for its quality programmes, including showcasing and
new compositions. The East Kent Festivals Cluster project has levered £50,000 from
ACE, SE and SEEDA to support festival development hinging around a new art
commission with an international vocal artist

e We are supporting the organisational development of Strange Face theatre company and
SeeThrewMusic, both emerging talents in rural touring, and rural touring network
Applause recognised nationally for its astute programming

e  We have partnered Liberty Property Trust (LPTUK) on the refresh of the Rouse Kent
Public Art Awards, confidence in which has now resulted in a request from LPTUK to
co-ordinate a new £80,000 art commission opportunity so far generating 150
expressions of interest from artists

e We are developing Artists” Suppers, to support up-skilling, networking, new
collaborative approaches, development of new audiences, and engaging with new spaces
for events and performance

e Supporting London 2012 — KCC’s Arts Development Unit chairs the Arts Sectoral Task
Group of the Kent 2012 campaign and co-ordinates the UK Cultural Festival Kent
action plan that celebrates the Olympic and Paralympic Games

e  We work with the arts and cultural sector to maximise take-up of national opportunities,
e.g. Artists Taking the Lead, Bandstand Marathon. Our technical advice and project
support levered £40,000 into Kent to realise the highly successful 2008 ‘Light Up, Open
Up’ event in Dover, for the launch weekend of the Cultural Olympiad in the South East
cited as a good model by the SE Creative Programmer

e We are working with stakeholders, advising on development of the Creation Centre, a
large-scale production facility in Chatham, which will give Kent’s arts sector the large-
scale capability for outdoor events (festivals, street arts) with potential to contribute
toward 2012 celebrations. We are delivering the Kent Cultural Baton, a portable arts
commission that between now and 2012 will be hosted by communities across the
county as part of their own local celebratory events.

Building consensus on the value of culture and cultural development in Kent, using events such as
the Kent Cultural Summit (next one is autumn 2009) as a catalyst:
e Our work on the Kent Cultural Strategy Summit secured the engagement of 130 key
influencers and decision makers across Kent and the South East, and consensus on the
value of culture and cultural planning

o It has strengthened Kent’s position and profile of Kent as a developer of the arts which
will be further consolidated via strategy development work, to be tested with the
partners at the second Cultural Strategy Summit

e The Kent Cultural Strategy will be launched in February 2010. An excellent example of
this in practice is Creative Margate, a partnership of key cultural agencies focused on
the culture-led regeneration of Margate; building on ACE SE recognition of east Kent as

Page 92



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

a ‘Priority Place’, and formed out of earlier advocacy and advisory work, levering in
£500,000 from English Heritage to help realise Margate’s potential through a project
with a workspace and artists’ live-work focus

o We work extensively with partners to advise and assist with the development of
strategies, policy frameworks, project proposals, and briefs/plans, to further and realise
Kent’s ambition as a centre for the Arts. We chair SEPACT (the South East Physical
Activity Co-ordinating Team), a key regional forum and network to delivering the
Government’s vision for a healthy Britain, with good links and opportunities for dance.

Increasing access to the arts in Kent, including a networking event and seminar attended by 130
arts and cultural organisations:
o Kent is one of just 24 local authorities in England that has adopted National Indicator 11
(percentage of population who say they have used/engaged in the arts in the last 12
months) in its Local Area Agreement. Its adoption has greatly assisted Cultural Strategy
Summit development work, and so far this year we have attracted £110,000 in funding
to support our work

e We staged a networking event and seminar on audience development, attended by 130
arts and cultural organisations. This model has been showcased at a National Indicator
11 seminar as an example of good practice. It has stimulated marketing and audience
engagement project bids that we are now reviewing, and those that succeed will begin
rollout in summer 2009

e  We presented at a Community Safety Conference, making the case for how arts can
improve safety outcomes and even save lives.

Incorporating the arts into Kent’s tourism and visitor economy, linking in with initiatives such as
Creative Margate, Dover ‘Sea Change’ work and the East Kent Festival’s cluster project:
e Our partnership work focuses on maximising opportunities for creative engagement
with local communities and for creative input into broader schemes; it encompasses our
work on venue and network development mentioned above, and includes advice that can
bring an arts/cultural dimension to public realm schemes

e Examples include: Creative Margate (Public Realm, Fourth Plinth), Greening the
Gateway Kent and Medway (Art in the Public Realm), Ashford Strategic Park (Culture
and Outdoor events), and Dover Seachange work (Seafront development and public
engagement via the Cultural Audit which we also advised), refresh of the Rouse Kent
Public Art Awards (Kent-wide) building on an independent review, which this year
secured Independent editor-at-large and architecture-trained Janet Street Porter as chair
and a prestigious panel of judges

e This work also includes our festivals focus, and we have secured £50,000 from SEEDA
and ACE toward a pilot East Kent Festivals Cluster project (in progress) to develop
quality work, festival marketing and branding. Visit Kent is a stakeholder

e An innovative arts and cultural tourism pilot ‘Culture Coast’ levered in £25,000 to
support a collaborative approach to place marketing with Visit Kent, focusing on
festivals; we are building on the results to explore branding in 2009/10, and options to
extend this work into the north Kent sub-region.

Supporting arts organisations in Kent as sustainable businesses, providing a mix of grant support,
assistance to attract funding and helping arts organisations to help themselves:
o KCC’s Arts Development Unit provides a mix of grant support, development advice,
assistance with attracting funding, and sign-posting/putting in place tools and material to
enable the arts sector to develop itself e.g. the Celebratory Outdoor Performance Online

Page 93



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Resource (COPOR) developed with the University of Kent, and work in train to build
the Unit web presence into an online arts resource for Kent

e In a very difficult financial climate and amidst much flux, we are researching and in
dialogue with agents that already deliver arts and culture-related skills, marketing,
business and organisational development (county and region), to identify need, gaps and
opportunity and the Arts Development Unit’s role and contribution. Examples include:
Kent Higher Education Institutions, ACE,SE, Creative and Cultural Skills, South East
England Development Agency and independent consultants

e We are working with partners to gauge demand and opportunity for workspace and
production facilities to support artists and other creative businesses, recognising their
importance as contributors to local communities and as incentives for graduate retention
and inward relocation. A Kent-wide event with national body National Federation of
Artists” Studio Providers (NFASP) is in discussion for later this year

e Examples of partners we have been working with include SEEDA-funded Joiners Shop
(Chatham), Crate, Harbour Arm (Margate), Pantiles (Tunbridge Wells), Power Hub
(Maidstone), and Creek Creative CIC (Swale). We are also working with KCC
Regeneration and Economic Development on a high level ‘Creative Kent’ prospectus
(work in progress).

What more are we going to do?

e Kent Cultural Strategy — We are leading the development work, on behalf of the
partners, towards a manifesto that will enable the opportunities for arts and culture to be
maximised in Kent, which will be launched in February 2010. Thereafter the focus
shifts to strategy implementation with partners

e Support delivery of Turner Contemporary and the development of Margate’s cultural
offer to help ensure success as well as Theatre Royal Margate development, Applause
Rural Touring, Strangeface, the new Marlowe Theatre in Canterbury and the
programming of the Dover Live Site to ensure local content

e Invest £205,000 in the arts in Kent, a leverage factor of up to eight times that value and
continue our work to lever in more resources for the arts in Kent

e Advocacy - Continue making the case with public bodies of the value and future
benefits of investing in and engaging in the arts.

Measurable indicators:

None — This Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as having an ‘aspirational’ status
and progress is measured via qualitative means.

Monitoring completed by: Sally Staples Date: July 2009

Page 94



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 26: Modernise the library service so it also acts as a focal point for KCC services
and widens access to Kent’s rich culture

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Mike Hill Amanda Honey Cath Anley

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

All district councils and many town and parish councils, KCC Directorates including Gateway
and all units in KCC Communities, voluntary sector including CSV, CAB, MIND, KAB, as
well as PCTs, BBC Learning, Home Office Prison Library Service, Probation Service, Early
Years settings, Children’s Centres, FE and HE providers, Moat Housing, Post Office

Outcomes delivered so far:

Improved experience for library customers through the modernisation of a dozen libraries
across Kent, leading to increased usage:

e KCC Libraries and Archives have achieved great results over the past three years, both
by investing in our modernisation programme and making general improvements to our
service. So far we have modernised 12 libraries: Birchington, Coldharbour, East
Peckham, Hadlow, Marling Cross, Thanet Gateway, Newington, Ramsgate, Sevenoaks,
Staplehurst, Sherwood and Tenterden. To us, modernisation is more than simply
refurbishing a building, it is about finding new ways of working, co-locating and
working with other partners to deliver an improved, seamless service to our customers.
Examples include the modern and accessible library at Tenterden Gateway, the
relocation of Stanhope Library to the Moat Housing Neighbourhood office and the
opening of the new Adult Education Skills Plus Centre in Folkestone Library

e The modernisation programme has continued to benefit customers and the library
service is now reaching many more users. Remote visits to the web site have increased
by an incredible 1001%, whilst actual visitor numbers have reduced by only 3.5%.
Issues in recently refurbished libraries show an increase e.g. issues at Ramsgate and East
Peckham have increased by 67% and 11% respectively compared to 2008

e The number of young people involved in activities and borrowing books has increased
at modernised libraries. Early years activities involving babies and their parents/carers
and primary school children have increased since 2007/08 and Baby Bounce and Rhyme
sessions increased by 90.4%. Children of all ages are borrowing more items and
developing a love of reading; on average children’s fiction issues at these libraries have
increased by 4.09% and children’s non-fiction by 4.6% compared with 2007/08

e  Work on our capital projects is moving forward, and we’ve been working hard to
progress the Kent Library and History Centre, Ashford Gateway Plus, Gravesend
Library and the Beaney in Canterbury. Our joint work between archives and museums is
continuing to expand, as demonstrated by the Sevenoaks Kaleidoscope, the Folkestone
History Resource Centre and the work that is going on in Canterbury

e In March 2009 we implemented Spydus, our new Library Management System.
Alongside this we installed more energy efficient hardware, bigger screens and a faster
internet connection, and as a result we can offer our customers a significantly better IT
service

e We have saved money by using online ordering and supplier selection, which means
that we been able to increase our stock purchasing.

Page 95



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

In 2009 we were not only awarded the Charter Mark again, but also increased the
number of criteria achieving best practice from five in 2008 to six in 2009, which
reflects our work to improve customer service.

Developed services around our customers and communities through community engagement
and working with partners:

Consultation plays a large part in our modernisations e.g. at Hadlow we consulted users,
non-users and key stakeholders using a variety of methods and we also asked for
feedback when evaluating our projects

Our consultation on the Archives and Local History Service, ‘Understanding our Past,
Changing our Future’, was very successful and over 1,000 respondents took part. Their
views will help us to make important decisions about the future of our service

Partnership work continues to develop and make libraries a focal point within the
community. All refurbished libraries such as Hadlow, Thanet Gateway and Tenterden
Gateway have all built new partnerships with the district councils, other KCC partners,
the voluntary sector and community groups. Partnership working continues at all levels
within the organisation

The Time2Give project is one of the volunteering programmes which continues to bring
added value to the Library and Archive Service, and also benefits volunteers
themselves. The project has been recognised as a national example of best practice after
being shortlisted for the Libraries Change Lives Award 2008. In 2008/09 the Service
benefited from nearly 25,000 hours of volunteering.

Improved access to library services with a number of new projects, some of which have gained
national recognition:

We are continually developing new ways for customers to access our services and
Virtual Homework Help is now available to Kent Schools via the Kent Learning Zone.
During 2008 we worked in partnership with KCC Children, Families and Education
(CFE) to ensure that 98% of children starting school receive two free books through the
Booktime Initiative. By co-ordinating the way that we deliver Bookstart we have
ensured that looked after children, traveller and home educated children have not missed
out. This project has led to national recognition for our approach to working with
families

Library opening hours have been extended by 11% using existing resources

Customers can access our services in many ways, for example, via text or email.

What more are we going to do?

The building modernisation programme continues in 2009/10. The refurbishment and
rebuild of the Beaney at Canterbury is progressing with the work going out to tender
very shortly. We will seek planning permission for the designs of the
refurbishment/rebuilt Gravesend Library in August. Planning continues to secure the
build of the new Ashford Gateway Plus and the Kent Library and History Centre

The ongoing Access Services Improvement Programme will continue to explore and
develop ways to improve access to customers who cannot visit our static libraries

We are building on the great work that took place during National Year of Reading by
working with various partners to develop a key document, the ‘Reading and Literacy
Strategy for Kent’

Page 96



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e  We are using the results of archives consultation to make sure that our new plans for
the archive service reflect KCC’s key priority areas

e  We will continue to explore ways to improve access to services by planning new services
in major growth areas; Chilmington Green, Cheesemans Green, Eastern Quarry and
Ebbsfleet. Building work has begun on The Bridge Community Campus where a Library
Access Point will provide access to our services.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/9 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual Target | Actual Target
Number of libraries modernised 5 7 11 12 15

(cumulative)

Notes:
Libraries modernised in 2006/07 libraries were Birchington, Coldharbour, Newington

Monitoring completed by: Cath Anley

(Marlowe Academy), Sevenoaks and Staplehurst

Libraries modernised in 2007/08 were Margate and Sherwood.
Libraries modernised in 2008/09 were Ramsgate, Tenterden, Hadlow, East Peckham and

Marling Cross

Page 97

Date: July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 27: Open the Turner Contemporary gallery, Margate, in 2010

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Mike Hill Amanda Honey Victoria Pomery

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Arts Council England (ACE), South East England Development Agency, Thanet District
Council, Tate, Margate Renewal Partnership.

Outcomes delivered so far:

The establishment of Turner Contemporary as a world class gallery is a vital part of the wider
programme of regeneration for east Kent that will stimulate job opportunities and ensure that
Margate becomes a thriving town once again. The project consists of two major strands — the
building of the new gallery and a public arts programme of wide ranging exhibitions, talks and
events and out-reach work. Outcomes delivered so far are as follows:

Made good progress with the development of the Turner Contemporary Gallery:

The gallery building was designed by 2007 Stirling Prize winner David Chipperfield
Architects and is currently under construction

Public meetings were held at Margate Winter Gardens in June and October 2007 to
inform and engage the community on the plans. The planning application was approved
by Thanet District Council in February 2008

Kent based contractor, R Durtnell and Sons, was appointed in October 2008 to construct
the gallery and, following a groundbreaking event in November 2008, work commenced
on site

Comprehensive funding applications were submitted to Arts Council England (ACE) and
South East England Development Agency (SEEDA) resulting in £8.1m of capital funding
being approved. The roles of Turner Contemporary in delivering regeneration and
developing the cultural infrastructure in Kent were vital in achieving the commitment of
the funding partners

In July 2008, John Kampfner, former editor of the New Statesman and an award-winning
journalist and broadcaster, was appointed Chair of the Turner Contemporary trust, which
will hold operating responsibility for the gallery. John Kampfner has energetically led
the establishment of the trust which now has a full complement of trustees and had its
first Board meeting in November 2008

In June 2009 Turner Contemporary was awarded charitable status (charity number
1129974) and is a Company Limited by Guarantee

It is anticipated that the gallery building will be completed by late 2010 (and marked by a
ceremony to acknowledge this achievement) with planned opening to the public in 2011.

Contributed to the regeneration of Margate and east Kent (see also Towards 2010 target 3):

The regeneration impacts associated with Turner Contemporary include major
improvements to the whole of the eastern seafront area. Work on de-dualling Fort Hill
began in April 2008 and was completed by autumn 2008 in advance of the
commencement of the gallery building programme

Page 98




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

A bid entitled ‘Opening up the Eastern Seafront’ was successful in securing £850K from
ERDF Objective 2 funding in December 2007 to match KCC’s spend in the area. This
bid combined development and public realm work in the vicinity of the Rendezvous site
that would be completed during 2008 and that would pave the way for the eventual
development of the site

The Turner Contemporary Project Space was opened in the former Marks and Spencer
building on Margate High Street in February 2008. The opening of the Project Space has
helped to build audience capacity and generated further interest in Turner Contemporary.
Increased interest in the new space has also acted as a catalyst for the regeneration of
Margate High Street and brought associated benefits for local businesses and the
community. Turner Contemporary continues to programme the space which currently
houses the first Turner Open, an open submission exhibition that celebrates the creativity
of artists based or trained in Kent

The start of work on site has created greater confidence in Turner Contemporary and
Margate. There have been a number of new shops, cafés and creative spaces open in
Margate in addition to developments and improvements throughout Margate Old Town.
Many of these developments are directly attributable to the anticipated opening of Turner
Contemporary in 2011.

Delivered high quality arts programmes:

Turner Contemporary developed and continues to deliver a wide ranging artistic
programme, engaging with diverse audiences and forging relationships with a broad
range of partners across the region and beyond. (See Towards 2010 target 25)

Involved and engaged the local community:

Regular events for teachers linked to the exhibition programme have been established
and teachers and group leaders can now download educational packs from the website

Participants in the public programme of workshops and events have ranged from the
young to older people. A group of young people from a local school has had an input into
the gallery design through our Inspiring Spaces scheme which has been supported via
funding through ‘enquire’. Through their participation in the scheme, the group was
awarded Bronze Arts Awards, an Arts Council Qualification equivalent to half a GCSE.
In addition to work within the formal education sector, a wide range of creative
workshops are also provided to meet the needs of senior citizens, families and often hard
to reach individuals.

Enhanced Kent’s reputation as a place for the arts:

Turner Contemporary, Margate and Thanet have continued to be the recipients of
positive national press, including articles in the Guardian and the Independent, as well as
BBC’s ‘The Apprentice’ that was filmed in Margate with a brief to re-brand the town.
Positive PR and improved profile of Turner Contemporary and Margate help to develop
and strengthen the brand, support the achievement of visitor numbers and help to deliver
the desired regeneration outputs.

Turner Contemporary has been confirmed as a partner of the Tate through the Tate
Connects programme; this is a major milestone in establishing Turner Contemporary as a
major national and international gallery. Tate Connects is a UK wide programme, which
will seek to strengthen artistic programmes, support artists and help to attract audiences.
The partnership with Tate means Turner Contemporary will have improved access to
loans from the national collection of British, modern and contemporary art.

Page 99



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

What more are we going to do?

Turner Contemporary continues to focus on the completion and fit out of the gallery
building and the development of the public realm. The building will be completed by
late 2010 and will be marked by a ceremony to acknowledge this achievement. The
Turner Contemporary team continue to undertake considerable planning to ensure that
the gallery is ready for public opening and that an exciting and varied programme will
be in place

The Turner Contemporary trust has been established and will develop the necessary
systems and processes to ensure that it is ready to assume operational responsibility for
the organisation from 1 April 2010. A funding agreement and lease between KCC and
Turner Contemporary will be completed and signed prior to April 2010

The Turner Contemporary operational team will continue to develop, to support the
management of the new building, and plan for the gallery opening and its ambitious
programme

Turner Contemporary will seek to develop and maximise positive public profile in the
period prior to the gallery opening.

Measurable indicators:

None — Measurement of this Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as being via task-
based assessment as the action will either be done or not done in the timescale.

Monitoring completed by: Victoria Pomery Date: July 2009

Page 100



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 28: Support and encourage the large number of local and voluntary groups and
sports clubs in Kent

Target 63: Promote the Kent Volunteers Programme and work with other partners to
attract more volunteers

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:
Mike Hill Amanda Honey Chris Hespe/Judy Edwards

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Target 28: Sports clubs, governing bodies of sport, all district councils in Kent, Medway
Council

Target 63: Local and national voluntary organisations, businesses, local authorities, the Health
Services, Jobcentre plus, Kent Police, HM Prisons.

Outcomes delivered so far:

These two Towards 2010 targets are being reported together as they are so interlinked.
Outcomes include the following:

Provided practical help for hundreds of sports clubs and groups across the county, for example
administering small revenue and capital grants and helping organisations to secure funding:

e Club Connect Card Scheme: This provides a range of discounts and benefits for sports
clubs, and was developed and officially launched in October 2007 by the KCC Sport,
Leisure & Olympics Service. As at June 2009, 292 sports clubs have signed up to the
Club Connect Card scheme

e Clubmark Accreditation Work: We support sports clubs in gaining nationally recognised
accreditation through the Clubmark programme with Clubmark clubs guaranteeing a
safe and friendly environment for young people to play sport. In addition, the KCC
Sport, Leisure & Olympics Service became registered in summer 2008 to run a local
Clubmark Licence scheme with district councils, in order to support clubs from minority
sports through the accreditation process. 150 sports clubs across the county now have
received Clubmark Accreditation

e Development officer posts: These have continued to support a wide range of Governing
Bodies of Sport with new development officers being secured to develop their sport in
swimming, archery, athletics, squash and curling. Funding has been secured to appoint
a golf development officer and discussions are well underway with cycling to develop a
post at Bedgebury Forest. Funding has also been secured to continue with a netball
development officer post until 2013. The KCC Sport, Leisure & Olympic Service also
continues to provide an administrative base for sport specific staff in Kent and across
the region

e The archery development officer post has provided a ‘legacy’ from the Archery World
Cup in Dover in 2007, through which equipment and training is being delivered to
Kent’s schools and community groups

e Small Revenue and Capital Grants: The Sport, Leisure & Olympics Service has
continued to administer a small revenue and capital grants programme, primarily to
support local clubs and voluntary sector sport

Page 101



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Training and Workforce Development: A range of training courses for clubs, coaches,
volunteers and sports leaders have been organised in order to support the club and
volunteer workforce. This includes working with School Sport Partnerships on a ‘Step
into Sport’ programme for young sports leaders in order to support and encourage them
into volunteering within local sports clubs and organisations

Since 2006, nearly 4,000 teachers, leaders, coaches, volunteers and club officials have
attended sports education opportunities, supporting the increased quality of provision in
the voluntary sector

Securing funding: Significant external funding has been secured for voluntary sports
clubs from funding bodies, trusts, charities, and commercial companies. Each year the
KCC Sport, Leisure & Olympics service has levered at least £4 of external funding for
every £1 spent on the service by KCC

149 awards have been made to voluntary sports clubs and organisations which have
benefitted from receiving small grants to run localised community sports projects.

Created a network of volunteers to help at sports and leisure events — nearly 500 volunteers
have signed up to the Kent eVent Team and this will grow to 2,500:

Developed an innovative project to build a network of people, the Kent eVent Team,
willing to volunteer for one-off sport, leisure and cultural events and so be ready and
sufficiently experienced to join the volunteer cohort to support the 2012 Olympic and
Paralympic Games, and to continue beyond. We are on target to exceed the aim of
having 2,500 volunteers registered by 2010. Kent Volunteers and KCC Sport Leisure &
Olympics service launched the Kent eVents Team project in May 2008, which has been
developed jointly with the volunteering networks in the county

Over 700 young people have registered on the ‘Step into Sport’ database as young
sports leaders and 432 people have registered on the Kent eVent Team database, with 35
organisations having been supported through this programme. An example of support
already provided is for the Margate Masters Beach Volleyball event. Volleyball England
were so impressed they are already looking to return to Margate for next year’s event.

Strengthened the voice of local sport in Kent, establishing Community Sports Networks in
partnership with district councils:

We worked with districts to establish 10 local ‘Community Sports Networks’ with
voluntary sector sport representation, so that the local voice of sport can feed into local
plans, alongside other partners.

Provided practical help to support the voluntary sector e.g. media training for representatives
from 70 voluntary organisations:

The focus of our programme is to increase the quality of volunteering and the capacity
of volunteer using organisations to increase their sustainability through these current
challenging times

Media skills have been delivered via ‘training the trainers’ for voluntary organisations to
up skill and cascade practical ways to engage with a variety of media sources. The
media training was taken into 70 voluntary organisations and was tailored for their use.
Feedback showed that press releases, radio interviews and Kent TV have been used.
Outcomes include increased volunteer recruitment and increased fundraising. There is a
demand for further training by a range of other groups

Using multimedia e.g. web, local press, radio and Kent TV we have up to date avenues
to keep the public informed on information about volunteering

Page 102



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Delivered a media campaign to highlight the need for volunteers to engage with youth
activities and to show how young volunteers enjoy benefit from volunteering.

Built a strong partnership focused on common goals, epitomised by the Kent Volunteers
Advisory Group (KVAG) containing representatives from the public, private and voluntary
sectors:

Kent Volunteers works in partnership with statutory, voluntary and business
organisations. The partnership (KVAG) is chaired by the Chairman of KCC and
members represent a range of influential voluntary organisations such as Kent Council
Voluntary Youth Service, Citizens Advice Bureau, Kent Wildlife Trust, St John and
Volunteer Centres. With KCC officers and statutory partners, including Health and Kent
Police, the network is able to identify good practice as well as barriers to volunteer
engagement and see ways to work together to increase involvement. Business partners
have contributed either with sponsorship such as from Pfizer and Clive Emson
Associates or help in kind such as from the Marlowe Theatre

Engagement of the Kent Partnership - Involvement in planning a recent voluntary sector
summit to consult with a wide range of organisations with the aim of working together
to militate against the impact of economic recession

The members of KVAG have shown by example that by working together, efficiencies
of sharing knowledge and practice can develop sustainable volunteer involvement. For
instance, Kent Police worked with Kent Volunteers to develop opportunities for
volunteers across their services. Now some 330 are engaged with a sizeable waiting list.

Celebrated the contributions and achievements of volunteers — since 2006 the Kent Volunteers
Awards have celebrated the achievements of 2,000 individuals and organisations that have
benefited the Kent Community:

Since 2006, the Kent Volunteers Awards for Volunteering Excellence, has identified
and thanked 2,000 individuals and organisations representing many more thousands of
volunteers benefiting our communities and environment

The partnership has shown KCC’s recognition of the value of volunteers and enabled
business to showcase their corporate community involvement. The volunteer’s stories
have inspired others to get involved

Kent Volunteers Awards for Volunteering Excellence have been held and thousands of
volunteers have been recognised and thanked, and their stories inspire others.

Enhanced Kent’s reputation, with several services achieving the national Investors in
Volunteering (IiV) standard:

The quality of volunteer management in KCC has been recognised. The Youth
Offending Referral Panel volunteers and learning champions in adult services have
achieved the national [iV standard

KCC was the first local authority in England to develop an Employee Volunteering
scheme and this continues to grow with 35% of KCC staff volunteering with many more
using the encouragement we provide to volunteer in their own time. Benefits include
personal and team development and evidence of making a difference to projects and the
community. One example is the Kent Highway Alliance who partnered with young
offenders volunteering together on a conservation project. A further outcome was that
five young people were offered jobs with the Alliance on their release. Increasingly staff
are developing a relationship with their chosen charity to continue the impact

Page 103



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Ongoing contribution to the national strategic volunteering agenda - Our County Co-
ordinator is Vice Chair of Volunteering England and KCC is recognised by the LGA as
a leading authority in volunteering development.

What more are we going to do?

e  Support more clubs to achieve Clubmark accreditation

e Encourage more clubs to sign up to the Club Connect card scheme and seek to increase the
benefits

e Work with Governing Bodies of Sport to secure further development officer posts and to
continue to support existing posts with an administrative base

e Provide further small grants to clubs and voluntary sports organisations in order to develop
more sports opportunities including links with schools

e Continue to promote the Kent eVent Team with a view to registering 2,500 volunteers for
one-off sport, leisure and cultural events. This scheme will help Kent's volunteers prepare to
volunteer for the 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games

e Continue to focus on ways to help volunteer using organisations help themselves, by:

e Working in partnership with Kent Fire and Rescue Service to see how they can best
use volunteers and to agree an employee volunteering scheme for their staff

e Planning a media campaign to highlight the need for people with specialist and
professional skills to volunteer, scheduled to launch in autumn 2009 and will run for
six months to March 2010. We will be encouraging potential volunteers with
valuable professional skills and experience to contact their local volunteer centre. A
new dedicated section on kent.gov.uk will be introduced and the campaign will be
based on research being done with the voluntary sector in Kent. We will be using a
mixed-media approach likely to involve media relations, advertising, Kent TV and
word of mouth

e Following a review of the Volunteer Awards and a wish to continue the scheme in
2010, we are working with the partners to update the process and obtain ownership
by the voluntary sector and external funding. KCC will remain involved as a sponsor.
This year in response to the impact of the economic recession, we will be making
small financial awards to directly benefit a maximum number of organisations.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual Target
Number of sports clubs achieving 75 90 135 149 175
Clubmark accreditation (cumulative
since 2006/07)
Number of sports clubs receiving 0 200 275 285 400
services via the ClubConnect Card
(cumulative since 2006/07 )
Number of volunteers managed by 1,500* 2,200* | Maintain *ok Maintain
KCC (excludes schools) or or
increase increase

* Based on estimates
** Due October 2009

Monitoring completed by: Chris Hespe / Carole Kincaid

Page 104

Date: July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 29: Continue to develop ‘gateway’ one stop shops that give easy access to services
provided by county and district councils and other public service bodies

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Roger Gough Peter Gilroy Tanya Oliver

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

District and borough councils, NHS, Police, Fire, voluntary sector, central government,
community groups, private sector, and KCC internal business units, Further Education and
training organisations, Business Link.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Gateway offers a single, convenient public service point sited in retail-based locations, using the
latest innovative technologies and working with district and borough councils and a range of
other partners including the NHS, Police, Fire, Job-Centre Plus etc. The focus is on shaping
services to fit around customer need, maximising efficiency both for the clients and service
providers, and delivering effective, measurable outcomes for people.

The Gateways opened to date are as follows:

e The original pilot, Ashford Gateway, opened in October 2005, prior to the term of this
Towards 2010 target, but included for completeness. It was complemented by the first
Mobile Gateway (Mobile I), launched in July 2007, with a target area of rural Mid Kent
(Ashford to Dover), and is currently being used to raise awareness and understanding of
Gateways amongst staff from the statutory and partner organisations involved. It is also
supporting regular services in Dover district and various projects and initiatives, such as
Adult Learners’ Week, Fostering and Adoption Recruitment. A combined Dover district
and Adult Social Care program was launched in March 2009, taking services out to urban
and rural locations across the district. It has also been used for the ‘Backing Kent People’
Summer Roadshow, with representatives from KCC, local district/borough councils, the
Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB), Kent Benefits Partnership and the Stop Loan Shark team
on board offering advice to members of the public (see also Towards 2010 target 61)

e Thanet’s Gateway Plus, which includes the library, opened on 7 January 2008. With
weekly footfall reaching 9,000 people on average, the anticipated footfall is 450,000 a
year, including the library. The opening has seen library membership increases amongst
teens and adults, provision of new services for minority groups, new health clinics as well
as the opening of the new Kent Contact and Assessment Service (KCAS) service

e Tunbridge Wells Gateway opened on 3 November 2008, situated adjacent to the main
pedestrian entrance to Royal Victoria Place, the primary shopping destination in the town.
CAB, Kent Adult Social Care, Voluntary Action West Kent (VAWK), Royal British
Legion Industries (RBLI), and a range of statutory and voluntary sector partners have
made a very positive impact. The number of customers served averages 5,000 per month
and an anticipated 60,000 per annum

o Tenterden Gateway opened on 8 December 2008. This Gateway is the first to have a
rural post office within it and is also the site for the local library, Tourist Information,
borough and county services. Volunteering Ashford is in situ and has experienced a
significant upturn in the numbers of people applying for volunteering projects to date

Page 105



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Maidstone Gateway opened on 5 January 2009, situated on Kings Street forming an
extension to The Mall, and adjacent to the bus terminus for Maidstone. There are
approximately 4,800 customers per month with an annual expectation of 58,000. CAB,
Age Concern, Registrars, Adult Social Care, and many other key service partners have
reported very positive customer satisfaction and activity levels

e Dover Gateway brings Phase 1 to a close and opened to the public on 15 July 2009. This
is a very positive development, building on Dover DC’s previous town centre presence.
The arrival of Gateway complements Dover Discovery Centre and is the first tangible
step in the delivery of the regeneration of Dover town, along with the Olympic screen on
Market Square

e Tonbridge Gateway (within Phase 2) is on the site at Tonbridge Castle and opened in July
2009. The new space has brought together ‘old and new’ and has been received very well
by customers. A full complement of services began during July

e A PR mobile has been added to the fleet. Launched in June 2009, this will be used for
PR, forward promotion and brand awareness.

Other specific Gateway related outcomes are listed below:

o In a detailed audit commissioned by the Cabinet Office, conducted by the IDeA and
LGA, Gateway presented the progress made on this initiative at the FOSS (Front Office
Shared Services) event in 2009. A number of other authorities want to learn from the
examples of best practice

e Gateway achieved top 10 ranking from 600 entries in the Innovation category for the
IDeA and Audit Commission awards in March 2008 and is showcased on their website

e Thanet’s Gateway Plus was short-listed for the LGC awards for Innovation and
Efficiency in 2008

e Gateway is working in strong partnership with KCC Libraries. Two Gateways have
been developed with libraries in Phase 1, with the potential for two future
Gateway/library developments planned for Phase 2. This combination is proving very
successful in terms of expanding the service offer with increasing appeal to the wider
community, and maximising the full potential of existing estate

e Kent is one of only two two-tier authorities to gain Pathfinder status for an important
Department of Work & Pensions’ led service innovation called TUO (Tell Us Once).
This is the first government-led service improvement initiative directly influenced by the
Varney report. The aim is to vastly improve the process of informing statutory
organisations in the event of the death of a loved one. The highly innovative and
effective approach the Gateway service team and Registrars have taken has resulted in a
very effective service being redesigned enabling district staff to fully engage in TUO.
This cost effective implementation in Kent has been openly acknowledged, and
representatives have been invited to join a national reference group looking at the longer
term governance arrangements for this service. The original unitary and London
borough pilots have also been to visit Kent to learn from our approach

e Interreg Funding for ‘Customer Insight’ - 4.3 m Euros has been secured by KCC,
Medway and all 12 district and borough councils to work in partnership with Pas de
Calais. This joint funding will develop the means to understand more about the people
of Kent their service requirements and service delivery gaps. A Kent and Medway
specific segmentation has been produced and a Service Delivery framework is available
for the five pilot districts (Swale, Gravesham, Tunbridge Wells, Thanet and Canterbury)
leading to action plans to enhance customer service practice. The next tranche of
development begins in September.

Page 106



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

What more are we going to do?

e A second mobile (Mobile II) Gateway is planned for 2010

e The planned modernisation of Ashford library (Ashford Gateway Plus) provides natural
development opportunities for the original pilot Gateway in the town. Subject to
planning, the new iconic development for Ashford could be ready for 2011. Located on
the current library site the new three storey building will bring together key services -
library, Registrars, adult social care, adult education, and the existing full Gateway
service partnership. The building will function as one service.

Planning for roll out of the rest of phase two of Gateway (April 2009 to March 2012) has
begun with committed interest in:

e Canterbury — options around Herne Bay regeneration
e Swanley — options around the Swanley Information Point
e Swale — Sittingbourne and Sheppey

e Dartford — planned redevelopment of Dartford town centre and the new community hubs
in Thames Gateway present strong opportunities

e Mobile III
e Shepway
e Gravesend (Gravesham)

e Bluewater

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 2009/10
Actual Actual Target | Actual Target
Number of Gateways operating in 1 3% 6** 6 gk
Kent (cumulative since 2006/07)

* Ashford, Mobile I and Thanet

w% Tunbridge Wells, Tenterden, Maidstone

***%  Tonbridge, Dover, and a PR Mobile launched June 2009 - additional to planned roll-
out)

Monitoring completed by: Tanya Oliver Date: July 2009

Page 107




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 30: Work towards introducing a Kent youth travel card entitling all 11-16 year
olds to free public transport in the county, subject to the outcome of two district pilots

Lead Cabinet Members: Lead Managing Directors: | Lead Officers:
Nick Chard/Sarah Hohler Mike Austerberry/Rosalind David Hall/Ian Craig
Turner

Status: Done and ongoing

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Kent public transport operators, Kent Youth County Council, Secondary Schools
QOutcomes delivered so far:

e The pilot Kent Freedom Pass scheme, where for £50 per year young people in academic
years 7 to 11 can travel for free on public bus services in Kent, has been delivered and
has proved extremely successful. We have worked well with schools and bus operators
and the scheme has been effectively administered through the Transport Integration
Team. The countywide roll out was completed in June 2009

o The original pilot schemes for students attending schools in Canterbury, Tunbridge
Wells and Tonbridge was launched in June 2007. In June 2008 the scheme was
extended to schools in Maidstone, Malling, Dover and Shepway. In January 2009 the
scheme was launched at schools in Swale and Thanet. In June 2009 the scheme
completed its countywide roll out with schools in Ashford, Dartford, Gravesham and
Sevenoaks joining. The total cost of the Kent Freedom Pass has been estimated at £7.6m
(net) in 2009/10

o The Freedom Pass has been widely publicised with a rolling programme of launch
events in each district, plus press releases and school seminars and we are broadly
following our projected pass take up

e The total number of Freedom Passes on issue is 16,400 (as at June 2009) with new
passes being issued all the time. Term time usage is now running at around 250,000
single trips per month. Approximately 75% of trips are made in the peak period to
school and 25% outside of the peak to access other after school opportunities. Feedback
from schools and young people has been extremely positive. We undertook a survey of
both parents and students in May 2008 and received over 1,000 responses which gave
clear qualitative evidence that young people are benefiting from using Freedom Passes
for leisure travel at weekends and during the evenings as well as getting to after school
clubs

e From the application forms some 30% of applicants have stated that the car was
previously their main mode of travel to school. Congestion surveys have looked at
journey time savings per km traveled. Surveys were undertaken in Tonbridge,
Tunbridge Wells, Maidstone, Dover and Canterbury using the Kent Police Automatic
Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) system and indicated a 2% to 6% reduction in
journey times near schools with a high take up of passes and a big shift from car users
shortly after the introduction of the Freedom Pass

o The scheme is now available to care leavers and home schooled children. The scheme
has also been extended to enable previously ‘private’ school or coach bus services,
funded by parents to join. Many of these relatively bespoke private services were
charging parents £800 to £900 per year. It has been agreed that the Freedom Pass will
reimburse bus operators at the standard reimbursement rate for the scheme. Operators are

Page 108



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

able to charge a top up fee to Freedom Pass holders using these services. For example in
the case of Hugh Christie school parents using a service to Edenbridge are now paying
£250.

What more are we going to do?

Provision of additional buses on services to schools with a high take up of passes over
the summer ready for the new school year in September to try to meet demand as best we
can

Negotiations are ongoing with several bus operators over reimbursement for journeys
made and additional capacity provided

We are hoping to be ready to issue Smartcards (similar to the London Oyster Card) to
Kent Freedom Pass holders attending schools in Thanet in a pilot of this scheme in
partnership with Stagecoach and Eastonways as part of the September 2009 reissue of
Freedom Passes in Thanet. Smartcards will assist with the accurate recording of
journeys made and the reimbursement of costs for these journeys

Data is being collated to contribute to a review of the scheme from the start of the new
school year in September 2009, by which time the total number of pass holders
countywide will be known

The scheme may be extended to include students living in Kent but attending schools
outside the county and, subject to costs, options include extending the scheme beyond
academic years 7 to 11 from September 2010

The results of a questionnaire survey looking at the benefits of the scheme and
considering barriers to its use is being used to inform further development.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10

Actual Actual Target | Actual Target

Ngrnber of 11-16 year olds issued . New 5.178 12,000 12,800 20,000
with a Freedom Pass indicator

Monitoring completed by: David Joyner

Page 109

Date: June 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 31: Pilot staggered school hours to relieve rush-hour congestion

Lead Cabinet Members: Lead Managing Directors: | Lead Officers:

Sarah Hohler/Nick Chard Rosalind Turner/Mike Director of Learning
Austerberry (Vacant)/Scott Bagshaw

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Governing Bodies of Schools/Academies, Environment and Regeneration, Integrated Transport
Unit, Public Transport Providers.

Outcomes delivered so far:

The success of this target is also linked to the county wide roll out of the Kent Freedom Pass
(see target 30) from June 2009 which will result in a huge shift of student travel away from cars
to more sustainable forms of transport. Specific outcomes so far include the following:

e Hugh Christie Technology College is piloting staggered hours for post 16 and some year
11 students. This involves a variable school day for students between 8.30am and 5.00pm.
This has been very successful and it has been confirmed that this school day model will
continue. At least three academies in Kent are also operating radically differently from
their neighbouring schools. For example, Marlowe Academy is operating an extended
school day for all pupils which runs from 8.30am to Spm which builds in all out of school
activities into the core school day. A total of four schools/academies are therefore
operating a staggered core day in the current academic year

e  Other academies that are planned to open September 2009 and 2010 are considering
staggered hours as a routine part of their school offer

e Extension of the school day already exists between schools of all phases. In a study of
primary schools in pilot areas for this Towards 2010 target, start and finish times vary by
up to 30 minutes at the beginning and end of the school day

e Extended schools activities have also staggered the times of arrival and departure of many
pupils across all Kent schools. Increasing numbers are accessing before and after school
activities, with one example of 25% of students on the Canterbury High School campus
benefiting daily from an extended school day

e The offer to all children and young people for access to extended school activities by
2010 will make a huge difference to this target as increased numbers of children benefit
from an extended school day which will stagger their arrival and departure times from
school.

What more are we going to do?

e Continue to promote the benefits of staggered and extended school hours with all schools
in the county by learning from pilot schools and publicising their experiences

e Ongoing work to ensure that all children and young people in Kent can access extended
school services by 2010 which will increase the staggering of the arrival and departure of
all pupils/students

e Use the full county roll out of Kent Freedom Pass as a mechanism to make it easier for
schools to stagger hours and travel to and from school at non-standard school hours

e Encourage primary school governing bodies to have more radically staggered hours

Page 110



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

o Ensure that staggered hours are considered for every new academy and new build school
under the Building Schools for the Future Programme to maximise use of space and

resources.
Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target
Number of schools with staggered New 4 6 4% 15
starting times indicator

* Whilst the 2008/09 target has been missed in terms of schools that are staggering their core
hours, increasing numbers of schools this year are offering a wide range of extended school
activities which stagger the arrival and departure of their pupils/students.

Monitoring completed by: Bjorn Simpole

Page 111

Date: July 2009



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 32: Provide more car parking places in Kent and remove unnecessary yellow
lines and bus lanes

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Nick Chard Mike Austerberry David Beaver

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

District councils (under delegated powers), Chambers of Commerce and other business interest
groups, town centre managers, Kent Parking Managers Group and District Engineers Forum

Outcomes delivered so far:

The focus of this Towards 2010 target is to help to deal with the frustration of finding
sufficient car parking as well as managing congestion on the roads.

Car parking and vellow lines

Two specific developments are as follows:

e Discussions have been held with parking providers to explore the feasibility of pulling
together on-land off-street parking and finding new spaces, with district councils closely
involved. KCC owned car parks at County Hall HQ in Maidstone have been opened to
the public for pay and display e.g. Invicta House car park in December 2006 (250
spaces).

e As aresult of the appointment of a new Kent Parking Manager within Kent Highways
Services (KHS), and the changes to parking as a result of the recent Traffic Management
Act, the parking agency agreements between KCC and all 12 districts in Kent have been
revised to reflect the changes in legislation.

Examples of action taken to date and planned schemes across the county include:

Ashford area - Parking provision has been reviewed from Ashford town centre outward
largely focused on the provision of resident preference schemes, where there had been
problems from commuters parking, and the provision of around 200 additional bays across
Ashford district. A new off-street car park has been provided in Station Road, Ashford
introducing approximately 200 new car parking spaces.

Parking provision in Tenterden is under review and is the subject of extensive public
consultation.

Canterbury - Parking provision has been under almost constant review in the city. The
Whitefriars development saw parking supply on the site reduced from 590 to 530 spaces. The
Canterbury Park Plan is being updated together with studies to determine future levels of
parking and parking restrictions which complement efforts to tackle congestion, including a
fourth park and ride site to the north west of the city planned for 2012/13.

Two inner city car parks have had their status altered to accommodate residents parking
therefore easing congestion and releasing approximately 20 further on-street parking spaces for
visitors.

Maidstone - Reviews of residents parking schemes have been completed following public
consultation in the north and south zones of the town and new extensive residents parking
schemes are currently being advertised for public comment. Some 30 additional bays have

Page 112



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

been introduced where yellow lines have been removed. Parking on single yellow lines is now
permitted on Saturdays in around 60 streets. 850 additional parking spaces have been
introduced in the town with the development of Fremlin Walk.

Thanet - A three year parking plan commenced in 2007, including further residents parking
schemes and pay and display spaces in central Margate, Westgate, Minnis Bay and Ramsgate.
440 parking spaces will be provided across the Isle of Thanet

Tunbridge Wells - 45 extra parking spaces were created in 2007/08 and single yellow line
times were changed to permit residents to park.

Shepway - An extensive parking review is currently ongoing throughout the entire district to
identify the need for residents parking, on-street parking bays and unnecessary waiting
restrictions. Two residents parking schemes have been identified at an early stage and are
currently open to public consultations.

Dartford - A full review of all parking and waiting restrictions is ongoing with approximately
50% of the borough completed. The review will identify unnecessary loading restrictions and
loading bans and identify the need for residents parking schemes.

Sevenoaks - A review of on-street parking has recently been carried out resulting in the
provision of approximately 100 on-street parking spaces.

Bus lanes

With regard to bus lane provision, a section in Maidstone has been successfully removed as it
did not meet the criteria (six buses per hour). A review has been undertaken of other sections
of bus lanes in Kent and all meet the criteria set out in the ‘Bus Strategy for Kent’. However,
new sections will be considered within this context.

What more are we going to do?

e Complete the parking review under the new focus of the recently appointed Kent Parking
Manager

e  Monitor progress as parking schemes are reviewed/introduced

e Review Bus Stop Clearways (BSC) across Kent. These currently operate 24 hours a day
and a trial is commencing in Ashford to change them to times when bus services operate
thus providing parking spaces during times when the bus service is not in operation
(some services typically do not run between 6pm and 7am.)

e KCC, in partnership with the 12 district councils, is reviewing all Traffic Regulation
Orders (TROs) across Kent. The aim is to identify unnecessary double yellow
lines/single yellow lines and those double yellow lines that could become single yellow
lines, thus providing further spaces over 24 hours and some spaces that can be used
during specified times

¢ Encourage the use of footways for shared cycle and pedestrian facilities and, where
possible, move cycle ways onto the footway in order to provide further parking spaces

e Ensure loading bans are only in place for necessary periods, therefore providing further
parking for disabled drivers

e Review existing bus lanes to ensure they operate during times of bus services, releasing
further on-road parking outside these hours

e Ensure reviews of roads are carried out when new bypasses are built or roads reclassified
i.e. a new bypass may allow further parking to be introduced on the old route

Page 113



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Undertake further parking reviews within the 12 districts. For example:

e All 12 district councils have recently reviewed their existing Traffic Regulation
Orders (TROs) to ensure that they are fit for purpose and provide the necessary on-
street provision that is required to manage congestion and ensure the efficient and
expeditious movement of traffic. Now this has been done we will be in a better
position to establish the volume of unnecessary yellow lines which could be
removed. Currently the review suggests that there will be a limited length

o Ashford - As part of Ashford Futures a new Park and Ride service is proposed to be
introduced in the town linked to Smartlink (a new dedicated bus service in Ashford
linked to the growth of the area and planned for operation in 2012). Three multi-
storey car parks are also planned alongside new developments

e Maidstone - The potential for Park and Ride to the north and south of Maidstone
linked to new development as well as rail stations is under investigation as part of
wider efforts to tackle congestion.

e A review of wider parking provision with the aim of a constant improvement in
congestion management, parking provision and efficiency of service. Currently several
solutions are being considered including additional bays, multi-storey car parks, resident
preference parking, potential for Park and Ride schemes and the identification of yellow
lines that could be removed or have their waiting status changed at weekends.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual Target

Number of additional public car
park spaces (cumulative since 0 1,115 400 1,515 1,715%
2006/07)
Length of unnecessary yellow lines Not
removed (metres) (cumulative 0 180 . ok ok
since 2006/07)

* Target has been increased from 600 which was originally set

** Subject to taking forward the TRO review

Monitoring completed by: Lorna Day

Page 114

Date: July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 33: Penalise contractors for unnecessary delays caused by road works and
synchronise works to minimise disruption

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Nick Chard Mike Austerberry David Beaver

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Utility Companies — individually and through HAUC (Highway Authority Utility Committee),
Traffic Managers — regionally and nationally, Department for Transport, neighbouring
authorities.

Outcomes delivered so far:

e A permit scheme designed to keep roadworks to a minimum has been launched in Kent.
KCC was one of two authorities to apply to the Secretary of State to introduce a permit
scheme for road and street works as a result of the Traffic Management Act (TMA) and
following a further, short, round of consultation, KCC’s application was submitted in
January 2009. The application has been given a green light and the introduction of the
permit scheme will take place in January 2010, once the relevant notice has been given
to all works promoters throughout Kent

e The scheme will increase penalties for non-compliance, including where work by utility
companies (statutory undertakings) cause disruption and/or takes longer than expected.
Kent’s own work on the highway will be subject to the same rules except that the
potential penalties will be recorded in performance indicators in order to comply with
parity as set out in the TMA - this is explicit in the Kent Permit Scheme application

o The Kent Permit scheme is structured to encourage best practice and minimise
unnecessary delays. Kent Highway Services implemented its own work permitting on
the 6 July 2009. In essence the Permit scheme means the Authority can be directive
rather that consultative when determining whether road space will be granted

e  Where those operating on the highway choose not to improve and deal with issues that
arise KCC has the power to levy fines through fixed penalty notices and to refer the case
to the Magistrates Court if necessary

e Greater powers to direct and co-ordinate road works (including our own) are possible
through the TMA. The permit scheme allows KCC to recover the costs of doing so (for
utility works) through a range of charges which are dependant on the scale of the impact
of the works. The permit scheme will also allow us to clearly define hours of operation,
particularly on traffic sensitive streets, and ultimately reject permits if the controlling
conditions are not in place

e The big challenge is to ensure that for KCC’s own works, we meet the exacting
standards expected of others on Kent’s roads. The Department for Transport and all
stakeholders will be keenly interested in this. Work is well underway in Kent Highway
Services (KHS) to further improve the programming permitting and control of our own
works which in itself is forcing operational efficiencies. An extensive awareness seminar
programme has been carried out followed by an extensive training program of Permitting
software familiarisation

e A note of caution, however. The permit scheme will be new to everyone with many
local authorities awaiting results of our scheme before they commit themselves. The
software providers have completed initial development work on a permit system for Kent

Page 115



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

and a live system is now in operation with KHS works now subject to permits as of 7
July 2009

The new Roadworks structure was populated in August 2008 under the management of
the Roadworks Manager. The four co-ordination teams are now located in the Ashford
and Aylesford offices with two in each co-located to encourage joint working practices.
A regular programme of seminars and reviews of working practice are in place to deliver
and improve consistency of working practice and increase the knowledge base. Whilst
income at the start of the year, as the Roadworks Teams were being formed, was lower
than expected this has recovered and action has been taken to ensure this improves.
Those undertaking work on the highway are now regularly challenged and many new
initiatives, such as extended working hours and the appointment of project liaison
officers by the work promoters, and innovative ways of working are becoming more
common place

The Considerate Contractor Scheme was formalised in April 2007 and requires all
contractors that sign up to it to comply with a code of conduct. The scheme has already
resulted in improved relationships and dialogue between KCC, utility companies, the
police and Health and Safety Executive. The first Kent Considerate Contractors Awards
was held at Oakwood House in June. This event celebrated the success of contractors
who had excelled during the year and we had positive feedback. This scheme continues
to be effective in improving and maintaining safety standards of work on the highway

KHS is investigating the use of IT planning software which can be used to demonstrate
the impact of road works on traffic flows using simulation through mobile technology.
This will link into the permit scheme and help us to better understand our road network.
This technology is expensive and a full business case is being developed

The performance indicators currently record non-compliance, however, given that there
are approximately 70,000 separate occupations of the highway each year across Kent’s
road network the greater majority complies with the requirements. To reflect this it is
intended to add a new indicator showing number of projects completed to time which is
a better indicator of how effectively roadworks are carried out in Kent. Currently 93.7%
of all works on the Highway are completed on time, the remainder may include granted
extensions where there have been reasonable grounds to extend.

What more are we going to do?

Implement the KHS Permitting Scheme

Demonstrate commitment to stakeholders in getting our own works right, followed by all
works on major and traffic sensitive streets before rolling the scheme out in full

Hold regular co-ordination meetings through SEHAUC (South East Highway Authority
Utility Committee), workshops and seminars

Deliver high profile press coverage and a communication programme

Improve advance visibility of road works through the internet, press, and on-site
notifications

Ensure there is a forward programme of co-ordinated road works available for Members,
districts, parish councils, community groups and other stake holders and further
development of the Traffic Management Centre

Ensure there is a renewed focus on identifying violations and penalising work promoters
where necessary. This has resulted in 16 penalties being issued in the first quarter of
20009.

Page 116



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Measurable Indicator (s) 2007/08 2008/09 | 2008/09 2009/10
Actual Target Actual Target
Number of Traffic Management Act % % g 50
permit violations (Section 74)

* Not set as we were awaiting approval of the permit scheme by Department for Transport
** We have still been able to use Section 74 to help improve utility performance as this part
has been enacted already. This is an interim measure until the permit scheme is fully in place.

Monitoring completed by: Ian Lancefield / David Beaver

Page 117

Date: July 2009



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 34: Tackle urban congestion and reduce peak journey times between and within
towns by 10% using methods such as intelligent traffic light management systems and
congestion-busting teams

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Nick Chard Mike Austerberry David Beaver

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Police, Alliance Partners, Highways Agency, bus operators, utility companies, car park
operators, district councils, other Highway Authorities.

Outcomes delivered so far:

KCC is committed to combating congestion and this Towards 2010 target is one of the
methods designed to tackle this issue. It is also linked to the delivery of Towards 2010 target
30 (Kent Freedom Pass), which has resulted in a significant reduction of traffic generated from
the school run, as well as target 31 (staggered school hours), and target 32 (more car parking
spaces). Specific outcomes are as follows:

e We have helped to significantly reduce journey times on Kent’s roads. (See PI table)
As at June 2009 journey times have reduced by 32% since March 2007 on key radial
routes in Maidstone. The Kent Freedom Pass will have had a positive impact on this
reduction. However, nationally it is considered that the recession and fuel prices have
affected the reduction in traffic volumes by 12%, and as the economy recovers the
average journey times may start to rise

e The establishment of the Traffic Management Centre (TMC) has enabled
improvements in the management of traffic to reduce congestion in Maidstone.
Operating the TMC for major events such as the Tour de France in 2007 and Radio
One’s Big Weekend in 2008 helped vehicles to pass without undue traffic problems

e Joint working with the Highways Agency’s Regional Control Centre (RCC) is
eliminating the artificial boundaries between the trunk and county road networks.
Establishing information exchange and co-operating in the management of traffic has
reduced the impact on Maidstone town centre of problems on the M20 including
extended periods when Operation Stack has been in place. Equally, informing
motorway drivers about road conditions in Maidstone has enabled them to avoid
adding to congestion in the town centre

e Kent Cordon project is a development between Kent Highway Services and the
Highways Agency and has lead to hardware such as CCTV, variable message signs
and Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) cameras being placed on key
strategic routes in Kent to enable joint, live traffic management. Installation of
equipment on the M2, M20, A229 and A249 allows real time traffic flow information
between the TMC and the Highway’s Agency’s Regional Control Centre as these
roads are diversion routes used following motorway incidents. The work was
completed this summer

e Variable message signs now placed on key routes into Maidstone give advance notice
of events and warn drivers of congestion enabling them to take alternative routes

e A programme of ‘health checks’ at key locations in the network has resulted in a
programme of over 50 ‘quick win’ improvements ranging from adjusting traffic signal
timings to renewing white lines, each of which have helped to improve traffic flows

Page 118



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Traffic flow monitoring sites on main roads in Maidstone and Canterbury provide
continuous traffic speed and volume data to the TMC enabling early identification of
congestion and monitoring of the impact of traffic diversions. The traffic flow
monitoring sites in Canterbury have been operational for almost a year. Warnings are
being generated when traffic speeds fall below the expected values to give TMC
operators an indication that there may be a problem in the vicinity of a particular site

The system operating car park variable message signs in Canterbury is being updated
in two phases in conjunction with the City Council. The existing signs are to be
replaced in phase one, for which an order has been placed, with installation before
Christmas. Phase two will see coverage extended to the remaining significant car
parks in the city. Installation of these signs is planned for the spring of next year. All
will be operated through the TMC with control of the information displayed available
locally in Canterbury.

ANPR data from the partnership with Kent Police is now online providing the
opportunity to give TMC operators early warning of problems on all the radial routes
into Maidstone and Canterbury by monitoring journey times and recording progress
against targets.

The TMC now has access to the control and view images from the Highway Agency’s
CCTYV cameras on trunk roads throughout the county facilitating provision of
information to stakeholders and road users as well as assisting in the management of
incidents on the road network

The TMC has contributed to a significant improvement in travel times in and around
the town. The data available to date compares the morning peak base values
established in March 2007 with the first four months of the financial year 2008/09 and
the first three months of 2009/10. These results are reflected in the feedback we have
received from the public and the business community who have reported reduced
journey times on some of the key routes and improved reliability of their journey times

The times of operation of the TMC have increased to 0630 to 1900 Monday to Friday
and 0800 to 1700 on Saturdays.

The Kent Traffic and Travel website, providing information obtained from the TMC,
proved very successful. Data supplied includes details of planned road works, incidents
and accidents and images from CCTV cameras across the county

Kent Police has agreed to devolve some powers to ‘congestion busting’ teams, now
known as Kent Traffic Officers (KTOs). They will have a strong and recognisable
street presence through clearly branded vehicles resembling the brand image of
Highway Agency Traffic Officers but clearly marked as KTOs. They will be able to
use bus lanes to enable faster access to incidents on the highway. The KTO scheme
was launched in June 2009 using road works inspectors. Extensive training has taken
place and all those participating have passed the required examination in order to
receive the delegated powers. The delay in introducing KTOs is due to the need to
submit a whole new scheme to Kent Police for consideration and approval. This has
been submitted and is considered a model application. A high degree of co-operation
has been achieved with the Police who are keen to make this trial a success. KTOs will
deal with traffic issues such as obstruction and will have powers to move vehicles on
where appropriate. They will also act as the ‘eyes and ears’ of the public to report
crime incidents to the police. This is an exciting new partnership with Kent Police;
they will be deployed via the TMC.

Page 119



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

What more are we going to do?

Run a trial of the KTO scheme focussed on Maidstone and record and review
effectiveness of the scheme. Consider extending the scheme subject to review and
budgetary constraints

Extend remote monitoring of traffic signals to incorporate the measurement of traffic
flows for input to the TMC

Deploy web-based access to the TMC systems for stakeholders enabling them to
access data and to provide details of incidents for access by other users

Complete deployment of Intelligent Transport Systems (ITS) equipment in Maidstone
and Canterbury. Continuing evaluation of the results obtained to inform the
programmed roll out across Kent, starting with Dartford and Gravesend in early 2009,
Tunbridge Wells and Thanet thereafter

Extend TMC coverage to Canterbury, Dartford and Gravesend during 2009/10
followed by Kent Thameside and Tunbridge Wells in 2010/11

Develop techniques where the TMC may extend active traffic management to new
areas in parallel with ITS deployment. There will be the need to address different
issues from those encountered in Maidstone. For example, Canterbury has a
significantly lower traffic signal population and will depend more on monitoring and
guiding traffic rather than absolute control. It will therefore be more challenging to
achieve similar results

Following discussion at government level, agreement has been reached to add an
additional on and off slip at Wincheap, aimed at reducing congestion in this part of
Canterbury. The scheme is progressing and is in the design stage

Increase interaction with adjacent Highway Authorities to exchange information and
manage traffic movements ‘across borders’

Improve guidance to available car parking spaces in Maidstone and Canterbury,
helping to reduce non-essential traffic movement

Exchange of CCTV images between the TMC and control rooms in Maidstone,
Gravesend and Canterbury to improve liaison with local stakeholders and avoid
unnecessary duplication of facilities

Continue work in partnership with the Highways Agency on the development of key
strategic diversion routes to be used following motorway incidents. Installation of
equipment on M2, M20, A229 and A249 for the Kent Cordon Project in the summer of
2009 will enable joint management of traffic on the key diversions by the RCC and the
T™C

Kent’s work with the HA has led to its selection as demonstrator for the FREEFLOW
project established with government backing to develop new techniques for the
management of traffic using multiple data sources. The automatic interpretation of
data and the associated strategy selection tools should enable existing levels of staff
resources to monitor and manage traffic across the county

Enhance and expand the Kent Traffic and Travel website as the programme for ITS
deployment rolls out beyond Maidstone to realise similar improvements in the other
key towns and on the inter-urban network.

Page 120



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Measurable Indicator(s) March March March March March
2007 2008 2009 2009 2010
Actual Actual Target Actual Target
Average journey time per 4.07 Not 5% 3.45 10%
vehicle mile on key radial minutes* | available | reduction | minutes | reduction
routes in Maidstone (Period over 2007 (15% over
and routes consistent with value reduction | 2007/08
base data) - Morning peak over 2007 | value***
(0730-0930) value)**

* 2007 baseline based on manual calculation. The automated system was introduced in

December 2008

**  As at June 2009 this figure reduced again to 2.79 minutes (31% reduction over 2007

value).

*** This target has been reconsidered in the light of the 2009 results but will remain at 10% as

traffic volumes may rise as we come out of the recession

Monitoring completed by: Sue Westwood

Page 121

Date: July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

transport services in Kent

Target 35: Work with bus and train providers and lobby government to improve public

Lead Cabinet Members:
Nick Chard/Kevin Lynes

Lead Managing Director:
Mike Austerberry

Lead Officers:
Mick Sutch/David Joyner

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Southeastern Trains, Eurostar, Network Rail, Arriva, Stagecoach, other bus operators, district

councils.

Outcomes delivered so far:

KCC continues to lobby Southeastern to improve its performance. Latest published
data shows 87.1% of its trains arriving on time (as at third quarter 2008/09) compared
to 85.1% in the equivalent period in 2007/08. Overall 91.0% arrived on time in the
year ending December 2008 compared to 89.6% year ending December 2007

Passenger satisfaction on the railway is also improving with the number of complaints
in the 2008/09 third quarter dropping from 20 per 100,000 passenger journeys to 13

KCC has consistently supported the CTRL (High Speed 1) scheme mainly because of
the regenerative effects it will have in east and north Kent. Full High Speed 1 services
are on target to start this December and preview services started between Ashford and
St. Pancras via Ebbsfleet in June — six months early

Overall, Southeastern will be operating 200 more services from mid-December — a 5%
increase in capacity. All major towns in Kent will have more services to and from
London, with the exception of Maidstone. However, pressure has been put on
Southeastern to retain the service to Cannon Street and it is now preparing options to
retain it

KCC has an excellent record of working with bus providers to improve public
transport in Kent and this is reflected by year on year increases in the number of
people using Kent bus services. There has been a further 7% increase in 2008/09 over
the figures for the previous year to over 55 million journeys. This is down to
continuing joint investment in services by bus operators working in partnership with
KCC as well as roll out of new initiatives to cut the cost of travel such as the Kent
Freedom Pass and improvements to the Concessionary Travel Scheme for over 60s

New partnership agreements (Quality Bus Partnerships) were launched in 2009 in
Dover and Ashford with Stagecoach and in Thanet in partnership with Eastonways.
The Ashford Quality Bus Partnership (QBP) was launched in February 2009. This
included the introduction of 10 brand new low floor easy access buses, which are now
running on Ashford’s A line route. The buses were funded through a KCC Kickstart
grant, with Stagecoach providing additional funding and marketing to increase
patronage

Around two thirds of the total bus fleet in Kent are now easy access, low floor entry

A scheme to upgrade bus stop poles and provide improved timetable information at
around 600 bus stops across Kent will be completed in 2010. Real-time electronic
displays showing arrival times are also being provided at main bus stops to provide bus
passengers with better information and certainty over when a bus is due to arrive

Page 122



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

KCC has worked with operators to encourage joint ticketing, and a scheme called ‘Plus
bus’ is now available at 26 main railway stations in Kent which enables rail passengers
to buy a rail ticket that includes onward travel on local bus services

The Ashford Station Travel Plan, developed in partnership with Southeastern, Ashford
Borough Council and Stagecoach was launched in May 2009. It is aimed at improving
integration and enhancing station access by bus, car sharing, cycling and walking. 612
members of the public have signed up as Travel Plan Partners'. It is intended that this
will be a model for other stations in Kent

KCC has part funded new ticket machines for approximately 800 buses across Kent.
These machines will be capable of reading smartcards, similar to the London Oyster
card. A pilot is under development to issue young people with smarz Freedom passes
in Thanet, working with Stagecoach and Eastonways. It is hoped this will be launched
in September 2009. (See also Towards 2010 target 30)

The Kent Freedom Pass (see Towards 2010 target 30) has proved extremely successful
and countywide roll-out was completed in June 2009 at which point 16,400 passes had
been issued. Term time usage is now running at around 250,000 single trips per
month. Much of the success of Freedom Pass can be attributed to a close working
relationship with the Kent bus operators who have increased capacity to ensure a
smooth roll out

KCC provides financial support to around 200 bus services and 7 Kent Karriers. Kent
Karriers provide dial-a-ride accessible services to disabled people and those living
more than 500m from an existing bus route. A successful re-tendering of around 25%
of all bus services supported by KCC has been completed within budget, ensuring
services can be sustained during 2009

KCC is providing additional funding to the Kent and Medway Concessionary Travel
Scheme for over 60s. This has enabled the scheme’s start time to be returned to
9.00am and for disabled companion passes to be issued and be valid across all Kent
district areas. There are currently 220,000 pass holders in the scheme and of these
180,000 are residents in the KCC area

Bids were submitted to the Department for Transport in July 2009 seeking Kickstart
funding for Arriva services 6 and 7 between Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells and for
the Stagecoach Triangle services between Canterbury, Whitstable and Herne Bay. If
successful, these will provide new buses and more frequent services.

KCC is working closely with health authorities to improve public transport services to
hospitals and to ensure that information on these services is widely distributed.

What more are we going to do?

KCC, with partners including local MPs, will continue to press for restoration of the
proposed cuts of rail services from Maidstone and West Malling (Kings Hill) before
December

The changes in passenger rail services from December are extensive and, although
generally positive, the overall effects will need to be closely monitored next year to see
whether there is a need to lobby for modified timetables and fare levels to suit
passengers’ needs and achieve the desired regeneration effects in east and north Kent.
Pressure will be maintained on Network Rail through the Rail Utilisation Strategy

" Travel Plan Partners are people who have signed up to try an alternative to using their car to get to the
station and we have provided them with a personalised travel plan - a list of all their options for getting
from their house to the station.

Page 123



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

(RUS) process to improve rail journey times and reliability as well as the quality of
stations. Lobbying for a new parkway station for Thanet close to Kent International
Airport with good road access will be maintained

e (QBPs will be developed for new areas of the county building on operator investment in
vehicles and taking advantage of Government and Kent Kickstart initiatives. Existing
QBPs will be reviewed in the light of the new Local Transport Act 2008 which enables
Statutory Partnerships and Quality Contracts to seek further improvements in local
services

e KCC will continue to work with South Eastern and Railtrack to improve access to
stations in Kent. We will continue to promote improvements through the Local
Transport Plan. We will also work with bus and rail operators to market new services.
It is hoped that the launch of the Ashford Station Travel Plan will prove to be a model
for other stations in Kent, particularly those benefiting from the new High Speed Rail
services

e Further expansion of KCC’s award winning Fastrack network of high quality bus
services in Kent Thameside is planned. Work is in hand to deliver a similar scheme
for Ashford called Smartlink, beginning with the launch of a new bus service called
the E Line in March 2009, linking Eureka and Orbital Business Parks to the town
centre. This is the precursor to Smartlink which will link with a Park & Ride site at the
Warren in 2012

e KCC will continue to lobby government over proposed changes to responsibility for
and funding of the Concessionary Fares scheme for over 60s

e The emerging Integrated Transport Strategy for Kent sets out proposals to maximise
the benefits of rail by building on the high speed services with new stations and
reduced journey times on other parts of the network. It also advocates the need for a
fully integrated bus system with a network of high quality inter urban coach services,
improvements to rural bus networks and further Fastrack and Smartlink type schemes
for town centres. Partnership with operators is key to achieving this vision. It is hoped
to develop a number of pilot projects over the next 12 months

e Further improvements to public transport services to hospitals and other health
facilities will be discussed at a Kent-wide Transport and Health Conference in
September.

Measurable indicators:

None — This Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as having an ‘aspirational’ status
and progress is measured via qualitative means.

Monitoring completed by: Mick Sutch/David Joyner Date: June 2009

Page 124



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 36: Commission a joint feasibility study with Essex County Council into a third
lower Thames Crossing

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Nick Chard Mike Austerberry Mick Sutch

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Essex County Council (CC)

Outcomes delivered so far:

Although the Department for Transport (DfT) announced that it was to commission a
study looking at options to increase the capacity of the crossing of the Thames in
October 2006, there was no progress until KCC and Essex CC announced that they too
were to commission consultants to look at the same issue. This initiated the Department
for Transport (DfT) commissioning their study which started in February 2008 and was
completed in April 2009

The study identified three long-term options for crossing the Thames (bridge or tunnel)
and to be carried forward for further assessment — at Dartford, between the Swanscombe
Peninsula and Tilbury and to the east of Gravesend and Tilbury

Consultants for KCC and Essex CC have produced a draft report which identifies the
same three options as the government.

What more are we going to do?

Finalise the joint report with Essex CC to ensure there is agreement of factual data in
both reports

The DT has proposed that the issue will be taken forward as one of the Delivering a
Sustainable Transport System’s (DaSTS’s) studies commencing later this year and
reporting in March 2010. As a key partner in this issue, KCC expects to be included in
the Steering Group of this study and is lobbying for this to occur.

Measurable indicators:

None — Measurement of this Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as being via task-
based assessment as the action will either be done or not done in the timescale.

Monitoring completed by: Mick Sutch Date: July 2009

Page 125




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 37: Improve the way we repair roads and pavements

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Nick Chard Mike Austerberry Kim Hills

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Ringway, Jacobs, TSUK, KCC Contact Centre

Outcomes delivered so far:

The winter of 2008/09 bought below freezing temperatures for significant periods resulting in
many days where frost remained within the carriageway construction and the thaw produced
major damage and potholes.

Specific outcomes so far include the following:

From early January 2009 we provided additional crews for repair. This peaked at the
end of February with 70 crews across the county focused on surface repairs. At the
height around 3,000 potholes a week were being fixed

We are operating at twice the number of patching crews compared to where we started in
April 2008 and this high level will be maintained throughout 2009/10

The increases in budgets have enabled us to further improve the level of carriageway and
footway maintenance. We are operating two 'Jetpatcher' machines (a fast process, able to
achieve significant patching and pothole repairs on rural roads) for the first six months of
this financial year. This will enable us, by the end of this summer, to apply
approximately 3,500 tonnes of material, patching our minor road network

Extra funding (approximately 35%) is achieving a significant increase in carriageway
surfacing schemes. This year we will surface nearly 1,000,000m” and to the end of June
2009 we had already completed 390,000m’

Additionally, this year we are tackling ‘minor surfacing’ by machine, which allows for
local short term responses to poor carriageway condition. Previously short lengths (100
to 150 metre lengths) may have been heavily patched, where local condition was poor.
We are now delivering an increase in full width/short length machine surfacing and
should achieve approx 50,000m’

Alongside improvements in the physical work are major enhancements in customer
communication. This is seeing requests acknowledged and any call back requests
processed within two working days. Completion dates are being set for each request and
shared with the customer. Very positive feedback is being received

Closer links are now in place with all parish/town councils and KCC Members, who all
have a designated named liaison officer. Some good relationships are being built and we
are engaging positively with local communities

We are focused on improving our performance against some ‘killer’ PIs for this service.
The latest figures are as follows:

Aug 08 Aug09

Potholes reported by Highways inspectors 897 1,242
Potholes reported by members of the public 140 193

Page 126




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

25 days 17 days
2,426 2,000
56%  76%

Average pothole repair time from call to completion
Routine faults reported by members of the public
Routine faults completed in 28 days

What more are we going to do?
e Undertake a full review of our Winter Service response to ensure we are in a position to

respond in a positive manner

e Continue to improve our customer care interface due to close working with Members
and parish/town councils through our new Community Liaison Officer arrangements

e Allow on-line web access to local information via the Parish Portal with reports fully
operational by the end of summer 2009. We will continue to expand and improve in the
future, taking advantage of technology enhancements

e Introduce new systems to help our Contact Centre record service requests more
accurately using map based co-ordinates, obtain more detailed information and so direct
crews to the correct location

e Continue the use of ‘Jetpatcher’ to repair minor roads
e Undertake a further 600,000m2 of carriageway resurfacing to be completed in 2009/10

e Retain a high level of patching crews through the remainder of 2009/10 and continue this
frontline focus in the future years

e Continue improved operational flexibility (crew types and programming) which is
already improving efficiency and productivity

e Ensure more performance data becomes available from our customer system, allowing us
to target and improve operation in the coming years.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 | 2008/09 2009/10

Actual Actual Target Actual Target

Net satisfaction of residents +5% +19% +20% +29% +30%*
with condition of roads in Kent

* Target has been increased from 23% that was set originally

Monitoring completed by: Kim Hills

Page 127

Date: July 2009 (updated September 2009)




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 38: Maximise the use of previously developed land

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Nick Chard Mike Austerberry Richard Feasey

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

District councils in Kent, Government Office for the South East, Home Builders Federation.
Outcomes delivered so far:

The proportion of housing development accommodated on previously developed land has risen
in recent years from just under 60% in 2002/03 to 78% in 2007/08 during a period of rising
housing completions overall. In total, 76% of housing development completed in the five-year
period 2003/08 was on previously developed land. This increase reflects both the sustained
pressure to prioritise the use of previously developed land and the character of recent housing
development with its strong emphasis on higher density small unit accommodation.

Housing completion rates and the contribution of previously developed land to this remained
high until early 2008. However, the severe downturn in the housing market associated with the
recession is affecting both the level of new development and its composition in the short term,
and in particular the significant cut back in higher density housing schemes on more costly and
complex brownfield sites as a result of changing economic viability will put pressure on this
Towards 2010 target in the short term.

Specific outcomes in relation to this target are as follows:

e KCC continues to review Local Development Framework (LDF) proposals for the
priority given to the use of brownfield land and the efficient use of scarce resources of
development land. Most recently, this has involved representations on core strategies for
Dover, Tunbridge Wells and Shepway. Proposals for Dover and Shepway include
substantial use of surplus Ministry of Defence land, involving previously developed
sites. Masterplans in the Swale area for Queenborough/Rushenden and Milton Creek,
Sittingbourne will take forward strategic allocations involving around 3,000 to 4,000
homes on brownfield sites. Despite the high level of housing completions on previously
developed land the supply of brownfield land to meet development requirements has
been continuously ‘topped up’. Almost three quarters of the additional land identified
through LDFs or new planning permissions between 2004 and 2008 has involved
previously developed land

e KCC has worked with all districts to determine a common approach to future strategic
housing land availability assessments that are now required under current national policy
guidance and a joint protocol for such studies was agreed by the authorities in December
2008. This will include the examination of urban and brownfield housing capacity,
viability considerations and consideration of different land use claims on brownfield
land. KCC is participating in a number of local partnerships to determine the approach to
and outcome of Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessments to consider the sources
and deliverability of housing land.

Page 128



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

What more are we going to do?

KCC will continue to build and use evidence on the contribution of previously developed
land for housing. This has assumed greater importance in the wake of current national
planning policy guidance (PPS3) which downgrades the role of, and allowance for, sites
that are granted planning permission (but which have not been previously identified in
plans) in assessments of future housing land supply. Such sites overwhelmingly involve
brownfield sites. This sits alongside pressures to increase overall housing supply in
response to national objectives to secure three million additional homes by 2020. This
approach calls for close examination and identification of prospective brownfield sites
for housing to ensure that the current levels of achievement are not diluted. The target
for the proportionate contribution of previously developed land to housing development
sits within a context of a rising planned rate of housing completions in Kent. The
average annual rate of housing provision for Kent has risen from 5,485 per annum
(2001-2016) under the former Structure Plan to 6,160 per annum (2006-2026) under the
South East Plan approved in 2009

Through its representations on LDFs and strategically significant planning applications
KCC will continue to review local planning proposals for the role expected of
brownfield land. During 2009/10 a number of district LDF core strategies are due for
consultation including Canterbury, Dartford, Gravesham, Thanet and Sevenoaks

The needs of commercial development as well as housing will need to be balanced in
this and account taken of the nature of significant future public sector land disposals.
Preparation of any planning advice sought by the South East England Partnership Board
testing the impacts of further increases of housing provision in the region and in Kent
will pay close regard to these factors.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 2009/10
Actual Actual Target Actual Target
Percentage of housing
completions on previously 80.1% 78.0% 70% * 70%
developed land

* Available late autumn 2009

Monitoring completed by: Richard Feasey

Page 129

Date: July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 39: Bring back into use the large number of empty homes in Kent

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Kevin Lynes David Cockburn Theresa Bruton

Status: Done and ongoing

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:
All 12 Kent district councils

Outcomes delivered so far:

KCC launched the ‘No Use Empty’ initiative in 2005 with a £5million funding package
focusing on the coastal areas of east Kent in order to tackle the problem of empty housing.
The LAAI target was exceeded securing a government reward grant of £2.239 million.

Following the enormous success of this scheme, a joint launch event was undertaken in April
2008 attracting widespread media publicity which saw the roll-out of the initiative across the
whole county. Three intervention strategies are used - loan scheme, support to district
enforcement work and direct acquisition by KCC.

Specific successes include the following:

o The 2009/10 target was increased from the original 650 properties to 850 in June 2009,
as can be seen in the PI table, having achieved this Towards 2010 target ahead of
schedule following the successful roll-out of the initiative across the whole county in
April 2008

o Enforced the sale of 77 Eastern Esplanade, Cliftonville, Margate which had been in
disrepair for some 20 years. Town & Country Housing Group worked with Thanet DC to
bring the property back into use as affordable housing, with the first one becoming
occupied in January 2009

e Compulsory purchase of the former Warren Court Hotel, Cliftonville, Margate, derelict
for some five years and subject to frequent arson attacks, was made possible by the very
first inter-authority loan (May 2009). A full planning application is being worked on
which will see the site returned as affordable housing

e Direct purchasing, although the first property to be acquired under this intervention is
proceeding slower than anticipated having been delayed by complex legal issues

e Applications to convert commercial properties into residential accommodation are also
eligible for funding. The initiative has recently supported the conversion of a Victorian
warehouse situated in Dover town centre, providing eight units, which were marketed in
June 2009.

The ‘No Use Empty’ initiative has been widely praised across the UK as a unique partnership
between county and local councils, achieving tangible results and setting an example for others
to follow. The level of interest in the initiative remains high, for example:

e Media: ITV Tonight Programme, BBC Homes Under The Hammer, Kent TV

e Press: National and local exposure as well as a range of housing/regeneration
publications

e Direct: Telephone enquiries from other local authorities across the UK

Page 130




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e  Website: www.no-use-empty.org

What more are we going to do?

e Continue with the three intervention strategies (loan scheme, support to district
enforcement work and direct acquisition by KCC) across all Kent districts

e Target specific areas inviting landlords/traders to participate in workshops to promote
the initiative and offer any potential applicant the free services of a property
management company for one hour. If successful, this approach could be replicated in

other parts of the county

e Look at other innovative ways of engaging with others and creating new opportunities

e Continue to facilitate training sessions for empty property officers.

The approved re-alignment of the budget for the initiative currently profiled to 2013 will also

allow for:

e Continuation of the loan scheme available to all districts who wish to sign up

e Creation of a new fund from within the existing budget allocation for the exclusive use
of the east Kent partners to retain the high profile of the initiative and rewarding them for

their significant contribution to KCC achieving the Performance Reward Grant.

brought back into use in Kent
(cumulative since 2006/07)

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual Target
Number of long-term empty properties 172 339 511 728 850%*

** Target increased from original of 650 to 850 in June 2009, having achieved this Towards
2010 target ahead of schedule following the successful roll out of the initiative across the

whole county in April 2008.

Monitoring completed by: Steve Grimshaw

Page 131

Date: 27 July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 40: Ensure that new housing developments include the right infrastructure and
local facilities and cater for a mix of age groups and incomes

Lead Cabinet Member: | Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:
Nick Chard/Kevin Lynes | Mike Austerberry/David Cockburn | Richard Feasey/Nigel
Smith

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:
District councils in Kent, Medway Council, Kent Economic Board, Kent Housing Group
QOutcomes delivered so far:

KCC is working with key partners including Kent Economic Board Housing Task Group,
Medway Council and all Kent districts to develop a ‘fit for purpose’ Housing Strategy for Kent
and Medway that provides strategic direction, innovation and action as a response to the huge
diversity of housing need and opportunities across the area. It will in part examine innovative
ways of bringing forward housing development of different tenures.

Following a recent invitation by Government, KCC has submitted proposals to be included in
any pilot of proposed Accelerated Development Zones, by which ‘Tax Incremental Financing’
of infrastructure to support development would be brought forward. This is a practice used in
countries such as the US. Under such a pilot scheme, increased revenues generated once
development has been occupied would be ring-fenced and dedicated to paying back
infrastructure which had been financed through bonds raised or other similar mechanisms.

The current review of “What Price Growth’ maintains KCC’s commitment to assess the nature
of infrastructure required to address the high level of housing growth to be accommodated in
Kent and the financial and investment implications of this.

The former Development Plan for Kent, the Kent and Medway Structure Plan 2006, contained
strong policies to ensure that development is accompanied by the required infrastructure and
services but these policies ceased to have effect from July 2009 following approval of the South
East Plan. Policy CC7 of the South East Plan includes the principle that "where development
creates a need for additional infrastructure a programme of delivery should be agreed before
development begins".

Other specific outcomes are as follows:

e The success of this Towards 2010 target requires appropriate planning policy and
adoption of supportive planning policies by local planning authorities, the district councils
and therefore we work with district councils to ensure requirements for KCC services are
included in Local Development Frameworks (LDFs) giving us the policy base from which
to deliver. This is increasingly important given the greater emphasis now given to
infrastructure planning as part of the preparation and testing of LDFs and the potential
introduction of a Community Infrastructure Levy from 2010

e A corporate officer group has been established to co-ordinate KCC'’s input into district
LDFs. The infrastructure and KCC service requirements are established by each of the
service directorates and a co-ordinated response for KCC is put forward to the district
councils on infrastructure and service delivery matters. Although few districts as yet have
either submitted or adopted core strategies for the LDFs (only Tonbridge and Malling and

Page 132



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Ashford so far) both of these districts provide for a balance of development and
infrastructure. In Ashford, strong policies to provide for KCC infrastructure have been
included following KCC'’s intervention and the public inquiry. Negotiations on other
district LDFs continue. During 2009/10, a number of district LDF core strategies are due
for consultation including, Canterbury, Dartford, Gravesham, Thanet and Sevenoaks

We have been working with service providers to compile overarching and district level
service provision statements to underpin policy LDF infrastructure plans. This work was
reported to KCC’s Cabinet in early 2009 and subject to consultation this summer

KCC has continued to assess local planning strategy and proposals for the approach taken
to local infrastructure planning and delivery. This has involved submissions to the public
Examination of the Ashford Core Strategy on the proposed strategic tariff, representations
on the Dover, Tunbridge Wells, Sevenoaks and Shepway core strategies, and
Queenborough and Rushenden and Sittingbourne town centre Masterplans

KCC has continued to assess local planning strategy and proposals for the approach taken
to local infrastructure planning and delivery. This has involved submissions to the public
Examination of the Ashford Core Strategy on the proposed strategic tariff, representations
on the Dover, Tunbridge Wells, Sevenoaks and Shepway core strategies, and
Queenborough and Rushenden and Sittingbourne town centre Masterplans

We have contributed to strategic housing market assessments (HMAs) in partnership with
districts, Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) and the house building industry. These
assessments, required under government guidance, (PPS3), provide comprehensive
guidance at district and local market area level on the mix of social and market housing,
including the role of shared equity provision, needs associated with the ageing
demographic profile and special needs groups. They inform LDFs policy development
and the consideration of planning applications. Under the Kent Housing Strategy, a
Kentwide Strategic Housing Management Assessment has been commissioned to review
evidence on housing need and mix in terms of type, size and tenure, by interrogating the
data set out in the Districts own HMAs.

With regard to infrastructure provision to support housing growth and mix, the level of
development contributions sought is based on guidance contained within our Developers
Guide. These assessments include education, communities and adult social services.
They are regularly revised to ensure they adequately address demographic change in the
longer term and to influence and encourage the provision of necessary infrastructure to
support a mix of housing for future communities. Costs rates in the guide are updated
annually to provide protection to Kent taxpayers for inflationary trends in construction
costs

Over the period of this Towards 2010 target, infrastructure funding has been agreed to
support communities living in areas of new housing development. This includes land for
four primary schools with nurseries and multi-agency space, a secondary school, a
lifelong learning centre (including youth and community, library and non-clinical adult
social service facilities), public transport and highways infrastructure

Homes also need to be well designed. The Leader of KCC is the design champion for
KCC and KCC is the lead for the Kent Design Initiative (KDI), an informal partnership
that brings together all the key sectors of the development industry to encourage delivery
of high quality design for sustainable communities in Kent including promotion of
standards such as Lifetime Homes and Code for Sustainable Homes. The Kent Design
Guide has been adopted by all but three districts as Supplementary Guidance to their LDF
core strategies

The KDI is also producing, in collaboration with some of the district councils, new
technical appendices and planning policy documents on specific key themes on matters of

Page 133



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

county-wide significance which includes a maintenance and management protocol or
toolkit on streets within town centres, community safety, (with the Kent Fire Service),
planning for crime prevention (with Kent Police), a farmstead design toolkit (with
English Heritage and the Kent Downs AONB Unit), as well as disabled access

e  We have also produced the second ‘showcase’ document on ‘Street and public space’,
using Kent examples to celebrate good practice exemplars throughout the county; and in
April 2009 launched the 2009 Kent Design Awards, which includes new categories for
RSLs, craftsmanship to reward the best contractor, and the Lord Sandy Bruce-Lockhart
Award for the project of the year. The Award Event is scheduled for mid-March 2010.

What more are going to do?

e Complete and publish the Kent Housing Strategy in conjunction with the Kent Economic
Board by February 2009.

e Continue to monitor the development of detailed proposals and regulations that will
govern the introduction of a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) enabled by the 2008
Planning Act. The means by which this is formulated, scrutinised and agreed will be
important in two tier local authority areas such as Kent

e Continue to press the case for an appropriate and robust planning policy framework
towards infrastructure planning and delivery at regional, sub regional and local levels

e Alongside consideration of and advocacy for other funding streams, we will continue to
consider where appropriate, a balanced case for development contributions arising from
significant housing developments as they come forward for planning permission. More
innovative solutions are to be considered for the KCC development contributions guide
which is being revised in light of the Regeneration Framework and ‘What Price Growth
2’ policies. A development industry seminar is to be held autumn 2009 to explore new
solutions including deferred payments in the current market

e The KDI will continue to roll out the guidance and policy notes, and are looking to work
with cross-district/county working groups on new themes such as housing space
standards — both internal and external - (linked to lifetime homes and ensuring that
properties meet the changing needs of the vulnerable, disabled and elderly), infill
development for smaller sites of under 20 houses, rural housing and a characterisation
study on towns and villages

o The KDI will develop bespoke training programmes, capacity raising events, seminars,
exhibitions and study tours for key stakeholders including local authority officers, council
members, and the development industry. These will harness, improve and develop
existing and new design capacity and expertise throughout Kent.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target
Section 106 developer contributions 82% 82% 80% 89% 80%

achieved as a percentage of those sought:
Minor applications (up to 500 units)

Monitoring completed by: Richard Feasey/Nigel Smith
Date: July 2009 (updated September 2009)

Page 134



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 41: Ensure that new KCC buildings set an example by delivering the best possible
standards of construction by applying a pragmatic approach to sustainability using
energy-efficient, robust and built to last materials

Lead Cabinet Member: | Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:
Nick Chard Peter Gilroy/Mike Austerberry Peter Binnie/Carolyn
McKenzie

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

SEEDA, Arts Council, Kent Archive Centre, SECE, joint working with districts on projects
such as The Beaney and the Marlowe Theatre.

Outcomes delivered so far:

New build projects that KCC’s Property Group is responsible for managing are designed
to the BREEAM ‘very good’ standard. To ensure a consistent approach for all new KCC
buildings a Sustainable Construction Policy has been developed which outlines the key
elements to sustainable construction and the issues that must be considered during the
planning, design and construction phases for all KCC projects

The cross-directorate Sustainable Estates Taskforce (SET) is now in its second year and
continues to address the issues of sustainable construction as well as identifying
opportunities for further progress. Progress on this Towards 2010 target is monitored
through SET which is responsible to the KCC Environment Board

Property Group includes a sustainability section in its tender documents and terms and
conditions for contracts. This helps ensure environmental issues are given proper
consideration during the procurement process as well as raising awareness among
consultants and contractors of KCC’s environmental objectives and the part they play in
meeting these

A ground source heat pump has been installed at the site of the new Turner Contemporary
Gallery in Margate (see Towards 2010 target 27) and this will produce renewable energy
when the building is operational.

What more are we going to do?

Continue to ensure that the designs deliver sustainable buildings which are energy and
water efficient, incorporate built-to-last materials and minimise waste

Plans are underway to make Oakwood House Conference Centre more sustainable, by
retro-fitting solar technology and a ground source heat pump to provide heating and hot
water for the bedroom accommodation

Continue to follow best practice with regard to site waste management plans in order to
prevent, reduce and recycle waste created as a result of construction work

Regularly review the Kent Design Guide and technical annexes to ensure that
opportunities for resource efficiency savings and climate change future proofing are fully
integrated

KCC Property Group and Laser will continue to work together to identify where
opportunities exist for renewable and sustainable technologies to be funded for inclusion
in new build projects

Page 135




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e A database of completed construction projects has been compiled and a selection of these
will be reviewed to assess the benefits of any environmental elements in practice, and this
will help build upon existing knowledge and further develop good practice.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 |2007/08 |2008/09 (2008/09 (2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target

Percentage of new KCC buildings
designed to at least BREEAM ‘very 60% 80% 90% 90% 100%
good’ standard*

*Where BREEAM is applicable.

NB: BREEAM standards are available for common building types including schools, homes,
offices, retail, courts and prisons. Applying BREEAM standards to other building types (e.g.
art galleries) requires a bespoke assessment. This indicator measures the BREEAM standards
of common building types for which BREEAM standards are readily available or for which a
bespoke assessment has already been made.

Monitoring completed by: Léonie Harrington Date: July 2009

Page 136




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 42: Reduce the impact of KCC's buildings and vehicles on the environment,
including trialing the use of biofuels and other new technologies

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:
Nick Chard Mike Austerberry Carolyn McKenzie

Status: More progress needed
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:
LASER energy buying group, Carbon Trust, Creative Environment Networks.

Outcomes delivered so far:

This target is a measure of KCC’s own corporate environmental performance and currently
focuses on the largest parts of the authority’s eco-footprint - carbon dioxide emissions, water
use and waste. It links with Target 41 which monitors the environmental impacts of the
construction of new buildings. Progress on Targets 41 and 42 is monitored through the
Sustainable Estates Taskforce (SET) which is responsible to the KCC Environment Board.

KCC’s target is to reduce carbon dioxide emissions by 10% by 2010. This Towards 2010 target
has focused on buildings, but has been extended to include carbon emissions from street
lighting and traffic controls, business travel and Kent fleet mileage over the last two years.

Progress against this target is not on track, as can be seen from the PI table. This is due to
increases in emissions from the estate in certain areas, in particular schools as a result of
increased use of ICT and extended opening hours, which is also a priority. Therefore, delivery
of this target is unfortunately hampered by good progress against another.

However, assessment against the Carbon Trust Standard last year, which accounts for growth in
the estate, indicated a 6% reduction on the previous two years of data.

Specific savings and achievements include:

o All KCC directorates are accredited to ISO14001. This includes a comprehensive staff
engagement programme targeting office best practice and staff travel behaviours

e KCC was awarded the Carbon Trust Standard in January 2009. This is a recognised
accreditation of Energy Management practices and processes based on a detailed
assessment of policy, actions and performance

e  We have delivered a 5% decrease in office carbon emissions since 2004

e We have invested over £1m committed to energy efficiency measures giving lifetime
savings of £1.1m and 6,695 tonnes of CO,

e Approximately 20 renewable energy initiatives have been delivered including installation
of 10 solar and four biomass boilers

e We have a 50% recycling rate at County Hall
e  We have delivered a 2% reduction in total business miles for 2008/09

e We have promoted Kent Car Share, a Kent-wide, secure car sharing network enabling
business and public sector organisations to contribute to reducing congestion on Kent’s
roads and reduce carbon footprint. Over 642 tonnes of carbon have been saved by KCC
staff alone

Page 137



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Over 160 Green Guardians have been recruited. Their role is to help implement KCC's
ISO14001and deliver campaigns to change staff attitudes and behaviour such as the
‘Switch it off” campaign.

As a result of the challenges faced by KCC, carbon management has become an integral part of
KCC’s renewed corporate environmental performance programme. Ongoing activities include:

Strengthening the Energy and Water Investment Fund (EWIF) and ensuring it is
integrated with both KCC’s ongoing asset management programme and the results of the
Display Energy Certificate Surveys and action plans for all KCC buildings of 1000m? or
above. The fund focuses on water, energy efficiency and renewable energy through loans
and grants. Over 50 EWIF projects have been completed or are underway including light
zoning/sensors, passive infra red sensor urinals/taps, a tunnel lighting project, power
perfector voltage reduction projects and thermostatic radiator valves for heating systems.
This also includes over 20 renewable energy projects being developed across the KCC
estate including photovoltaic panels at Hever CEP and Shatterlocks Infant School, and
three biomass boilers

Cross-KCC training programmes including a ‘Good Deeds Grow’ training event in
February involving schools, caretakers and internal green guardians which attracted over
100 participants

Promoting the Kent Car Share scheme

Promoting Kent Street Car where KCC has joined forces with Streetcar to provide ‘pay as
you go’ hire cars replacing the previous pool car scheme. The cars available to KCC
employees are new VW Polo blue motion low emission vehicles (99g CO2/km). The
scheme is being extended to three cars due to increased demand

A new scheme has been launched to allow ‘salary sacrifice’ for bus travel which will
encourage greater use of bus services by commuting staff. Salary sacrifice allows people
to buy discounted tickets by paying for them directly from their salaries before tax
deductions are made (as with childcare vouchers), making purchasing bus tickets cheaper
and easier.

Biofuels - As stated in last year’s report, since the Towards 2010 targets were published three
years ago the situation on biofuels has changed. Until the picture is clearer with regard to the
negative impacts of these fuels, KCC will continue to only use the 5% fuel mix. The majority
of current fleet vehicles meet the EURO4 standard for vehicle emissions, and this is coupled
with driver training and improved vehicle routing to increase vehicle efficiency and minimise
emissions.

What more are we going to do?

KCC is developing a new policy framework, linked to Kent Design, to ensure new
construction, refurbishment, asset replacement and maintenance of the estate is focused
on reducing energy, water and waste and incorporates key design features particularly
renewable energy solutions where practicable

Investment in low carbon technologies and measures in the KCC estate will continue,
including a specific focus on Oakwood House, installing an improved building
management system at Invicta House and delivering energy efficiency improvements in
the heating system at Sessions House. Potential planned projects also include a new
biomass boiler for the proposed new highways depot

Roll out the use of smarter working technologies and facilities including BT Meet Me
and video conferencing suites

Page 138



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

o Installing SMART electricity meters in KCC buildings and schools, which will allow
much closer monitoring of electricity use. Data collected is made available to schools

online.
Measurable Indicator (s) 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Actual Actual Actual Target Target
Percentage reduction in CO2 1% 30, 30, 10%
from energy use in KCC . . . Not set X
. ; increase |reduction | increase reduction
buildings and schools since 2004

NB Current progress against the Towards 2010 10% carbon reduction target is +3% (2008/09
data). However, assessment against the Carbon Trust Standard last year, which accounts for
growth in the estate, indicated a 6% reduction on the previous two years of data.

Monitoring completed by: Carolyn McKenzie

Page 139

Date: July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 43: Expand the Clean Kent programme to tackle the top 20 fly-tipping hotspots
and increase the capacity to prosecute fly-tipping offenders

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:

Nick Chard Mike Austerberry Sue Barton

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

All Kent district and borough councils, Kent Police, Kent Fire and Rescue Service, Crown
Prosecution Service (CPS), Environment Agency, Highways Agency, Kent Probation Service.

We have also further developed key relationships with the KCC Gypsy and Traveller Unit,
Trading Standards, AONB and Public Rights of Way team.

Outcomes delivered so far:

We have undertaken the following actions to reduce the incidence of fly-tipping in Kent and
bring offenders to justice:

e Numbers prosecuted: We have secured criminal convictions in respect of a total of 17
defendants (three in Crown Court and 14 in various Magistrates’ Courts)

e Prosecution fines: Fines imposed total £12,662. Costs awarded for prosecution and clear
up total £9,470 including victim surcharge. Notably, there has been a 28 day custodial
sentence imposed on one defendant, in addition to 100 day suspended sentence for
another defendant

o Fixed penalty notices: Clean Kent investigations have secured evidence against 14
defendants, thus enabling the issue of Fixed Penalty Notices amounting to a total of
£2,400, for the benefit of Gravesham, Tonbridge and Malling, Dartford and Shepway
Councils

e (Cases waiting to be heard: Two further cases are within the criminal justice system
awaiting trial and a number of investigations are currently coming to fruition with further
prosecutions anticipated in the coming months. A further 15 offenders have been dealt
with by way of police cautions and formal warnings

e Fly-tipping and Fraud case: Prosecution of Nigel Nash, involving fly tipping at a KCC
Household Waste Recycling Centre and other criminal offences of fraud. This was
carried out as a joint investigation with Maidstone Police, leading to prosecution by the
CPS. Nash was convicted at Sittingbourne Magistrates court in March 2009 and
sentenced to 120 days imprisonment, suspended for 4 months, 150 hours of community
service, electronic tagging for six months and an indefinite ASBO

e Performance across the south east region: Fly-tipping enforcement activity across the
south east region has been running at approximately 76 prosecution cases a year (63 local
authorities located within eight counties). Based on current and projected performance
the Clean Kent/KCC enforcement function is making a major contribution both in Kent
and at a regional level

e Hot spot resolution: The top 20 fly-tipping hot spots continue to be a dynamic list, with
sites being taken off as action is taken to tackle the issues and sites added when they
become particular targets for fly-tipping activity. Out of the previously reported hot spots,

Page 140




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

four have been resolved and are no longer the subject of fly tipping. They have therefore
been removed from the list and replaced by a further four. The current list is as follows:

Top 20 fly-tipping hot-spots in
Kent

Status
(Note — current action may be undisclosed to
prevent compromise of the investigation)

1 Murston — Three Lakes

Partnership working with KCC gypsy liaison
team to resolve. One investigation pending

Hartley Bottom Road, Ash cum
Ridley

Monitoring recent flytipping after long period
of no fly-tipping

3 Springhead Road, Gravesend

Subject to current action and two
investigations pending. Three successful
prosecutions to date

4 Lower Road, Hextable

Monitoring, flytipping ceased in area
following enforcement activity. Fixed Penalty
Notice to one offender

Monitoring, infrequent reports of flytipping

Monitoring, no current reports

No current investigation or flytipping. Area
being monitored

Mill Pond Lane, West Kingsdown

Monitoring, no further reports at present

5 Pilgrims Way, Kemsing

6 Chelsfield Lane, Shoreham

7 Great Buckland Road,
Luddesdown

8

9

Commority Road, Vigo

Monitoring, no further reports at present

10 Dering Way, Gravesend

Subject to current action, partnership working
to resolve. One prosecution pending, one
current investigation

Back Lane, Boughton Mon
11
Chelsea

Monitoring, no further reports at present

12 Barnfield Park, New Ash Green

Monitoring, no further reports at present

13 Canada Farm Road, Horton Kirby

Monitoring, infrequent reports of flytipping

14 Cossington Underpass/Hill Road,
Bluebell Hill.

Subject of current action, one investigation
pending

15 St Mary’s in the Marsh

No further reports

16 Seasalter Marshes

Monitoring, no further reports at present

17 Ifield Road, Shorne

Infrequent reports of flytipping, partnership
working to resolve. Monitoring continues

18 Crabble Lane, Dover

Subject to current action, two prosecutions by
Dover DC pending

Crockenhill, ,Swanley and

19 Sparepenny Lane, Eynsford

Recent reports and investigations, partnership
working to resolve, partnership working with
police

20 Crete Road East, Folkestone

Subject to current action, three prosecutions
by Shepway DC pending

What more are we going to do?

e Continue to secure increasing numbers and impact of prosecutions as a significant
deterrent across the county with widespread publicity of cases

e Work to increase the level of fines and costs awarded through the courts, with a focus on

restorative justice, seizure of vehicles etc.

e Continue to develop enforcement capacity with additional training delivered to officers of

partner authorities

Page 141




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Improve intelligence handling, analytical support and use of GIS to improve effectiveness
of targeting resources

e Review compliance with the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000, working with
Trading Standards to ensure proportionality etc.

e Develop a fly-tipping arrest protocol with the police taking account of the Serious
Organised Crime and Police Act 2005

e Develop improved cross-border intelligence sharing with Surrey authorities etc.
e Ensure strong links with Environment Agency on unregulated waste companies

e Ensure joint-working with KCC wardens to improve data gathering, intelligence and
prompt response times

e Integrate Towards 2010 target 43 with the Cabinet decision on the Policy on Household
Waste Recycling Centres to prevent fly-tipping by traders at KCC facilities

e Use ‘Smartwater’ technology to support criminal evidence

e Focus on the risks of recurrent offending, increasing the emphasis on dealing with the
proceeds of crime

e Continue to champion DNA recording nationally in respect of criminal convictions for
fly-tipping
e Support national lobbying such as powers in respect of litter thrown from vehicles

e Invest in high performance surveillance equipment and utilise new technology such as
body cameras

o  Work with the media to raise the profile and unacceptability of environmental crime.
Measurable indicators:

None — Measurement of this Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as being via task-
based assessment as the action will either be done or not done in the timescale.

Monitoring completed by: Sue Barton Date: June 2009

Page 142



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 44: Establish a Global Centre in Kent that will lead the world in developing
crops to provide energy, medicines and other products

Lead Cabinet Member:
Kevin Lynes

Lead Managing Director:
David Cockburn

Lead Officer:
Elizabeth Harrison

The world has changed since the original Towards 2010 concept for a Global Centre for non-
food crops was first proposed. Concerns regarding environmental sustainability, food prices,
and the displacement of agriculture have led to a decline in the general public’s acceptance of
some non-food crops, which, together with a growth of other centres specialising in this area,
means that the benefits of this target to Kent are limited.

It has been decided that resources would be better spent:

e Developing a clearer understanding of the innovative new opportunities, in terms of
Kent’s rural economy and businesses, environment, skills base, and jobs related to this

arca

o  Working to position Kent as a focal point for the development and promotion of secure
food and non-food crops in the rural economy.

Subsequently, and with the agreement of the Leader and Chief Executive of the Council in
April 2009, progress will no longer be specifically reported against this target.

Page 143




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 45: Protect and enhance Kent’s ancient woodlands and improve access to
countryside, coast and heritage

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Nick Chard Mike Austerberry Mike Overbeke

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target

Dartford BC, Gravesham BC, Medway Council, Swale BC, GOSE, SEEDA, Thames Gateway
Kent Partnership, Kent and Medway Growth Area Delivery Vehicles (KTS, includes KTS
Green Grid, Medway Renaissance, Swale Forward), Natural England, Environment Agency,
Forestry Commission, Royal Society for the Protection of Birds (RSPB), Kent Wildlife Trust,
National Farmers Union, Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) unit,
private sector developers (e.g. Land Securities), Sport England, Ashford BC, Ashford’s Future,
Stour Valley Arts, CPRE, Land Restoration Trust (LRT).

Outcomes delivered so far:

Protect and enhance Kent’s ancient woodlands

e A project started in January 2009 to provide specialist advice to woodland owners in the
Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) to bring woodlands back into
management. This was a direct result of the wood lots report (described in the previous
two annual reports) and the AONB management plan priorities. It also focuses on
ancient woodland sites with plantation species on them. The project has already
succeeded in getting over 600Ha of woodland in management i.e. with a new
management plan or grant put in place, and will continue for another two and a half
years, working with targeted landowners to improve woodland management for general
and specific biodiversity and landscape character. Landowners will be helped to develop
site management plans and woodland grant applications and to ensure action on the
ground. Events will be held on specific woodland management issues for woodland
owners and the general public. Event topics might include game management, deer
management, butterfly and moth promotion and woodland archacology

e An action plan to promote wood fuels in Kent has been agreed between the Kent Downs
AONB Unit and Greener Kent team. Woodland owners have been consulted on the plan
and Interreg funding has been secured. The project will produce a toolkit for biomass
producers and procurers to help develop the wood fuel market. It will assist producers to
sell their product to the public sector, raise awareness of the potential for wood fuels and
give procurers access to more information to help them achieve their targets on greener
energy

e AONB grants this year supported the following projects so helping to deliver against this
target:

e A British Trust for Conservation Volunteers project recording Kent’s Heritage Trees,
encouraging tree wardens and members of the public to identify veteran trees around
the AONB and the rest of the county. A £3,000 grant was given to support the
£5,800 project which will result in the creation of a database of trees, locations and
local history surrounding the trees. The presence of ancient trees in the landscape is
being used as a monitoring indicator to the condition of the AONB, and the database
will serve as an educational resource and also as a means to ensure that local tree
officers are aware of their presence. Whilst inclusion on the database will not
automatically mean their protection via a Tree Preservation Order, the information

Page 144



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

will help if the existence of a particular tree is threatened and consequently more
likely to be given a preservation order. An additional and important part of the
project is the community engagement element and the raised awareness of the
importance of trees in the landscape

e A grant of £8,095 was awarded to Wye Community Farm used to help support works
in the woodland of Wye National Nature Reserve. The woodland work carried out
then supported a log and charcoal supply business

The Denge Woods Project - Working with owners and managers of ancient woodland a
three year project has begun with the aim of improving habitat conditions for woodland
specialist butterflies and moths, through sustainable woodland management practices in
the East Kent Downs. The Forestry Commission has provided a higher level of Woodland
Improvement Grant at 80% of standard costs (versus the normal 50%) in the project area
encouraging glade, ride and coppice works. The project officer is providing landowner
advice, assistance with English Woodland Improvement Grant and other grant
applications, co-ordinating butterfly and moth survey and running workshops and events
for volunteers, general public and woodland managers

The Free Trees scheme has been extended across Kent where residents can order up to 25
native trees, appropriate to their area of Kent to plant in their gardens and in other places.
The trees will help to combat global warming by absorbing carbon dioxide in the
atmosphere. By planting 25 trees, up to 7 tonnes of CO2 could be absorbed during their
lifetime — almost a year’s worth of emissions from the average household. This scheme
will also encourage people to value the trees around them.

Improve access to countryside, coast and heritage

The Kent Countryside Access Improvement Plan, which sets out a clear strategy to
protect, manage, enhance and promote access to Kent’s countryside, won the prestigious
“Most innovative and enterprising Improvement plan” in the country in March 2009

New design standards have help to improve the quality of the furniture on the Public
Rights of Way (PROW) network (i.e. gates, stiles, bridges etc). The standards were
recognised in ‘Country Walking’ magazine as leading the way nationally in improving
access to the countryside and will assist landowners and others in the county to ensure
that the network is accessible to all, including those with mobility issues

We have contributed to developing Local Development Framework’s (LDFs), with the
aim of maximising opportunities to protect and provide access to the countryside

Major improvements have been made to a route linking Ebbsfleet International Station to
Swanscombe to enable residents to walk to the station, thus relieving pressure on the road
network

15 routes to schools have been substantially improved and are now providing a facility
for ‘walking buses’ of school children to use, relieving traffic congestion at peak times in
those areas

A new education pack for schools was launched in February 2009 and distributed to all
primary schools in Kent. The pack gives teachers lesson and activity ideas tied into the
National Curriculum for junior school children covering topics such as travel to school,
the Countryside Code, PROW, and who looks after them

30 volunteer surveyors were recruited and trained, and are now active across Kent,
monitoring the network and keeping the database up to date

The development of (currently 20) walks that can be downloaded from the Explore Kent
website onto multi-media players and phones for people to take on their walks to guide
them

Page 145



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Funding from the East Kent and Coast Primary Care Trust has been agreed to develop
projects to help reduce obesity levels, working with GPs to prescribe healthy activity and
walks to help patients get fitter and lose weight

The East Kent Ploughing and Cropping campaign has been targeting landowners who
repeatedly prevent the use of the PROW network already delivering improvements to the
network accessibility in east Kent

The Medway Estuary and Swale Shoreline Management Plan, and Isle of Grain to South
Foreland Shoreline Management Plan were adopted by KCC. These set out a policy for
the sustainable management of our coast in the face of climate change and inform
strategic and sustainable planning of our coast line

Kent’s Coastal Week and ‘Kent Goes Wild” — These events have been running now for
three years and each year sees increased numbers of events and participants learning
more about the natural environment whilst having fun. These have provided free
activities for residents and visitors to Kent’s coast in these difficult economic times

‘Exploring Kent’s Past’” project has been completed with the launch of an online heritage
database in April 2009, preparation of education packs, visits to local schools and
community groups, and new thematic heritage pages for the kent.gov web site, including
a ‘getting involved’ section

The Randall Manor community archaeology project was held for three weeks in July.
This project started in July 2006 with one week of activity and by 2009 had grown in
popularity so that the activity stretched across three weeks in July. It provides an
opportunity for schools and young people’s groups and members of the public to learn
and appreciate more about their local history whilst actually being involved in an
archaeological dig. We also held a public open day at archaeological excavations at
Margett’s Pit, Burham

Training opportunities in archacology, geophysics and woodland survey have been
provided through the ‘Valley of Visions’ Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) project.

What more are we going to do?

In addition to the many projects stated above which will continue to be delivered over the
coming year and beyond, we will:

Deliver £1m worth of capital improvements to the PROW infrastructure to ensure that the
network continues to provide safe access to the countryside

Work closely with Natural England on a study and detailed analysis of the potential new
access to the English coast trail around Kent’s coast (Marine Bill)

Continue to promote the Free Trees scheme across Kent

Investigate facilitating the compulsory purchase of badly fragmented woods to provide
better protection

Kent Downs AONB Sustainable Development Fund will continue to support sustainable
and environmental based projects in the AONB; applications for the coming year have
been received but not yet assessed and they include a number of woodland and accessed-
based projects

Contribute to the public exhibition of important Anglo-Saxon finds from excavations in
advance of housing development in Sittingbourne

Work with Swanscombe and Greenhithe Town Council to submit a HLF bid for
Swanscombe Heritage Park

Page 146



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Organise a community archacological excavation as part of East Kent Access road
scheme

e Seek funding to develop an Archaeological Resource Centre for Kent.
Measurable indicators:

None — This Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as having an ‘aspirational’ status
and progress is measured via qualitative means.

Monitoring completed by: Mike Overbeke Date: July 2009

Page 147



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 46: Lobby Government, the water companies and developers to ensure that house
building programmes do not threaten Kent's water supplies

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Kevin Lynes David Cockburn Alan Turner

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Environment Agency, South East Water, Folkestone & Dover Water Services, Southern Water
Services, Hillreed Homes, Ashford’s Future, Ashford Borough Council, Kent Thameside,
Regeneration Partnership, Waterwise, Consumer Council for Water, SEEDA, Kent Wildlife
Trust, Dover District Council, Swale Borough Council.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Household water use accounts for 75% of the total used and the planned housing growth within
Kent therefore represents a significant additional pressure on our limited water resources.
Some new water infrastructure will be needed but large scale solutions such as new reservoirs
or desalination plants all require more energy for pumping and treatment.

Improvements to water resources are difficult to measure, they are significantly influenced by
weather patterns and it can take years to identify reliable trends. However there are indications
that per capita water demand may be stabilising after years of growth and there is evidence of
some river water quality improvements despite the growth in housing. Furthermore, KCC
believes that its tough stance with water companies is helping to control customer bills.

Progress on the specific actions within this target is detailed below:

Action 1: Spotlight on Kent’s water companies

e KCC called for a public enquiry into our serious concerns regarding the medium and long
term water resource management planning of some of the water companies that service
Kent. Following a debate at KCC Cabinet in August 2008, KCC formerly asked the
Secretary of State at DEFRA to call for a public inquiry into these plans. At the
beginning of February 2009, water companies responded to the issues raised in the Water
Resource Management Plan (WRMP) consultations. KCC evaluated these responses and
was satisfied with all except South East Water’s WRMP. However, we remained
concerned about the South East WRMP and follow-up letters were sent to DEFRA
reiterating our position regarding the South East WRMP and urging DEFRA to call an
inquiry. In August 2009, DEFRA announced a public inquiry into the WRMP for South
East Water and Thames Water.

Action 2: Lobby for investment in infrastructure

e  Within the Ashford growth area KCC is lobbying for adequate investment in wastewater
treatment to secure future improvements in river water quality. As a result of this work
Southern Water is now planning to install phosphate removal infrastructure at three
upstream wastewater treatment works. Phase 1 of upgrading the Bybrook wastewater
treatment works has also been completed already leading to improvements in the water
quality in the River Stour

Maidstone BC is currently developing a Water Cycle Strategy that will assess the future

demands on the water supply and wastewater systems in the light of local housing growth
plans and will determine any additional infrastructure necessary to accommodate this

Page 148



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

growth. KCC will influence the preparation of this strategy through its role on the
Steering Group. Similar Water Cycle Strategies have been completed for Kent
Thameside, Dover and Ashford.

KCC has successfully lobbied government on the Code for Sustainable Homes (CSH).
Government addressed almost all the points in KCC’s summary response specifically and
positively and in December 2008 KCC was invited to an expert review of the water
section of the CSH.

The SouthEast Plan includes an implementation plan, prepared with KCC advice, on the
major investment planned and necessary to support housing and employment growth, and
regeneration

Water infrastructure provision is covered in the SouthEast Plan sub-regional strategies
into which KCC had significant input

The KCC Minerals and Waste Development Framework will include policies and site
allocations for wastewater infrastructure, including wastewater treatment works, sludge
treatment and water treatment associated with maintaining the quality of water courses

KCC’s Water Policy was adopted in December 2006 providing direction to KCC projects
and partnership working.

Action 3: Pilot and roll-out water-saving technology

KCC organised a major seminar held in March 2007 to disseminate the results of a water-
savings demonstration to major housing developers and local authorities

KCC is working with Hillreed Homes and South East Water to trial a water-saving tariff
on a new housing development in Ashford. The demonstration and trial have won several
awards and recent results show that per capita water use in this development is 20%
below the water company's baseline. The housing developer now installs these water
saving measures in all their new homes.

Action 4: Wider use of water-saving technology

KCC is leading a 500 home pilot project in Ashford to retrofit water saving measures into
existing homes. This is a partnership project promoting simple, free water saving
measures to households. The project aims to offer a cost effective mechanism for off-
setting the additional water use from new homes at the same time as helping local
residents to save money on their water bills

Further partnership work is now in progress to develop a large scale programme for both
water and energy saving improvements for existing homes in Ashford. KCC is supporting
the development of a similar partnership projects in Swale and Dover districts.

Action 5: Water conservation campaigns

An Ashford Water Festival was held in May 2006 to raise awareness of the importance of
water conservation. This was repeated by the water companies at Bewl Water Visitor
Centre in 2007

A focused water conservation campaign is being run as part of the Ashford pilot project
described above. This aims to help people understand the link between their water use
and the local aquatic environment.

As part of the KCC Eco-Schools programme, water saving continues to be promoted to
Kent’s school children.

Page 149



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

What more are we going to do?

e  Wider opportunities will be found to roll out the retrofitting of water saving measures to
existing homes through dedicated projects and by integrating this into similar energy
saving initiatives

e KCC will use its lobbying and influencing role regarding Local Development
Frameworks and major development sites to seek adequate attention to the principles of
sustainable water management

e KCC will embrace the opportunities that the draft Floods and Water Management Bill
presents for improving water management and the protection of Kent’s water resources

e  We will focus on activities to improve groundwater quality

o KCC will continue to drive improvements to the efficiency of water use through its
leadership of the Kent Water Demand Management Group. During the remaining time up
to 2010 this will be focused on water use in schools.

Measurable indicators:

None — This Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as having an ‘aspirational’ status
and progress is measured via qualitative means.

Monitoring completed by: Alan Turner Date: 29 July 2009

Page 150



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 47: Create and launch initiatives that facilitate more competitive sport in schools,
support after-school sports clubs and sponsor more inter-school competitions and holiday
sports programmes

Lead Cabinet Members: Lead Managing Directors: Lead Officers:
Mike Hill/Sarah Hohler Amanda Honey/Rosalind Chris Hespe/Danny
Turner O’Donovan

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

15 Kent Sports Colleges, 13 Kent School Sport Partnerships, competition managers, Kent
sports clubs, Governing Bodies of Sport, Youth Sports Trust and Kent School Sports
Associations.

Outcomes delivered so far:

We have increased the amount of PE, school sport and competitive school sport in Kent with
88% of pupils now participating in two hours of high quality PE and school sport per week,
compared to 64% three years before. This is 1% above the local PSA stretch target. In
addition, 44% of pupils are involved in inter-school sport competitions, which is above the
national average.

Specific outcomes are as follows:

Improved access to competitive sport:

e 121 new or enhanced out-of-school activities on school sites have been funded and
delivered both after-school and during the school holidays

e KCC Sport, Leisure & Olympics Service has also worked with the school sport
partnerships, local authorities and extended schools managers to co-ordinate a successful
bid for over £1million from Sport England to run a ‘Sport Unlimited Programme’ as part
of the five hour offer for young people to participate in PE and sport per week. In the first
year approximately 100 schemes were funded. A further 64 schemes are planned in
2009/10, although this is likely to increase with further funding allocations in the year

e The Sport Unlimited programme in year 1 provided opportunities for nearly 6,000 young
people to regularly participate in a wide range of sports opportunities across Kent. There
are plans to increase this number to over 10,000 young people in 2009/10 and 2010/11.
This programme, allied to the work undertaken by School Sport Partnerships to increase
participation in PE and school sport, will contribute to providing a five hour offer of PE
and sport for young people in the county

e The trials and heats associated with the Kent School Games (see Towards 2010 target 22)
generated over 500 competitions and festivals with over 500 schools actively involved at
a local level. The finals events in June 2008 were highly successful with 23 sports,
involving over 50 events and around 1,200 medalists. Plans for the Finals events in 2010
are underway, including additional sports and the inclusion of further cultural elements

e The Kent School Games is becoming embedded within the schools competition
structures, with the competition managers playing a key role in ensuring increased
competitive opportunities for young people in schools.

Improved co-ordination of activities across the county through specialist posts and networks:

Page 151



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

The strategic post of County Officer for School Sport and Physical Education has been
embedded into the KCC CFE staffing structure, within Advisory Service Kent

Key networking groups have been established to form a strategic forum for school sport
across Kent to promote and deliver a rolling programme of sporting activities under the
leadership of the new county officer

A senior competition manager and six competition managers have been appointed since
September 2007 using Youth Sport Trust funding. All managers work within the 13
School Sport Partnerships to strategically co-ordinate inter-school competition within
their area to ensure there are increased opportunities for young people to compete in a
wider range of activities. This network of competition managers is supporting the Kent
School Games to embed the work within schools

Five Further Education Sports Co-ordinators (FESCos) have been established in FE
Colleges in Kent through Youth Sport Trust funding, aiming to provide additional
sporting opportunities for 16 to 19 year olds

A countywide website for the collation of fixtures and results of school sport competitions
has been developed by the competition managers, to facilitate and promote competitive
school sport across all school sport partnerships.

Helped to increase the quality of PE and sport provision — coaching and refereeing accredited
courses have been organised and 69 primary schools have had their playgrounds developed:

Coaching and refereeing accredited courses have been organised through ‘Learning
Communities’ facilitated by Advisory Service Kent, to increase the number of adults with
qualifications to improve the quality of provision for competitive sport across schools

69 primary schools have had their playgrounds developed through a combination of
Lottery and KCC Performance Reward Grant (PRG) Funding, administered through the
KCC Sport, Leisure & Olympics Service.

What more are we going to do?

Introduce new inter-school leagues and competitions to fill the gaps in competition
structures

Continue to plan for the 2010 Kent School Games and to develop their format through the
expansion of the heats and trials within each school sport partnership area in order to
increase participation rates and increase the number of schools involved

Maximise the opportunities of the London 2012 Games to encourage more young people
to take part in sport within and beyond school hours through the organisation of a range of
festivals and competitions linked to the national strategy for school sport which has been
led by Dame Kelly Holmes

Introduce a biennial celebration and awards event linked to the Kent School Games to
highlight the sporting talents of young people in Kent schools

Work with the Building Schools for the Future PE and Sport Stakeholder Group to ensure
design input into the development of enhanced sporting facilities on school sites, which
through innovative design and use of community assets, leads to a greater range of
activities becoming accessible to a wider range of young people and community users

Increase opportunities for young people to access sporting opportunities through a range
of providers via the Sport Unlimited Programme.

Page 152



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 |2007/08 |2008/09 |2008/09 |2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target

Percentage of pupils taking part in at 84% 88% 90% Duein | 100%
least two hours of high quality PE and Nov 2009
out of hours school sport per week
Percentage of pupils involved in inter- | New 44% 46% Due in 50%
school sport competitions (academic | indicator Nov 2009
Number of new out of school hours New 63 113 121 163
sports programmes (cumulative since | indicator

Monitoring completed by: Chris Hespe/Danny O’Donovan

Page 153

Date: July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 48: Increase opportunities for everyone to take regular physical exercise

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Alan Marsh Peter Gilroy Meradin Peachey

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Many partners have enthusiastically joined together to promote opportunities for exercise across
the public services including the private and voluntary sector. The key partners are:

‘Activmobs’, Charlton Athletic FC, KCC Sport, Leisure & Olympics Service, KCC
Environment, Highways and Waste directorate, East Kent and Coastal PCT, West Kent PCT,
KCC Adult Education, private sector leisure industry, district councils, Kent Adult Social
Services, KCC CFE (School Sports Partnership, Healthy Schools, Extended School Hours
programmes).

Outcomes delivered so far:

KCC’s Environment, Highways and Waste directorate has had a particular impact on helping to
deliver this Towards 2010 target through its work on projects including the following:

e Cycling and walking to school is being actively encouraged with enthusiastic take up by
pupils. ‘Walk on Wednesdays’ and ‘Walking Bug’ saved 26,635 car journeys across eight
districts in three months

e ‘Naturally Active’ and ‘Walking for Health’ programmes have been delivering hundreds
of country walks within Kent’s country parks

e 30 ‘Activimobs’ are in operation involved in varied activities including Nordic walking,
singing, dancing, gardening and dog training (see Towards 2010 targets 49 and 54)

e Maidstone BC has initiated well-attended ‘Outdoor’ programmes and new outdoor skills
are being taught through ‘Branching Out’ programmes. 'Branching Out' was the result of
an initiative by Maidstone Ramblers as their response to the Disability Discrimination Act
1955 Directive. The new all-ability group has been developed in conjunction with the
research project 'By All Means', whose aim is to increase opportunities for disabled people
to explore the countryside

e The Kent Countryside Access Improvement Plan emphasises the health benefits from use
of our natural areas (see also Towards 2010 target 45).

KCC Sport, Leisure & Olympics Service is also critical to delivering this target and they have
numerous new approaches across Kent including:

o The highly successful Kent School Games (see Towards 2010 target 22) had well over
500 schools participating and we also organised the Kent Disability Youth Games which
included 21 schools and 564 individual participants

e Adult Education are delivering increased sports participation to users of their centres

e Active support for adults with mental health problems is given through a part-time officer
to help and assist people

e The Kent Outdoor Pursuits Disability Project brings access for sporting opportunities to
people with disabilities with over 7,000 participants so far

Page 154



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Return to Sport’ is being run including sport specific and community sport with Active
Kent promoting sport and active recreation across the county.

In addition, there are other partnerships with the Kent Department of Public Health including:

e Developing a social enterprise to expand the ‘Activmobs’ programme to 2,000
participants next year. This programme is aimed at those who want less formal types of
activities (e.g. walking) on a more flexible basis or those who find formal groups and
leisure environments intimidating and off-putting

e Initiatives to promote physical activity among groups currently identified as undertaking
either no or low levels of physical activity e.g. physical activity for adults with Charlton
Athletic (192 people over six months) and exercise for those with mental health needs at
Curves, Gravesend (50+ people for six months) — see also below

e Making new partnerships involving the private sector and others to help provide local
activity for local people, especially those who do not use current facilities. For example,
Curves is a women only exercise facility that offers a more informal version of gym-based
activity. Curves in Gravesend has been working with us to provide up to 50 local women
from the Asian community and others who have mental wellbeing issues with opportunity
to take more exercise and socialise together. This has been very well attended with some
women using Curves up to four times per week. For some of the women attending this
has become the major source of socialising in their lives

e Plans to establish physical activity in workplace strategies across the public and private
sectors including the KCC ‘Welfare at Work’ programme

e Implementation of the Kent Healthy Weight Strategy and new partnerships schemes to
tackle obesity (such as Don’t Sit-Get fit, MEND, Bus Club etc)

e The development of new opportunities for older people to remain active and independent
through the Kent strategy for later life, ‘Living Later Life to the Full’ together with free
swimming for the over 60’s in east Kent.

District councils are very proactive in promoting opportunities for exercise. In east Kent, Active
Ashford, Active Canterbury and Active Dover provide information and activities for people in
their area. Much of this is about easy to access exercise such as walking and cycling as well as
community sporting events. In west Kent, Get Sorted gives lifestyle advice to people including
exercise. The Exercise Referral scheme from the NHS professionals also operates across the
county.

Towards 2010 target 45 is also linked to delivery of this target. In addition, the Kent Thameside
Green Grid, Greening of the Gateway Kent and Medway, Swale Green Grid, Ashford Blue and
Green Grid, and Natural East Kent, are strategic programmes to help improve access to and
enjoyment of the countryside and open space.

What more are we going to do?

Delivery of the Kent Agreement includes a target to increase the amount of physical exercise
taken by people aged over 16 years from 20.3% of the population to 22.5% by March 2011.

All those actions described above will continue into 2010 and some beyond. In addition, other
developments are planned:

e The ‘Fit2Gether’ programme is popular with the private sector leisure industry and
further work will develop more activity where we have shown the need such as
encouraging more females aged 16 to 24 to participate in physical activity

Page 155



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Charlton Athletic FC partnerships, particularly through ‘Physical Activity for Adults’
(for adults aged 50+), will run for 26 weeks in the areas which have the lowest levels of
physical activity

In north Kent, a cycling activity centre is planned

In east Kent the ‘Natural East Kent’ programme will have area plans to improve exercise,
in particular around the urban fringes of the coastal towns

Work is continuing to support the development of activities around healthy living,
cycling and outdoor recreation in Betteshanger. New activities instigated through
‘Activmobs’ already have over 100 members.

In conjunction with the Kent PCTs a single point of information for people wanting
access to services and advice about physical activity and other healthy lifestyle issues
will be developed for Kent

Work is well underway to make the provision of Health Walks more accessible to the
more deprived communities in Kent.

We are working with the universities and other academic institutions in Kent to find new
ways of evaluating and benchmarking the activity we undertake.

Measurable indicators:

None — This Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as having an ‘aspirational’ status
and progress is measured via qualitative means.

Monitoring completed by: Mark Lemon Date: July 2009

Page 156



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 49: Enter into practical partnerships with the NHS, sharing resources to combat
obesity and encourage people of all ages to take responsibility for their health and
wellbeing

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:

Alan Marsh Peter Gilroy Meradin Peachey

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:
This target requires action from a range of organisations. The main partners are:

Primary Care Trusts (PCTs), 12 district councils, ‘Activmobs’, private sector leisure industry,
voluntary organisations.

Outcomes delivered so far:

We are using new ways of communicating with the public to ensure health messages are
received more effectively. Social marketing techniques now enable us to reach people in ways
they understand better and are able to act upon more easily and the ‘House’ campaign (see
Towards 2010 target 50) and ‘Activmobs’ demonstrate this approach (see Towards 2010 targets
48 and 54)

We have renamed the Kent Obesity Strategy as the Kent Healthy Weight Strategy which is
considered less judgmental. The strategy has been based on the outcomes of the KCC Select
Committee report and was produced by East Kent and Coastal PCT in partnership with KCC.

Many organisations across the county are making huge efforts and devoting considerable
resources to help their communities live healthier lifestyles. This includes the following
outcomes:

o All school children are now measured in their reception year and year 6 to determine
obesity levels in children

e Teenage life-checks, funded by the Department of Health, are being rolled out across the
county

e PCT Health Promotion Teams educate and support people trying to reduce their weight
and be more active (see also Towards 2010 target 48) with health trainers now in all parts
of the county

e A Big Lottery partnership bid of nearly £1 million was secured by KCC and partners for
projects across Kent including £50k on the “Whole School Meals’ project.

Resources are being shared much more widely between organizations, especially with East Kent
and Coastal Kent PCT. Both Kent PCTs are contributing large budgets to joint programmes
designed to improve people’s health above and beyond the Department of Health (DH) allocated
‘Choosing Health’ funding that now amounts to over £4 million in East Kent and £3.3 million in
West Kent. The two PCTs have committed all their ‘Choosing Health’ funding allocation to
public health priorities and have made local application for this funding for projects and
programmes much clearer and easier. This funding has supported numerous initiatives, for
example:

e Exercise and diet programmes in the workplace and childhood obesity programmes are
being established by the Health and Wellbeing Partnerships across the county

Page 157



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Health Action Gravesham (Gravesham BC, KCC and WK PCT) is offering food
production and community cooking sessions with dietary/nutritional advice, a physical
activity instructor for those in sheltered accommodation and residential homes and a
young people’s programme (Don’t Sit — Get Fit!) that works in schools, after school and
out of school times running weekly swimming lessons

e KCC, Canterbury City Council, and East Kent and Coastal PCT are working together to
increase participation by children and young people in youth and community activities
that tackle obesity

e ‘Active Canterbury’, the Community Sports Partnership brings sports sectors together to
increase participation in physical activity

e Sports and leisure partnership schemes in Swale are in place to tackle obesity such as
Don’t Sit — Get Fit!, MEND and Bus Club

e Big increases in physical activity programmes delivered in partnership (as identified in
Target 48)

o East Kent Health Walks, exercise ‘on prescription’, and Green Gyms are now being
expanded across the whole county

e Weight Management Clinics are now established in Maidstone

e In Sevenoaks Get Sorted and the Why Weight Plan offer people lifestyle advice with an
emphasis on managing their weight

e Tunbridge Wells offers Food 4You workshops, Grow it Cook it Eat it courses and
Looking 4Ward with Food to increase people’s familiarity with healthy eating

e Veg Bag schemes operate in East Kent which also has a Weight Management Scheme run
by the PCT

e Healthy Living Centres (HLCs) have been established in deprived areas of the county and
give advice and practical help including programmes on good diet and nutrition and cookery
skills including Community Chefs

e Adult Education Centres often offer similar support to HLCs in other parts of the county

e Kent Healthy Schools Programme has had a 100% sign up in Thanet, which is our most
deprived area, and is on target to reach 100% of all Kent schools by December 2009.
Further work is helping children with healthy eating and nutritional lunches and
community healthy eating pilots have been launched to increase the uptake of healthier
school meals including free school meals

e The School Sports Partnership promotes sports with young people.

A range of other activity has also been developed:

e KCC has two food and health co-ordinators training cooks in its school kitchens and
delivering Healthy Eating training to over 600 primary staff. Catering contractors are
providing development and tasting sessions for pupils and parents. (See Towards 2010
target 51)

e We are ensuring that all schools within the KCC school meals contract (61% of all
schools) provide meals compliant with legislative requirements. Progress towards
improving the action focusing on other food consumed in schools, not just lunches
provided, is going well.

e A new smoking policy for KCC aimed at promoting giving up smoking and assisting
those that want to has been adopted

Page 158



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e KCC has launched a major initiative to combat misuse of alcohol following the
publication of the Select Committee report. This includes a new cross-agency approach
called ‘Kent Action on Alcohol’ and a new alcohol strategy currently being consulted
upon

e KCC has a major workplace initiative designed to improve the health of the 45,000
workforce called Wellbeing at Work. This includes annual health checks, on-line access to
information and healthy activities such as The Virtual Gym

e Kent Adult Social Services are expanding their preventative programmes including
reducing falls in older people and increasing physical activity levels. The Brighter Futures
Group helps people aged over 75 with volunteer support to give advice and assistance
including health and wellbeing (see also Towards 2010 targets 52, 54, 56)

e NHS ‘Life Checks’ offering screening services for heart disease have been rolled out
across the county.

e Kent Health Watch has been established to ensure that people’s views on the health and
social care services they receive are properly recorded and addressed.

e The KCC ‘House’ campaign (see Towards 2010 target 50) is delivering ‘House’ shops in
each of the 12 district council town centres and houses multi-agency partnerships
between the PCTs, KCC directorates and the private and voluntary sector to work in
innovative ways to deliver health and lifestyle messages to young people. This is an
exciting and effective way of engaging young people who may otherwise not access the
range of existing services offered in traditional settings.

What more are we going to do?

Delivery of Towards 2010 targets 48 and 50 is also key to the delivery of this target. In
addition, implementation of the Kent Healthy Weight Strategy is a key priority of all partner
organisations as well as implementation of the Health Inequalities Action Plan across KCC,
districts and other partners.

All the programmes above will continue. In addition, the following actions are planned:
o Working with the community in Betteshanger ward to improve lifestyles and health
o Extending the Health Trainers programme is being extended across the county

e Rolling out the Expert Patient Programme to support people with long-term health
conditions

o Increasing the number of pharmacies offering weight management programmes.
Measurable indicators:

None — This Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as having an ‘aspirational’ status
and progress is measured via qualitative means.

Monitoring completed by: Mark Lemon Date: July 2009

Page 159



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 50: Introduce a hard-hitting public health campaign targeted at young people to
increase their awareness and so reduce the damaging effects of smoking, alcohol, drugs
and early or unprotected sex

Lead Cabinet Members: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:

Alan Marsh Peter Gilroy Meradin Peachey

Status: Done and ongoing
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Teenage Pregnancy Partnership, Kent Drug & Alcohol Action Team (KDAAT), East Kent &
Coastal Kent PCT, West Kent PCT, Kent Police, 12 District Councils, Connexions, M&C
Saatchi, local town centre management, KCC’s Youth Service, Children, Families and Education
Directorate, Youth Offending Service and Communication & Media Centre

Outcomes delivered so far:

The purpose of this campaign for young people is to reduce the risk of:
e Drug and alcohol misuse
e Smoking
e Poor sexual health

e Teenage pregnancy.

The campaign targets those who are most vulnerable to such risky behaviours and was
introduced and launched in Gravesend in November 2008. It is overseen by a steering group of
stakeholders who have an interest and/or expertise in delivering campaign messages to young
people.

M&C Saatchi were awarded the contract to design the campaign aimed at young people working
with a wide range of agencies to deliver the ‘Kent Campaign’ message. Saatchi engaged young
people in the design and marketing of the campaign and campaign materials in order to ensure
that there is maximum potential for behaviour change and that services and resources are
accessible to all young people.

Studying interactions between teenagers, their friends and support services, Saatchi realised what
was needed was a real place, an environment which used teenagers most influential medium —
conversations. Working with teenagers to understand the format they would feel most
comfortable with culminated in the brief — a ‘mate’s house’. The teenagers designed, and co-
created the space naming it ‘House’.

The ‘House’ campaign runs for a month in town centre shops located in each of the 12 Kent
districts throughout the year up to December 2009.

The results have been phenomenal. So far it has visited nine town centres and 6,500 people have
visited it at least once (total visits are 10,500), many of whom are currently unknown to and do
not access existing services. ‘House’ has provided agencies with new ways of reaching young
people, including those ‘hard to reach’, and a place to work in different and more effective ways.
Across the first six sites over 8,000 attendances were recorded (almost certainly an under-
estimate). Several organisations are reviewing how they work in the light of their experience in
‘House’.

Page 160



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Quantitative and qualitative evaluation is demonstrating that the ‘House’ campaign is proving a
tremendous success with young people and agencies alike, with young people regarding the
‘House’ as great and wanting the shop to continue on a long term basis.

It is also highly innovative in the way it is marketed relying almost solely on word of mouth and
underground ‘guerrilla’ marketing. Within two hours of one site opening, with no forward
publicity, 60 young people were inside. This has earned ‘House’ a nomination in several
categories of the APG Creative Strategy Awards (the advertising industries most prestigious)
and a guaranteed Bronze Medal or better.

‘House’ works because it is an environment designed by and for young people where they
decide whether they go, whether they stay and whether they engage or not with the
professionals that make themselves available. This has led to almost unprecedented engagement
such as young people waiting to see the sexual health nurse, queuing in groups of up to 20, and
young people listening to the experiences of a former drugs user for an hour at a time. Over 50
Chlamydia tests were completed in the first two months.

‘House’ campaign posters portraying hard-hitting imagery have been produced. Other local
campaigns relevant to this ‘Kent Campaign’ are also being identified. Youthbytes (creative pop-
up links accessed through College Personal Computers) has been commissioned as a pilot in
West Kent College (Tonbridge) and South Kent College (Ashford, Shepway and Dover) to
support alcohol messages to young people as part of the Kent Alcohol Strategy. The creative
pop-up links will also be used to promote the Towards 2010 Campaign for Young People within
these colleges. Youthbytes will now be rolled out to all interested secondary schools in east
Kent.

What more are we going to do?

Funding has been secured from East Kent and Coastal PCT and KDAAT to extend the
operation of ‘House’ through a mobile facility that will be able to reach into local communities
themselves, rather than town centres. Both organisations want to take their activities into
communities that could most benefit. Engagement with young people has produced a design
brief for a mobile facility that will deliver ‘House’ directly into estates and other communities
across Kent over the next two years. The design process for this is currently being undertaken
with young people across Kent and the facility will be ready for launch in November 2009.

Further work is progressing to systematically monitor and evaluate the success of the campaign
to ensure that it can continue to be delivered up to and beyond April 2010 in a variety of flexible
and sustainable ways. These may be through the Kent Gateways, Internet cafes, drop-in centres,
youth centres etc.

Sheerness and Ashford, both of which have hosted ‘House’, are actively pursuing establishing a
permanent presence modelled on ‘House’ as it has proved so successful.

Measurable indicators:

None — Measurement of this Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as being via task-
based assessment. However, footfall and profile of young peoples’ visits are being monitored
and evaluation questionnaires are being issued to invite user feedback which will in turn, be used

as a learning process for each of the ‘House’ shops.

Monitoring completed by: Debbie Smith Date: July 2009 (updated September 2009)

Page 161



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 51: Encourage healthy eating by providing nutritious lunches through the
‘Healthy Schools’ programme and launch a range of community-based healthy eating
pilots

Lead Cabinet Member: | Lead Managing Director: | Lead Officers:
Sarah Hohler Rosalind Turner Marisa White/Sean Carter/Mark
Sleep/Janet Stein

Status: Done and ongoing

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

The five pilots - Community Cooking Skills (including, Community Chefs and Kent Cooks
Schools’ Cooking Competition); Fruit and vegetable Bag Schemes; Healthy Eating Training
Programmes; National Children’s Bureau Health Challenge Programme and Increasing School
Meal Uptake - are being delivered with partners from the health, education and community
sectors.

Outcomes delivered so far:

There are five pilots associated with the delivery of this Towards 2010 target. Some of the
work has already completed the delivery stage, other parts are still running. BMG, the
research contractor, is currently evaluating outcomes using impact based evaluation. Emergent
findings are available at this stage with a full and final evaluation report expected in spring
2010.

Pilot 1 — Community Cooking Skills
Community Chefs - Key outcome:

e Improved cooking confidence and the transfer of this to the home environment,
including the involvement of children with cooking and raised awareness of a healthy
balanced diet within the family.

Kent Cooks! competition - Key outcomes:

e Being involved in the competition has had tangible positive impacts in increasing
confidence levels in general amongst those young people involved, not just increased
confidence around cooking

e The young people taking part have increased awareness and knowledge around healthy
eating and have learnt new skills

e Involvement in the competition has had a positive effect on creating greater awareness of
healthy eating and changing attitudes and behaviour within the families of the young
people participating in the competition.

Pilot 2 — Access to Fruit and Vegetables - Key outcome:

e Emergent findings from the evaluation indicate that the fruit and veg bags have resulted in
increased incorporation of fruit and vegetables in the family meals of those taking part.

Pilot 3 — The Healthy Eating Training Package — Key outcome:

e Those involved felt that they have acquired new skills and knowledge around healthy
eating and are more confident in delivering those messages to families they work with,
reporting improvements in healthy cooking and eating amongst the families.

Page 162



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Pilot 4 — Increasing School Meal Uptake - Key outcome:

e The evaluation of this pilot is complete. The key outcomes point to only two of the
interventions - the Enhanced Food Offer and the Partner Support Programme - resulting
in a net increase in the take up of school meals. However, all partners drew positives
from being involved in all the interventions. A critical success factor that has been
identified is the need for leadership and buy-in at a senior level within the school.

Pilot 5 — National Children’s Bureau Health Challenge Programme - Key outcomes:

Baseline data was collected by the National Children’s Bureau (NCB) and follow up data was
completed by the end of July 2008 to determine the impact of the Health Challenge. The
evaluation has found:

e Young people taking part in the health challenge enjoyed it, felt it was a positive
experience and remembered key messages about healthy eating and healthy lifestyles

o Significant positive impacts on health and well-being with evidence of changing attitudes
and behaviour amongst participants.

Key outcomes as a whole:

The reach of the pilots is extensive and as such needs to be viewed as contributing to the
evidence base listed below:

e 100% of Kent’s schools are engaged in the Healthy Schools Programme with 78% of
schools having now achieved Healthy Schools status. There are already reports of
evidence from schools that healthy schools activity is leading to improved pupil
behaviour, including punctuality and attendance

e 310 learners attended family programmes with a healthy eating focus provided by the
Adult Education Service working with the Extended Schools Team

e  Obesity in both the Reception Year and Year 6 is below national and statistical
neighbours’ averages, and has slightly reduced. Reception year is 9.0% down from
9.4%, Year 6 is 16.7% down from 16.9%

e Parents receive information from the school nursing services which offers pathways to
help and support should their children be deemed an unhealthy weight or at risk of
becoming so

e  Primary children in 2008 are more likely than children in 2006/07 to think that it is
healthy to eat different types of food (67% and 61% respectively). (Kent Pupil Survey)

e More post-16 young people eat five portions of fruit or vegetables a day at least one or
two times a week in 2008, compared to those in 2006/07 (40% and 35% respectively).
(Kent Pupil Survey).

What more are we going to do?

Pilot 1 — Community Cooking Skills

The Community Chef
e Funding has been secured via East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust to sustain and
widen the remit of the Community Chef based in Sheppey

e Funding to sustain the Community Chef based in Dartford/Gravesham is being sought

o  We will develop partnerships with Kent Farmers Markets to enable the Community Chefs
to work with farmers markets to provide cooking skill demonstrations/classes and healthy
eating information

Page 163



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Opportunities to work more closely with Thanet College are being explored to develop an
‘offer’ to young people in schools to deliver cooking skills.

Kent Cooks!
e Build upon success of the 2009 competition e.g. plan high profile cooking competition for
2010

e Plan and develop 2010 Kent Cooks! along the lines of a family cooking competition
e  Work in partnership with Thanet College to deliver competition
o Identify further sponsors and partners.

Pilot 2 — Access to Fruit and Vegetables

e Develop, launch and evaluate three more fruit and vegetable bag schemes. Partnerships
are already forged with East Kent and Coastal PCT where proposals are being developed
to roll out fruit and veg bag schemes across east Kent

e Develop partnerships with Kent Farmers Markets to incorporate use of recipe cards and
healthy eating guidance

e Look at options for developing veg bag schemes into community markets at specific
locations.

Pilot 3 — The Healthy Eating Training Programme

e Develop further training packages for PSA and Children’s Centre Staff. On the basis of
feedback already received, training packages providing advice and guidance on packed
lunch content are being developed

e Evaluate the impact of the healthy eating training on the healthy eating knowledge,
attitudes and behaviour of the 400 parents/families undertaking the healthy eating
workshops.

Pilot 4 — Increasing School Meal Uptake

¢ Findings to be used to develop a programme on increasing school meal uptake.
Contractors to roll this out to Kent schools in the school meals contract. To this end, a
best practice toolkit is to be developed in partnership with school meals contractors and
head teachers

e Findings to be used to inform the specification for the next round of tendering for the
school meals provision contracts.

Pilot 5 — National Children’s Bureau Health Challenge Programme

e The pilot has been viewed as a success. Building on the Kent pilot, the Health Challenge
Programme is to be rolled out nationally by the Food Standards Agency and National
Children’s Bureau in 2009.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target
Percentage of schools which have 38% 62% 75% 78% 80%

achieved Healthy Schools status as at
December each year*
Number of parents and children reached New 4.595 4.840 5.000 5.000
through School/Community Healthy Indicator ’ ’ ’ ’
Eating Pilots

* Percentage is of a total of 593 schools

Monitoring completed by: Sean Carter Date: 17 July 2009

Page 164



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 52: Increase the number of people (by 3,000) supported to live independently in

their own homes. This will include:

e encouraging the development of more housing for older people, disabled people and
those with special needs

e encouraging more people to take control of their care/support through Direct
Payments

e taking advantage of new technologies, such as expanding our Telehealth and
Telecare programmes

Lead Cabinet Lead Managing Lead Officers:
Member: Director: David Weiss, Cathi Sacco, Mike
Graham Gibbens Oliver Mills Dorman, Michael Thomas-Sam

Status: Done and ongoing

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

12 district councils, Registered Social Landlords (RSLs), Health Service - PCTs and Mental
Health Trust, voluntary agencies — who manage many of the support projects, private sector
e.g. home care providers, training providers such as local FE colleges - delivering specialist
courses on independence for care workers and personal assistants, other statutory agencies
including the Police and Ambulance Service

Outcomes delivered so far:

The success of this target is closely linked with the performance of other targets in Towards
2010, particularly those related to health issues. This Towards 2010 target was to increase the
number of people (by 3,000, as set out in the action plan) supported to live independently in

their own homes. This has been achieved, as can be seen from the PI table.

The main outcomes delivered so far are as follows:

Increasing suitable housing to promote independence - A key aspect of this Towards 2010
target is the development of suitable housing to enable people to live independently. A number
of housing schemes catering for people with a whole range of needs, from older people through
to people with learning disabilities, have been developed through PFIs in partnership with
district councils (see previous Towards 2010 Annual Reports for more detail). We fully expect
there to be at least 417 new housing units built and ready for occupation by 2010.

Kent Adult Social Services is now represented at the Kent Housing Group and promotes this
Towards 2010 target with partner housing commissioners and providers in Kent.

Increased direct payments — Direct payments gives more people the opportunity to have
control over their package of support which enables them to live independently. It is being
actively promoted, leading to a significant increase in take-up with 2,342 people using this
service in Kent. Additionally, the Kent Card is already being used by 831 people as a banking
option for direct payments.

More access to TeleHealth and Telecare - These are preventative interventions which embrace
new technology to enable people to remain in their own homes. As documented in detail in
previous annual reports, Kent has been a Whole Systems Demonstrator (WSD) site, one of
only three authorities selected by the Department of Health. Kent was a forerunner in the
development of such interventions and the WSD project enabled Kent to offer the benefits of
TeleHealth and Telecare to far more people. The outcome will be for an extra 1,000 people to

Page 165



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

be offered Telecare and an extra 1,000 people to be offered TeleHealth (as at June 2009 there
were 1,348 people on Telecare and 727 on TeleHealth). The majority of this work will be
completed by the end of the year and the programme end date is July 2010.

Continued investment in a wide range of innovative localised community-based preventative
schemes - These include:

o Brighter Futures, which encourages more able older people to support more needy people
through volunteering. Originally piloted in west Kent this is now being expanded across
the county, but ensuring each project is tailored for its local community (see also
Towards 2010 target 49, 54, 56)

e INVOKE — described in more detail in Towards 2010 target 54

e A whole range of local projects often delivered by the voluntary sector focusing on a
wide range of issues from dementia to ‘falls’ projects.

These schemes enable more people to remain independent. Evidence of this can be seen in the
recent Care Quality Commission inspection of Kent Adult Social Services.

Delivering Active Lives for Adults (ALfA) — This is a major change programme focused on
promoting personalisation and independence thus enabling people to have more choice and
control. New services built around this ethos are being implemented and include the following:

e Enablement services” which have been extended substantially. These services are
provided in peoples’ homes and are aimed at providing a quick, time limited response to
people who need help to regain their confidence and skills in order to remain independent
in their home

e The ‘Good Day Programme’ which is transforming day support for people with learning
disabilities, offering more opportunities and choice.

Safeguarding vulnerable adults - To enable people to live independently it is important people
feel safe from abuse. KCC, along with it its partners, has a strong multi-disciplinary
Safeguarding Board which has lead on ensuring that safeguarding vulnerable adults is a high
priority. Further evidence to support this can be seen in the recent inspection report’.

Providing training — Further education (FE) colleges in Kent deliver a range of NVQs at levels 2, 3
and 4 in Health and Social Care, as well as Level 4 Leadership and Management in care services.
Kent Adult Social Services has a contract with South Kent College called Training4Care where they
deliver 32 social care courses for the private, voluntary and independent (PVI) sector. These
courses are available to personal assistants and we have also purchased an e-learning package for
them to access. ‘Enabling independence’ training has been delivered to seven social care providers
who won contracts to provide enablement services in Kent.

What more are we going to do?

e Promoting independence continues to be the overall objective which will be driven by
ALfA, a programme of total transformation for all of Kent Adult Social Services whether
directly provided or commissioned from other agencies. It will deliver a structure and
culture that supports people to develop solutions to their needs, from an increasingly
responsive and diverse market place. Fundamental to this is Self-Directed Support
(SDS), where people can self manage their support or, if they choose to, have somebody
else, including Kent Adult Social Services, manage it for them. Kent Adult Social

* See previous Annual Reports for more detail.
3 Independence Wellbeing and Choice Inspection

Page 166



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Services is currently in the middle of implementing this major programme and it will be
progressively rolled out during 2009/10

Delivery of fast track equipment - Last year a new innovation of enabling delivery of
core equipment through the County Duty Service was piloted. It proved successful and
is now being rolled out across the county. This fast-track system allows equipment to be
delivered quickly following first contact. It will also extend to deal with Health Service
requests. The outcome of this system is to enable people to have fast access to
equipment, vital in maintaining independence

As part of the ALfA programme, a strategic review of older people services is being
undertaken to ensure that these services are shaped to meet the challenges of
personalisation and SDS

Based on the success of ‘Better Homes/Active Lives’ we have, in partnership with five
district councils, developed another PFI bid which will deliver 228 units of social housing
for vulnerable people

A Housing Action Plan has been developed to focus on the needs of people with learning
disabilities as part of ‘Valuing People Now’ and implementation of this has begun. This
will help to ensure suitable housing solutions are available to enable people with learning
disabilities to be independent

Telehealth and Telecare will continue to be a significant part of our preventative strategy
and will continue to expand to enable more people to be supported independently

We will continue to develop community-based preventative services with the private and
voluntary sector in partnership with the Health Service to enable more people to live
independent fulfilled lives within their community

Following the Independence, Wellbeing and Choice inspection a Safeguarding action plan
has been agreed with the Care Quality Commission which will further improve
safeguarding in Kent.

FE colleges will need to respond to the new Qualification Credit Framework that is being
delivered for all industry sectors where social care qualifications are being restructured.
Implementation for social care is planned from October 2010 and we are looking to
develop further personal assistant training through the contract. We are also looking to
commission enablement training for the wider PVI sector later this financial year as there
is much interest from the sector.

community based services provided by
Kent Adult Social Services (including
through voluntary sector funding) to live
independently, as at 31 March each year

Measurable Indicator (s) 2005/06 | 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual | Target
Number of people supported by 31,027 | 31,990 | 32,983 | 35473 | 34,027*

* This is the original target of 3,000 extra people as agreed at the outset of Towards 2010 (i.e.
March 2006 baseline plus 3,000). This target has been met one year early

Monitoring completed by: David Weiss, Cathi Sacco, Mike Dorman, Michael Thomas-Sam

Date: July 2009

Page 167




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 53: Strengthen the support provided to people caring for relatives and friends
Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:

Graham Gibbens Oliver Mills Michael Thomas-Sam,
Cathi Sacco, Mike Dorman

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

KCC Children, Families and Education Directorate, Communities Directorate, Kent Children’s
Fund, Carers Support Organisations, University of Kent, Health Service, Jobcentre Plus (JCP), Kent
Drug and Alcohol Team (KDAAT), independent providers

Outcomes delivered so far:

The success of this target is closely linked with the performance of other targets in Towards
2010, particularly those related to health issues. Outcomes delivered so far on this target:

The Select Committee Report ‘Carers in Kent’ - In January 2008 this report set 14
recommendations for Kent. The outcome of the Select Committee has been to stimulate and

give direction to the activity which supports this target. Progress was reviewed in January 2009
and many of these recommendations have already been implemented.

Kent Adult Carers Strategy — This was launched in July 2009 and is Kent’s response to delivering
the National Carers’ Strategy, published in June 2008. There are five outcomes:
e Improving information, advice and guidance

e Access to integrated and personalised services

e Carers having a life of their own

e (Carers not being forced into financial hardship

e Helping carers to stay mentally and physically well.
The outcomes will be delivered via multi-agency joint commissioning plans which will be
completed in autumn 2009. There will be two plans, one for east Kent and one for west Kent.
The Health Service, Jobcentre Plus and KDAAT have identified carers leads who are working

in partnership with Kent Adult Social Services to deliver the Kent Adult Carers’ Strategy and
associated commissioning plans.

An Annual Carers Report — This was published alongside the Kent Adult Carers’ Strategy in July
2009. This report has for the first time captured the true nature of the support offered to carers in
Kent and shown the range and depth of support offered across all sectors.

The Kent Carers Emergency Card Scheme — This was launched in December 2008. The aim
of the scheme is to:

e Provide carers with peace of mind when away from the person that they care for
e Offer carers as much support as necessary to complete their emergency plan

e Ensure that the County Duty or the Out of Hours service will step in to arrange
emergency support if the plan fails

e Ensure that this support is available to all carers not just those carers of people
receiving community care services

Page 168



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Increase levels of community-based respite.

Currently there are over 750 carers signed up to the scheme, the number is growing steadily and
the feedback regarding the scheme has been positive.

The Mental Health Matters help-line — This is now funded from S5pm to 9am on weekdays and
24 hours weekends and holidays. The service is available to carers, referrals can be made to the
Crisis Resolution and Home Treatment Teams and it has received positive feedback.

A Mental Health carer’s support group — Funded in each locality in Kent these provide:

e Advice, support and information to carers of people with functional mental health
problems

e One to one support for carers
e (Carer support groups that meet regularly

e (Carers’ participation in the decision making meetings about the commissioning of
mental health services

e Carers assessment workers

e Funding for carers breaks.
On average at any one time about 850 carers are ‘on the books’ receiving this support.

The Kent Adult Social Services Carers Assessment Policy — This was revised in April 2009 and
resulted in a trial to outsource the carers’ assessment to carer support organisations in two pilot
sites, Tonbridge and Dover. With the pilot due to end in April 2010 evaluation will take place
on a three monthly basis.

The Young Carers Strategy - ‘Invisible people’ — This was launched in July 2008 with the
following outcomes:

e Guidance has been issued to all schools

e The ‘voice of Kent’ young carers has been captured by DVD which highlights young
carers’ issues in training for professionals

e A joint young carers’ protocol has been agreed between Kent Adult Social Services and
KCC Children, Families and Education to clarify referral routes across Directorates.
Training is to begin in autumn 2009.

The KCC Staff Carers’ Leave pilot scheme — This has been well received and was launched to
all staff in June 2009.

Kent Adult Social Services provide a range ‘short breaks’ which benefit carers and the people
they support. These include:

e Day care

e Support in the home
e Overnight care

e Adult placements

e Emergency breaks.

Page 169



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

A Carers Advisory Group in Kent has been formed bringing together all the key strategic
partners involved in supporting carers together.

West Kent PCT and Kent Adult Social Services have also been successful in the bid to become
a Department of Health Carers’ Strategy Demonstrator Site which will bring in about £410,000
over two years.

What more are we going to do?

Within Kent Adult Social Services, training is underway to reinforce policy
implementation and further clarify duties and responsibilities towards carers to create a
far more consistent approach to the assessment and support offered to carers

A group of carers support organisations across Kent has been successful in a bid, fully
supported by Kent Adult Social Services, to be a pilot site for ‘Caring with Confidence’
training. This training will form part of the learning opportunities developed in
conjunction with the joint commissioning plans to ensure that carers are supported as
expert partners in care. The first facilitator training has now been completed and the
programme is expected to commence in the immediate future

We are exploring mechanisms for information sharing across health, social care and the
voluntary sector. Carers assessments have been considered in discussions regarding
Kent Adult Social Services’ decision to procure a Common Assessment Framework

We will continue to develop services which meet the needs of carers in line with the
Select Committee recommendations

Kent Adult Social Services have identified £30,000 for KDAAT to use in order to
support carers of people with drug/alcohol problems

KCC as an employer is surveying staff to gain an insight into the number of employees
juggling caring with employment. The survey will explore if staff would like a Carers’
Staff Forum to be developed.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Target | Actual | Target

Percentage of carers extremely or very satistied New N/A 46.9% 70%
with the help from Kent Adult Social Services indicator

Monitoring completed by: Michael Thomas-Sam, Cathi Sacco, Mike Dorman
Date: July 2009

Page 170



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 54: Work with our colleagues in the health service to reduce the number of
avoidable admissions to hospital and combine resources, where appropriate, to improve
the health and well-being of the people of Kent

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:

Graham Gibbens Oliver Mills Nick Sherlock/ Cathi Sacco/
Mike Dorman

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

The main partners that assist in the delivery of this target are the Health Service in Kent,
particularly the two Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) and the Mental Health Trust. However, the
voluntary and private sector and district councils all make significant and valuable contributions
in managing many of the community-based projects.

Outcomes delivered so far:

The success of this target is closely linked with the performance of other targets in Towards
2010, particularly those related to health issues in this section.

KCC has a strong tradition of working closely with the Health Service, as evidenced by the
established Section 75 partnerships. Initiatives delivered within the context of this target
include:

Joint Commissioning with PCTs - There are joint commissioning arrangements in both east Kent
and west Kent and with Mental Health and a number of jointly appointed commissioning posts
have been established. The outcome is that the PCTs, Kent and Medway Partnership Trust and
Kent Adult Social Services have shared priorities at strategic and local levels as well as
resources to commission the services to meet these priorities. Evidence of this is the shared
cross-cutting targets in Kent Agreement 2 (LAA).

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) - This has been developed as a tool which is being
used to identify joint commissioning priorities. Underneath the overarching JSNA, specialist
assessments have been developed around areas such as dementia and mental health. The
outcome of these activities has been to ensure that identified priorities and commissioning have
been developed from an evidenced-based needs assessment.

Public Health Department - This is now firmly established and led by a jointly appointed Public
Health Director for Kent. Its agenda for action is set out in the Public Health Strategy (Live Life
to the Full) and the Public Health Annual Report. The establishment of the Public Health
Department has seen a wider focus on prevention and health inequalities and development of
new ways of working with the Health Service and communities. Such projects as ‘Activmobs’
are evidence of this (see Towards 2010 targets 48 and 49).

INVOKE' (Independence through the Voluntary action of Kent Elders) — This is the project that
has been developed out of the successful Partnerships for Older People bid. This project has
introduced a range of initiatives which have supported older people in the community. There are
a range of outcomes, which have been drawn out through research and this includes reduction in
overnight stays in hospital to ensuring people within the project have received all the benefits to
which they are entitled.

# More detail on this project have been provided in previous Annual Reports

Page 171



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Prevention in the community — These projects are in partnership with Health and through joint
investment in the voluntary sector. This includes Brighter Futures (see also Towards 2010
targets 49, 52, 56), which encourages more able older people to support more needy people
through volunteering. Other initiatives range from community support to those with dementia to
‘Falls’ projects. The outcome has been to enable more people to remain independent. Evidence
of this c%n be seen in the recent Care Quality Commission Inspection of Kent Adult Social
Services’.

TeleHealth and Telecare - The partnership with Health in developing the Whole Systems
Demonstrator, already described in detail in Towards 2010 target 52, is another initiative which
is supporting the development of this target. The outcome of this is to improve the
independence, health and wellbeing of people through the use of new technology. This was also
evidenced in the recent inspection’.

Reducing delayed transfer of care — This continues to be an area of high priority across health
and social care. There are a whole range of joint initiatives, including intermediate care,
enablement, and rapid response. Many of these have been described in more detail in previous
Towards 2010 annual reports. The outcome has been to reduce the level of delayed discharges
from hospital where the number has reduced from 1,304 in September 2007 to 622 in June 2009,
and for those for which Kent Adult Social Services are responsible this has reduced from 219 to
128 over the same timescale. This success was recognised by the Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee in October 2008 and through the evidence presented to the Care Quality
Commission’.

Intermediate care - We have developed a wide range of intermediate care projects in partnership
with Health which are preventing avoidable hospital admission, facilitating safe early discharge

from hospitals and maximising people’s ability to regain their independence. Intermediate care

has played a significant part in tackling delayed discharges from hospital and enabling people to
live independently.

Learning Disability — By March 2010, approximately 400 people will transfer from the Health
Service to Kent Adult Social Services under the Section 256/NHS Act 2007. This is a huge
project which has been outlined in detail in previous Towards 2010 annual reports. The outcome
of this project will be to give this group of people more opportunities of choice and
independence. The transfer is rooted in the principles of Valuing People.

The vast majority of the above initiatives will be developed beyond 2010 continuing to deliver
better outcomes for people.

What more are we going to do?

The major priorities for the next three years focus on working with the Health Service in
delivering more personalised services which offer people choice and control i.e. Self Directed
Support. A key feature continues to be a focus on community-based preventative services in
order to deliver the joint priorities outlined in such strategies as the Carers Strategy, the End of
Life Strategy and the Dementia Strategy. A key feature will be the development of shared
pathways of care planned jointly. Outlined below are some planned initiatives delivered within
the context of this target along with expected outcomes:

e Mental Health Trust — Already well established, the Trust is applying for Foundation Status
which will give it more flexibility in setting local priorities and commissioning services

> Independence Wellbeing and Choice Inspection
% Independence Wellbeing and Choice Inspection
7 Kent Adult Social Services’ submission to CQC for the Annual Review Meeting 30 June 2009

Page 172



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Joint commissioning posts - In line with the major changes needed to implement Self-
Directed Support, in partnership with the PCTs, further joint posts focused on strategic
commissioning are being established which will ensure an integrated approach to
commissioning focused on shared priorities

e Implementation of the Carers Strategy — This is being done jointly with the PCTs to put in
place more support for carers

e  Whole Systems Demonstrator/Telecare/TeleHealth - The continued implementation of this
project will deliver further opportunities for people to use technology to enhance their
independence and wellbeing

e Autistic spectrum - A recent Select Committee on this issue has been completed and the
recommendations are now published. We will be working jointly to improve the services
for this group

e Common Assessment Framework - We are working with the Health Service to develop this
through Functional Assessment in Care Environments (FACE). This will mean that we will
have a joint co-ordinated assessment process where people will only have to answer
questions once about their circumstances.

Measurable indicators:

None — This Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as having an ‘aspirational’ status
and progress is measured via qualitative means.

Monitoring completed by: Nick Sherlock/ Cathi Sacco/ Mike Dorman Date: July 2009

Page 173



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 55: Ensure better planning to ease the transition between childhood and
adulthood for young people with disabilities and to promote their independence

Lead Cabinet Members: Lead Managing Directors: | Lead Officers:

Graham Gibbens/Sarah Oliver Mills/Rosalind Turner | Michael Thomas-Sam/Colin
Hohler Feltham

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Kent Adult Social Services and KCC Children, Families and Education (CFE) directorates are
leading the partnership which includes the Kent Learning Disability Partnership Board, parent
organisations, PCTs, Learning Skills Council (LSC), Connexions and schools. We are
expanding the partners to include KCC’s Communities directorate, local further education (FE)
providers and district councils.

Outcomes delivered so far:

e A major driver for the work to support this Towards 2010 target was the Select
Committee from which a number of successful initiatives have sprung, overseen by the
Transition Board. The multi-agency transition protocols are an example of this and set
out the clear commitment to every disabled young person in Kent that they will get co-
ordinated support to help them move from adolescence to adulthood. The protocols also
ensure that this transition support will be personalised, co-ordinated around individual
needs and reflect the young person’s aspirations and that young people, their families and
the professionals involved all have a clear understanding of who will be involved and
what they will do

e Young people who may need additional support with their transition into adult life will be
identified when they have their transition review in Year 9. With the young people and
their carer’s consent, this links together basic identifying information held by CFE, the
Health Service and social care agencies and will ensure that no-one who needs and wants
support through transition will be missed

e Training to support the implementation of the transition protocols, across all agencies, has
been delivered in every locality. This builds on the best practice already within the county
and is developing local virtual teams who will lead on transition for the local children.
The effectiveness of these is being monitored by all the agencies involved and all these
actions will ensure that the practice around transition is improved upon

e The young people, carer and easy-read guides to the transition process have been
distributed through a network of professionals so that it will be available to every young
person who needs it. This will ensure that each young person and their families will know
what support they will receive and how to access it. It is also available on each agency’s
websites and at www .kent.gov.uk/transition

o The effectiveness of the support given through transition and the implementation of the
transition protocols has been monitored by satisfaction surveys. In the last six months,
106 young people or their carers have been asked to rate their satisfaction with the support
they have received in the key areas of:

e Involvement of appropriate agencies

e Provision of sufficient information, advice and guidance

Page 174



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e Young person’s views and aspirations being central to the process
e Satisfaction with the current support.

The percentage of people who said they were happy or very happy ranged from 77% who
were satisfied with their current support to 68% who said they were satisfied that their
views and aspirations were listened to. Overall, 73% said that they were either happy or
very happy with the support they have received during the transition period (see PI table).

What more are we going to do?

The experiences of young people during and after transition will continue to be monitored.
Further groups of young people and their carers will be asked to rate their satisfaction
with their support to ensure that the protocols are making an improvement. This will
provide a rolling measure as the impact is more widely felt

The training to support the implementation of the transition protocols across all agencies
will be extended to include mainstream schools so that the local virtual transition teams
pick up all young people with disabilities who will benefit from supported transition

The significant increase in uptake of direct payments from CFE will continue to be built
on and work is ongoing to ensure that the transition from a CFE direct payment to a Kent
Adult Social Services personal budget is managed smoothly. This increases both
flexibility and control for individuals, enabling them to live their lives more
independently. With the development of Self Directed Support, personal budgets will
become the norm for every adult needing support

The Transition Partnership will be widened to include representatives from the district
councils, housing associations and employment and training organisations. This will
increase the opportunities for young people to move to full adult life with more integrated
access to housing and employment opportunities
We will ensure that the delivery of this Towards 2010 target is supported by other targets:
e Develop multi-agency support to parents and their children (Target 13)
e Listen to young people’s views (Target 14)

e Increase the number of people who are supported to live independently (Target 52)

e Strengthen the support to people caring for relatives and friends (Target 53).

Measurable Indicator (s) 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual Target | Actual Target

Young people with disability or their carers New Not set 73% 80%
who were wither happy or very happy with the | indicator
support they received during the transition
period

Monitoring completed by: Michael Thomas-Sam/Colin Feltham Date: July 2009

Page 175




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 56: Improve older people’s economic well-being by encouraging the take-up of
benefits

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:

Graham Gibbens Oliver Mills Michael Thomas-Sam

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Our partners include the Pension Service (part of the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP)
that deals with people over 60), district councils, Kent Benefits Partnership and voluntary
organisations e.g. Age Concern, Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB), Citizens Rights for Older
People.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Offering information, advice and assistance - Older people receiving social care services from
KCC are offered information, advice and, if necessary, assistance to claim all the benefits they are
entitled to. We have increased the effectiveness of this work by creating specialist teams and by
working with the Pension Service, district councils and local voluntary organisations. In addition,
we have provided extra funding to the 12 Kent CABs which will enable them to help more people
claim the benefits to which they are entitled.

Increasing take up - Partnership working is contributing to the increase in benefit take up for older
people in Kent and as a direct result of joint working with the Pension Service between April
2007 and 31 March 2009 £2.1 million in additional benefits was raised for Kent residents.

Broken down this is £885,000 in Pension Credit, £898,000 in Attendance Allowance, £98,000 in
Disability Living Allowance, £127,000 in Housing Benefit and £93,000 in Council Tax Benefit.
In addition to monetary gain, joint working leads to a better experience for our service users who
receive a quicker and less time consuming service.

Many of the community-based preventative projects run by the voluntary sector are working with
older people to maximise their benefits, as are initiatives such as INVOKE and Brighter Futures
(see also Towards 2010 target 54).

What more are we going to do?

We will continue to work with the Pension Service and district councils to target those older
people not receiving all their benefit entitlement. This includes working in the new Gateways
(see Towards 2010 target 29) and taking part in media campaigns targeted specifically at older
people in Kent.

Measurable Indicator (s) Aug 06 | Aug 07 | Aug 08 | May 09 | Aug 09
Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual | Target
Number of older people who are in 34,560 | 36,330 | 38,300 | 38,670 | 36,290

receipt of /with underlying entitlement
to Attendance Allowance

Number of older people who are in 70,270 | 70,960 | 71,240 | 71,300 | 73,780
receipt of Pension Credit
Number of older people in receipt of 53,590 | 53,790 * * 56,270

council tax benefit

Page 176



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

* Not yet available. There is always a time lag before figures are available from the DWP and
there have been particular problems with data on Council Tax Benefit. The DWP have
informed us that this data will be available by the end of the year.

Monitoring completed by: Michael Thomas-Sam Date: July 2009

Page 177



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 57: Build on the successful Kent Community Warden scheme, supporting Kent
Police in their visible Neighbourhood Policing programme and working with them and

the CDRPs to strengthen the police presence in problem areas
Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Director: Lead Officer:
Mike Hill Amanda Honey Stuart Beaumont

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Kent Police, district councils, parish councils, police community safety officers, Kent Fire and
Rescue Service, Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnerships (CDRPs)

Outcomes delivered so far:

Helped communities to raise and tackle local issues:

The 101 KCC community wardens in 128 communities across Kent have had a real and
positive impact and are a vital asset in the development of their neighbourhood policing
programme

The community wardens work closely with Neighbourhood Policing teams including
police community support officers (PCSOs) using problem identification and solving
techniques and a shared tasking and co-ordination process to identify issues and target
activity

Where appropriate, wardens are part of PACT (Partners & Communities Together) panels
and by working in partnership they are able to make the best use of their local knowledge
and promote the use of KCC services

The KCC Community Safety Unit produces regular crime updates which at an operational
level assist with identifying issues, making decisions and targeting work. The updates
keep members and senior KCC staff informed

In conjunction with the Kent Criminal Justice Board and Kent Police, the Community
Safety Unit developed the ‘Restorative Neighbourhoods’ project which was launched in
pathfinder sites in Shepway and Maidstone in January 2009. ‘Restorative
Neighbourhoods’ looks to address issues identified by the local community by bringing
victims, offenders and communities together to bring resolution to problems before
formal entry into the criminal justice system

PACTSs can make a difference in their local communities and in Greenhill, residents can
now keep up-to-date with what is going on in the ward after a new website was created by
the local PACT panel www.greenhill.btik.com, with the community warden playing an
integral and highly successful role. To date the main priorities identified have been
speeding, dog fouling, litter and anti social behaviour, and as a result more dog litter bins
have been provided, motorists have been stopped and warned about their driving, and
problem families are being monitored

The community wardens have developed a new scheme called ‘Bluff the Bogeyman’
designed to help protect elderly or vulnerable people from opportunist criminals and
distraction burglars.

Enhanced the ways they help and build relationships with local communities:

KCC community wardens, although originally envisaged as a visible uniformed presence
to tackle anti-social behaviour, have developed a much broader remit, working with a

Page 178



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

wide range of other authorities and services. Their operations range from walking buses
through to providing intelligence to the police which has led to a variety of arrests

The wardens work closely with many KCC services either signposting their service or
providing information direct to members of the public. Examples include collation of
intelligence for Trading Standards; referrals to Social Services; school talks about road
safety and ‘stranger danger’; assisting emergency planning with events and working
alongside Trading Standards in emergency situations

The wardens facilitate a number of activities and events within their communities, both
big and small to engage with the local residents, the largest of which has been the
countywide 7 a-side football tournaments. KCC community wardens work in partnership
with Charlton Athletic, Kent Police, Kent Fire and Rescue and others to involve ‘hard to
engage’ young people, both boys and girls, in this positive diversionary activity

‘Positive Tickets’ is a 12 month multi-agency pilot scheme aimed at rewarding young
people for engaging in positive activities and/or improved behaviour with vouchers for
shops or activities. The positive ticket is viewed as an ice-breaker and provides a gateway
to better relationships between authority figures and young people

During the countywide 7 a-side football tournaments in the summer of 2008, over 1,000
‘hard to engage’ young people, both boys and girls, were involved in this positive
diversionary activity. These events are helping to strengthen communities, receiving
support from local residents and retailers as well as providing a positive outlet for
youthful energy

Wardens have provided awareness training to over 9,500 people since 2006 against the
dangers of bogus callers, helping the elderly and vulnerable to remain safe and secure in
their own homes.

Extended neighbourhood policing:

Wardens also contribute to, and assist in the delivery of the Neighbourhood Policing
teams’ ward level quarterly newsletters which target perceptions of crime

The Community Safety Training Partnership at Boughton Mount continues to work with
the Central Neighbourhood Policing team, Kent Police College and the Kent Partnership
to develop and deliver training which will enhance neighbourhood policing in Kent

The Community Safety Training Partnership has worked closely with the Government
Office for the South East (GOSE) over the last 12 months to design and deliver
workshops to Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships (CDRPs) throughout the south
east region. To support delivery of the ‘National Standards’ the Home Office provided
KCC with £12,500 funding to help finance delivery of the workshops. To date, 70 CDRP
representatives across the South East Region have attended at least one of the workshops
provided by the training centre and feedback has been very positive.

The KCC Community Safety Training Partnership provided or delivered training to 750
people during 2007/08, equivalent to 966 training days.

What more are we going to do?

Adult Education — The KCC community wardens are working with Adult Education
tutors in areas of high deprivation to encourage resident’s engagement which could
enhance their lives and create stronger communities

Inter-generational work and work with vulnerable people — The KCC Communities
directorate, including community wardens, are looking at ways to bring generations
together and through ‘Dreams Come True’ the wardens will be working with a variety of

Page 179



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

organisations to promote the need for local communities and business to involve adults
with learning disabilities

e Football Tournaments — The community wardens will continue to work with Charlton
Athletic and other partners to deliver the countywide football tournaments

e ‘Prevent’ - The objectives of ‘Prevent’ is to focus on dealing with violent extremism
through the building of strong local partnerships that deal with anxieties and grievances
and build cohesion capacity in communities. The KCC Community Safety Unit is leading
on partnership engagement for this important area

e  Migration Impact - Subject to funding from the Government Office for the South East
(GOSE) the KCC community wardens hope to staff a regular mobile information surgery
in partnership with other KCC departments and external agencies targeted in areas
containing a large migrant population

e Future Jobs Funding - Subject to funding from the Department for Work and Pensions
(DWP) the KCC community wardens hope to recruit 30 support wardens aged 18 to 24
who have been unemployed for around 12 months, primarily in areas of social
deprivation.

Measurable indicators:

None — This Towards 2010 target has been formally agreed as having an ‘aspirational’ status and
progress is measured via qualitative means.

Monitoring completed by: Stuart Beaumont Date: July 2009

Page 180



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 58: Help maintain Kent's low levels of burglary and car theft and work with off-
licence, pub and club owners to reduce alcohol-fuelled crime and disorder, anti-social
behaviour and domestic abuse.

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Director: Lead Officer:
Mike Hill Amanda Honey Stuart Beaumont

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Kent Police, Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnerships (CDRPs), Kent Trading Standards,
town centre managers.

Outcomes delivered so far:

By focusing on this target we have helped to:

Create a safer night time economy (NTE) — Recorded NTE crime has reduced and people’s
feelings of safety at night have increased:

Under the umbrella of the Safer Kent Delivery Group, statutory partners joined forces to
establish a managed NTE

A profile of alcohol fuelled criminal activity in Kent at night is compiled by Kent Police
to support Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships (CDRPs) and help them to
identify ‘hot spots’ and to target action effectively

Various initiatives tackling the issues of night-time disorder have been carried out by
CDRPs across the county including Dartford’s ‘Grabbacab’ service. During 2007/08 the
‘Grabbacab’ scheme contributed to a 25% reduction in NTE crime (specific crimes
occurring between the periods of 8pm and 4am between Thursday night and Sunday
morning) in Dartford compared with the previous year and across the county between
2007/08 and 2008/09 NTE crime (specific crimes committed by offenders under the
influence of drink or drugs between the periods of 8pm and 4am Monday to Sunday) has
shown a 22.7% reduction, making Kent a safer place for its residents

The reduction in NTE crime also links with the results of the Kent Crime and
Victimisation Survey (KCVS) which shows that since 2006/07 feelings of safety at night
(at home alone and walking alone at night) in Kent, have increased from 74% to 81% by
the end of 2008/09. In particular feelings of safety walking alone at night are at their
highest for the last three years rising from 55% in 2006/07 to 66% currently.

Tackle alcohol misuse problems via campaigns linked to underage sales:

Kent Trading Standards undertake targeted underage sales campaigns using intelligence
from the KCC community wardens, local licensing officers and the public aimed at
reducing the sale of age-restricted goods

The Community Safety Training Partnership has delivered police accreditation training
on behalf of Kent Police, including the provision of enforcement notice training to
trading standards officers to enable them to issue penalty notice disorders

In January 2008, KCC held an alcohol seminar to discuss ways to tackle alcohol-related
problems in towns and city centres and looked at how to improve treatment and support
for people with alcohol problems

Page 181




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

In May 2008, the Community Safety Unit worked in partnership with a number of other
KCC units to help with Gravesham BC’s successful week-long campaign on alcohol.
The campaign has since been repeated

In November 2008, the multi-agency Kent Community Alcohol Partnership (KCAP) was
officially launched, aimed at changing the attitudes to drinking among young people and
supporting retailers to reduce sales of alcohol to underage drinkers. The scheme is being

piloted in three key areas of the county

Over the last few years the targeted underage sales campaigns undertaken by Trading
Standards have resulted in a number of prosecutions, penalty notice disorders, licence
reviews and cautions in respect of the sale of alcohol to young people under the age of
18 years.

Encourage domestic abuse victims to report incidents to police:

KCC funds the majority of the Kent & Medway domestic abuse co-ordinator post, who
is responsible for ensuring that actions from the ‘Kent and Medway Domestic Violence
Strategy Group’ (KMDVSG) are implemented with all partners

The inter-agency KMDVSG group has established a delivery plan for 2007 to 2010
encompassing prevention, early intervention, protection, justice and victim support

Between 2006/07 and 2007/08, in Kent and Medway, there was approximately a 6%
increase in reported incidents of domestic abuse (but a decrease in repeat victimisation),
which can be linked to the drive to encourage domestic abuse victims to come forward
and report to the police. In the last year the number of reported incidents has decreased
as well as a small decrease in repeat victimisation

During an 18 month period, since May 2007, the independent domestic violence adviser
(IDVA) at the Specialist Domestic Violence Court in Maidstone, received 233 referrals
and supported clients at a total of 89 domestic violence trials resulting in 56 convictions.
Feedback from clients has been positive with comments such as “I felt listened to and
safe” and “Without the people at court I would not have been able to have gone through
with the case.”

Reduce crime and anti-social behaviour — between 2006/07 and 2008/09 there was an
approximate 17% decrease in crime across the KCC area:

Across the county there are a number of initiatives to help reduce burglary and help
people to feel safer in their homes, including door step crime/bogus caller awareness
training provided by KCC community wardens to residents within their communities

In response to the concern about anti-social behaviour (ASB), the Community Safety
unit has produced an ASB strategy for KCC

KCC community wardens support the ASB strategy by continuing to act as ‘the eyes and
ears’ of the community with information reports being passed to Trading Standards and
Kent Police as well as working with Victim Support to help residents who have been
victims of crime or low level anti-social behaviour

Between 2006/07 and 2008/09 there has been approximately a 17% decrease in crime
across the KCC area, in particular:

e Domestic burglary which has reduced by approximately 23.5%
e Car crime which has reduced by approximately 23%.

In addition to the decrease in crime rates, peoples’ perceptions of crime and anti-social
behaviour has seen a general improvement across the KCC area since 2006/07 e.g:

Page 182



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

e The percentage of people worried about burglary has decreased from 56% in
2006/07 to 36% in 2008/09
e Fear of four specific crimes (domestic burglary, car theft, mugging/robbery &
physical attack) in Kent has reduced from 44% in 2006/07 to 28% in 2008/09.
The percentage of Kent people who consider that one of the seven types of ASB
identified in the Kent Crime and Victimisation Survey — “teenagers hanging around” is a
very or fairly big problem has decreased from 34% in 2006/07 to 20% in 2008/09.

What more are we going to do?

KCC’s Community Safety Unit will continue to link in with the Chief Constable’s ASB
initiative for 2009/10

We will implement recommendations from the recent GOSE anti-social behaviour review
KCC will continue to lead with the establishment of an ASB multi-agency forum

We will work with partners to closely monitor and react to changes due to the current
economic climate

Trading Standards will continue to undertake test purchasing and review of licences

Trading Standards will continue with the KCAP initiative in the pilot areas and look at
Standards for an ‘accredited partner’ scheme

The KCC community wardens will initiate a pilot project in the Canterbury area, subject
to funding, to set up a series of workshops aimed at adults to raise awareness about the
amount of alcohol in the home and how easily it may be accessed by children

KMDVSG has set up a steering group to develop a Specialist Domestic Violence Court in
east Kent over the next few months.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2008/09 2009/10

Actual Actual Target Actual Target

Domestic burglary per 1,000 10.7 8.5 Maintain 7.8 Maintain
households or reduce or reduce
2006/07 2006/07

baseline baseline
Car crime per 1,000 10.3 8.6 Maintain 7.8 Maintain
population or reduce or reduce
2006/07 2006/07

baseline baseline

Monitoring completed by: Stuart Beaumont Date: July 2009

Page 183




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

casualties from road accidents

Target 59: Work with our partners to reduce the number of deaths and serious

Lead Cabinet Member:
Nick Chard

Lead Managing Director:
Mike Austerberry

Lead Officer:
David Beaver

Status: Done and ongoing

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Kent Police, Kent Fire and Rescue, Medway Council, HM Courts Service, Highways Agency.

Outcomes delivered so far:

Through our second Public Service Agreement (PSA2) with government, Kent Highways
Services (KHS) worked with partner agencies, such as the police and other emergency
services, to deliver the government target of reducing the number of people killed and
seriously injured (KSI) on Kent’s roads (including motorways and trunk roads) by 40%
compared with the 1994-1998 average. The final reported figure for 2007 was 723 KSI
on roads in Kent which was within 0.5% of the 40% reduction target. However, the 2007
figure for roads for which KCC was responsible was 588 and was a 41.8% reduction.
This target needs to be maintained and to focus on this, KHS is aiming at a 45% local
reduction target as opposed to the 40% reduction which is the national 2010 target. The
2008 KSI casualty figures represents a 13% reduction in KSI casualties compared with
2007 and a 47% reduction compared with the 1994-98 target, already achieving the local
target set. It should be noted that the 2008 KSI road traffic casualty figures are
exceptionally low, 627 compared with 723 in 2007 and represents a 5% greater reduction
than the KHS target figure for 2008. This ongoing work in casualty reduction appears to
be maintaining the downward trend in KSI casualties, however outside factors, such as
fuel prices, may have influenced the excessive reduction in 2008

KCC’s approach to reducing KSIs has been to integrate the known benefits of education,
enforcement, engineering and evaluation, and a programme of countywide publicity
campaigns, proactive press features and public engagement projects using road safety
officers which has proved effective. Work with Kent Police and Kent Fire and Rescue to
identify shared priorities and work on joint initiatives has led to innovative ways of
engaging with those who are in categories of people most likely to be killed or seriously
injured

In addition to other casualty reduction activities, KHS Road Safety led a combined
approach to tackling drinking and driving in the run up to last Christmas, contributing to
the lowest recorded number of road crash fatalities in December for over a decade. This
approach involved:

e A high profile anti-drink drive publicity campaign that made use of innovative
television advertising

e  Support for the Kent Police Winter KSI Suppression Initiative that led to a range of
enforcement operations, including vehicle road-side checks and a general increase in
high visibility police activity.

The KHS Road Safety team led a programme of high profile campaigns that utilised TV
and radio advertising, road side posters and press/media editorial. This programme of
work raised awareness and improved road user choices in key areas of concern. These
included seat belt wearing messages to vehicle occupants, messages on the dangers of

Page 184



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

using mobile phones whilst driving, how easy it could be for young drivers to lose their
licence and anti-driver impairment messages dealing with both alcohol and drug use

e Speed awareness courses, that allow motorists detected at up to 39mph in 30mph areas to
opt for a training course as an alternative to prosecution, have been provided for over
3,000 drivers during the period. National Driver Improvement Scheme courses provide
an alternative to prosecution for drivers reported driving ‘without due care and attention’,
providing courses for around 400 drivers during the year. Both these courses are run
through a formal partnership agreement that includes Kent Police, KHS and Medway
Council

e KCC has been working closely with parish councils and others in pilot areas in reviewing
speed limits on all A and B class roads in Kent. This will result in significant
improvements to ‘village gateways’ together with signing and a more consistent approach
to speed limits across the county. We aim to complete the review of speed limits on all
Kent’s A and B class roads by 2011

e KCC and Kent Police have led the development of countrywide partnering activities. This
approach has enabled the consolidation of the work of all the agencies involved in
reducing road casualties, culminating in the formal establishment of the CaRe group. The
CaRe group will provide added value by ensuring that the recourses of all the agencies
are effectively marshalled through a structured approach that will include strategic,
tactical and operational levels.

What more are we going to do?

o KCC needs to stay focused on reducing the number of KSI over the coming years to
ensure that we at least maintain performance in meeting the governments targets for
2010. We will continue to strengthen links with key agencies and ensure that the method
for identifying appropriate crash remedial measures is improved through more accurate
and consistent crash data recording, identifying priorities and implementing and
evaluating appropriate strategies and action plans

e Deliver further publicity campaigns and community engagement projects addressing
motor cyclist safety, speed, mobile phone, young/novice drivers

e Continue development and delivery of driver training programmes
e Deliver programmes of work aimed at improving the safety of the highway network
e Continue the speed limit review

e Review the scope for development and opportunities for further reducing casualties to
2020.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Actual | Actual | Actual | Target | Target

Number of road accidents casualties -
Killed or seriously injured (including 747 723 627 674%* 650%*
Highways Agency roads i.e. Motorways)

Number of road accidents casualties -

Killed or seriously injured (excluding 588 588 520 554* 538*
Highways Agency roads i.ec. Motorways)

* Agreed KA2 targets

Monitoring completed by: Ian Procter Date: July 2009

Page 185



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 60: Support young people to reduce the risk of them offending
Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officer:
Mike Hill Amanda Honey Glan Hopkin

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Most services within the KCC Communities Directorate (including the Youth Service, Kent
Drug & Alcohol Action Team (KDAAT), Arts Development Unit, Community Safety Unit and
KEY Training), KCC Children, Family and Education Directorate, Police, CDRPs, Health
Service, Connexions, Kent Fire & Rescue.

Outcomes delivered so far:

The Youth Offending Service (YOS) strategy aligned to meet Towards 2010 target 60 is now
an integral element of a wider preventative strategy led by the Children’s Trust Board with
significant contributions from Kent Police.

In 2006 a limited number of Youth Inclusion Programmes were established across Kent using a
ring fenced-prevention grant from the Youth Justice Board. These initiatives were responsible
for the assessment and delivery of interventions to children and young people aged 8-17 years
who had been identified as being at risk of offending and built on some earlier small scale
projects such as ‘Power’ and ‘Action 7.

Outcomes delivered to date are as follows:

Reduction in the number of children and young people entering the Youth Justice System in
2007/08 compared to 2006/07 as can be seen by the PI table:

e Less children and young people have been entering the Youth Justice System since 2006

e  Other activity commissioned by YOS or with partners in order to address known risk
factors for those young people at risk of entering or already in the system includes:

e Education, training and employment opportunities, which have been improved
through links with the Learning & Skills Council (LSC), for example in developing
the ‘New Skills New Lives’ initiative. This aims to improve the employability and
employment prospects of post-16 year olds with the potential for working differently
to support young people and employers

e Health services, which have increased their investment in YOS both in terms of staff
numbers and in mainstreaming the YOS Dual Diagnosis Project across locations in
Kent

e Accommodation resources, which are being expanded through the links with
Supporting People.

e Lessons learned from the initial work in 2006 has suggested that small scale
interventions have been less useful than the model which promotes wider identification
of needs and signposting to services which match those needs. This has resulted in better
outcomes for individuals.

Improved partnership working, with raised awareness and wider understanding of the prevention
agenda across all partnerships:

e There is raised awareness and wider understanding of the Prevention agenda across all
partnerships. There has been improved partnership working through the Local
Children’s Services Partnerships and the links with Kent Agreement 2 have ensured that

Page 186



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

district council partners have fully supported the Youth Inclusion Support Panels’
(YISPs) aim to reduce first time entrants

The target has also provided a focus for the development of Targeted Youth Support and
the Integrated Youth Support Strategy in which KCC has acted as a catalyst and
provided leadership.

Established a prevention-led approach to tackling youth offending:

In 2007 the Kent County Youth Justice Board endorsed a proposal to refocus the
prevention activity funded by the Youth Justice Board from that of an intervention to an
assessment model. Successful lessons from the earlier initiatives e.g. the multi-agency
management arrangements were applied to the development of YISPs in each of the 12
districts throughout 2008/09. The panels are responsible for:

e Receiving referrals from children’s services (e.g. schools) and community safety (e.g.
Anti Social Behaviour teams)

o Undertaking the assessment of all children and young people (aged 8 to 13 years) to
identify where and for what reasons those referred are ‘at risk’ of offending

e Co-ordinating the delivery of services to match to the risks and needs identified
during the assessment

e Monitoring the progress of the child/young person during an intervention of between
three and six months duration.

The aim of the YISPs is to contribute to a reduction in the number of children and young
people entering the Youth Justice System. As well as this Towards 2010 target, this aim
is reflected in the Kent Children and Young People’s Plan and Local Area Agreement,
which has helped raise the profile of the YOS prevention strategy countywide

The implementation of the Local Children’s Services Partnerships (LCSPs) in 2008,
which deliver the priorities for the Children and Young People’s Plan, have further
improved the means by which the YOS Prevention Strategy and associated activity can
be disseminated.

Supported a range of related diversionary activities outside the formal youth justice system:

YOS has contributed to developing services which have clear links with other targets for
example:

e Delivery of education programmes on drug and alcohol misuse through the Drug
Intervention Support Programme (DISP) and the Alcohol Support Programme in
support of National Indicator (NI) 115

o Piloting by the Police of Restorative Neighbourhoods with which the YOS victim
offender mediation service has become involved in support of target NI 57

e Accessing and developing activities enabled by the Department for Children, Schools
and Families (DCSF) funding of Positive Activities for Young People which is
administered by the Youth Service in support of NI 110.

Additional activity and development supported by YOS include:

o The Challenger Troop offering an Army Cadet type approach to youth activities

o The Phoenix Programme delivered by Kent Fire and Rescue promoting both personal
safety and social responsibility

e A partnership, recently with the English Rugby Football Union, to increase sports
participation amongst those most ‘at risk’

e Use of restorative processes in schools to resolve school based incidents without
recourse to the police so avoiding the entry of children and young people into the
youth justice system and reducing the need for exclusion, itself a significant risk
factor for offending behaviour.

Page 187



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Our work has provided an important lever to influence public and police perceptions of
young people at risk of offending.

What more are we going to do?

All partners will progress this work further, working to maintain and fully integrate the
role of the YISPs with developments being led by the Children’s Trust Board, Kent
Police and the district CDRPs

Further strengthen the links between KCC CFE and Community directorates on the
Prevention Strategy, using monies from the national Youth Justice Board, which is
pledged until the end of 2010/11

YOS will contribute to the planned multi agency initiative in two wards in Thanet,
Margate Central and Cliftonville West, designed to increase community cohesion. The
learning from the initiative will be applied as appropriate to the preventative strategy in
other parts of the county

Work will continue with Kent Police to further increase the reliability of the monitoring
of new entrants to the youth justice system, enabling more detailed information to be
shared amongst agencies concerned with both community safety and with the planning,
commissioning and delivery of children’s services.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/7 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual Actual Target Actual Target

Number of new entrants to the youth 2,020 1,660 1,627 * 1,594

justice system (per 100,000 10-17
population)

* Figure available Nov 2009. However, early indications are very positive

Monitoring completed by: Glan Hopkin Date: July 2009

Page 188




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 61: Extend our public awareness campaign to alert people to the activities of
rogue traders, particularly those involved in door-to-door sales, and increase the
number of offenders prosecuted

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Managing Director: Lead Officers:

Mike Hill Amanda Honey Ian Treacher/Sue Edmunds

Status: On course
List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

Trading Standards Alerts are sent to around 250 organisations, including Age Concern,
Neighbourhood Watch, Help the Aged, Citizens’ Rights for Older People, Citizens Advice Bureaux,
Kent Adult Social Services, Kent Libraries, parish and town Councils. Other partners include Kent
Police, KCC community wardens

Outcomes delivered so far:

Alerted local communities to rogue traders and other threats. Trading Standards alert messages
reach around 250 recipients, reaching thousands of people once cascaded onwards:

e There is a recognised link between ‘doorsteppers’ and distraction burglary with doorstep
criminals often targeting the same vulnerable people time after time and so in addition to
enforcement action we alert consumers to these criminals to prevent them from being
caught out. Over recent years we have been developing and improving ways of working
with communities and partners to make them aware of rogue trader activity

e Alert messages are now being used in many local publications, such as parish magazines,
public notice boards and local newspapers. This all helps to reinforce the messages we
give about doorstep traders and scams. For example, prompted by one of our messages,
we were called by a meals delivery service because one of their drivers was concerned
about some people he saw visiting a client. We became involved, together with other
agencies, and were able to stop the client becoming a victim

e Kent Trading Standards operates an early warning email messaging system which alerts
local communities to bogus trading practices. Our partners and message recipients now
number around 250, including 161 parish and town councils. The Neighbourhood
Watch Network plays an important role in reaching local communities as there are over
9,000 co-ordinators in Kent so potentially we can reach 300,000 people.

Responded to information received about doorstep criminals e.g. the Rapid Action Team
intervened 57 times in 2008/09, responding to information that doorstep criminals are still on
the premises:

e Rogue traders cause detriment and distress to unsuspecting consumers and so
significantly disrupting the activity of rogue traders is a core activity for Kent Trading
Standards. To do this we use an intelligence-led approach to enforcement and carry out
targeted campaigns to identify and deal with rogue traders

e  When we receive information about a doorstep criminal who is still on the premises we
respond immediately by sending our Rapid Action Team. In 2008/09 we intervened 57
times and supported 141 ‘victims’. We also significantly disrupted the activity of 20
rogue traders. The following quotation shows how much people value of this work: “We
would like to extend our special thanks to you for your painstaking investigation and
work in locating the elusive traders which has resulted in this most satisfactory

Page 189



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

conclusion” — from a church in Gravesend which received £2,000 compensation after
rogue traders had tarmacced the driveway

Details about rogue traders and doorstep criminals are often provided by the community
wardens and the Community Safety Training Unit has provided awareness training to
over 9,500 people since 2006 about the dangers of bogus callers and ‘distraction’
burglary.

Increased prosecutions and other formal actions:

Prosecutions and other formal actions have increased during the course of the whole
Towards 2010 target period due to improved intelligence and targeting and increasing
expertise. The decision to prosecute is based on Trading Standards Enforcement Policy.

Disrupted activities of doorstep criminals with schemes such as ‘Cold Calling Control Zones’:

The first No Cold Calling Control Zone was set up in Cranbrook. Since then they have
been modified to Cold Calling Control Zones and now there are 12 in Kent. Where
intelligence has shown there has been a problem with doorstep callers Trading Standards
Officers have worked with local councils and CDRP’s providing advice to establish local
Cold Calling Control Zones. The scheme is proving to be popular at a local level and
once a zone has been set up the neighbouring community often wants one as well.

Helped to protect vulnerable people, for example the Community Safety Training Partnership
has provided awareness training to over 9,500 people since 2006, while a high profile ‘Loan
Sharks’ warning campaign was launched in March 2009:

We have strengthened our relationship with Kent Adult Social Services and the manager
of the County Duty Team has attended briefings to understand how to get vulnerable
people into the system. All our officers have been trained on how on how to deal with
vulnerable adults

We have looked at new and innovative ways of getting the message about doorstep
criminals across to vulnerable people, especially the elderly, and so in 2008 the first
doorstep crime awareness poster competition took place for primary school children.
Over 280 entries were received and the winning poster has been reproduced to appear in
doctors and dentist surgeries, libraries, banks, post offices, chemists, veterinary surgeons,
chiropodists and village halls. A quiz has been developed for secondary schools
‘Doorstep Crime — how to keep safe at home’ and we will continue in 2010

The Office of Fair Trading estimates that scams cost consumers in the UK an estimated
£3.5 billion per annum which would very roughly equate to £80m in Kent so this
continues to be an important part of our work. We are launching a new booklet ‘Smart
Guide to Scams’ which is aimed at alerting people to rogue trader activity and includes
details of how to deal with them and useful contacts. Working with Kent Adult Social
Services we have developed more links for people to receive alert messages and have
used them a number of times particularly when trying to deal with victims of mass
mailing scams.

Supported legitimate Kent businesses with initiatives such as the ‘Buy with Confidence’ fair
trader scheme:

Our good trader scheme is becoming more recognised as a result of an awareness
campaign which has included attendance at the County Show, 2020 Vision and Builder’s
Day at Folkestone Race Course. In addition, regular features in and on local media and a
dedicated website provide consumers and traders with information about the scheme.

We have 102 approved traders and the most popular hits on the website are for landscape

Page 190



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

and garden services, plumbing and heating, building maintenance, replacement windows
and mobility equipment suppliers

Help the Aged contacted us to find a suitable company to carry out work outside the
remit of the HandyVan service. They were so pleased with the work they wrote to thank
us and said the electrical contractor had carried out the work well and it was greatly
appreciated. The additional security systems had made a great deal of difference and
given peace of mind to the older people.

What more are we going to do?

We will continue to develop ways of increasing public awareness to the dangers of rogue
traders and doorstep criminals building on Trading Standards Alerts, education
initiatives and working with partners

In the next twelve months we will pay particular attention to loan sharks who not only
take advantage of vulnerable borrowers, but also bring disrepute to legitimate lenders.
We will be working with colleagues from the Birmingham-based team using their
experience and expertise to identify and disrupt the activity of loan sharks operating in
Kent. Trading Standards Officers will work in partnership with Kent Police. An initial
media campaign has already started using Heart Radio and adverts on the back of buses

This work will dovetail with the proposal for a Kent Credit Union and KCC’s policy on
financial inclusion (see also Towards 2010 targets 1, 2, and 9)

community organisations in Kent receiving |indicator
alerts about the activities of rogue traders*

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual | Target
Percentage increase in number of New 18% 20% 23% 25%

* Base number of organisations is 200

Monitoring completed by: Ian Treacher/Sue Edmunds

Page 191

Date: July 2009




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Target 62: Expand the Kent ‘HandyVan’ scheme, making the homes of older and
vulnerable people more secure.

Lead Cabinet Member: Lead Director: Lead Officer:
Mike Hill Amanda Honey Stuart Beaumont

Status: On course

List the partners with whom we are working to deliver this target:

KCC Community Safety, Kent Adult Social Services, Help the Aged, Kent Fire & Rescue
Service, Kent Police, Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnerships, district councils, Primary Care
Trusts (PCTs)

Outcomes delivered so far:

Expanded the HandyVan’s range of services to include additional safety items such as hand
rails and minor adaptations:

The HandyVan scheme provides improved home security to better protect against
burglary and reduce the fear of crime for vulnerable people. The scheme began in
November 2001 with four fitters and vans covering the whole of Kent and is funded by
the Community Safety Unit in partnership with Help the Aged

In August 2007 an additional HandyVan vehicle and fitter was introduced to focus in
areas of high burglary and/or fear of crime

The remit of the service has expanded with a wider range of services offered to make
homes more secure, including the installation of hand rails and minor adaptations

The HandyVan fitters not only install safety and security products but are also involved
in a variety of partnership events and campaigns across the county to provide
information to the public, raise awareness of the service, as well as promoting good
citizen focus and reducing crime and the fear of crime. A recent event was the ‘Safer
Autumn’ campaign run by Kent Police which included a week long campaign in an area
of Ashford. During the campaign the HandyVan worked alongside the Police to focus
on burglary reduction

KCC community wardens (see Towards 2010 target 57) play an integral role in the
HandyVan scheme by raising awareness in their communities and referring the names
and addresses of people in need of the service.

Helped older people feel safer in their homes. This has been a tremendous success with 89% of
clients feeling very safe after receiving the HandyVan service compared to just 10% beforehand
(based on a sample size of 1,079 clients between April 2006 and March 2009):

Since 2006/07 over 7,700 safety checks have been made and in excess of 24,000 security
or safety products installed helping to reduce the fear of crime, the risk of being a victim
and improving the general safety of the homes of vulnerable people

The HandyVan service can improve people’s quality of life including one client who
wrote to thank the HandyVan fitter for the inspection and installation of safety and
security products and “for making such a difference to my peace of mind and well-
being”

The fifth HandyVan has been targeted in the north Kent area since August 2007 and
following a number of initiatives and a partnership focused approach domestic burglary

Page 192




TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

in Gravesham reduced by 40% between 2006/07 and 2007/08 and continued to decrease
in 2008/09 by 3.5%

e In addition, there has been a huge perceptional change in the percentage of residents who
are worried about being burgled in Gravesham which has decreased from 70% at the end
0f 2006/07 to 45% at the end of 2008/09.

Worked more closely with other agencies and partners such as Kent Fire & Rescue, Primary
Care Trusts and Kent Adult Social Services to extend the reach of the service:

e A steering group was established, consisting of key partners from KCC, Help the Aged,
Kent Police, Kent Fire & Rescue, district councils and other partners with the aim of
ensuring maximum use/efficiency of the whole service

e The HandyVan service works closely with the borough councils in north Kent providing
awareness training to council staff about the service as well as working in partnership to
focus their efforts in the areas of greatest need

e Discussions with the PCT and Kent Adult Social Services have identified opportunities
to link HandyVan with hospital discharges, occupational therapy and social service
referrals. These links are provided in a number of ways including leaflet/poster
campaign, warden and other KCC/PCT officer home visits and advertisements in
relevant publications

e Help the Aged has explored with the Kent and Medway domestic violence co-ordinator
how the service could engage with domestic abuse sanctuary schemes and discussions
have taken place with local authorities. Most districts have referral mechanisms run by
the local housing departments and local domestic abuse police officers (see also Towards
2010 target 58)

e During 2008/09, the number of self-referrals to the HandyVan service accounted for
35% of all referrals and the community wardens for 13% with the remainder coming
from a wide range partners. The community wardens consistently support this service
and by working in partnership with Help the Aged have helped the elderly and
vulnerable within their communities to remain safe and secure.

What more are we going to do?
e Hold multi-agency promotional safety weeks in each of the districts building on the

success of the two campaigns undertaken in the Ashford area in 2008/09

e Deliver a countywide advertising campaign in various publications both internally and
externally

e Publish promotional material including pop-up banners which will be circulated around
KCC and partner premises during the year

e Deliver ‘Operation Castle’, an autumn campaign in 2009, focusing on vulnerable
individuals. The Community Safety Unit is co-ordinating information/data sharing
between Kent Adult Social Services and Kent Fire and Rescue Service.

Measurable Indicator (s) 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 |2008/09 | 2009/10
Actual | Actual | Target | Actual Target

Number of safety checks completed by 2,401 4,769* 8,101 7,765% 10,801
the HandyVan service (cumulative
since 2006/07)

* The changing focus of the service resulted in less checks than forecast as more time is now spent
at each location to make people feel safe (borne out by the survey results, described above)

Page 193



TOWARDS 2010 - ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Monitoring completed by: Stuart Beaumont Date: July 2009

END

Page 194



Agenda ltem 9

By: Kevin Lynes, Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economic
Development
Nick Chard, Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways and
Waste
Tanya Oliver, Director of Strategic Development and Public
Access

To: Council -15 October 2009

Subject: Local Act for amendment of Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 —
The Kent County Council (Filming on Highways) Bill

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: This report sets out the case for the promotion of a Private Bill to

enable road closures for filming in Kent

Introduction

1

Since its launch in 2006, the Kent Film Office has been responsible for
attracting over £13 million into the local economy through filming within the
county.

The Kent Film Office regularly receives requests to close roads for the purpose
of filming on the highways and to alleviate the effect of modern traffic noise on
period productions. Currently, Kent Police does not support road closures or
traffic regulation for filming using the provisions of the Road Traffic Regulation
Act 1984 (“RTRA”), which is the legislation governing temporary road closures
for “relevant events”.

At present, therefore, filming on Kent’'s roads is usually achieved by production
companies either:

(i) hiring off-duty police officers to hold traffic for a limited amount
of time during takes; or

(i) persuading local district or borough councils to put in place a
temporary road closure for filming based on the Town Police Clauses
Act 1847 (“TCPA”).

Both options are not without problems. For example, when holding traffic, police
can only request that drivers stop but cannot legally require them to do so. If a
driver asks to be let through they must be allowed to do so, thus interrupting
the flow of filming, which can be very costly. These scenarios also have health
and safety implications, in that traffic is passing through areas occupied by
workers concentrating on their tasks and not the traffic flow. Passing traffic is
also distracted by filming activity and thus potential for accidents is increased.

The TCPA has only been used by some district and borough councils and only
in exceptional cases as they consider doing so makes them vulnerable to a
legal challenge. In addition, Kent Police are not supportive of temporary road
closures for filming under the TCPA. Accordingly, only requests for filming with
virtually no impact on the highway are currently being allowed.

Page 195



10

11

As explained above, Kent Police does not support temporary highway closures
under the RTRA either. The RTRA provides for the closure of roads for
“relevant events”, which are defined as “any sporting event, social event or
entertainment which is held on a road”. There is considerable uncertainty in
respect of whether filming falls within this definition and there is therefore a risk
of challenge if powers under this section were exercised for the purpose of
closing roads for filming.

There are further restrictions in that an order under the RTRA may only remain
in force for a maximum of three days (unless before the order is made, the
Secretary of State has agreed that it should continue for a longer period) and
an order may only be made for a specific road or part of such a road once per
year. This restriction is not limited to closing the road for a particular purpose
and it therefore prevents a road being closed for any other purpose in that year.
As this will include, for example, community events, local communities are often
reluctant to agree to road closures for filming in prime locations.

The potential financial advantages of being able to close roads for filming are
considerable. This year a road closure was implemented for filming in Chilham.
It is estimated that this brought in approximately £64,000 in direct spend during
the week that they filmed there.

The Kent Film Office has lost major filming projects due to the inability to close
roads for lack of police or district agreement, in particular period films where
modern traffic presents obvious complications.

Districts which allow road closures under the existing TPCA powers, such as
Thanet, Canterbury and Ashford, see proportionally higher levels of filming
activity than those that do not support this. KCC currently has no powers at
local level with regard to these decisions.

The London Local Authorities and Transport for London Act 2008 (“LLATLA”)
contains provisions that amend the RTRA in order to facilitate the closure of
highways in London for filming purposes. In summary these provisions:

(a) define filming as a “relevant event”;

(b) lengthen the maximum time that a road may be closed for filming
from three to seven days; and

(c) increase the number of times that a particular road may be
closed in any one year (from once per year to up to six times per year).

Procedural Matters

12

13

The County Council has sought the advice of Parliamentary Agents who have
produced a draft Bill (a copy of which is annexed to this report), and which is
currently subject to consultation. The draft Bill contains similar provisions to
those outlined in the LLATLA above, together with an additional provision which
will confer upon the County Council the power to authorise any person making
a film to temporarily place objects on the highway.

In order to promote the Bill, KCC must comply with the provisions of section
239 of the Local Government Act 1972. Primarily, KCC must pass the
necessary resolutions. The first resolution (to be given at the 15 October 2009
Council meeting) confirms that KCC considers it expedient to promote the Bill.
The second resolution (to be given at a later meeting) confirms the first
resolution and the deposit of the Bill in Parliament.

Page 196



14

The procedure to be followed is as follows:

a — The County Council meeting on 15 October 2009 will consider approval for
pursuing the Bill. A full majority of the whole County Council will be required to
pursue the Bill. A majority of those present and voting is not sufficient.

b — If the first resolution is made at the 15 October 2009 meeting, the Bill is to
be deposited in Parliament by 27 November 2009. If it is not deposited by this
date, KCC will have to wait until 27 November 2010 to deposit the Bill. This is
because private Bills can only be deposited once a year, on or before the 27
November.

¢ — A second County Council resolution must also be confirmed by a majority at
a further meeting convened and held not earlier than 14 days after the deposit
of the Bill, confirming that the Council wishes to proceed.

d - There will be various stages of the Bill through Parliament which will be
facilitated by our Parliamentary Agents. If successful, it is likely to be enacted
by Spring 2011.

Report Structure

15

The decision to deposit the Bill with Parliament is within the authority of the
County Council. This report sets out the need case for road closures for filming
in Kent and how this will be accomplished by the promotion of the Bill (rather
than by other means) to inform the meeting of the full County Council on 15
October 2009.

Policy Framework

16

17

18

19

The Bill will enable the Kent Film Office to continue its progress to raise the
profile of the county as a major venue for film, television and the wider creative
industries and benefit the Kent economy as set out in Target 8 of the Towards
2010 document. The powers under the Bill, if enacted, will offer legal certainty
to Kent County Council in respect of authorising road closures for filming and
would enable the Kent Film Office to work within the protection of the law.

Economically, it would put Kent in a unique position as the only UK region
outside London with these powers. This would make Kent extremely
competitive with the capital and indeed other parts of Europe, where such
legislation also exists.

It would also help to deliver Priority One of the Kent Film and Television
Strategy: “The Film Office is critical to delivering the Kent Film Strategy. It will
build on its recent successes across a broad spectrum of activity in establishing
internal and external mechanisms that will provide effective support, information
and advice to the film and television industry. Actions include:

o Delivering the economic potential of the film and television industry into
Kent increasing the number and the scale of film productions in the
county.

¢ Examining and exploiting the prospects of income generation through
the Kent Film Office.”

The Bill would facilitate the Kent Film Office not only to attract more filming into
the county, but also to offer the county to more high level — high impact filming.

Page 197



20

The Bill will also have implications for other events, as it will enable roads to be
closed more than once in a year. This will allow for large scale events, such as
the Tour de France, to take place on the same length of road within the same
year. This means all sporting and community events will benefit from the Bill
and might even offer further opportunities for Kent’s role in the 2012 Olympics.

Implications

21

22

23

Financial - Costs for the Bill will be paid by KCC. This includes the
parliamentary agents’ fees and disbursements. It is expected that these will be
recouped through filming spend into the county, as well as spend around other
large scale events indirectly made possible through this Bill. The costs of
obtaining the Bill are estimated to be £58,000. Costs incurred by road closures
will be recouped directly from the production companies requesting the road
closure. This may include costs for implementing diversions, signage and staff
time.

Legal — The Bill will lead to a change in legislation which will be applicable
within the Kent County Council administrative area only.

Reputation — A framework for granting road closures has already been
prepared and partially set out within the A-Z Filming Guidelines under the Kent
Filming Partnership. Road closures will be granted in close consultation with
Kent Highway Services, Kent Police and other emergency services. Production
companies will be obliged to cover costs, provide risk assessments, consult
with local residents and businesses and put in place procedures for
emergencies before a film order permitting closure of a road is granted.

Consultations

24.

25
26

There has been internal consultation with officers from Kent Highway Services
in respect of both the principle and the provisions of the draft Bill. External
consultation with Kent Police, the district Councils, statutory undertakers, Royal
Mail and the AA and RAC commenced on 1 August and ran for a period of one
month.

Details of the consultation have been published on the County Council website.

Consultation with Government Departments and Kent Members of Parliament is
being carried out by the Parliamentary Agents.

Conclusion

27

28

At its meeting on 14 September, Cabinet agreed to support the
recommendations to enable the Kent Film Office to proceed with the Bill to
close roads for the purpose of filming, subject to the approval of the County
Council Once the Bill is enacted by Parliament, it will make Kent unique as the
only county in the UK where filming in the highway is permitted in this way. This
will potentially attract more high level filming to the county and increase the
amount of direct spend from filming, which directly benefits residents and
businesses in Kent.

Other options considered were:

A - to continue to close roads either by stop/go method or via districts under the
TCPA . However, this method relies on the co-operation of the districts and/or
Kent Police. In the past the Kent Film Office has lost major filming projects
because it was unable to close roads.

Page 198



B - to ask other councils whether they would participate in the Bill. Whilst there
may be some economies of scale if additional councils were to proceed with the
same Bill as KCC, these would be outweighed by the loss of competitive
advantage from being the only council with these powers. In addition, there
would be potential for the Bill to be delayed if other councils were not able to
meet the prescriptive timetable for the submission of the Bill to Parliament and
there would be an increase in the risk of challenges, which may not be directly
relevant to the County Council.

Recommendations

29 The County Council is recommended to agree that:-:

1. The Council deposits the Kent County Council (Filming on Highways)
Bill to confer powers in relation to filming on highways and for related
purposes.

2. The Council authorises the Chief Executive, in consultation with the

Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economic Development and the
Cabinet Member for Environment Highways and Waste to address
procedural matters that may arise in relation to the promotion of the Bill
and to enter into undertakings or commitments in relation to it.

3. The Council authorises the Director of Strategic Development and
Public Access to agree to the making of any amendments to the Bill that
may arise during the course of the promotion of the Bill.

Background Documents:
1- London Local Authorities and Transport for London Act 2008

2 — The Draft Kent County Council Filming on Highways Bill

Other Useful Information:
Kent Film and Television Strategy

Kent Filming Partnership Agreement

Author Contact Details
Tanya Oliver, Director of Strategic Development and Public Access

< tanya.oliver@kent.gov.uk 201622 694817

Sarah Baxter-Rose, Solicitor

< sarah.baxter-rose@kent.gov.uk &: 01622 694399

Page 199




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 200



Kent County Council (Filming on Highways) Bill

EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM
This Act provides Kent County Council with powers in in relation to filming on highways.
Clause 1 deals with citation.

Clause 2 sets out definitions of certain expressions used in the Act. It defines "Council" as
Kent County Council, and that expression will be used in this Explanatory Memorandum.

Clause 3 enables the Council, by order or by notice, to prohibit or restrict traffic on roads for
the purpose of enabling the making of a film to take place. It also enables closures for the
purpose of enabling members of the public to watch the making of a film or to reduce the
disruption to traffic likely to be caused by the making of a film. The clause modifies section
16A of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 which provides powers to traffic authorities to
close roads for the purpose of special events, such as cycle races. Notices can be issued to
enable the immediate prohibition or restriction of traffic if it appears to the Council that the
prohibition or restriction should be imposed without delay.

By altering the application of section 16B of the 1984 Act, Clause 4 sets out restrictions
which would apply to orders made and notices given for film making purposes. An order
under Clause 3 may not remain in force for longer than 7 days whilst a notice under that
clause may not continue in force for a period of more than 24 hours. The 1984 Act applies so
as to enable the Secretary of State to direct that orders may continue in force for longer than 3
days. Section 16B is also altered so as to prevent any more than 6 orders being made in one
calendar year as regards any stretch of road.

[Clause 5 enables the Council to grant permission to any person making a film to place
temporarily on the highway any object or thing required for the purposes of making a film.
The clause contains safeguards for statutory undertakers.]

EUROPEAN CONVENTION ON HUMAN RIGHTS

In the view of the Council the provisions of the Kent County Council (Filming on Highways)
Bill are compatible with the Convention Rights.

6186398.01

Page 201



Kent County Council (Filming on Highways) Bill

A

BILL

To confer powers on Kent County Council in relation to filming on highways; and for related
purposes

SessioN 2009-10

BIRCHAM DYSON BELL LLP

50 Broadway
London SW1H 0BL
Solicitors and Parliamentary Agents

G186398.01

Page 202



Kent County Council (Filming on Highways) Bill

(W IS X 35 S0 REL

5186358.01

CONTENTS

Citation

Interpretation

Prohibition or restriction on roads in connection with filming
Restrictions on orders and notices

Power to place objects in highways

Page 203



10

I5

20

25

4 Kent County Council (Filming on Highways) Bill

A

BILL

To confer powers on Kent County Council in relation to filming on highways; and for related
purposes

HEREAS—

(1) 1t is expedient that the powers of Kent County Council (hereinafter referred to as “the
Council”) should be extended and amended as provided in this Act:

(2) It is expedient that provision be made in relation to filming on highways in Kent:
(3) [Itis expedient that the other provisions contained in this Act should be enacted:]
(4) The purposes of this Act cannot be effected without the authority of Parliament:

(5) In relation to the promotion of this Act the Council has complied with the
requirements of section 239 of the Local Government Act 1972 (c. 70):

May it therefore please your Majesty that it may be enacted, and be it enacted, by the
Queen’s Most Excellent Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the Lords Spiritual
and Temporal, and Commons, in this present Parliament assembled, and by the authority of
the same, as follows:—

1 Citation
This Act may be cited as the Kent County Council (Filming on Highways) Act 2010.

2 Interpretation
| In this Act—
“the 1984 Act” means the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 {(c. 27); and

“the Council” means Kent County Council.

6156398.01

Page 204



10

15

20

25

30

35

Kent County Council (Filming on Highways) Bill

618639801

Prohibition or restriction on roads ir connection with filming

(1) Section 16A of the 1984 Act (prohibition or restriction on roads in connection
with certain events) shall apply to the Council with the following modifications.

(2) The expressions “relevant event” and “the holding of a relevant event” include
the making of a film.

(3) After subsection (2), the following subsection is inserted—

“(2A) The traffic authority for a road may at any time by notice restrict or
prohibit temporarily the use of the road, or any part of it, by vehicles, or
vehicles of any class, or by pedestrians, where it appears to them that it is
expedient for the making of a film and that the restriction or prohibition
should come into force without delay.”
(4) The references, in subsections (3) and (5) to (10), to an order under section 16A
include references to a notice under subsection (2A) of that section, as inserted by
subsection (3) above, and references to the making of such an order include
references to the issuing of such a notice.

Restrictions on orders and notices

(1) Section 16B of the 1984 Act (restrictions on orders under section 16A) shall
apply in the county of Kent with the following modifications.

(2) In subsection (1) after the words “three days” the words “(or seven days, in the
case of a film order)” are inserted.

(3) In subsection (6) the words “Subject to subsection (6A),” are inserted at the
beginning.
(4) After subsection (6), the following subsections are inserted—

“(6A) No more than 6 film orders may be made under section 16A in any calendar
year so as to affect any length of road, unless a further film order—

(a) is made by the Secretary of State as the traffic authority for the road concerned,;
or

(b) is made with his consent.

(6B) No film notice shall continue in force for more than 24 hours from the time at
which it comes into effect.

(6C) In this section, “film orders™ and “film notices” are orders and notices under
section 16A of this Act which are made or issued in relation to the making of a

film.”.

(5) In subsection (7), for “subsection (6j” there 1s substituted “subsections (6) and
{(6A)”.

Page 205

5



10

15

20

25

30

Kent County Council (Filming on Highways) Bill

[Power to place objects on highways

(1)  Subject to the provisions of this section, the Council, as highway authority,
may grant permission for any person making a film to place temporarily on the
highway any object or thing required for the purposes of making a film.

(2) A person making a film shall not, in pursuance of a grant of permission under
this section, place any object or thing on a bridge over a railway, or under a bridge
carrying a railway over a highway or a public open space, or within four metres of
the abutments of a bridge carrying a railway over a highway or a public open space,
except with the consent of the railway undertakers concerned.

(3) In exercising their functions under this section the Council —

(a) shall take steps to prevent, so far as reasonably practicable, interference with
vehicular and pedestrian traffic using the highway; and

(b) shall not grant any permission which would have the effect of obstructing or
rendering less convenient—

(1) the access to or exit from premises belonging to canal, inland
navigation, dock, harbour, tramway, or statutory undertakers, or persons
authorised by any enactment to carry out on any other public
undertaking; or

(i) the use by those undertakers or persons of such premises for the
purposes of their undertaking.

(4) In subsection (3) above, “statutory undertakers” means any of the following—

(a) a licence holder within the meaning of Part 1 of the Electricity Act 1989 (c.
29); '

(b) apublic gas supplier within the meaning of Part 1 of the Gas Act 1986 (c. 44);
(c)  awater undertaker within the meaning of the Water Industry Act 1991 (c. 56);

(d)  asewerage undertaker within Part 1 of the said Act of 1991;
(e) alocal authority which is a relevant authority for the purposes of section 97 of
the said Act of 1991.]

6186398.01

Page 206



Agenda Item 10

By: Graham Gibbens, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Services
Mike Angell, Older People’s Champion

To: County Council - 15" October 2009

Subject: Kent's Policy Framework for Later Life

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary To ask County Council formally to adopt Kent's Policy

Framework for Later Life - Living Later Life to the Full — in
the light of discussions at Cabinet and the Policy Overview
Committees.

1. Introduction

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Vision for Kent identifies seven key challenges, of which the ageing
population is one. Demographic changes in Kent (and most of Western
Europe) bring enormous opportunities as well as significant challenges. Older
people are often the volunteers, carers, mentors and activists that provide the
backbone of communities and Kent will benefit from having proportionately
more of these people. In late 2007 Kent County Council ran a series of
workshops with older citizens and partners to establish what people thought
were the key issues and concerns relating to later life which needed action.
This resulted in an embryonic Strategy for Later Life (February 2008) which
has been further consulted upon. ASSPOC has taken the lead within the
County Council on this work although the issues are far broader than social
care and health, encompassing transport, leisure, housing, community safety
and community planning and design.

Although KCC has initiated and driven this work, only by working in
partnership across organisations in Kent can real improvements be made to
the lives of older people. From the start, therefore, the Later Life work has
been undertaken in partnership. Within the Kent Partnership, the Public
Health Board agreed to take the lead, but recognised that the issues relating
to older people cut across all the Kent Partnership Boards.

The Policy Framework (which will continue to evolve) is the result of these
discussions and conferences. It represents the aspirations set out by those
older people who contributed to the consultation, and the representatives of
partner organisations, as well as KCC Members. On 10" February the Kent
Partnership endorsed the Policy Framework, subject to it being considered by
individual organisations, and asked that reports should be brought back in a
year on the action that would be taken to achieve the aspirations set out in the
Framework. Annex 1 summarises the priorities in the Framework, the full

Page 207



1.4

2.

document is at Annex 2 and KCC'’s action plan to deliver the aspirations set
out in the Policy Framework is at Annex 3.

Cabinet considered the Framework on 30™ March and asked that all the July
Policy Overview Committees consider what they will do to deliver it. Within
KCC, the Later Life work is a strand of the Regeneration Framework, linking
closely with the other strategies and in part being delivered through them.

Discussions at the Policy Overview Committees (POCs)

2.1 Without exception, discussion at the POCs was animated not only because of the
importance of the agenda but also because Members were excited by the cross-
cutting nature of the issues. They enthusiastically supported the Policy
Framework, evidently finding it a stimulating document. The main points to
emerge in discussion were:

If we get things right for older people we often get them right for everyone.
The transformations KCC has made in accessing services and advice benefit
all our citizens, including (indeed arguably especially) those in their later years.
So Gateways, the 24 hour phone line, interactive websites and Kent TV have
all had an impact.

People want seamless services and the financial squeeze ahead makes it
imperative that we look to combine and integrate services in a way that
improves the customer experience whilst also delivering efficiency savings.
The wide range of actions listed in the lengthy KCC action plan demonstrate
the breadth of projects and activity already underway. However we need to
distil out the most critical projects to be delivered over the next year, and
ensure that the MTP and business planning process reflects those priorities.
Transport had been identified during the consultation as high priority for action,
and Members reinforced the importance of this, particularly for non-drivers and
particularly (but not exclusively) in rural areas. The Integrated Transport
Strategy is taking account of the issues raised by older people. Promoting
voluntary transport schemes and making better use of the many mini-buses
and vehicles used by the voluntary sector was mentioned several times by
Members.

Intergenerational activity was a major theme at every POC and Members gave
many examples of innovative small-scale projects. It was agreed that specific
work should be done on identifying and sharing good practice.

The importance of supporting communities and individuals to take
responsibility for themselves and their families and neighbours was
highlighted. The voluntary and community sector is vital, but it's not only about
formal volunteering but being a ‘good neighbour and creating cohesive
communities where people are not socially isolated unless they want to be.
Members gave several examples of local projects that achieved these sorts of
aims, and again there was interest in spreading good practice.

How do we measure the impact this activity is having in terms of improving
outcomes for older people? We should see an improvement in indicators of
wellbeing amongst older people over time, and it is important to monitor that.

Page 208



3.1

3.2

3.3

Next Steps

The Framework looks at how older people want to live their lives, and is
deliberately aspirational and positive, emphasising the benefits that the ageing
population brings, and promoting a positive image of old age because this was
an important message from the consultation. It sets out the overarching
ambitions that KCC and its partners have in improving the quality of life for
older people. It will play an important role in ensuring that there is an ongoing
focus on preventative activities that will enable people to live their later lives to
the full. Work is now going on across KCC directorates with Districts &
Boroughs, Health, Police and Fire & Rescue and the voluntary sector to map
out activities already underway which support these priorities and targets. This
will enable us to more effectively publicise the examples of excellence already
underway, or planned, of which people may not be aware. This process will
also enable us to see if there are any gaps in current service provision and
decide whether further action should be taken.

The Regeneration Framework has a chapter entitled ‘Embracing a Growing
and Ageing Population’ which identifies a number of actions that KCC wish to
promote. These all fall within the strategic framework set out within the Policy
Framework for Later Life. The ensuing mapping exercise and streamlined
action plan will therefore provide a vehicle for taking this element of the
Regeneration Framework forward.

It is important that by creating a Policy Framework for Later Life we do not
establish a new ‘silo’ for older people but build consideration of older people’s
interests into the planning of existing services, organisations and partnerships.
All aspects of public service and policy development should take account of
the interests of all generations. Younger people need to prepare for their
futures and everyone should be encouraged to plan for their later lives,
whatever their age.

4. Recommendations

In view of the positive reception at the Policy Overview Committees, the County
Council is asked to ADOPT Kent’s Policy Framework for Later Life

Debra Exall Tim Woolmer
Head of Strategic Policy Policy Officer
Ext 1984 Ext 4414

Page 209




ANNEX 1

1) To ensure communities are designed to be ‘age proof’, stronger, safer and

sustainable, by:

e Working with developers to make sure that new developments are designed to be
sustainable and age-proof.

e Actively tackling housing disrepair and supporting older people in maintaining and
adapting their own homes.

e Developing and designing existing communities to be more “age friendly”, in respect both
of physical infrastructure and social inclusion

e Helping older people feel safe and secure within their own homes and community

e Preparing for changes in the environment and climate-proofing communities to make them
sustainable for the future

2) To improve transport and accessibility, by:

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

e Increasing transport options for older people, including services for those who are
disabled or live in rural areas.

e Making people more aware of the transport options already available to them

To enable older people to lead healthier lives and have better access to
healthcare, by:

Focussing on the prevention of health problems

Enabling the older people of Kent to participate in regular exercise and live an active life
Developing better integrated health and social care services

Assisting people to manage their own health and independence in order to keep living in
the community for a long as possible

To support older people’s citizenship, learning and participation in
community life, by:
e Encouraging older people’s participation and inclusion in community activity, raising social
capital
e Ensuring older people have a voice and are able to exert their influence over policy
making
e Enabling older people to have the opportunity and ability to participate in life-long learning
e Making sure older people in Kent have employment opportunities if they want them.
e Helping older people have access to new technology as well as the ability to use it

To ensure those older people who need support to live independently have
choice, control and good quality care, by:

e Ensuring service provision is based upon a person centred approach

e Working to remove the barriers that can impair the quality of older people’s lives

e Making sure individuals have access to ‘joined up’ information when they need it

e Supporting carers in having a life apart from caring

To encourage people to plan for a secure later life, by:

¢ Making older people in Kent more aware of the services and support available including
access to financial information and advice.

e Reducing fuel poverty by increasing the take-up of energy saving initiatives and increasing
awareness of affordable warmth.

e Improving the economic well-being of older people within Kent

To promote a positive image of later life and dignity and respect for older
people, by:
¢ Promoting the value of later life and changing attitudes towards older members of society
e Encouraging inter-generational activities and community cohesion

Page 210



Living Later Life to the Full

A Policy Framework for Later Life

Page 211



May 2009

Contents

Introduction 3
Priority 1 - To ensure communities are designed to be “age proof’, 6
stronger, safer and sustainable

Priority 2 - To improve transport and accessibility 11
Priority 3 - To enable people to lead healthier lives and have better 14
access to healthcare

Priority 4 - To support people’s citizenship, learning and participation 18
in community life.

Priority 5 - To ensure those people who need support to live 24
independently have choice, control and good quality care

Priority 6 - To encourage people to plan for a secure later life. 29
Priority 7 - To promote a positive image of later life and dignity and 32
respect for older people.

Appendix 1 — Who are the older people of Kent? 34
Appendix 2 - Strategic Context 37
Appendix 3 - Background Papers 40
Appendix 4 - Glossary of Terms 41

Page 212



Introduction

The people of Kent are living longer, healthier lives than ever before. This brings huge
opportunities because it is often in people’s later years that they have the time to get
involved in community life. This is also a time when they have built up a wealth of
knowledge and life-experience from which younger people can benefit. We need to
design Kent’'s communities and service provision in a way that encourages social
interaction both within and between the generations, enables people to lead the lives they
want as well as make a full contribution to society.

This Policy Framework, Living Later Life to the Full, sets out how people in Kent want to
live their later lives and what they want from public and community services and facilities.
It is based upon widespread consultation over 18 months, involving discussions with Kent
residents, the voluntary and community sector, representatives of black and minority
ethnic communities, residential and domiciliary care providers, Health, Police, Fire and
local government. People were asked what they wanted to see in a Strategy for Later Life
and what they think currently works well. The Policy Framework has built on the Vision for
Kent (Kent's Community Strategy), taking the themes identified there and scrutinising them
from the perspective of older people. It is also informed by research from elsewhere,
including the World Health Organisation’s work on Global Age-friendly Cities, and the work
of the Better Government for Older People Network.

In writing this Policy Framework, we have struggled with the definition of an “older person”
for two reasons. Firstly, identifying when someone becomes “old” is highly subjective. The
concept of age is very tricky; some people will never feel old, to others an older person is
always someone 20 years older than they are now, and others will feel ‘old’ relatively early
in life. Secondly, in this country there are negative connotations to being an “old person”
(frail, dependent, out of touch) rather than the much more positive view taken in some
cultures of their “elders” (wise, experienced, balanced). We want this Policy Framework to
celebrate the virtues of old age, as well as acknowledging the challenges and losses that it
brings, and to promote a positive image of older people. There was no consensus in the
consultation over the best way to describe older people, and for the most part we all
concluded that it was better to talk about “people”. The Government focuses on the 50+
population in its guidance for older people’s strategies, because of the importance of
preparing for later life, so the statistical analysis upon which some of the Policy Framework
is based looks at population data from age 50. But only the very young would regard
people in their 50’s as being “older people”, so we have tried to avoid using chronological
age where we can. After all, apart from when people are very ill, their fundamental
interests and desires don’t actually change that much as they grow older. People enjoy
doing the same sort of things, within reason, throughout their lives if they can. Generally, it
is only in the last 18 months or so of life that people need very intensive support and care,
and it is vital that, collectively, we organise services so that this is provided in a way that
best meets people’s needs at that critical time. This Strategy does cover such issues, but it
mostly focuses on how to make people’s later lives happy, fulfilled and productive.

People said to us that they didn’t think another detailed strategy document was needed,
and indeed we have many plans in Kent already, some of them specifically targeted at

Page 213



older people. This Policy Framework is therefore an over-arching summary of the strategic
issues that are important to Kent residents, developed collectively. From the themes
identified in the consultations, seven key priorities have been developed to reflect the
issues and concerns that are important to the older people of Kent. These are numbered
for easy reference, but the order is not significant — all are important:

1. To ensure communities are designed to be “age proof”, stronger, safer and
sustainable

To improve transport and accessibility

To enable people to lead healthier lives and have better access to healthcare.

To support people’s citizenship, learning and participation in community life.

O A WD

To ensure those people who need support to live independently have choice,
control and good quality care
6. To encourage people to plan for a secure later life.

7. To promote a positive image of later life and dignity and respect for older people.

Key strategic targets have been drawn up under each of these priorities, and are set out in
this Policy Framework. A mapping process is now underway to identify and collate all the
action public services in Kent are undertaking and planning for older people. This will
publicise the excellent projects already in existence which people may not be aware of,
and will also highlight key areas that require strategic and collective actions for the future.
A detailed collective action plan will be drawn up, based on the mapping, and will be
publicly available in June 2009. This action plan will enable residents to hold agencies to
account for delivering improvements in relation to the issues they have highlighted, and
ensure that the ambitions in this Policy Framework get translated into outcomes.

Another significant change since the consultation began is that the formal mechanisms for
feeding people’s views into the decision-making processes have been strengthened
through raising the profile and influence of Older People’s Champions.

Throughout the consultation, officers were clear that there would not be additional
resources available to implement this strategy, and the economic climate may well result in
an overall reduction of resources to the public sector as a whole over the medium term.
But the public sector will still control vast sums of money and the Policy Framework is
about ensuring that older people’s needs and views influence how resources are utilised.
Also, of course, not all the changes people want to see will require money. The action plan
resulting from the mapping exercise will set out planned changes and the timescale within
which they will happen. The actions will also vary across Kent according to local
circumstances, needs and priorities.

Page 214



The aim of Kent's Policy Framework for Later Life is therefore to focus attention on the
strategic objectives which will enable us as a county to embrace the demographic changes
we face, make the most of the opportunities which this brings, and be prepared to address
the challenges too. Much of what is contained in this document is already well understood,
and much is already happening, but this is the first time that public services in Kent have
combined to agree the strategic action needed in relation to older people. The priorities
and strategic objectives have been designed for and developed by older people in Kent
and provide a framework against which we, collectively, will shape the future of public
services.

We are very keen to continue the discussion with Kent residents about priorities, strategic
targets and specific actions. If you want to comment on this document or contribute to the
development of the action plan, contact details are provided on page 33.

A Special Thanks...

We would like to use this opportunity to thank everyone who has
contributed to and continues to contribute to the work we are doing. We
value the time and effort you have invested in helping us take this policy
framework forward and the ideas and suggestions you have given us.
We would particularly like to thank members of the editorial panel,
consultation groups, older people’s forums and the officers who have
put so much work into this strategy.

Page 215



Priority 1: To ensure communities are designed to be “age proof”,
stronger, safer and sustainable

Towns and cities should be designed with all residents in mind. There is much to learn
from the World Health Organisation and those other countries, particularly Scandinavia
and the USA, who are ahead of the UK on this. Improving community well being and the
quality of living is a key theme in the “Vision for Kent'. Making sure our communities are
stronger and safer benefits everyone; however, it is particularly important for older and
more vulnerable adults.

"Design for the young and you exclude the old; design for the old and you include the
young." Bernard Isaacs, founding Director of the Birmingham Centre for Applied Gerontology

Decent Homes

Planning for future housing needs is particularly important in view of the ageing population.
For frail older people, the nature of their housing can have a significant impact on their
degree of independence and therefore quality of life. In particular, there is a strong like
between poor housing condition and poor health. Tackling housing issues can therefore
have a dramatic impact on people’s health and well-being. Adapting a person’s existing
property to make it more suitable for them can be hugely expensive, both for the individual
and for the state. Planning ahead and making sure that a substantial proportion of new
housing is built to ‘lifetime homes’ standard is therefore very important.

It is also important that there is a range of housing options that older people can select
from as their circumstances change. The five year aim of the national report, ‘Lifetime
homes, Lifetime Neighbourhoods’ is that “there will be more mainstream and specialist
homes of the right type in the right location’ for older people”. A key issue is to ensure that
older people have choice. This includes the choice to move into extra-care housing. Many
older people may end up on their own in a large property much too big for their needs,
leading to high heating and maintenance costs, which they may not be able to afford.
While many older people want to remain in a home that contains memories and has room
for friends and relatives to visit, they need to be made aware that there are other options
available. For older people who are asset rich, but cash poor, it is also essential we help
find solutions, such as equity release, that benefit the individual.

Home Improvement Agencies

The role of Home Improvement Agencies (HIAs) is vital. People generally wish to stay in
their own homes as they get older but often need help to repair or adapt it in their later life.
In the consultation, home owners discussed concerns about ‘cowboy’ builders and rogue
traders carrying out home maintenance. While Trading Standards have an important role
in tackling rogue traders, people also wanted more information about accredited
companies and better awareness of the schemes promoted by the Kent Housing Group
which include the ten HIAs across the county. HIAs offer practical support and advice to
enable older people to make necessary adaptations and modifications to their homes that
they might not otherwise have been able to make without assistance. Through improving
people’s living conditions, HIA’s help to enhance quality of life and enable people to
remain in their own home in greater comfort and security as part of the local community.

Page 216




Safe Homes

The Kent Handyvan scheme is greatly valued by residents of Kent; people made the
connection between such services and feeling safer in their own homes both in terms of
accidents and crime. The Handyvan Scheme aims to reduce the risk of burglary by fitting
security equipment such as door chains and viewers, window locks and safety features
such as smoke and carbon monoxide detectors. Even by making small improvements
such as these, quality of life for people can be much improved. The Police and Fire and
Rescue Service are also very active in helping people feel safe and secure in their homes.
The Fire service offer free home fire safety checks, and the installation of smoke detectors
if required. They have also made older people a priority in their service delivery. Kent
Police run a number of initiatives to help older people feel safe and secure. This includes
‘nominated neighbour’ and ‘rogue trader’ schemes to help prevent distraction burglary and
‘Senior Watch’ an initiative that makes sure messages from the police and others get to
those who need to know. It is important that older people are aware that there is free help
available when looking to make their homes safer. We should look to build on and
publicise the good work the Police and Fire and Rescue Service are already doing.

Perceptions of crime

Older people in Kent as a group are less worried about crime and less likely to be victims
of crime than younger age groups, and crime was not a major theme to emerge during the
consultation. However, some people were scared to leave the house after dark, and had
experienced anti-social behaviour which had a devastating impact on them. We know from
national and local research that fear of crime can prevent people from accessing social
activities and can contribute towards the creation of social isolation and loneliness. It is
crucial that we prevent this from happening and promote initiatives to make people feel
safe and secure in their own homes and communities. The role of community wardens and
neighbourhood policing is important here as they do much to help people feel safe in the
community. Each neighbourhood now has named police community support officers to
report to on a very local level, and who work closely with community wardens. We should
be supportive of community policing programmes that help to reduce fear and reduce anti-
social behaviour.

Age-friendly Communities

Whole communities, not just the homes in which older people live, must be age-friendly.
This includes making sure that pavements are accessible and free from trip hazards, that
there are dropped kerbs to allow the use of mobility scooters, there are places for older
people to rest and that there is a pleasant and clean environment. For older people, the
fear of falling is a major concern and if the neighbourhood is perceived to be hazardous,
this may lead to social isolation. Roads should also have adequate pedestrian crossings
with enough time for people to cross. Many older people expressed concerns that ‘green
man’ controlled crossings often did not give them enough time to cross the road, and that
drivers were too keen to drive through on an amber light, which suggests a need to
improve some drivers’ road safety awareness.

A key concern expressed was that of the need for better access to public toilets.

Incontinence can be a real problem and many people do not go out simply because there
are no public toilets in their local area. A report by Help the Aged, entitled ‘Nowhere to go’

Page 217



calls on local government to develop a toilet strategy to improve older people’s dignity,
health and well-being. It highlighted examples of older people who said that they simply
didn’t drink so that they would not need the toilet, or carried a jug out with them, just in
case. During the consultation for this Strategy, many said that disabled toilet access was
also a problem for them. While many shops and cafes now provide for disabled access,
often their toilets are not disability friendly, which makes the whole place inaccessible.
Action needs to be taken to ensure that there are more public toilets across Kent. These
should also provide disability access, with large cubicles and doors that are easy to open
to make it easier for older people to get out and about.

A broad range of activities geared for older people

To increase people’s participation in community life, social inclusion and the contribution
they make to society, communities need to have a broad range of activities geared
towards older people. It is essential that future participants are involved in the planning of
such activities. In some cases, older people themselves run activities specifically for older
people, for example, over 50s clubs, Pensioner Forums, the Active Retirement
Association, and so on. The World Health Organization’s work on Age-friendly Cities has
emphasised the importance of older people meeting with their peers and supporting each
other. But in addition to this, people also want to mix with different generations and have
social activities that are geared to all age groups. We must ensure that older people shape
and influence the development of community activities in general or there is a danger that
their particular interests, needs and expertise could be overlooked.

Growing old in a changing climate

When looking to ‘age-proof’ communities for the future, it is vital to examine what impact
changes in the climate could have for future generations. It is widely accepted that climate
change will lead to hotter, drier summers and stormier, wetter winters and this will have a
bigger impact on the more vulnerable members of our community. We should plan ahead
to keep people warm in the winter, and cool in the summer. This includes planning for
plenty of shady areas, good ventilation in homes and energy efficiency.

Key strategic targets
We will ensure that communities are ‘age proof’, stronger, safer and sustainable by;

= Working with architects, designers and developers to make sure that new
developments are designed to be sustainable and age-proof.

= Actively tackling housing disrepair and supporting older people in maintaining and
adapting their own homes.

= Developing and designing existing communities to be more “age friendly”, in respect
both of physical infrastructure and social inclusion

= Helping older people feel safe and secure within their own homes and community

= Preparing for changes in the environment and climate-proofing communities to
make them sustainable for the future

Page 218




What is already being done to...

...ensure communities are designed to be “age proof”, stronger, safer and
sustainable

HandyVan

The Handyvan scheme was set up to help older
and vulnerable people feel safer in their own
homes.

Many older people are concerned about crime,
burglary and anti-social behaviour. As a response
to this concern, KCC in partnership with Help the .
Aged, Kent Fire and Rescue Service and Kent m';;gifg';‘
Police, launched the HandyVan service in 2001.

The scheme was initially aimed at the over 60’s
on low income to help them feel safer in their own
homes by installing safety and security products
free of charge. The service operates on a referral
basis, with requests coming from the Crime and
Disorder Reduction Partnerships, the voluntary sector and clients themselves.

“We are writing to say how pleased we are with the work done by the Handyvan fitter. It
has given us peace of mind to know that our home is really secure, both when we are at
home and when we go out. We also have two new smoke alarms and everything was
carefully explained to us.”

Community Wardens

The Kent community Warden Scheme began with a band of 12 wardens in May 2002 as
part of a three-year pilot scheme. It delivered such early successes that numbers were
increased within six months and in March 2005, a new training centre — the first of its kind
in the UK — as opened to help bring the team of wardens up to 100. Community wardens
aim to help the people of Kent to live safely and independently in their neighbourhoods
and communities. They provide a visible uniformed presence to tackle anti-social
behaviour. Many wardens are regarded as the focal point for the communities they serve
and their mobile telephone number is accessible to them all. To date they have been
involved in over 38,000 activities, incidents, queries or interactions with the public, spend
71.3% of their time providing advice, reassurance, visits, surgeries or a visible presence in
their communities and were engaged with 28,986 instances of partnership working. 90% of
those surveyed who had dealings with a KCC community warden were satisfied with the
assistance they received.

“They are a trusted friend to our community” — Kent resident

Page 219




Case Study: Staying Put, Swale’s Home Improvement Agency

Mrs C was a 75-year-old lady living on her own. She was admitted to hospital after a heart
attack and prior to her discharge, her son had visited her property and realised the terrible
conditions Mrs C was living in. He contacted the Staying Put scheme for help.

Mrs C had lived in the property for 75 years and
had inherited it from her parents. As she only
received a small weekly pension, she found it
very hard to keep the house maintained and as
a result it had become unfit for human
habitation. In recent years, the family had only
been in the front room and had not realised the
deteriorating condition of the property. The
electrics were no longer working, there was no
bathroom, the property had considerable damp,
the roof was leaking and doors and windows were all rotten. Mrs C’s son decided she
would live with him until he could ensure her house was comfortable for her to live in.

Staying Put visited with a Technical Officer and a schedule of works was prepared.
Despite having had a heart attack, Mrs C was a very fit lady and could cope with stairs, so
it was decided that the bathroom would be relocated upstairs to replace the back
bedroom. Discussions were held with Mrs C to agree e

the work to be done, and decide (after receiving
estimates) on the contractor. Mrs C was very excited
about the prospect of Staying Put helping her with the
repairs and even tried to save money out of her
pension to buy other items to help. During the work,
several other issues were discovered. The back wall of
the property was only four and half-inch brick so had to
be upgraded, ceilings and floors had to be repaired and 4 ,:, -
the drains had to be renewed. The family got together 5 ﬁ o
and helped her with decorating the property.

When the work was completed Mrs C moved back into
her property and was extremely pleased with what had
been done. She is now taking great pride in her home
and her health has much improved. We hope she will
continue enjoy her home for many years to come.

Page 220




Priority 2: To improve transport and accessibility

Transport and accessibility have a huge impact on people’s lives. Throughout the
consultations transport issues were consistently highlighted as a major concern. More
broadly, many non-drivers spoke eloquently about how difficult it was to access the leisure
and social activities that they wanted to, let alone visit someone in hospital. With the trend
towards out of town shopping centres and more emphasis on internet based
communication, there is a danger that some older and more vulnerable individuals can
become socially isolated. There should be a focus on providing safe, reliable and
affordable transport options that are easily accessible for all. People acknowledged that
this would not be easy, but felt very strongly that improvement was needed in Kent.

“There’s no point in having a bus pass if you don’t have access to a bus” Kent Resident

Transport

The accessibility and availability of public transport is critically important as many older
people are more reliant than the majority of working-age people on public transport.
Indeed, 67.9% of those over 85 do not have a car. Local authorities are required by the
Transport Act 2000 to produce a Local Transport Plan considering how the transport
needs of various groups will be addressed. The current Local Transport Plan (2006-2011)
addresses the issue of accessibility and particularly social exclusion and its impact on
quality of life.

Approximately 80% of bus services in Kent are provided by private, commercial bus
companies, for example Arriva and Stagecoach. Kent County Council spends around £7
million a year from the transport budget to offer the remaining 20% of bus services that are
not "commercially viable", in other words, services where the running costs are more than
the money received from passengers fares. These resources pay for rural bus services in
Kent, which provide links to villages and country areas. This budget also provides journeys
that are early morning, late evening and at weekends. Priority for funding ‘socially
necessary’ bus services in Kent is based upon the Government’s social inclusion model
using access to health care, food shopping, learning and employment as the key
considerations.

Access to Healthcare

A number of people in the consultations explained that transport after hospital discharge is
a particular issue. It is hugely important that people have good access to healthcare if they
are to stay fit and healthy. This is not just about access to hospitals but also to GP
surgeries and pharmacies. People should also be able to visit friends and relatives in
hospital; something which current transport service provision often does not allow for.
Public services in Kent have a role, collectively, to ensure that people have adequate and
equitable access to healthcare.

Transport Options and Accessibility

It was also highlighted by many people we spoke to that more flexible approaches to
transport are needed. This includes more choice about the type of transport available and
greater access to dial-a-ride schemes and taxi vouchers. There is also a need to make

Page 221




sure that taxis themselves are accessible, with drivers sympathetic to those with mobility
problems. It was also felt that the timings of buses and trains made it difficult for people to
engage in social activity. The reliability and frequency of public transport is important for
those who are dependent upon it to travel. For many older people, particularly in rural
areas, there may only be one bus a day, meaning that opportunities for socialising and
shopping are severely limited. Older people should be able to visit their local town to
complete their shopping as well as spend time meeting friends. However, bus times can
often restrict this and force a choice between one and the other. Often the destinations to
which transport options travel are also limiting, taking choice and control away from the
individual. Some older people also expressed concern that they found using buses
difficult. They explained that buses would pull away before they had time to find a seat,
causing them to fall or trip. This is an issue that can easily be resolved through better
education and training of drivers to make them sympathetic to the issues facing older
people. Additionally, there were worries about the reliability of buses, particular when there
is only one or two a day. If a bus does not turn up or is very late, this can cause people to
be left stranded.

There are a number of alternatives for those who have no public transport links, or have
mobility problems. The Kent Karrier scheme is one such example; however, it is currently
limited in what it can offer as a solution. Journeys are restricted within district boundaries,
and the service only operates at a specific time on a specific day of the week. By far the
most successful solution to the transport issues has been volunteer driver initiatives led by
the voluntary sector. These allow much greater flexibility in journey time, and provide a far
wider choice of destination to the individual. Often volunteer drivers are older people
themselves, and this offers a great opportunity for social interaction. Such initiatives do
much to tackle isolation and help older people to access services and facilities that they
might not otherwise have been able to. Across Kent there are 35 volunteer car schemes,
ranging in size from 2 to 50 volunteer drivers. Most schemes need more drivers or larger
vehicles to meet demand. We should support the voluntary sector in providing services
such as these, and help to expand them as far as possible. For example, by supplying
vehicles that can be used to provide the service and adequate insurance.

Disabled Access

Only 17% of disabled people are born with a disability, therefore the majority of people
develop a disability later on in life. Accessibility is therefore a key issue when considering
the needs of older people. Of course this is a requirement under the Disability
Discrimination Acts 1995 and 2005 - local authorities, shops, cafes and leisure centres
have a duty not to discriminate against disabled people. Where physical features make it
impossible or unreasonably difficult for disabled people to make use of a service, the
service provider must either remove the feature or alter it so that the disabled person can
make use of it. Examples might be ticket machines at stations, a step leading up to a shop
or a toilet that isn't wide enough to manoeuvre a wheelchair into. Such changes are part
of the physical infrastructure covered in Priority 1.

Transport providers such as those who run buses and trains are also required to ensure

that they do not discriminate against disabled people. This could be by ensuring staff are
trained in disability awareness, ensuring that new vehicles are made fully accessible, and

Page 222



that existing vehicles are amended to ensure they are accessible for disabled people.
Making a vehicle accessible means things like step free access, colour contrast within the
vehicle and audible/visual information systems. These facilities can assist many older
people who might not be registered disabled but nonetheless have restricted mobility or
sight and hearing difficulties. Whilst work is already underway to improve disabled access
by transport providers, people felt it should be given a higher priority than it currently has.

Information

As for most priorities within this Strategy, providing better information is key to improving
use of transport and increasing accessibility. Within the consultations, older people felt that
better access to bus timetables was needed. It was also suggested that timetables should
show where disabled bus access is available to make it easier for those with disabilities to
travel. Many simply wanted to be better informed about what transport options are
available to them.

Key strategic targets:

We will improve transport and accessibility by:

» Increasing transport options, including services for those who are disabled or live in
rural areas

= Making people more aware of the transport options already available to them

Page 223




Priority 3: To enable people to lead healthier lives and have better
access to healthcare.

To ‘live later life to the full’, it is vital that people of all ages take action to keep fit and
healthy as far as possible. Health is crucial to people’s quality of life and without it
participation and engagement in society can be inhibited. Keeping fit requires active
exercise which can become increasingly difficult to achieve as people get older. It is vital
that barriers to accessing leisure facilities, such as transport and financial difficulties, are
removed or minimised so that all older people have the ability to be active.

Good health

During the consultation, the majority of people commented on how important it was to
have good health. Whilst some poor health cannot be avoided, there is a lot that
individuals can do themselves to stay healthy. Health promotion was therefore seen as
very important, as was access to healthy activities such as sports facilities, walking,
dancing and so on. Few older people are actively engaged in sport and so initiatives are
needed to encourage this. It was also seen as important to provide support and services
for people that prevent further deterioration of existing conditions, and enable them to
remain independent for longer.

Prevention

The drive to promote good health as a way to prevent avoidable ill health problems in later
life needs to be a major priority. As they say, ‘prevention is better than the cure’. We need
to build upon and use the experiences of successful smoking cessation initiatives to begin
tackling other issues such as obesity and diabetes. People should be encouraged to take
charge of their own health, going for regular check-ups and eating healthily. It is important
that people understand that the things they do and choices they make can impact on their
ability to live a full later life. Particularly in youth, people feel that they are invincible. It is
vital that we educate people to take good care of themselves and make sure that they are
aware of the consequences if they do not. This is not just about younger people, though.
For those who have unhealthly lifestyles, it is never too late to get fitter. Improving diet and
exercise, stopping drinking too much, and stopping smoking will have a positive impact at
any age. There are many health and lifestyle benefits of physical activity for older people.
People with an active lifestyle feel healthier and have an improved sense of wellbeing.
Physical activity also reduces the risk of heart disease, stroke diabetes and high blood
pressure. Staying mentally active is also vital to help prevent the onset of mental health
problems.

Maintaining health and Independence

As far as possible, older people should be assisted in managing their health problems so
that they are able to remain in their own homes and communities for as long as possible. It
is vital that we develop services in the community and at home to enable this to happen
and to assist early discharge back home for those that are admitted to hospital or care. We
also need to ensure that those people who do have long term conditions are prevented
from being admitted to hospital or residential care unnecessarily. For example, harnessing
the benefits of new technology to support people in their homes is increasing through such
schemes as Tele-heath and Tele-care. Priority 5 goes into more detail on this.

Page 224




Healthcare Improvement

The Kent Public Health Strategy sets out priorities for improving public health and the
Annual Public Health Report has a specific chapter relating to older people, with priorities
for action. Older people living in the poorer areas of Kent may suffer from significant
inequalities in health that require targeted actions to address. In the consultation, people
felt that there should be better integrated health and social care with more of a ‘seamless’
service. Better communication between KCC, NHS, District and Borough Councils and
other agencies is needed to make this a reality.

One of the key targets in Kent’s Public Health Strategy is ‘more adults living healthier lives
and preventing more disease’. A key principle for caring for frail older people is timely
intervention. This will be achieved through ‘joined up care’, allowing early identification of
problems, and early treatment. This will prevent crisis and avoid emergency hospital
admissions. Helping people achieve good health is the responsibility of the whole
community. It is vital that different agencies work in partnership with one another if good
quality integrated services are to be provided.

Key strategic targets;

We will enable people to live healthier lives and have better access to healthcare by;
= Focussing on the prevention of health problems
= Enabling older residents to participate in regular exercise and live an active life
= Developing better integrated health and social care services
= Addressing health inequalities for older people

= Assisting people to manage their own health and independence in order to keep
living in the community for a long as possible

Page 225




What is already being done to...

....enable people to lead healthier lives and have better access to healthcare

Brighter Futures Group & INVOKE

The Brighter Futures Group is a partnership between KCC, Primary
wter Fug Care Trusts, and voluntary and community organisations. It aims to
q:-':% b"’e increase the independence of older people, by supporting people
* o aged 75 and over who are living in poor housing and on a low
r income. By providing a range of community services, mainly
. . Hﬂ' pw'pmhng;.dp_. delivered by volunteers, the programme helps people stay
less active older people independent in the community and reduces avoidable admissions
into hospitals and care homes. As some of the projects have evolved,
they have expanded to include internet cafes, exercise classes and healthy lifestyle
sessions. The programme runs in the Ashford, Maidstone, Tunbridge Wells, Tonbridge &
Malling and Sevenoaks areas.

\.

INVOKE is a project running in East Kent that is designed to give older people
independence through the delivery of local services to the community and increasing
choice and control. It supports older people in their own homes by increasing community
services and aims to reduce the number of emergency hospital admissions. The three
services provided are Community Matron Support Workers, Community Information and
Liaison Assistants and Care Navigators.

Fit as a Fiddle

Fit as a fiddle is a major new programme funded by the Big
Lottery Fund and delivered by Age Concern and its partners. It
aims to make a difference to older people’s health and
wellbeing, by encouraging them to take more physical
exercise and eat the right kinds of foods. Fit as a fiddle will
help older people to access safe physical activity sessions
designed to meet their needs. The programme provides a
wide range of activities including nutritional advice targeted at
older people to encourage them to eat a varied, balanced diet,
community based initiatives to reduce isolation and social
support for older people who have, or are at risk of developing mental health problems.

Most of the projects being developed will focus on engaging older people in activities that

are fun and where they have the opportunity for social interaction. Many of the projects will
be developed using trained older volunteers. Older people will be enhancing their cooking

skills, doing yoga, line dancing, gardening, doing seated exercises, socialising with others
and doing everything to enable them to be it as fiddles!'.

Page 226




The GRAND - Gravesham

The GRAND Project was set up in 2001 through a joint
funded initiative that included the Health Action
Gravesham Regeneration Partnership and the New
Opportunities Fund (now known as the Big Lottery
Fund). The project is based upon listening to what
people want and developing and delivering health
related programmes that meet these needs.

There are a number of services provide by the GRAND
project, both in the community and at the GR@ND, a
town-centre cyber-café. The GR@ND provides service
such as;

e Fast public access to the Internet (free in many cases).

e Guided Internet access for people wanting to learn about how to get information
from the World Wide Web.

A healthy food café.

A meeting space for community groups to use.

Special programmes and activities for young people.

Advice and information on a wide range of health issues for everyone

The GR@ND centre also delivers a Silver Surfers programme, which over 700 older
people have attended since 2002.

The GRAND project supports other community-
based activities for older people across
Gravesham including weekly activity and exercise
sessions for those in residential or sheltered
accommodation. In addition, it also supports

. activities that help people identify how they can
improve their health, including community cooking
. sessions to improve diet and nutrition and smoking
cessation programmes.

Page 227



Priority 4: To support people’s citizenship, learning and participation in
community life.

Learning is an essential part of adapting to the challenges that life brings at different
stages. People need excellent information to enable them to stay healthy, be involved in
community life and get the support they need. New technology can provide opportunities
to increase information and awareness, but can also pose difficulties for those who
struggle to keep up with the pace of new developments. To make sure older people are
engaged in community life, it is vital they are aware of the opportunities available and that
they are able to participate in lifelong learning.

“The internet is becoming the town square for the global village of tomorrow” Bill Gates

Volunteering

Within Kent, a large number of older people are volunteers or care for people who need
support. Voluntary work is important in its own right, providing community support and
activities that would otherwise be unaffordable as well as enabling knowledge, experience
and expertise to be put to good use. Older people often provide unpaid care, and Priority 5
includes consideration of carers’ needs. Unpaid care may involve looking after a spouse,
family member or friend but can also be providing childcare for grandchildren. It is
estimated that 60% of childcare across the country is provided by grandparents, saving the
UK economy £4bn per year. In total, unpaid contributions in the form of both caring and
volunteering are worth £24bn nationally. There are also benefits for the volunteers in terms
of the “feel good” factor from contributing to community life, which brings good self-esteem
and mental wellbeing. People should be encouraged to get involved in voluntary or
community activity where possible, and it is vital there is a strategic relationship between
the public and voluntary sector to achieve this.

In Kent we are fortunate to have a thriving voluntary and community sector. Central
government and local public services alike see the need to expand and enhance the
voluntary and community sector. Voluntary agencies were keen to emphasise that a
strategic approach is needed to ensure their sustainability and to enable them to maintain
their ethos, which is distinct from that of the public sector. Considerable action is already
underway, reflected by the fact that the current Local Area Agreement includes a target to
increase volunteering, and by the establishment of the Kent-wide Voluntary Sector
Compact which sets out the relationship between the public and voluntary sectors in Kent.

Employment

Increasingly, people are electing to carry on in paid work, sometimes on a part-time basis,
beyond the traditional retirement age, and Government has introduced legislative changes
to encourage this over time. The demographic changes mean that it is in our interests as a
society for people to work for longer. Older workers may need upskilling and retraining,
particularly in new technologies, but they bring continuity, knowledge and perspective to
the workplace and can be invaluable mentors to younger staff members. Whilst the
element of choice needs to remain for those people who are eager to retire, we will work
with Kent employers across all sectors to identify any specific actions needed to increase
employment of older people. This includes looking at flexible retirement options, such as a

Page 228




gradual reduction in hours in a way that does not affect pensions, particularly for those on
final salary pension schemes. We also need to be better at managing the transition from
full time employment into retirement. Many people still wish to contribute to both the
economy and society after they retire; we should make it easier for people to volunteer or
embark on a second career.

Citizenship

It is vitally important that people are involved in their local communities and are engaged in
matters that affect them. This involves not just inclusion in community activity but also
greater advocacy and influence over policy-making. To some extent people do already
have a voice through pensioners’ forums and similar groups. However, the links between
these forums and the policymakers themselves need to be formalised. There also needs to
be coverage across all of Kent, and this is now happening. Within communities, older
people should be supported to develop the activities they themselves want. The Smarden
Good Neighbours scheme and Aylesham Neighbourhood Project are excellent examples
of community-led action that has widespread benefits and there are many other such
projects taking place across the county. We should facilitate other local communities to
adopt similar actions, and find new models to suit different kinds of communities.

Learning

In the consultation, people were keen to embrace life-long learning and often for learning’s
sake alone. There is a key link between staying mentally active and reducing the risk of
mental illnesses. However, many older people have very few formal qualifications and
some lack the confidence to seek education later in life. Enrolment in adult education
courses should be, and is, actively encouraged. The University of the Third Age is also a
great opportunity for Older People, allowing those no longer in paid employment to share
their knowledge, experience and skills with other members. Self managed learning should
also be encouraged through local community groups. This can help people develop life
skills including money and financial management that will help them prepare for a secure
later life. Conversely, older people often have a wealth of knowledge and experience that
they are able to share with others. This sharing of expertise should also be inter-
generational to allow older and younger people to interact. This can have many spill-over
benefits including greater respect between age groups. For the older people themselves,
much can be learnt, with younger people teaching skills such as use of the internet and
technology (for example, digital photography) in return.

Innovations

The pace at which new ideas and technologies develop gets faster all the time. Some
people in the consultations were anxious about new technology and felt left behind and
excluded. A lot of people did not have internet access, and this is something we must
address. Broadband is expensive for people on limited, fixed incomes and we must
explore how it can be made more affordable for those who could most benefit. In terms of
learning how to use computers, there are courses specifically targeted at older people but
perhaps even more are needed. This is a potential virtuous circle because the more
confident older people become with new technology, the easier it is for them to access
information, support and social interaction, producing a positive impact on their health and
wellbeing. Webcams, telecare and telehealth are not a complete substitute for personal

Page 229



contact, but can be a tremendous supplement to it, enabling people to have virtual face-to-
face contact with relatives, friends and professionals on a regular basis and as needed.
Kent TV is another great source of information. A focus on the provision of access to new
technology as well as the ability to use it would therefore have numerous spill-over
benefits.

Key strategic targets:

We will support people’s citizenship, learning and participation in community life by;

= Encouraging people’s participation and inclusion in community activity, raising
social capital

= Ensuring people are able to exert their influence over policy making

= Enabling people to have the opportunity and ability to participate in life-long learning
= Making sure older people in Kent have employment opportunities if they want them.

= Encouraging people to take part in voluntary activity

= Helping people have access to new technology as well as the ability to use it

Page 230




What is already being done to.....

....support people’s citizenship, learning and participation in community life

The Smarden Good Neighbour Scheme

The Smarden Good Neighbour Scheme is designed

to support older people in the village of Smarden. It

helps older members of the community to remain in Good Neighbour
their own homes and overcome the transport

difficulties of rural isolation. The scheme provides;

e A volunteer car scheme to enable older people to get to the doctor, dentist and shops

¢ A ‘Meals on Wheels’ service from the village school and local pub

¢ Information on a range of services and facilities from health to social services in a ‘red
folder’ available from the Post Office

Smarden is the 9™ most isolated Parish in Kent with limited transport links. Previously
many senior citizens had been forced to leave Smarden; however, the Good Neighbour
Scheme is allowing many older residents to stay in their own homes. The Meals on
Wheels service alone has enabled at least five people to stay in their own home when
recovering from operations or growing frail and up to sixteen meals are delivered each day
by volunteers. The scheme is not means tested as the service provides daily personal
contact for older citizens who may be lonely or depressed.

The scheme also provides an Afternoon

. Club for people aged 50 and over. It offers
activities, services and guest speakers and
provides a channel through which residents
can be consulted on developments within
the village. The scheme focuses on
involving older people in village life. Many
use the IT Centre to develop new skills and
the local school invites members of the

i Afternoon Club to join children for Christmas
t lunch.

Smarden was awarded first prize in the
National Association of Local Council’s
Community Empowerment Awards Older People section in 2007 for the Good Neighbour
Scheme and was judged Kent Village of the Year 2007-2008.

Page 231




The Aylesham Neighbourhood Project

The Aylesham Neighbourhood Project was established in 1997 as part of work to
regenerate the former coalfield communities of East Kent. The project provides a wide
range of services and support for the local community and is managed by local residents.
It is an excellent example of a community led scheme that enables all members of the
community to participate in community life.

AP AR

As part of the project, the community has reclaimed and transformed the derelict school
into a sustainable social enterprise including workspace and training facilities. The project
also offers a valuable neighbourhood programme to support families through improving
childcare, family support and adult education

Some of the services provided by the project include;

e The Relativity Project
This project aims to engage families from the Aylesham community in a variety of
fun and creative activities. There is an emphasis on the enjoyment of shared
learning and providing ‘quality time’ together to broaden skills and provide
opportunities for all family members to be involved. The learning activities
encourage children, parents, grandparents, carers, uncles and aunts to come
together to engage in innovative activities and workshops

e Café on the Square
The Café provides a pleasant environment in which to meet with friends

e Counselling
The counselling service is subsidised for those on benefits or a low income, and
appointments with childcare are available for parents with young children

e Children’s Centres

¢ Room Hire

¢ Young Chefs
This scheme aims to get children interested in cooking, trying new foods and
learning new skills

More information on the Aylesham Neighbourhood project can be found at;
www.aylesham-np.org.uk

Page 232



CASE STUDY: Time2Give, Kent Libraries and Archives

Time2Give is an exciting volunteering programme managed by Community Service
Volunteers (CSV) for Kent Libraries and Archives. It offers enjoyable and worthwhile
volunteering opportunities across the county’s libraries. Some of the more popular
activities for Time2Give volunteers include;

e Computer buddies — helping customers who are using library based computers

e Researching, collating and indexing local studies resources

¢ Helping staff with activities to encourage family use of libraries like rhyme-time or
study help.

¢ Assisting with functions and events including publicity and displays, or helping out in
a practical way, such as the library garden

e Helping people across the community access library services, taking services into
the community, such as delivering books to customers who are homebound.

There are a vast number of examples of brilliant individuals who give up their time to
volunteer within the county’s libraries. One of these is highlighted below;

Time2Give Volunteer — Carol Johnson

Carol Johnson (centre) was Kent Libraries and
Archive’s Volunteer of the Year in 2008. A Baby
Rhyme Time host at Ashford Library since 2005, she
also helps with a wide variety of other library activities.
Carol came to volunteering as part of her recovery
following a stroke. Getting involved in a community
activity was important to keep in touch with people.

‘I get a tremendous buzz helping with Baby Rhyme
Time. | enjoy the singing and the actions have health
benefits for me too. Actions help me move my weaker
arm, so it is good exercise for me singing ‘Dingle
Dangle Scarecrow’ and the ‘Grand Old Duke of York.”

Ashford’s Customer Services Officer Angie Van Zeller
highlighted the benefits to the library and its
customers. “Carol’s contribution is exceptional. She is
a lovely individual, reliable, steadfast and friendly.
She is always cheerful and helpful and knows the public she helps very well. She chats
easily with parents, carers and children. She is brilliant!”

Page 233




Priority 5: To ensure those people who need support to live
independently have choice, control and good quality care

People want to retain their independence for as long as possible, and need the community
to support them in doing so. This is the major objective in ‘Active Lives’, KCC’s ten year
vision for adult social care, supported by the District and Borough Councils, Health, Police
and Fire and Rescue Services, which sets out a number of commitments for public
services to deliver.

“The aim is to empower people to identify, choose and control the support or care they
need to live life as they want.” Active Lives

Although this Strategy emphasises the positive aspects of the ageing population, there is
no getting away from the fact that the demographic changes will result in more people with
long-term conditions such as dementia, arthritis, cardio-vascular problems, or who have
had strokes. Medical advances mean that people with some kinds of learning disabilities
who in previous generations would have died young are now living long lives, so we are
starting to see more older people with learning disabilities such as dementia, for example.
We therefore need to plan to support more people with long-term conditions or disabilities
in Kent, and much is happening on this front, underpinned by Kent’s Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment for Adults. It is also critically important to ensure that vulnerable older people
are protected from abuse and neglect. Whilst the statutory services have a responsibility
here, the community as a whole also has a role to play.

Person-centred approach
Increasingly people have moved away from the ‘one size fits all’ model of service delivery.
Today people rightly expect services to be flexible and targeted at their individual needs
rather than expecting people to fit around the service. Over time this is becoming more of
a reality thorough such mechanisms as:

e Direct control of resources — direct payments and individualised budgets

¢ Involving people directly in the planning and development of future services

e Planning support in a way which focuses on the needs of people

The challenge is to enable the person-centred approach to become universal, and to be
applied across different agencies.

Reduce isolation

The demographic projections for the future strongly indicate that there will be a far greater
percentage of people living alone in Kent in later life than there has ever been in the past,
and it is particularly important for people living alone to be involved in the local community.
There is plenty of evidence to show that social isolation leads to poor mental health,
physical deterioration and generally a poorer quality of life and prognosis for the future.
People have a fundamental need to be engaged in society. It is important to look at what
action can and should be taken to reduce social isolation. This is not just the responsibility
of KCC and its partners; it is also a community responsibility.

Page 234




There is a need for more attractive housing options for older people across all types of
tenure, which better meet their needs and reduce social isolation (as covered in Priority 1).
It is vital that we support people to live in their own homes, but there are ways of doing this
that will allow the individual greater independence. For example, helping an older person
find a ground floor flat or bungalow with easy access rather than having stairs to climb.

Choice and Control

Having independence is about having choice and control. This also includes having
access to ‘joined’ up information so that informed decisions can be made. People making
use of services want to see a seamless provision. Often they are not concerned with who
provides the service, but rather the quality of service they receive. It is vital therefore that
KCC, its partners, District and Borough Councils, and the voluntary sector all work
together to provide consistency in service and care.

It is also crucial to involve older people directly in the planning and development of future
services through consultations and older people’s forums, and this is happening more and
more extensively. For many older people, a number of barriers exist that impair their
quality of life. This can range from a simple lack of information through to disability or lack
of support. It is vital that we work to remove any barriers that exist and help older people to
help themselves. There will be a number of older people that do not want to have control
over their own social care. Their choice would be to have KCC arrange things on their
behalf. What is vital is that individuals are allowed this choice and therefore feel that they
have control over matters affecting their lives.

Although in the consultation people agreed strongly with the principle of choice and
control, there were very real fears about how this was being offered in practice in relation
to social care. People were nervous that Kent Adult Social Services would relinquish
responsibility and expect individuals to sort everything out themselves, which was not
generally what older people wanted (and is not what is happening — people can choose for
Kent Adult Social Services to organise things on their behalf). There were also concerns
about the effectiveness of contract monitoring of service providers, and about service
quality in some cases. Although Kent has operated for many years with a “mixed
economy” of social care provision (i.e. mostly contracted out to private and voluntary
providers, with only around 15% of the social care budget spent on local authority
services), some people were still uncomfortable with private sector provision, feeling that it
is not right to make a profit out of social care. “Active Lives” clearly sets a direction which
strengthens the mixed economy, particularly in relation to the voluntary sector but also the
private sector, because it should not matter who provides the service as long as the quality
and value for money is good, and there are excellent private providers. There is clearly a
need to communicate better the underpinning rationale for the way in which social care
provision is evolving in Kent, and constantly ensure that people’s anxieties about future
changes do not come to pass.

Information

Access to information was discussed as a key priority at all the workshops. People said
that they do not know how to find information about services, facilities or support at the
point they need it. This is disappointing, given the effort that has gone into improved

Page 235



information provision. It is important that we enable people to be well informed without
bombarding them with information when they do not need it, and much work has already
been done but people did not seem to know about it. For example, Kent’s Library Service
is now so much broader than simply book lending. The “Ask a Kent Librarian” scheme is
fantastic and could be more widely used. All static Kent Libraries have free internet
access so people without their own computer can access the web from their library. It was
suggested that information should be located at places where people regularly visit, for
example GP surgeries and supermarkets. As more new Gateways open, based in retail
centres where people frequently visit, they will be a valuable source of information. Kent
TV also has a wealth of information for those who have access to the internet. Many parts
of Kent also have booklets or guides full of useful contacts and information.

Because access to information came out as such a high priority in the consultation, it is
vital that the strategy seeks ways to improve this in all areas of service provision. Each of
the Priorities in this Policy Framework in some way reflect the need to improve information
on what services are provided and how people can access them. As a broader initiative,
an Older People’s Handbook will be produced to highlight what help and support is already
available to older people.

Better support for carers

At some point, in most people’s lives, there will be a need to either give or receive care.
Caring is something that touches all of us, and while most people would not deem
themselves ‘carers’ in a formal sense, it is vital that we offer support to those who provide
this essential role. The majority of community care is undertaken by carers who are
relatives, friends or neighbours of the person in need. Many of these individuals will need
to both work and care. It is important that carers gain the support of employers to give
them the flexibility they need in order to provide care, and that we ensure carers are able
to have a life apart from caring.

According to the 2001 census, there are already 127,848 carers in Kent, representing
12.6% of the population. As the population ages, this percentage will increase significantly,
particularly given the focus on supporting people to live in their own homes for as long as
possible. Many of the carers will be older people themselves, caring for partners, but
some will be younger — children or even grandchildren. In view of this, Kent Adult Social
Services and NHS are working together to develop a Kent Adult Carers Strategy which will
ensure that there is multi-agency commitment and action to meet the needs of carers,
including Young Carers.

End of Life Care

This Policy Framework has emphasised that people are living longer, healthier lives.
However, most people do need a great deal of medical and social care at the very end of
their lives. With end of life care, as with other forms of support, it is essential that people
are given choice about where they would like to live and die. The Government published
an End of Life Care Strategy in July 2008, and we are working to implement this in Kent.

Page 236



Page 237



What is already being done to...

...ensure those people who need support to live independently have choice, control
and good quality care

Online Self Assessment

Kent Adult Social Services has developed a
software platform that enables assessments for
social care to be carried out online via the KCC
website.

This service allows people to complete an
assessment of their needs and find out immediately
if they may be eligible for support. It is aimed at
adults who are finding it difficult to manage
everyday activities or for people who care for
someone on a regular basis and want to find out
what support KCC can provide for them as a carer.

This forms part of the ‘Active Lives for Adults’ programme that will help KASS change the
way services are provided, placing greater choice and control in the hands of the people
that use them.

Kent Card

The Kent card is an innovative new payment method from KCC, which enables service
users to have greater control over their own lives and make their own lifestyle choices.

Service users are offered cash, known as a direct
payment, as an alternative to having services
provided for them. This allows them to determine for
themselves when they get assistance, how and from
whom. The Kent Card allows payments to be paid
directly to individuals without the need for a bank
| account or complicated record keeping. The card
¥ comes pre-loaded with the amount agreed to meet
the service users need. Any additional top-up
funding can also be loaded onto the card by the

' service user. The Kent card gives service users
choice and control over the services they receive. It also gives them flexibility when they
need support at short notice as it allows them to arrange alternative agencies
independently of Kent Adult Social Services.

Page 238




Priority 6: To encourage people to plan for a secure later life.

Preparing for later life needs to be a lifetime quest. However, it becomes particularly
important for people in their middle years, or beyond, to plan for their future if they have
not already started to do so.

“It's never too late to take charge of your finances - even if you’re in your 50s, and even if
you’ve never got your head round them before. The older you are, the more important it is
to start planning. And if you take action now, you’ll be well set up for the long life ahead of
you” Help the Aged, 2008

Financial Security

A key consideration in planning for the future is financial security. Economic well-being
was a major concern within the consultation groups despite the proportion of pensioners in
poverty having fallen. Many thought there should be greater support and assistance to
help them manage their finances. Others thought that there was not enough information on
how to collect benefits to which they are entitled or services from which they can benefit.
Fuel poverty, defined as a household in which greater than 10% of income is spent on
warmth, is also a particular issue for many older people. There will always be people who
do not earn enough to save or pay into a pension, and who will be reliant upon the State
Pension. In the consultation, people felt strongly that the level of the State Pension needs
to be sufficient to enable people to have a reasonable quality of life.

Information and advice

A big issue emerging from the consultation was that some people do not know how to plan
for financial security, and often leave it too late. They felt they needed more advice and
support to plan for later life. This Policy Framework aims to encourage this forward
planning. Through the provision of better quality information and advice as well as
improving access to it, people will be better informed to make financial decisions. It is also
important that we encourage people to start planning for their later life much earlier. We
should help people understand the importance of entering a pension scheme or making
sure they make financial preparations for when they retire. The increase in the number of
Gateways will increase people’s ability to access joined up information, as will the Access
Kent Project. Kent TV is another good information source and covers a variety of topics
that can help people prepare for later life.

Preparing for Change

There are a number of significant changes that happen in people’s lives as they enter
retirement and beyond. These changes can often be confusing and difficult. Some of the
changes are beneficial, for example, increased leisure time and having grandchildren.
However, some changes will be negative. Most older people will face bereavement, and
there can be losses associated with leaving paid employment. Some changes can lead to
increased dependency, such as living alone and ill health. The diagram, below, produced
by the Audit Commission highlights the key ways that ageing can affect people. For some,
ageing will be a pleasant experience most of the time, but age does bring challenges for
everyone and some people have particularly difficult circumstances to cope with. Different
people will age at different times and at different rates. The Older People’s handbook will

Page 239




seek to signpost people to help and advice that can guide them through the various stages
of their later life.

Changes in Later Life

Figure 6 The diversity of the 50+ population
Ageing affects people in different ways, presenting opportunities or creating dependency

Changes in later life: often seen as opportunities
Children leaving home Grandchildran

More leisure

' Heqewed QSIS time : Volurtary work
Leaving in learning Moving to a

paid employment smaller house

The 50+ age spectrum: different experences for different people at different times

Changes that can lead to dependency

Falling i

Mental health ne

Source: Audit Commission 2008

Page 240



What is already being done to...

.. Make people in Kent more aware of the services and support available, including
access to financial information and advice.

Gateways

The concept of Gateways is to provide ‘council and community

services under one roof . Gateways offer a convenient public

service point and are based in modern retail settings. Residents are

able to physically access frontline customer advisors from a wide

range of public services including KCC, borough and district

councils, Kent Police, the voluntary sector and Health. Gateways '
unite services under a neutral brand, removing the confusion that

having lots of public service organisations can bring, and are

designed to meet the needs of the whole community. Gatewag

Each Gateway offers the latest innovative technologies and a wide range of services,
including;

information and self help, including free internet, service directory, payment kiosk
routine advice and transactions, including bus passes, refuse, parking, licensing
surgeries by agencies such as Hi Kent, Connexions, NHS and registrars

cross agency services, including council tax, benefits, planning, housing, library,
adult education and occupational therapy

There are plans to extend services to include private sector partners such as pharmacies,
to support the public health agenda. The focus is on shaping services to fit around
customer need, providing face to face contact and joining up services.

"Gateway is about creating a better experience for people and improving their quality of life
by joining public services and making them more accessible in a friendly and attractive
way." Peter Gilroy, KCC Chief Executive

There are currently Gateways in Thanet,
Maidstone, Tenterden, Ashford and Tunbridge
Wells, along with a Mobile Gateway that

; operates from Ashford. A number of these
Gateways incorporate library services and the
Tenterden Gateway includes the local post
office.

Gateways are an invaluable way for people to
directly access services and to seek
| information on services and benefits to which

: v ' they are entitled. The expansion and promotion
of these will be key to ensuring older people have improved access to services.

Page 241




Priority 7: To promote a positive image of later life and dignity and
respect for older people.

In the consultations many people raised the fact that old age is so often perceived very
negatively. It was felt that too often older people are seen as a ‘burden on society’
particularly due to the changing demographics and the increasing pressures on services. It
is crucial that this negative image is dispelled and a more balanced, realistic picture of
older people is promoted. Taking positive actions to address this priority is harder than for
the other priorities because of the “soft” nature of the issues concerned. However, these
issues came out strongly in the consultations and it is important to discuss them even if the
solutions are not straightforward.

“The way older people are perceived needs to be altered so that they are seen not only as
users of community services, but also as providers” Kent Resident

Valuing Later life

In the media, all too often old people are either invisible and overlooked, or portrayed
negatively. Whilst old age can indeed bring disability, poverty and isolation, the balance
needs to shift. Older people contribute a vast amount to the communities in Kent, indeed,
most volunteering and unpaid caring is carried out by older people. Many people felt that
in Kent we do not make the most of the wealth of experience and knowledge available
amongst older people.

Respect

Respect is a two-way process; people should have respect for each other and in this way
will gain respect for themselves. Older people recognised that they needed to respect
young people, but also felt that there was a lack of respect towards older people as a
group. Part of respect is treating people as individuals, not a homogenous group, and this
is an inherent part of treating people with dignity.

Towards a more caring and compassionate society

People need companionship and friendship, and communities need to tackle social
isolation which can affect all age groups, but particularly very old people. People need to
be educated to look out for each other. They also need to be educated about ageing — if
younger people had a better understanding of ageing perhaps they would be more
tolerant, considerate and respectful of older people.

Key strategic targets;
We will promote a positive image of later life and dignity and respect for older people by:

= Promoting the value of later life and changing attitudes towards older members of
society

= Encouraging inter-generational activities and community cohesion

Page 242




What is already being done to...

.... promote a positive image of later life and dignity and respect for older people
Sing United!

An established partnership with Kent County Council
(KCC) has enabled another year of intergenerational arts

B projects that connect older people with younger members
# of their community. The projects, collectively entitled

. 'SingUnited', use a range of creative arts as a catalyst for
meaningful and sustainable community engagement.
SingUnited 2008 provided nine projects, involving over 200
primary and secondary aged children and more than 120
older people. The projects culminated in a exhibition and
performing arts Festival.

Projects included:

¢ A textile curtain of over 100 hand painted panels each illustrating an element of
healthy living, produced by children at Kingsdown Primary School and Sir Roger
Manwood's School in collaboration with Kingsdown Women's Institute.

¢ In'Colours of the Rainbow', children from Eastry Primary School and adult members of
Canterbury's Rainbow Centre produced thirty beautifully composed poems and prose
pieces which were musically and photographically illustrated.

e Children from Sandwich Primary School joined members of Deal Centre for Retired in
drama workshops to write, produce and act in their own play, 'The Wedding'.

e Community members in Lydden, near Dover, and children from the local primary
school produced a musical play centred entirely on the real-life experiences of older
members of the community.

e Members of a number of dance clubs in Dover, Deal and Sandwich joined forces with
children at Whitfield and Aspen Primary School for two events, 'Tea-time and Song', in
which the children provided home-made sandwiches and cakes to accompany an
afternoon of shared singing, and DanceUnited, in which children and adult dancers
socialised, swapped dancing experiences and shared afternoon tea.

SingUnited 2009 is currently gathering pace with two dance
projects connecting older and younger people, a music remix
project involving the Deal Centre for the Retired choir and
students from Castle Community College, a Tai Chi project
and connected ambient music-writing music project for people
with enduring mental health problems and children from local
primary and secondary schools. A partnership with Kent
County Council's Extended Schools, the Creative Foundation,
Folkestone and Youth Music has enabled a new project, which
is due to start in Shepway later this year.

For more information about this year's SingUnited or schools training programmes, please
contact Trish at musicdotcircus@care2.com or telephone 07790 263762.

Page 243



What is already being done to...

.... promote a positive image of later life and dignity and respect for older people
Skills Swap

Health and Social Care students from the Marsh
Academy together with the Shepway Extended _#
Schools Team and volunteers from the Marsh Youth \
Support Network Group have been working together
to develop a project which will integrate young people
with the local retired community of the Romney
Marsh, with an aim to set up a Skills Swapping Club.

On the 31st March local retired residents from across
the Marsh were collected by minibus and welcomed
into the School by the students to see how they can
develop this idea further and discuss skills they feel
they could learn from one another. As part of the
morning the students and their guests watched a
theatre performance on bogus callers and the impact
this can have on people’s lives. A representative from
the local Police Neighbourhood Watch Team also
joined us to answer any concerns raised about bogus
callers and staying safe.

After the production the students and their retired guests exchanged stories and discussed
skills. The students also gave demonstrations on the Wii and Wii fit, with many of the retired
guests joining in and having a go for the first time. From their discussions, the following
opportunities for inter-generational activity were identified:

. Computer Skills
. Knitting
. Lunch Club/Afternoon Tea
. Arts and Crafts/Card Making
. Tai Chi
. Cooking
I o Playing Cards/Board Games
. Wii
. Drama Productions
e Reminiscing
| Film Club

From this event the Extended Schools team and the Marsh Academy will be working together to
develop these ideas further and put them into practice.

Page 244



Have your say

Do you agree or disagree with the priorities and strategic targets set out in this Strategy, or
have further comments to make? Do you want to contribute to the development of the
detailed action plan? If so, please contact Tim Woolmer on 01622 694027,
Tim.Woolmer@kent.gov.uk or write to him at:

Tim Woolmer
Corporate Policy Unit
Kent County Council
G57 Sessions House
County Road
Maidstone

ME14 1XQ

Page 245



APPENDIX 1
Who are the Older People of Kent?

Government has suggested that older people’s strategies should be targeted at
those aged 50 and above because of the importance of planning for later life.
However, in the consultation people felt that this was ridiculously young (it would
encompass a third of the total Kent population) and the big challenges were
generally faced by much older people. Also, chronological age is not very helpful in
considering some of the issues as everyone’s experience of old age is different and
people vary hugely in their particular circumstances. So within this strategy we have
done our best to avoid references to chronological age. However, if we are to
provide statistical information about older people in Kent this does need to
categorise people by age group.

....Some broad features of a diverse group

Below we set out some statistics drawn from ‘The Older People of Kent’'. Whilst
some of the statistics may not apply to all, they help to build up a picture of who the
older people in Kent are.

. Demographics

In 2007 there were 508,200 people aged 50 and over in Kent, accounting for 36%
of the total population. Within the next 20 years this 50+ population is forecast to
increase by 30.7%, meaning that by 2026, people aged 50+ will represent 44% of
the population.

The older population is growing at a much greater rate than the “traditional working
age” population. In 2001 there were 3.1 people of working age for every person of

state pension age. By 2026 this will have fallen to 2, unless (and we anticipate that
this is what will happen in practice) more people in their 60s and 70s carry on with

some level of paid work.

The group of those aged 50 and above can be sub-divided as below;

G?gsp Number | Percentage Pir;zr(;tzage
50-64 266,100 52.4% 45.9%
65-74 123,900 24.4% 25.4%
75-84 84,600 16.6% 20.1%
85+ 33,700 6.6% 8.6%

' The Older People of Kent report can be found at http://www.kent.gov.uk/publications/community-and-

living/the-older-people-of-kent-report.htm

Page 246




By region, Thanet has the highest proportion of 75-80 year olds at 19.1%. It also
has the highest proportion of those aged 85 and above, at 8%.

At the time of the 2001 Census, 1.3% of all of those aged 50+ were categorised as
Black or Minority Ethnic (BME). However, there are pockets of higher
concentration, for example in Gravesham 5.4% of residents aged 50+ are BME.

Il. Health

Based upon data obtained from the 2001 Census, 49% of residents aged 50+ said
they were in good health and 35% said they were in fairly good health. 16% said
they were not in good health, which is better than the England and Wales average
of 19%. Generally, health deteriorates with age, and 31.4% of those aged over 85
are not in good health compared to 11.9% of 50-64 year olds.

74.2% of those aged 85 and over identified themselves as having a limiting long-
term illness, compared to 22.5% of 50-64 year olds. As the older population grows,
the number of people with mental health problems such as dementia will also grow.

lll. Housing

52% of people in Kent aged over 85 live in owner occupied accommodation. This
compares to 78% of Kent’'s 50+ population, suggesting that the percentage will rise
over time.

22.5% of those aged over 50 live alone. Thanet has the largest proportion (27%).

According to the 2001 consensus, 9% of those aged over 85 lived in
accommodation with no central heating. This decreases to 6.5% for those over 50.

IV. Economic Activity

48% of 50-74 year olds are economically active and make up 27% of those who are
economically active in Kent.

10% of 65-74 year olds continue to work.
18% of Kent’s 60+ year olds are claiming some form of pension credit.

People aged 50+ account for approximately 1/3 of all people receiving carer’s
allowance.

Page 247



V. Leisure and Learning

Those aged 50 and above account for 42.1% of those enrolled on a course
provided by the Kent Adult Education Service in 2007/08. Only 11% of this group
were aged over 85.

16% of active library users are aged 60 and above, 9% of these rely on the mobile
library service. 60+ year olds account for 30.3% of all mobile library users.

Of those aged 85+ only 12% have access to the internet. 91% of people under 50
have access to the internet compared to 50% of those aged 50 and above.

93.2% of those aged 50+ who use the internet access it from home.

68% of 50+ year olds are inactive (zero days of 30 minutes moderate participation
in last 4 weeks). 12.8% are regularly active (3 days a week of 30 minute moderate
participation).

The top sporting activities for 50+ year olds are walking, swimming and golf.

VI. Transport
67.9% of people aged 85+ have no car compared to 9.5% of people aged 50-64.

13.4% of those aged 50+ in rural areas have no car compared to 24.5% in urban
areas.

78.5% of people aged over 60 had a free bus pass up to Nov 2007, this equates to
260,000 bus passes. In April 2008, the local boundaries to travelling on a
concessionary fare were removed, meaning over 60’s could travel nationwide on
their bus pass. This led to a further 21,569 residents of Kent applying for a bus
pass between 01/04/08 and 20/06/2008.

VIl. Communities

31.5% of 75+ year olds and 25% of those aged 65-74 said that their fear of crime
has a moderate to high impact on their quality of life. This is lower than the
proportion of 36% for all adults.

56% of 75+ and 51% of 65-74 year olds felt that the local police are doing a
good/excellent job, compared to 53% for all adults.

Only 4% of 75+ and 10% of 65-74 year olds have a high perception of anti-social
behaviour, compared to 16% for all adults.

Page 248



APPENDIX 2
Strategic Context

Vision for Kent (Kent Partnership, 2006)

Vision for Kent is the community strategy for the county. It sets the aims for all the key
players working to improve the quality of life for everybody in Kent. The ageing population
is identified as a priority within this document, as is promoting independence and engaging
communities.

Towards 2010 (KCC, 2006)

Towards 2010 sets out how KCC plans to achieve its goals in 7 key areas. These are;
increased prosperity for Kent through business growth and job creation; transformation in
education; reduced traffic congestion; improved health and quality of life; quality homes in
a well-managed environment; a safer Kent and continued improvements in services while
keeping council tax down.

Kent Public Health Strategy (Partnership Document, 2007)

This strategy brings together the public health plans and activities of Primary Care Trusts
and Local Authorities and is a joint commitment from them to the public, to improve the
health of Kent residents. It clarifies what is meant by public health, explains why it is so
important to address health inequalities and identifies the top priorities.

Kent Health Inequalities Action Plan (Partnership Document, 2008)
This details the many initiatives and activities being delivered by KCC and the District
Councils of Kent to address Health Inequalities

Regeneration Framework (KCC 2009)

This consultation document sets out KCC’s view of the strategic issues which face Kent in
relation to economic development and business, skills, the demographic changes,
transport, strategic planning of housing and infrastructure, and climate change.

Joint Older People’s Commissioning Strategy for Health and Social Care in West
Kent (2009 — 2013)

This is the first joint commissioning strategy for West Kent focused on older people. This
sets out a vision and guiding principles for the next five years and aims to strengthen
commissioning for health and well-being undertaken by Kent Adult Social Services and
NHS West Kent.

Promoting Health and Active Living in Older Age in Eastern Coastal Kent (Eastern
and Coastal Kent Primary Care Trust, March 2008)

This strategy seeks to inform and influence both the public and also public, private and
voluntary organisations that contribute whether directly or indirectly, to the promotion and
maintenance of healthy living for older people in East Kent.

Page 249



Older People of Kent (KCC, 2008)

The Older People of Kent is a statistical document that presents some of the key features
of the older population in Kent. It is designed as a tool to aid policymakers in designing
policy for the future.

Active Lives, the 10 year vision for social care in Kent (KCC, 2007)

Active Lives sets out the KCC'’s aspirations for social care in Kent, looking forward to 2016.
It reflects the direction of travel set out in the Government White Paper ‘Our Health, Our
Care, Our Say’.

Local Transport Plan (2006 — 2011) (KCC, 2006)

This is the second Local Transport Plan (LTP) for Kent. It sets out the transport vision for
the County for 2025 as developed with partners and the community during the last
eighteen months and, in the shorter term, the Plan sets out a strategy to take the County
towards this vision. This LTP also explains how KCC intends to invest the money the
Government has indicated will be available for the period from 2006 to 2011 and how extra
resources from KCC and its partners will be added to this to maximise the value of the
overall investment.

ASK - Accessibility Strategy in Kent (KCC, 2006-2011)

Improving accessibility is recognised as an important issue at national and local levels and
is amongst the shared priority objectives for Kent. Accessibility planning is designed to
deliver benefits for all residents, although an emphasis is given to groups in the community
which are socially excluded and need help to improve access to key life opportunities.

Kent Supporting People Five Year Strategy 2005 — 2010

The Supporting People Programme aims to improve the quality of life for vulnerable
people by enabling them to live more independent lives in their communities, or
maintaining their capacity to do so. The Five Year Strategy sets out the aspirations for the
future of Kent’s Supporting People programme.

Cultural Development Strategy

This aims to reap the benefits that arts can deliver in creating places in which people
choose to live and want to visit, in building a modern, knowledge based economy, and in
enriching the quality of everyday life for individuals and communities across Kent.

Page 250



Local Context

Ashford Housing, Care and Support Strategy (2004 — 2014)

Ashford Housing Strategy (2008 — 2011)

Canterbury Community Development Strategy (2008 — 2012)

Canterbury Housing Strategy (2010 — 2015)

Canterbury Corporate Plan (2008 — 2012)

Canterbury Strategy (a vision for 2030)

Dartford Housing Strategy (Available September 2009)

Dartford Older Person’s Strategy (Available May 2009)

Gravesham Review of Social Housing Provision for Older People (September 2008)
Maidstone Housing Strategy (including Older People Supplement) (2005 — 2009)
Maidstone Sustainable Community Strategy (2009 — 2013)

Maidstone Homelessness Strategy (2008 — 2013)

Sevenoaks Sustainable Community Plan (2007 — 2010)

Sevenoaks Community Safety Strategy and Action Plan (2008 — 2011)
Tonbridge & Malling Sustainable Community Strategy (2006 — 2009)

Tunbridge Wells Sustainable Community Plan (2007-2011)

Tunbridge Wells Housing Strategy and sub-strategies (including Older People’s
Housing Strategy) (2006-2011)

Thanet Community Safety Partnership Plan (2008 — 2011)
Thanet District Council Housing Strategy (2006 — 2010)
Thanet Private Sector Housing Strategy (2007 — 2011)

Thanet District Council Travel Plan (2005 — 2011)

Page 251



APPENDIX 3
Background Papers

A Sure Start to Later Life (Dept Communities and Local Government, 2006)
Our Health, Our Care, Our Say (Dept Health, 2006)

Travel, Access and Older People — A review of local transport accessibility planning
(Help the Aged, 2006)

Lifetime Homes, Lifetime Neighbourhoods (Dept Communities and Local Government,
2008)

Global Age-friendly Cities: A Guide (World Health Organization, 2007)

‘Don’t Stop Me Now’ — Preparing for an Ageing Population (Audit Commission, 2008)
Voice — A Briefing Paper (Help the Aged & ILC, 2008)

Growing Old in a Changing Climate (Stockholm Environment Institute, 2008)

Travel, Access and Older People (Help the Aged, 2006)

Towards Lifetime Neighbourhoods (ILC, November 2007)

Nowhere to Go — Public Toilet Provision in the UK (Help the Aged, 2007)

Community Transport Provision in Rural Kent and Medway (Action with Communities
in Rural Kent)

-42-

Page 252



APPENDIX 4
Glossary of Terms

Ask a Kent Librarian — This service allows you to have your questions answered by a
specialist team, without having to visit your local library. The service promises to answer or
acknowledge queries within 48 hours and operates directly by phone, fax, mail, web form and
email 6 days a week.

Commissioning — This is the means by which best value is secured for local people, by
specifying and procuring services to meet their aspirations and needs.

Extra Care Housing - This is housing to rent or to buy, designed with the needs of frailer
older people in mind and with varying levels of care and support available on site. People who
live in extra care housing have their own self contained homes, their own front doors and a
legal right to occupy the property.

Gerontology - is the study of the social, psychological and biological aspects of ageing

Handyvan Service — The Handyvan is a home support service for older people. Handyvan
fitters work to ensure that people’s homes are safe and secure. They aim to reduce the risk of
burglary by fitting security equipment such as door chains and viewers, window locks and
installing safety features such as smoke and carbon monoxide detectors.

Home Improvement Agency — Home Improvement Agencies (HIAs) help older and
vulnerable people to maintain their independence. Their focus is to help repair and adapt a
client’'s home to meet their individual need, and may also provide a range of services to
support this, depending on local needs and circumstances

Kent Partnership — The Kent Partnership is the countywide local strategic partnership that
was formed in 2002 as a result of the Local Government Act 2000. It is made up of
representatives from the private, public, voluntary and community sectors and oversees the
Kent Agreement.

Lifetime Homes — A lifetime home is the incorporation of 16 design features that create a
flexible template for accessible and adaptable housing.

Older People’s Champion — The role of an older people’s champion is to represent the voice
of older people within an organisation. They should ensure that older people are involved in
developing services and should challenge age discrimination where it exists.

University of the Third Age (U3A) — this is a learning cooperative for people no longer in full
time employment. It consists of local U3As all over the UK, which are charities in their own
right and are run entirely by volunteers. Between them, U3As offer the chance to study over
300 different subjects. A typical U3A has about 250 members but could be as small as 12 and
as large as 2000. The U3A approach to learning is learning for pleasure.

Page 253



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 254



‘suonoe aJnny Bunusws|dwi pue BuidojaAsp Ul Way) YIM YJOM 0] SNUIIUOD [|IM SM pUB ‘SaAl|

Jisy) uo syoedwi Jey) Buijew-uolsioap [B20| pue oibsiels Buiousnijul ul 8210A Jabuou)s e sjuspisal
Japjo BuiAIb Jnoge si siyy ‘ybnoys ‘Ajjeonuy sjuspisal Jus o) Juepodwi Senssi ay) Ssalppe 0}
Buntiom Aousbe-ssoio pespul pue 8)eioi08lIp-ssos0 uodn saljal DO 1By} S8JBJISUOWSP YJOM SIY L

Womaweld ucnelausbay s, UIyIMm wealisyiom s ajdoad Jap|o ay} JoAISp pue

yiomawel{ Ao1j0d Juay 8y} uidispun [|Im yoiym a4 Jeye Joj Abeiens DY e ojul padojeasp aq

(M ueld uonoe Jelp siyl spJemio) Buirow ul ‘Aj9A1j0s)|00 ‘Usye) 8q 0} Pasu SUOIOB MauU Jeym pue
sonss| Buissalppe ul sdeb aq Aew aiay) aieym ajeneAs o0} a|qissod usaqg os|e sey 1l ‘suonesiuebilo
Jauyled Jno Jo asoy} yym way} buedwoo pue ‘suoljoe asay) Buios|(oo U 'ysim pjnom Asyy

se 9}l| Joje| aAl| 0} o|doad a|geus 0} Bulop aJe oM YJOM JO SJUNOWE JSBA B} JO SoudpIAe Bulieyyeb
pue ayej}s 1e senssi 8y} Jo ssauaieme Buisiel ul Jueuodwi Auenoiped useq sey ssaoo.d siy | “awi
ulJoysdeus siy} je ajdoad Jap|o Joj Buiop ate am jJeym sainjded jey) esiolexa buiddew e Ajjenusesse
SI} "8y JejeT Joj ylomeweld Aoljod sjusy — [N 8y} 0} 8yIT Jeye BUIAIT, Ulyim paysiige)se
sanuoud oibsjens ayy easiyoe diay o3 Buiop Apealie st DDY 1ByM JNO S}8S UB|d UOIOY Hedp Syl

uoldweys s.a1doad 1apl0 S. 0D ‘lI9Buy a)IN

600¢ aunr

«11N4d FHL OL1 34IT 431V ONIAIT,
d04 NVd NOILOV TIONNOD ALNNOD IN3X 14Vdd

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 255



‘saljIj10.) AHUNWWOD
a.nyny jo Buiuue|d
ay} u1 sjdoad Jsapjo jo

(s192l0
108l01d saiUNWWo)
a|qeule}sng)

‘'saoe|d BulBueyn

Hnpy ‘6@ ‘s|qissaooe Anj aJe jey} AJuNWIWOD
oy} ul sanjioey spiacld djsy 01 suonnguuoo
Jodojonsp Y99S 0s|e SSYY BuisnoH 9|qIsseaoy

JUSLUBA|OAUI SI 313y} 8insug ysiooIn JIBY2|98YAA PUB SOy Wiyl 1o Juswdojarsp
salbajens B|ODIN : JUSY ISOAA ay} sjowold 0} s|I0UN0D J10UISIQ YHIM SHJOM
‘'spiepuels 210D B ablawng (SSVYM) s991AI8S [BI00S JNPY Uy sjuswdojarsp
SWOH aWNayT UM | syIomalleld | -SeUy 0100y / S8le0) Buisnoy mau e Jo4 ‘saibsiens Alunwwod pue
20uepIoaok Ul 9|qeldepe | Juswdojprsg eUB Jusy Iseg | sseooid 47 01 indul pue aunjoniiselu] Ajunwiuio)
s1 Buisnoy mau ainsug [e007] :Buiobup Jo} suonhquiuoy Jadojaas/sawioy awnsi
‘aJeo Buisinu
/ |eljuUapISal 0} dAlBUISYE UB
SB SaWOY UMO ISy} Ul 3Al|
0} 9|doad Jap|o a|getau|nA ‘2JB0 |BlJUBPISAI 0} 2I0YD
a|qeus 0} UolepPOWWIODOEe 1Sy HAIO / SSISAA pIAeQ aAljeuls)e aAeY 0} a|doad Jap|o Jo} Ajjedlioads
aplaoad 0} }jing asoding I4d 010Z/600Z | sswayog BuisnoH paJs}|ays aled BIIXS JO UOISIACI]
‘Buisnoy s|gepJloye jo uoisiaoid
(wesy Bunenobsu ur spesu Buisnoy paJsyays Japisuo)
Koljod Buluue|q) ‘g|doad Japj|o Joj Juswissasse spasu Buisnoy
Rasea pleyory ayodsaq e jo uoneyuswaldwi sy} souanpul o} Wiy | jooisd-abe pue
s|geulelsns ale
‘'s9oIAes/Uodsuel) | sluswdojaasp
Rasea pleyory 0} Aljiqissaooe aaosdwil o} wie o} ssaoold Buluueld mau
SHM ay} ybnouy) sjdoad Jspjo Joj Buisnoy mau aouanjyu| | ||e ainsug — vy}
(umouy MAqisuodsal

£aininy ay} Joj suonelidsy

J1) @2unosay

peaj/ajeasawi]

uaye} Bulaq ale jey} suonoy

awooNo

a|qeulesns pue Jajes ‘Jabuodys ¢, jooid abe,, ag o} paubisap ale saIUNWWOD aINSUd 0] — | Ajuoud

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

TIONNOD ALNNOD LN3IM

Page 256



"SSWOH ul asn sjowoud

pue suol}99||02 abeuew

0} sanjlunyoddo Bulissiunjoa
BAIDZSWI] 1340 0} Wik Wlia)
JabuoT "palepisuod Bulaq

S| sUoISsas asold 9 Ajood
JaAljep 0} 8j0J BullesjuN|oA

JaBeuely ssao0y
uadQ ‘weyplo4 ang

"0}9 SBWOH J0o} SOX0q
yooq dnols) Buipeay "Jels Agq paJaAljap Ajjuading ale
9A0QE 3} JO SIUBPISSI IO} SUOISSDS as0ld 9 Allood
"s|eydsoy pue sasjusd Aep ‘Buisnoy palsyays
‘sawoy Buisinu pue |eljuspISal 0} PaJsAllep

SWIg} [BNSIA OIpNy pue $}00d J0 SUOID9||0D

Alpusiy

abe ale Aay)
Jey} ains ayew
0} SaljIuNWWo9
Bunsixa
dojeneq - g|

‘sjualo Buiobuo se [jam

se eusiluo AIgIbl3 SSYH
}8s apisiho ||e} oym a|doad
0} S92IAJSS UOIUSAIS)UI
Alles suoddns ey
Buluue|d pasuso uosiad

swn jers

awiy jels

NAVX ‘umoug |ieD

(Nawy) nun
Juswdojaaaq suy

Jusy ‘seldels Ajles

Jabeuep

108[04d- plemMpOOAA
umeQ -010¢

Yoley 0} peoesuod

Juswdojaasp

aousipne pue BuiuwelBoud sue g|gissadoe
uoddns ueo jey} SHI0MIBU pUB S3ljI|IoB) MBU JO
uonealo sy} ainsus 0} ‘sjosloid [elides Asy Woddng

‘Aoljod sanisianig
pue saiyjenb3 s, 00 yim paubije ale suonelado
pue saoIAIes Hun juswdojeaag SUY 8y} eyl ainsug

"|oJIU0D pue 32100
saoueyus Jey) A10}oalig oyioads Jouysiq B aplaold
-olgnd 8y} 0} 8|qISSa00. Sk paysi|geiss ale ey}
seale — sgny AJUNWWoD, palos|as BIA AJUNWLIOD
3y} 0} 9|qISS800Ek SI }BY} UOIIBLLIOJUI JO UOIJBOO)
ay} Woddns saolnlas uoljusalalul Aluea IHMOANI

‘suolssiwpe |ejidsoy aonpal pue |0Jju0D

pue 821042 ybnouy Juswabeuew-jas adoueyus
‘@ouspuadsapul Joyealb sjdoad Jap|o aAlb o} paubisep
s j08foud ay] ‘sieylom woddng uosiey Allunwiwion
8y} pue SjUB)SISSE UOSIEIT puB UOIJBUIOIU| ‘901AI9S
JojeBiaeu aJed ayl ‘Y OANI O} spuedls ueoyiubis
9aly) aJe asay] '108loud (siap|g 1usyf 4O UOHOY
Aejunjop 8y} ybnouys souspuadapu]) IMOANI

8y} awWoo sey sy} 4o QO 1slold aidoad Jop|O 40}
sdiysiauned sy} Jo4 Buippiq Ul [N}SS220NS SeM SSYH
‘10d 1us)y |elseoD pue wisise] yum diysiaunued uj

£ainyny ayy Joj suoneaidsy

(umouy
JI) 301nosay

Ajqisuodsal
peaj/a|easawi]

uay e} Bulaq aJe jeyy suonody

awo9nNo

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 257



"SBIIUNWLIOD
[e00] jo ste|id se usss

2q 0} sdnoub Japj|o Jo} aldse
pinom sjealjsa4 ‘swwelboid
ay1 1hoybnouy; sdnoib

abe Jayjo ypm joeiaiul [jIm
sdnoJb Jap|o aYI| seousipne
uspply 1ey; pabesiaus

S1}| "9SB( JOWNSUOD JIay}
Buisealoul pue Buluspim Aq
Jadsoud o} sjeansay Bulgqeug

"uone|os! [BID0S SsIWIUIL
0} a|doad Jap|o Jo} s80In0sal
AHUNWWOD pasealou|

‘g|doad Japj|o Jo} se2Inosal
AHUNWWOD pasealou|

‘'sdnoib 549
yum sdiysssuped dojansp
pue saolIAles Jno sjowold

0} saljunuoddo Jayuny
os Buiess ysnl si (949)
dnoug) saunin4 Jeyybug

‘padojarsp Buiaq
S1 SBWOH Ul }JB)S 10} YI0M
80U8osIUIWLSY Ul Bulules |

Buipuny
Jelsnpo
vya33as

awiy jels

sjuswAed
1alig

Ad papuny
$90IAISS

sjuelo) -
}ebpng eseg

NAavi
USJAA
yeles pue ‘zeyoueg
|oBYSI ‘Umolg [1eD

Buiobup

SPPUISIA/s10d/SSWYA
010¢ —600¢

(sidoad 18p|0

2 YlleaH) ueLieiql|
wswdojsasq 99IAI8S
‘Jayoul{ el |

"010Z Ul swwelboid sjusns spewl-lojie} e
Bunenuwiio) pels 0} seausIpne as1|ila) SSOID ||IM 6002
ul swwesboud yoeaiino s deisnjo ay] ‘sjuswbas
Jap|o pue BunoA o} uonjuaye Jenoiued Buiked

‘spe ay} ybnouy} Jayio Yyoes ypm Joelajul Jusy|

ul sdnouB siow sInsus ||IM J8)ISN[O 8y |9A3| [BUOIJEU
pue |euoibal ‘|e00| Je S3DUSIPNE USPIM 0} JUSY }SE]
Ul J9ISN|D B SE YJOM 0} S|eAl}Sa) SHe Juspuadspul

Aoy Bunsisse sI NQVYX “SUE pauIguiod pue

s|eAlsa) Jo) wuoje|d Bussuold pue sAleAOUUl UB
se uonisod |euoieUIB)UI pUB [BUOIEBU S JUdY dojaas(

‘'sasse|o Alljigels

[eanisod syeouansg uiaouo) aby ‘gnjo youni
Bune uieouon aby ‘Buiddoys paysisse uonoe
Alejunjop "seo1Aas uoijuaAald pue uoluaAlsiul AlJes
Joj Asuow juels) aied |eoog Bulwiojsued | aioddns
[eloUBUL 1008 AHUNWIWOYD @ AJBJUN|OA

‘pedojansp Buieg JooqpueH suosiad

J8pP|O 1USY 1SOAA PUB payoune|-al Ajjusdal aping
pue|s| Jauey] "8ouepinb pue adIApe ‘UoljewIoUl
Buipinoid ‘saolnles sAneuaAald Jo abuel JaAlep

0} J0}08s AJUNWWOD pue AJEJUN|OA Ul JUSLISSAU|

‘Syeousanas e 1o Buiddeyg ‘suoisplely
‘B 9 sdnoJb swos Yim JoBIUCD SPELU SABY JBIS [BD0T

"SUOISS8S 90USDSIUILISY JO} S|eLIS}eW 40 SUO0I}08||0D

£ainyny ayy Joj suoneaidsy

(umouy
JI) 301nosay

Ajqisuodsal
peaj/a|easawi]

uay e} Bulaq aJe jeyy suonody

awo9nNo

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 258



‘Pesu pajijuspl
0} A|oAljosye puodsal ueo
}ey} $901AISS 9|gelA ‘Ishqoy

"010Z udy wouy juelb
paseq eale Jo uolonpojul
3yl pue ‘malnal Buipuads
aAisusyasdwon xau

8y} puokaqg Buipuny sjdoad
Bunsoddns jo Ayjigeulelsng

"uonewlIojuI
JuBAg|aJ S}lngL)SIp
Jesiuanpe o} (sidoad
punogauwioy Jap|o Ajulew

0} $)004 jo sjos BuusAlep
Ajjusling) siaajun|oa

(STH) @d1neg Aleaqi] swoH

$10d/SSYM/eldosd
Bunioddng/sjiounon

oLIsIg/saousby
JuswiaAcdW| SWoH

uuep
sin/uilely saep

a|doad
Bunuoddng jusy

9abqod [81syD

's10SSasse palllenb os|e ale Asy| "S}eas 19|10}
pasiel pue sjiel qeib ‘69 sjdoad o} Juswdinba Jouiw
aplacud sueidiuyos | AJUNWIWOYD "SWOY UMO 1By}

ul ajes |99} o|doad 1By} ainsus 0} ‘sI0}0d}ap SYoWsS
pue s)o0| ‘Be s|doad s|qeiau|na o0} Juswdinbs Ajejes
pue siiedas Jouiw sapirold aoinlas uepApueH 8y

"S30IAISS

uosiadApueH spiemol Z/S /yy3 Bunnguiuod

os|e s| swuwelbold ajdoad Buinoddng sy
‘YijesH pue sybnolog/siouisiq Aq pepuny-09
‘salousby Juswanoidw| SWOH S U 0] 968°Z89F
Bunngujuoo si swwelbold ajdosd Buiwoddng sy

"suspJepp AHUNWIWOD pue sOSDd ‘@d1jod ‘shg
uonusAald swu) ‘uosiadApueH ‘aoIAI8S anosay
pue ali4 Juay| Buipnpoul seoinies sisuped Buisiolgnd

"'SBWIOY UMO
Jisy} Joy Bunes
ul sjdoad
Japj|o Joddns
pue Jledalsip
Buisnoy spoe}

pue ssuelql| Jo apew as / Wweyplto ang ‘Aeq Alunwwod weybiH se yons sjusas aleyljioe AlaAnoy - D1
"g|doad "SIY} UO UIaouo) ‘(s|leyep @Jow 1o} g awod}no
Jap|o Jo} ad10A Jabuong by Buiuoddns sSwy 99s) paysigeiss Buiag/dn jas swnio4 Jauoisuad
‘'sdnoub
1ebpng yoeal-0}-piey uo joedwi aanisod e aAey 0} S80IAISS
Nav pue NAVYM ‘UBIAA yeles |ednyno dn-pauiof Joj shkem aaneaouul Buioddns
s} yeis pue sg|dels Ajles | ‘swwelbold piemio4 auo}say|04 uo indul sJe pes
M3-dnoig "SJOLISI M T SY} JO YOBS UIY}IM SBINUNLILIOD
YlomiaN JabBeuepy 1o Buiddew sapnjoul syJomiau AJunwILIOD
uonoy 108l014- pJempoopp Bunsixs jo Buipuejsispun pasealtoul Joddns o}
Alunwiwon ume( - BuiobuQ | paieato dnolo yomisN UoIOY AHUNWWOD - IHOANI
. (umouy MAqisuodsal
Zaininj ay} Joj suonesdsy uaye} Buiaq aJje Jey) suonay awo9INQ

JI) 301nosay

peaj/ajeasawi]

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 259



¢oendoidde asaym saolnies
asay} Jayo o} gidoad

asay} yoeal sn djay siauped
pino) -swoy buiaes| wayy
wanaid 1ey) swajgoud yyesy
[elusw Jo sajljigesip yum
a|doad ‘siauen ‘6 8 sswoy
Jiay) Ul swy yuesyiubis
spuads oywm suolue

spunwpg
ang/iayoeal] Ue|
spJepuels
Buipes] jusy

‘paindasold sIapuayo JO Jaquunu sy}

9SBaJOUI pUE ‘S|BS JOOP-0}-100p Ul PAA|OAUI 9SOU}
Alejnonued ‘sispel; snbod jo saijAoe ayj 0} eidoad
uale o} ubledweos ssaualteme oljgnd Jno pusixg

‘(010 saueIq|

0} 82IAJ8S SIY} 8jowold pue 1sinys|dels ‘weydosyy ‘MaIAIBALY ‘Inogieyp|oD AUNWIWoD
s|doad Jsp|o punogashoy aabgod |a1suyD ‘weybiy 1e 6'8) ssuabins uapJepp AlunwiwoD pue pue sawoy
alow yoeal o} Jdwspy / Wweyplto ang ‘Aeq Alunwwod weybiH se yons sjusas aleyljioe UMO JIaU}
UIYIM 8IN08S
(wesa] | swoy JI3y} SpISINO JUSPLUOD |38} SJUSPISaI 8INSUS 0} pue sjes
Koljod Buiuuelq) uolepowwoooe suosiad Jap|o Jo Jnoke| pue ubissp | |98} |m sjdoad
Aasead pJeyoly | ayp ul Ajases Ajunwiwoo jo uonelspisuod abeinoouy J9p|O - Al
‘qny sAjeJsiuilupe 1OdM3I/SSYH/IbUNoD ‘uoljoe Joj Uolieoo| |esjusd
|esyuso e dojaasp o} Buipuny o8I lsuey | 0} JUSS pue wWJo} [essyal Aousbe-inw uo siiedal
10 |aA8] asinbal |m Ing weyuspa | ojqeunuspl Boj o} sjdoad Jepjo Bunisia sjeuoissajoid
101181 yoes ul paydope 10]id eAue | /Ae|n Ag|sa] a|qeus 0} Jauey] ui oaloid jojid |njsseoong v
"pPalWI| USaq SeY 32IAI8S 3y} Jo axeldn
Alleouolsiy alaym seale Ul sjun Alsies Ajunwiwo)
Auoyiny |eoo] pue paby sy disH ‘SHAM
‘SSVM yim diysisuped ul soinles sy ajowold
juowneag Uenig pue uepApueH JoO JiWal pue yoeal sy} puedxg
. (umouy MAqisuodsal
Zaininj ay} Joj suonesdsy uaye} Buiaq aJje Jey) suonay awo9INQ

JI) 301nosay

peaj/ajeasawi]

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 260



JabBeuepy
108[04d- plemMpOOAA
umeq buiobup

spunwpg
ang/iayoeal] Ue|
spJepuels
Buipes] jusy

spunwp3
ang/leyoeal] ug|
splepuelg
Buipel] jusy

spunwpg
ang/iayoeal] Ue|
spJepuels
Buipes] jusy

spunwpg
ang/iayoeal] Ue|
splepuels
Buipes] jusy

Kianijep jo ped 340
/juowneag Henis

S OAUINN ACD JUSY MWW :3}ISgam UO 3|qe|ieAr

0S|V "pPaunuspl aq 0} S}0BU0D / S90IAI9S A9Y So|qeus
1eyr (Alojoalip uoneuwlojul saw djay ued oyppn)
uonewloul AJUNWwWod [e20] Jo uolsiroid— IHMOANI

" 80USPIIUOD YIAA Ang, ‘Bwayos Japed) poob
syl sjowo.d 0} anuUOD [[IM Spiepuels Bulpes] jus

"'sauoz |osjuo) Bule)
p1ooD ysiigeise sdiysisuped [Bo0| }SISSE 0} SNUIIUOD
[l spiepuels Buipel] 1usy "sauoz [oauo) Bule)

ploD Bulwodaq Wodj Jyauaq [|IM Yoiym paiynuapl
U3a( 9ARY SE3JE OM] }SBI| JB alaUm plojleq

pue weysaAelo) ul payosuneal Buleq s1 swayos
3yl "8[emg pue JaAoq ‘s|IopA @bpuqun] ‘suolsplepy
ulI sawayos Jo uoisuedxs sy} Buiwoddns Apuaiino
aJe am pue AJUNOD 8y} SSOJOB PaYSI|geISa |[am
Aliej mou ale asay] - ssuoz [osuo) Buled pjod

‘Aj@1eIpawiLul

spuodsal wea ] uoloy pidey sy ‘sesiwalid

3y} uo [|s sI JapeJ; anbod sy} pue uolBWIOUI
saAlIgDal spiepuels Buipes | Jusy usypa “Aiejbing
uonoedsiq JajeD snbog noge sjdoad sulel; pue
sjuaAe suns yun Buiuies | Ajejes AJlunwiwioD sy

01/6002 Ul %SZ Aq siepel)
anboJ Jo s3lIAOE 8yl 1hoge sus|e BulAledal Jusy Ul
suonesiueblo AJunwwos Jo Jaquinu sy} 8seatoul 0}

1964 | "ssonoesd Buiped; snbog 0} SalIUNWIWOD [B20|
suale yolym waisAs Buibessaw 1ewa Buiutem Aueg

‘ABajens Alejes Alunwiwio)

£ainyny ayy Joj suoneaidsy

(umouy

JI) 301nosay

Ajqisuodsal
peaj/a|easawi]

uay e} Bulaq aJe jeyy suonody

awo9nNo

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 261



‘seale ysu ybiy |e o}
aolIAles pajable) jo AlsaleQg

"9pIMAIUNOD
90IAJ8S Y} Wealjsulew o

Juelo
JUSLIUIBA0D)

Buiobup

Buiobup

juownesg Uenig

juownesg Uenig

juownesg Uenig

‘Ae|Bing jo Jesy Jo Auejbung
ybiy jo seale 0} saolAles uealpueH palsble) JaAleQg

"oy 1B 8In23s pue 3jes [ENpPIAIpUI
ue Buideay spJemo} sinquiuoo disy osje siojosiep
9HOWS pUE SBS) SB YoNs SIosuas JaYlQ "sJa||eo
pajuemun Aq paliom ate Asyy i djay uowwns

0} sJasnh a|qeud asay] "ASAA Ulynm palsyo Buleq
S90IABP 9JB09[9] 89U} JO SUO aJe suoyng Jajed snbog

"0OSDd Jo usplem
Jiayy Jayne yum dn Buipeswl jo painsse aq pue

ul doup ued algnd sy} Jo SIaqUIBW 813UM pUB Uaym
Inoge sabedgapa Jisy} elA o1ignd sy} 0} uoijewoul
Buipiroid aq |[m 82IAI8S UBpPJBAA AlUNWILWIOD 8y

'SdYAD pue s[1ounod ybnolog/siolsip

ay} woul Bunjoeq [N} sey pue syjuow g|

Joj)se| [m yolym (3se3 pue jsinys|dejg/Aemdays)
auojsple|\ pue (abuymeH pue ppAT/IeYyaJ4op
JuoiliayD) Aemdaysg ul paysijge}sa usaq

aney sayis Japuyyyed om| "welsAs sonsnl [eulluLo
8y} ojul Anus |ewlo} alojad swa|qold aAjosal

0} Jayiabo} salunWIWOD pue SISpUaLo ‘SWIOIA
Buibulig Aq (ssnuoud | Ded 6°9) suleouod Ayloud
JIay} se Alunwiwiod 20| 8y} Aq pauijuspl sanssi
ssalppe spooyinoqybiaN aAleIolIsaY,

‘'seaJe wajqoud ul soussaud

aoljod usyjbualls 0} sdYdD Y} pue Way} ypm
Bunyiom pue swwelboud Buioljod pooyinoqybiaN
BICISIA J1BY} Ul 821|0d Juay Buioddns ‘awayos
uspJepp AHUNWILIOYD 1U8Y [NJSS800NS 8y} Uo pling

£ainyny ayy Joj suoneaidsy

(umouy
JI) 301nosay

Ajqisuodsal
peaj/a|easawi]

uay e} Bulaq aJe jeyy suonody

awo9nNo

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 262



‘uondasolad

alignd sAoudwi djsy pue
seale Jo JuswaAoidw [ensIA
8} isIsse ||Im Jusy ues|D

‘'sanuoLd

10vd jo Aianijap sy}
ul syun aolAles DY ebebug

"SADM 9y} Ag painsesw
se aWwu9 jo uondealad

ay} ul Juswanosdw|
‘sjusli|o disyy Jo jleysq

uo sulsouo/sanssi Alajes
Ajunwwod uodal 0} s||s
Aessaoau ay} yum Ausple
3|geJaulnA sy} Jo saWoy
3yl JsIA oym siao1jo dinbg

's.dddd 4o
sue|d ay} ul paoeiquia Ajjn}
aJe uone|ndod Jspjo ay} Jo

SUI3DUO0D BY} JBY} 8INSUS O]

Buiobup

Buiobup

Buiobup

Buiobup

Buiobup

Buiobup

‘YjjesH |ejusiy

pue ‘AJunwiwo) sy} Ul aled ‘suosiad s|qelaujnp
ypm Buljesq ‘uonosiold ynpy yim jusweabebus
pue Buipuejsispun ue aAey o} Buluiely Jisyj jo

ued se paddinba aq |m susplieps AJlunwiwoD DY

‘fysjes Ajunwiwoo jo uondsolad olgnd
8y} aAnosdwil 0} seale wa|qo.td o} yoeoidde pajabie)
B ISAII8P 0] SANBIIUIJUSH UBS|D 8U} UHM HIOAA

“YHMm }|ESp BB SUJB0UOD [BO0|
paynuapl yeyl ainsus 03 Buinijod pooyinogqybisN

ypm uonounfuod ul yoeoudde (usyiebo |
SSIIUNWILLOYD puUe sisuled) | DVd @y} eoelquig

‘'seale [e20| Ul
awLIo Jo uondealad ay} arosdwil a10jai8y) pue SBNSSI
A1ajes Ajjunwiwod jo Buiodal eipaw jo uoljejuasald

ay} arosdwi 0} susuned A0 UHM YoM

"sJaled sWoY YUM a0BLISIUI JISY) BIA S8IPOQ
Aoiniels 0} sulaouoo Ajajes Allunwiwiod |eao] Jodal
0} AJap|s s|qelaulnA sy} 1o} SWUSIUBYOSW SPIACIY

‘|eA8] JoLISI 1B 1IN0 PaLIIBD SJUSISSISSE
o1ba1ed1s ay} ul pajosjal Aj|ny ale AJunwiwiod

JP|0 28U} JO SUISDUOI/SMBIA 3U} JBY} 8INSUS 0}
sdiysiauped uononpay swuD uo siaupued yim JIopA

£ainyny ayy Joj suoneaidsy

(umouy
JI) 301nosay

Ajqisuodsal
peaj/a|easawi]

uay e} Bulaq aJe jeyy suonody

awo9nNo

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 263



0l

SIZUSM O C>_O.=m0

‘'sue|d uonoe uoneydepe abueyo sjewo dojansp

0] M3IA B yim (padinbal aseym diysisuped Japim

3y} pue) saoIAIeS D) ssotoe sdoysyiom uoneydepe
abueyo sjewio ino Buikies “diysisuled jusy| ay;
ssoJoe abueyo ajewl|o Jo sjoedwl ay} Jo SSaUBIEME
Buisealoul ybnoiyy Alloedes uoneiydepe Bulpjing

‘(ueay uo oIy S
sjoedwi anem Jeay ““6°s) suonoe uoneidepe aunyny | 404 SIGEUIEISNS
WLIOJUI O} SJUBAS JBU)EAM 3I3A3S 0} AJjIqeJaujnA wsy} sxew
pJEPPOD) JuaLIND aulwBlap o} diysiauped jusy ayy | O SSHIUNWIWOD
-uopiooT Apuspp | Ssodoe sjiold s1oedw syewi ) (8207 B Bunjeuspun jooud
‘sbueyd -9}BWI[O pue
ajewI Jo spoedwi ainyny ‘palinbas auaym Aunod sy} ssoloe JUSLUUOIIAUS
2y} Joj pasedaud |jam ale suonoe uoneidepe A1BSS999U 8YE) 0} MSIA B UM ay}
ash Aay} sa0IAJas Y} pue abueyo sjewio o} Buijejal syealyl pue saunuoddo ul sabueyo 1oy
a|doad Jap|o 1By} ainsus 0 Buiob-up | A8y auiwislep o} diysiauped 1uay ayi Yyum Bunuopp aledaid - 3}
‘uojeg |eanynd
awll] jels Navy ‘seideis Ajles }N0 ||OJ PUB UOISSILUWIOD JUS) [BAllSSH [BININD N
‘(019 ‘oneblisus ‘ysaly)
Aieayisod ueyy Jaygel (pnoj “Wsep-djay s} puB HOJOD Wol sojApe
‘swoss|qnoy) Ajeanebsu / UOIJEWIOJUI UIBCO PUB JOBISIUI 0} SOIIUNWILIOD
panIsolad ale sanjasway} [e20] pue sdnoub abe |je mojje |im s1osloid ssay |
oym sjdoad Jsbunok ‘puokag pue peidwA|O |einynod ay; Buunp syosloid
ypm Bunpiom Aofus pue JaAIap / dojeAsp pue Jaylo yoes Yim 3Jomiau
swodjam || sjdoad Jop|O 0} sdnoJb Ajlunwiwos pue sisiUe anesy) 19aJs
‘Aj9A08Ys siow paisAlep Joj wuojeld e si (921n0say auIjUQ SoUBWIOLSY
oq ued sjosfoud jey) os JoopinQ pue Aiojeiqa|ad) HOdOD 1usH
SSBluNWWOY |BJO] pUE sisie Navy | jo Ausiteaiun ayy Agq padojensap Buiaq a21nosas suljuo
Joauis jo yJomjau Buoss e ‘Zayoues [9BYDIN ue Jo Juswdojaasp sy Buipoddns sI NQYX N0}
dojaAsp 0} sauldse HOdOO sw yels pue ss|dejs Ajjes SHE }93J}S YsI|qelsT :JusY [BASSS [BININD YN
‘spJepuels Buipes| pue joyooly ‘sbnig o) Bunejal
SONSSI UO S|elaal dYeW 0} S||s AlBSsaoau ay)
Buiobup | ypm papiroad aqg os|e [Im susplepp Allunuwiuiod DO
. (umouy Ajqisuodsal
£aininy ay} 1oy suoneidsy uaye} Buiaq aJe jey} suonoy awo93no

JI) 301nosay

peaj/ajeasawi]

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 264



bl

‘'seale |elni ul Ajjeloadsa
‘S90IAJ8S SN AHUNWWIOD

"JaLLIEY Uy AQ palisA0D

Apealje jou (Aungyo0}g pue weyus) sdnolb Ajunwiwiod
[ED0] 0} sasSNQIUIW JO uoisiAcld a8y} spuny} os|e DOM
"AlUN0D By} SSOJIOE SADIAISS JBLUBY U 0| SHoddns
Ajleoueul DOy “Asuinol yoes Joj sjqefed a9} |ews

Bunuoddns ul saaual (saunbBy B ypm ‘Jeak Jad g3 si diysiaquusy “8Jjusd umo} }salesu
aAnoe Jo [enusiod Buimolb 60/8002) 3y} 0] Joop JIay} wody Ajjoalip siaquisl S} S8y} Yolym
8y} os1jiin 0} ussy sl DO ed )09g3F gqqoD yisuusy 90IAJ8S BpLI-B-|BIp 9|qISS800k A||N} B SI JSLIEY JUS)
"'sasnd Joojj mo| Buluunl saoialas a1edIpul 0} suljARI |
pue sdew podsuel; ollgnd uo pasn Apealje ale s|oquiAsg
V/N SHM "S8}N0J pUBR $80IAI8S SNQ JOOJ} MO| asiolignd Jajeg
‘swwelboud
s1y} Juswiidwos o) sAeidsip sjqerswin pue sbejy
dois sng mau Buipiaouad os|e si Jua) }jseg ul yoeoossbelg
‘'sajod dois sng mau pue saje|d Aemues|d yym sAemies|o
()nysseoons dojs snq ‘sesng Jooj-Mmo| Yim uonounfuoo ul sssooe
'skepinjes | piq Yejsyory Ases o} siopieoq pasiel JaAIIBP 0} X9/V9/9 PUB X¥/Y /Y
0} sAepuo|y uo Aep ay} Buunp | 1) LL/0LOZ salnod g|buel |, Aingisiuen ayi 0} suswaosduwl
Aousnbaly sjnuiw-g| Jenbas | Y0013 OO 10 swwelboid e peouswiwod Apealje sey OO
B JOAI|BP ||IM ‘[NjSS800NS ‘seale [elnJ ul
# ‘yoiym pasedaud Buleq 1 1-9002 "11/0L0Z A4 %6/ | Al Jo pajgesip
sl yodsuel ] Joj Juswuedsqg 01/6002 Jua)| Joj ue|d yoeal 0} %G¢ Ag seale (dgo) diysisuned sng Ajjenp ale oym asoy}
By} 0} PIg eSO V | MOOLF DO Hodsuel | |e207] Ul SS900B J00J} MO| UM sasng jo abejusalad aseaioy] 10} S92IAISS
Buipnjoul
‘(swisyos sy} woddns ‘gidoad
0} Juswuiarob wouy Buipuny Jap|o Joj suondo
Juelb ul jlejuoys jenusyod "+09 J0o} 0€:60 0} 00:60 Wol) Hodsuel
0} anp SSIsSSE 0] J|NOIYIP) gqqoD yisuusy pouad aJje} Aleuoissaouad pusxe o} Buipuny apirocid aseaJlou| - g
; (umouy j1) Ajjiqisuodsau
é3ainyn} ayj Joj suonesidsy 59n0S0Y] pEs|/olEasaLLL uaye} Buiaq aJie jeyy suonay awo9nQ

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Apgissaooe pue Jodsuely anosdwi o) — z AJuold

Page 265



¢l

"SUMO} [B00] pue |eldsoH
Ainquiad WoJy/0} SUOROBUUOD
uodsuely o1ignd Jepeg

‘g|doad
Jap|o Aq peaoe} sabus|eyo
3y} JO SSauaIEeME S1B3ID

"AHunwiwoo

By} Ul Sa2IAI9S $S900k Aay}
MO J3AO0 |0JJU0D pue 8210Yo
asloJaxa 0} 9|ge a|doad Jep|O

‘'sieak ainyny ul 417
8y} Ul papn|oul syuswaosdwl
Buioko pue Bupjjiem BuiobuQ

o3

slo
UOISSILUILWLIOD
1o 10bpng
aseq

dln

01/600¢
wz3 xouddy

dln
01/600¢
AGL1L3 DOM

SHX

Buiobup
lleH ¥8JeQ
800¢ sunp

J40/SHM

SHX

SHM

“ainjonyisesul doys snqg spelbdn pue SajoIYsA JOO-MO|
9]qIss922k pue ulspow apiroid ‘sslousnbaly adl1Ales
aseaJoul 0} s||apA 9Bpliqun] pue |eidsoH Ainquiad
‘aBpuquo] ‘suoispiejy Bunjull ‘2 pue g seinoy Joj pig
Helsyory 14a Nuwans o} s eALy ypm diysisuped ul 90

‘g|doad Jap|o Aq paoe} sanssi Jodsuel) Jo ssaualeme
aslel 0} Uone}nsuoD 47 01 asuodsal ul pue wnio4
s 8|/doad Jap|O ybnouyy "B seyei0i0alq DO Jayjo pue
sjousig ul susuned yim Bunuom SSYY 1USY 1SaAA U]

‘'sasnq Ul uo spouad Buoj Joj Bunus ueyy

Jayiel podsuel) Hoosa AIBJUN|OA pue SIXE} 0} SS820E
pue sjuswAed joau1q palayo mou eusiuo AJjiqibie Jesw
1eyl sanuao Aep Buipuspe suosiad Jap|o Jus)y 1se] u|

‘Hodsuen
0} yoeoudde dn psuiol e si aisyj ey} ains syep
JAgesip yum sjdoad BunoA pue saijiwel yum desaQ

"'au0}soy|04 Ul
sjuswaroldwi uelysepad pue JsAoq Ul INOQ JaAY By}
Buoje sinos 9|0k e ‘19a41g ybiH ueag ul Aemio0) mau

B ‘WeylueyD pue Aungisiues ussmiaq yul| 8j9A2 peol-4o
ue apnjoul 01/600Z 40} pasodoud sawsayos — syiomiau
BuiloAo pue saljuad umo} 0} ssad0k uellsapad arosdw|

"(MG.3) Weysanelo pue (MGZ3) piojueq ul
sawayos |eoo| apisbuoje sBuissolo paddoup Jo (M00LF)

swwelboid sapimAUNOD B SI 818 'SSOJD 0} JaIsed
speoJ ayew o0} sqlay paddoip 0 Jaquinu sy} asealou]

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 266



€l

‘uonewJoyul
JuBA8|aJ INQLISIP /oSIlBApE
0} SJasjun|oA aoIAlag Aleiql

SWOH pue saLleidl| Jno jo
apew ag p|noo ash sA0ge Sy

A0GC3

V/N

600C woi4

SHX

JBW|OOAA W]
ally ukuep

SHX

‘siojelado [eoo| yum diysiasuped
ul Bunjom ‘yuay ul sdols sng uepodwl 1Isow g9s sy}
Jo ||e apesbdn o} swwelboud e jo uons|dwos ay} a8s

(1M yoiym ABslenys uonewlolu] Lodsuel ] 21gnd S,.00M
o Aued o} Bulobuo si yIopA “ebelayolq / uoleuIplo-0D
ybnouy; pue siojebireN sied ‘shemales) ‘68 ‘A||eoo|
papiacid aouepinb pue aolApe ‘uoleulIoiul paacidw|

‘Ayoljgnd
pajejal Lodsuel) Jayjo pue sdew snq ‘sysjes| wodsueln
alignd ||e uo psjowold sIJaquinu |euoljeU SUl|SABI| By

"sanss| yjjeay pue JLodsuel uo Ajuiol yJom 0} s10d
pue DOy ‘sisni) [eldsoy usamjaq juswaalbe |aAs| ybiH

‘Ajoys

JUSY ISOAA UM pala|dwiod ag [|m JIOAA D18 saleld]|
pue sioyJewladns/sielidsoy/sauebins 4o eia painguisip
sjaljes] 000°'0G JuSY }se3 ul sjeydsoy Jofew ¢ Aq
papuny Apjuiof pue peonpoud siajjes| |eudsoH 0} ssa20y

sy

0} 9|qe|ieAr
Apealje suondo
uodsuesn

3y} Jo aleme
alow s|doad

oYe - 8¢

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 267



142

SSVA - 800¢

SaAIY2IY
pue saleiqi

SaAIY2IY
pue saleiqi

ssuelqi

SaAIY2IY
pue saleiqi

JanO eAue |

S90IAISS SAljRIUSASId

uo snooj e pue saljlienbaul yjesy buifiuapl
‘poje|dwod sjuswissasse spasp o16sjens o 1ousIg
yoes ul paysiigelse sdnoib Buiaq|em pue yjesH

‘'suolssas Buows dois 1o}
sanuaA g|qelns ajqissod se sbuiping Aeiqi slowold

"0}8 SCOWAIDY
‘MON JUS) ‘uoleonp3 NPy ‘siauonioeld Juspuadspul
‘(LYVQa>) Wea] uoioy [0Yooly pue Bniq jusy ‘neaing
JasjunjoA ‘Juswdojans sHodg jusy ‘splepuels
Buipes] ‘uonowold yyesH yum diysiauped ul - sjusas
suoinjosay siea A MaN B sJieq Buiaiy/Buneg AyyesH

‘Alelqi] pusssAels je Aeq uoljewloju| AJlunwwon

‘(diysisuped
2JJUSD UMO| 3U} YIM plojysy pue wnasnjy ybnolog
pJojleq yim pioflieq ‘A18100S [EJLI0]SIH WEYSSARID

yum diysisuped ul jousiq pussasels) ayy ul 6a) syjem
|[eolIO}SIH pue AJels)i] os|e ‘sjiouno) ybnologaoulsiq
LM s1ollsip sWlos Ul pue Jiels uoljowold yiesH 10d
[e20] yum diysisuped ul passalap syem Buiai] AyyesH

Jybram
pue ainssaid poojq SJO}UOW pUB SSINSE3| "SUOISPIBN
ur jojid e Ajjualino — sAemales) uiyim Buliojuow yjesH

swg|qo.d

uiesy jo
uonuaaalid ay}

HagnH MIIA uo snooy Jajeald
196Je] 2vM/dL] ‘sallabins 4o pue s|ejidsoH 0} sseooe aAoidw| sl alay] - V¢
. (umouy 31) | Anjiqisuodsal
£9inynj ay3 Joj suonelidsy e EETE EREEI uaye} Bulaq ale Jeyj suondy awo9}nQ

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

aJeoyjjeay 0} SSa29e J13}3a( dARY pue SaAl| Jalyjjeay pea| o} ajdoad Japjo djqeud o] — ¢ AjLoLd

Page 268



Gl

‘lendsoy ur dn Buipus uosiad

e JusAald 0} SB 0S Uoljoe a)e} pue sBulpeal/sjenplalpul
ul ssbueyo uo dn yoid o3 sueloiulo ss|qeus siyl (sDl1)
suolipuod wis) Buoj yum sidoad jo Jaquinu Buiseaoul

"apIMAIUNOD uels ue o} papiaoad Bulaq si juswdinba yjeasysia] ‘oid jusy

90IAJ8S aY} WEealjsulew 0 | JUSWUISA0D) Buiobup ay} uo Buipjing pue swuwelboid gSAA syl Jo Wed sy

"9810J9X8 pUB 90USISIUILIABL ‘UOISBYOD |BID0S ‘UOIIE|OS]

‘AjAnoe 10dM0%3 Buionpal jo sws} Ul sawoolno BulisAliaq euole

WweaJjsulew se 1no ||oy pue SSY L 1/8002 U8y 1S Ul slaquiall 009 JoAo sgn[o Buog JaA|IS

‘posiubooal usaq sey pasu sy} aloym

Jebeue josloiq | sojdoad jo sdnoub Ayiuspl 0} papiroad Ajjesyoads sijey)

‘PIEMPOOAA (V11D) uEBlsISSY UoSIelT pue uoljewloiu| AJlunwiwo)

umeq — Bulobup | syl Ag saianoe uonowold yyeay 1o AsAlaq - IMOANI

‘Bunjiom

ol e Bulieys ojul sjowold o} swie yoiym Bunasw

Kouabe 1jjnw e s1 WnJo4 suosiad Jap|O U ISaAA 3YL

"saAlenIul JuIol auniny wojul [ yaiym pieoyg abueyn

SU0SIad Jap|O 8yl paysiigelss sey Jua) 1sapn “sueld

ssaulsng pue saibslelis BUIUOISSILIWIOD alnyny WJOUI

M syl (YNSI) Juswssassy spaaN d16a)ens julor ay)

SsSYY - Buicbug | dojeasp 0} senbesjjoo yyesy olgnd yum Buniom sSyy

‘(pig @AeS "SBIHUNWIWOD JI13Y} pUB SI98}UN|OA 8U} 0} SHjauaq

‘Juelo) [ 0} }1s8AU| UY) Jaylo Buionpoud pue aouspuadapul pue uolisnioul

wiojay aJen [e100S 8y} Wody Ainseal| |e1oos Bunowolid ‘Ayyesy sjdoad Japjo Buidasy

Hoddns yim psweassulew WH Sk ||am se ‘ased wley-Buol Jo [eldsoy ojul suoissiwpe

Buleq mou s pue |njssaoons | Wol WgS'LF a|geploAe aonpal 0} paubisap Sa2IAIaS J9aJUN|oA

panoid sey }| "SeIAIaS | YyUm papund Jo abuel e eIA palaAlsp SI '} Juspuadapul ulewal

mau sjowold 0} yjesH Jo} "uoleoo||y a|doad Japjo Buidjay je pawie suonesiueblo AJunuwiwiod

sJauolssilwo) 216s)eag ojul yyesy pue AJBJUN|OA pUB S, | Dd ‘DM Usamiaq diysiauned

sonssI Yjeay |eo0| pasy 0} Buisooyn e SI}| YJom aanejusaald aaneAouul jo ojdwexs

sdnoub Bulaq|iapn pue yiesH s.10d ue si (949g) dnois) aining Jajyblg ay) Jusy 1SSpA Ul
é3ainjn} ay3 Jo} suonelidsy {TetE] 1) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Buiaq aJe jey} suonay awo91hQo

e 901n0SaY peaj/ajeosawl | : :

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 269



9l

J9|doad
Jap|o 1obJe) 1By} SJUNOISIP
JoJ0 ueD am shem alay} aly

SSWYA

Jojeuiploo)
Juswdojensq
Jasapunjon
‘aumolg e|o2IN

Jayoui4 eiou|

Jayoui4 eiou|

Jayoui4 eiou|

JUBIS aJe) |e1nog Bulwiojsuel | eIA ajgissod
apew SadIAIaS SAlleIUaAaId Ul JuswW)SaAul Buiseaou|

‘aAnoe Aejs 0} sjdoad
Jap|o Jo} ssniunuoddo — Jusy alojdxg 7 1usy USIA

"aWIBYos SAIDZaWI] Y}
ul sjdoad Jap|o Joj sauielql ul saljiunpoddo Jasjunjop

‘Auoyiny yyesH sy yum diysisuped
ul Auelqi s1ebisspi 1e play sesse|o aouep pue eboA

"S){|em |BDLI0)SIH pue Alelsl OS|e ‘S|Iounod [Bdo)
YU sjoLsIp swos Ul pue jjels uoljowold yjesH 10d
[e20] yum diysisuped ul passalap syem Buiai] AyyesH

SSYHM 'S80IAI8S BAljEJUSASId DIOSL
‘Aleledoldde
asay} JaAlsp 0} Jels swoy aleo Buiuies; pue
aA0ge SY | sswoy aJed ul suolssas aslolaxe paseq Jiey) Buipinoid
6002 Jaguwaidag ‘'sdnosb
Aq eoe|d paseq AHUNWLWIOD JapIM YHMm SUI| oew o} (s|ppid e aJl] aAl}0E
ul Jayjo pasinay | se yq) peby syl disH yum 8’1 sdiysisuped Buidojanag ue aAl| pue
asioJaxa Jejnbal
'9|A188)1| 8AII0E UE UlBjUIBW ul syedioiued
0} swa|qoJd yjesy ayioads yum sjdoad Jspjo pwoddns sy Jo sjdoad
UoleNY 81e) | 01 padojeAsp Jaylni aq [[m $8SIN0D }9310sIp Jo abuel v Jepjo 8yl - g¢
1ebpnqg "AJISJBAIP [BIN}ND pUB WISLIND}
Nav pue [ednyno ‘yyesy ‘Bunyew-soe|d 0} 81nqLIUOD JBY} JUSY JO
swlj jels NAVYX - IV | S8lH[ed0] JusJiayip sy} ul pasaaliap sjosfosd Bunino-ssoid
, (umouy y1) Ayjiqisuodsaul
é3ainjn} ay3 Jo} suonelidsy e e T uaye} Buiaq aJe jey} suonay awoanQ

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 270



Ll

‘Buliepus)
anlladwod s|qeus | Dg plojysy [IeH YaJeQ ‘deoy sy} Buibpug — saoinies
0} sdiysuone[as parosdu) / SSYM 6-800Z | Jojoes Alejunjoa pue Ajunwwod jo Buluoissiwwoo juiop
"S90IAIOS gIVE)Y
pauolssiwwod Apulof 1S9MA pue ise] ul sdnolb uoneuswa|dll [BOO| Ylm Jusy]
pue Aemyied aied pajeibaju| 10d 6002 ssoJloe padojanap Ajulol Buiag ABajens a4 Jo pug
1ebpnqg "alebiely ‘9SnoH Y00JgISapA
‘shemuyied aieo panosdul) aseq / |dd 1002 pue usplajua| ‘MBIAISSAA 1B Saaus)) ale) pajelbsiu) S92IAIDS
21e2 |e100s
JUBWIUOIIAUS pue yyesy
‘2Jed SSYM ajnoe-uou e ul sjdoad Buissasse ‘eale ay} 1noybnodyy | psejeibajul senaq
JO Jajsuel) Ul skejap paonpay 10d 8002 spaq Juswssasse Buisn swes | abieyosiq psjelbeiu) | Buidojensqg - O¢
1eBpnq swdojaasp
Nawi Nawi 9oUBIpNE 1o} sjapow aAlleAouul dojaasp o}
awin Jeis ‘umolg jles) | suonesiuebio pauoddns 41y pue SO4Y JUSH YU YJOAA
sauseg uyor (ye @9s) sqnjo Buog JsA|IS
‘uoisnjoul AJUnNWIWOoD
JabBeuely josloid Hoddns jey; seipiunuoddo jeioos pue Bupjows
- pJempoopp dois ‘eslolex3 paseg JieyD ‘Buood suo 0} suo se
ume(q -Bulobup yons sanjialoe uonowodd yyeay jo Asaiag — IMOANI
1ol1d dnoJs) saining
sjuelo) Jopybug wouy 1no jjoJ B se sdnols uigouo) aby uiypm
oil0adg 8002 paJaAllep sawwelbold asioiaxs palesas JUSY 1SSAA U|
"s||e} Jo ys1 Bulonpal uoneoO|Y "+0G aJe
pue souejeq Buiroidwil yyesy oym a|doad o} ajeaipap ate yoiym jo Auew sdnoibgng
‘a|doad Jap|o Jo} 9|ge|eA. Buisooyn Bulaq [19pA 2 Uleay |e20] 1e Juswsalbe elA suoneoo|e
sawwelboid asiolexg s.10d Buiobup yyesy Buisooyd elIA papun{ sswayosg snolawnn
; ainjny} ay} Jo} suonesidsy {TetE] 1) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Buiaq aJe jey} suonay awoanQ
¢ T 92JNn0Say peaj/ajeosawl | : :

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 271



8l

‘obejs Ales

ue dn payoid aq ueo sanssi Yjeay ey} Uesw ysiym
slole aJeos|a ] 0} puodsal 0} Buiuels mou ale saolIAlSs
Buisinu Alunwwo) “Alunod ay} ssoJsoe saodloeld

Juelo Bulobup dS pue SSYY S.10d Ylog SaAjoAul pue Bupuiom

JUSWIUIBA0D) $10d/SSYM paje.ibajul jo sjdwexa poob e si swwelboid QSAA BYL

‘UiesH alidnd jo siniisul

Jebeueyy 1osloid | |eAoy— Z plemy yjesH Buipueisispun 0} uoielipalooe

- pJempoopp so|qeus eyl v1|D oy} Joj Ajjeayioads paubissp

umeq -Buiobug | Buluresy uonowold yyesy jo BuluoissiLWoD — INOANI

dnoig
o16s)ens

S92IAIBS ‘epuabe uonusaald poddns o} Buipuny 108loid

[BIO0S )NPY a|doad Jap|O 4o} sdiysiauped Joj} SSYH A pa) piq

siabeuepy siabeuepy RousbBe-nnw IHOAN]| ‘Bupiom uiof woddns jey; Jusy

yousiq | 1ousiq — Buiobup 1se3 ul sdiysiauped oibejens 1npy Jo juswdojansg

‘Buryiom juiof

pue uonesol-09 Jo siseydws Jajealb e s| aisl) $92IAISS

Buiobup Jno asiulspow am se os|y ‘1o8foid QSAA OS|e Bg sy

wea | " Juno)

‘wia)sAs spule|dwoo aie) ale) Jawolsny seousliadxg Bunjep, HOQ Japun JUsWaA|0AU| 21ignd

[e100g pue yyesH dn psuior 8002 pue ale) Jswolsny Uo passnooy sis Jsydopy Aue]

"S90IAIOS Juay 1s9pNAseT Joj sued AlsAlep pue uonejuswa|dwi

pauoissiwwod Apuiol jo el [e00] aARY [|IM ]| seale salijuold Asy g uo Buisnoo}

abuel 0] sS900E BARY SJaIED) sJale) 6002 | pedojansp Buiaq si ABajeus siale ynpy Aousby B
; ainjny} ay} Jo} suonesidsy {TetE] 1) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Buiaq aJe jey} suonay awoanQ

¢ T 92JNn0Say peaj/ajeosawl | : :

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 272



6l

"S9AI| paj|liny oAl Asyy moy
J9A0 |0JJUOD pUB 8210YD |edl
asl1oJaxa ued ajdoad Jep|O

sdas

SSVA - 600¢

SaAIYaIY
pue saleldi]

S8AIYDIY
pue saleiqi

‘Jayoul{ eloL |

uolieanp3 jnpy

‘SIY} aA8Iyoe 0] pajoddns aq pjnoys Asy}
MOY SUIWLIBIap 0} pue saAll umo sy} sbeuew o} ajdoad
Bunioddns pue (Juswssasse j|as) swalsAs Buidojanaq

‘(saLelq] Anis pue plojleq

‘puasanels) je Auenbal 1esw sdnoib Aieiqi paiedwi
Ajlensia ‘dnolub Bulusysi| yooq Jaaoq ‘Aleiqi] auolsplep
1e Alyuow sjasw dnoib Buipesy gNIN) seousipne
oloads 1k pswie ssoyi Buipnjoul ‘sdnous Buipesay

‘(Ue0] J0J JSOW) $92IN0SSI UOIIBLUIOUI

pole|al-Jaoued Jo suono9|od ¢ sjowold pue spiaoid

0} YoM} JaoueD Aempaly g WUy pue Woddng Jeoue)
uejwoey yum diysisuped ul Bunom os)y “saLelq)|

6S Ul suonoa|jon "uonduosald uo s)ooq jo Ausalep

ay} ybnouy} swsjqoid yjesy |eiuswl ayelspowl 0} pjiw
yum sjdoad jsisse 0} swie — swayosg djgH ued syoog

(V¢ 99s) saieq Buiniy/bune AyyesH

‘salielql| 8|iow ay} os|e pue salleldq||
apn|oul YoIiym sqnH AHUNLIWOD Ul pjay 8 0} $80Jn0sal
uonewlojul Buionpoid ale oym (siuelsissy Uosiel

pue uonewoju| AJUNWWOoD) Sy Yyum Buneloge|on
108loid IHMOANI 8yl Jaalep o} diystsuued ul Bupiops

"JanoQ
9 8NUSAY POOAA ‘edoyuels je suoissas Alsbins/ul doup
Apjeam Joj saueldl| Buisn ale sisulel| yyesH jusy 1seq

‘'sbuiles swoy Jeo 1o Buisnoy palsyays
UIYIM paJtaaljep aq 0} sewwelboid pue sasinod
1] Jo abuel abue| e Buidojaasp ale uoneonpa jnpy

a|qissod se buoj
B Jo} Alunwiwo
ay} Ul Buiaj|
deay 0} JapJo

ul souspuadapul
pue yjjesy umo
Jiay} abeuew

0} a|doad
Bupsissy - a¢

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 273



0¢

'0102 udy woyy juesb
paseq eale Jo uolonpojul
ay} pue ‘malnal Buipuads
anIsusyasdwon pxeu

ay} puokaq Buipuny sidoad
Bunsoddns jo Aljigeuleisng

1ebpnq ‘Juswdojarap
Nav pue Nawi 9oUBIpNE 1o} sjapow aAlleAouul dojaasp o}
awl} yeis ‘umolg jles) | suonesiuebio pasuoddns 4y pue SO4Y JUSH YUM MJOAA
el "gouspuadepul ,sjuspisal Jo souURUSIUIEW
JUSLIUIBAOLD) Bulobup ay} 0} Apueoiiubls ajnguIU0D Ylesys[e ] pue aiess|a
V11D 8y} Aq pesiueblo

SSYM se saljlunuoddo uonowoud yyeay s|qissaode Apoalig

"loJjuoo pue ao1oyo jualo Bulgqeus palojdxs

ale wa|qoid; pesu ay} jo suonnjosal |enusjod sy} alaym

SSYM JOBIUOD SUO 0} SUO B Sa|qeus adIAes JojebiaeN alen

Jebeuey jo08loid

- PJEMPOOAA
umeq - Bulobup

a|doad
Bunoddng

Buiobup

"$8I}IUNWIWOD UIYJIM 3[ge|ieA.
Kjipeal si jey} souepinb pue uoljewloul’ 8dIApe
suoddns jey) uonewloul oyI0ads JoL)SI JO UOISIAOIY

‘uosJad Apuey uo z/G'/¥¥3 pue ‘sy|H Uo 968'Z893
‘woddns pajejas Buisnoy uo uolw g 23 Buipuads

sl swwelBolg ay] ‘eouspuadspul Buiuiejuiew

0} a}hquuoo suosiadApueH pue sauaby juswanoidw|
swoH ‘Woddns Buneoys ‘buisnoy passyays

"SJJUSD 3INSI9| pue sallelq||
‘69 Aunwiwod sy} ulyim sdnoub e o} s|gissadoe

aq 0} paubissep pue psuue|d aie asay} padojarsp ale
SaNl|IoB) MU SY "SOS/S92IAI8S AlelIolwo( /S82IAI8S
AeQ /aleD 9AIIOY/SS0IAISS JUSLUB|gRUT/2Je23|8 | /SA

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 274



x4

"suolssas |euoneiauabiayul
ul sjdoad Jap|o abebua

pue Ajjuspl [e20] B 8}l

o0} Buidjay ‘|euisjew |eao|
JLI0}SIY 0} $S3208 aAI6 pue
199|100 0} sdnolb pue saJuad
Aoisiy Ajlunwiwod dn jeg
"sallelql| Ul UBJIp|IYyD 0} peal
0} ajdoad Jap|o Jo} pauuapl
saljiunuoddo Buussiunjon

‘sanuioud Jisyy woddns

ueo }deouod ayj moy sisuped
yum ssnosip o} Addey

8¢ pINOM 8AA "'SUONEDO| JSU10
0} 10|1d sy} pusixs o} psuue|d
S1}| "SJalleq UMOp Mealq

pue AHUNWILIOD JI3Y} Ul SI8ylo
Jo Buipuejsispun Jajealb

e uieb o) Ayunuoddo ayy
a|doad saAlb Aeiqi] BuIAn

SaAIY2IY
pue saleiqi

(ueuesqr
wswdojsnag
salpnis

[8907) ypombul|
qoy pue

Jua)| Ul sasua
¢ 1e jjels aAlyaly
‘usp|o9 ejlvys

SaAIYOIY
pue saLelqi

a|doad
Bunoddng

99bqod [91sUyD
/ UBpIOD BlIvYS

uingdie |aBIN

"YlJOM 8SUBS B pUB S2USPHUCD
dn spjing osj|e 1nq s|is dojaaap djay Buussiunjoa

saop Ajuo JoN ‘sJaied disy) Aq papoddns ale

SJ33JUN[OA BLWIOS "Y)eay ||l Jo suoseal Joj Juswhojdwe
Ul Jou ale oym asoy} Buipnjoul sanljige [je Jo}

a|ge|leAk aJe sallAloe pue sanjunuoddo Jo Ajauea spim
V "SaleIql] S.AJUN0O 8y} SS0J0E BULISSIUN[OA B[IYMUMOM
pue s|gefoflus siayo ASD Aq pabeuew saAlyoly

® sallelqi ul swwelboid Buuasiun|oa sAlS) Z swi] 3y

"0S Op 0} Ysim Aay} ssajun

‘Bunesw sy} dn mojjo; 0} uonebijgo Aue Jo Ajjewloy
paonpoJiul 8 }sJiy 0} pasu AUe INOYYIM JUSWUOIIAUS
ajes e Ul AJlunwiwioo Jisy} Ul saipaioe Jo ajdoad Jayjo
noge no puy o} ajdoad smojje }| "ssnuIW Og- 0Z INoge
Bunyse| UoIBSISALOD B 10} PaMOLIOd, 8 UeD ‘aleys

0} Bunpm ase Asyj jey) sousliadxa sy ueoliubis e aaey
Jo play Jisyy ul Jadxa ue 1o ‘jo8lgns e jnoge sjeuoissed
ale oym AJUnwWoD [B20] 8y} wolj ajdoad "syeousrss
ul pajojid usaq sey Aseiqi] Buialq e jo 1deouoo sy

"¢ Aold
Japun pa}si| S8lJIAIJOB SBAIYDIY puUk salleldl] 98s

‘'saiiunuoddo juswAojdws pue ‘Buluiel; ‘uoneonps
s$s900e 0} a|doad sabeinoous woddns pajejal BuisnoH

"Y98M 8y} JO SalI} UIBMSD Je Saljusd
Buiuies| pue Bujiomiau |eloos se salelqi Buowold

"glsqem DY uo
sa)oJ Bullasjunjoa BuisiluaApe o Alljiqises) sy} alojdxg

Ajanoe
Ajlunwwos
ul uoisnoul

pue uonedmiued
abeinooug - vy

&ainynj ay} Joj suonelidsy

{umouy 31)
931N0SVY

Apgisuodsal
pes|/oleasawi]

uaye} Bulaq ale Jeyj suondy

awo}no

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

aji] Ajlunwwod ul uonedionaed pue Buluies] ‘diysuaziyio s,ajdoad 19p|0 Moddns o] — ¢ AJLoLd

Page 275



A4

swdojaasp

Nnav 9oUBIpNE 1o} sjapow aAlleAouul dojaasp o}
awin Jeis ‘umolg [les) | suonesiueblo paloddns 4|y pue SOy JUSY UHM YJOAA
Naw b1 jo
awl} yeis ‘umolg Jles) | |eansa4 sy} Buipnjoul Jlom sie jeinyno-saul sbeinooug
‘'sdnoub
1ebpnqg Nawi yoeal-0}-piey uo joedwi salisod e aAeY 0} $92IAISS
Nav pue ‘UBINA Yeles |ednyno dn-pauiof oy shkem saieaouul Buioddns
awn ueis | pue ss|deis Ajles ‘swiwelboid piemioq suolsay|04 uo indul sue pesT
"9|ems YJom [euonessusbiaiu| ‘Auingisiuen sbuos
Juswoalbe souleg uyor | JaA|lg ‘Juswdolaasg SUY JeAoq (Jeuin]) Jsueyl Ul SUY
sjuswisbuelle WIUOD | 8100 JO Ued | SPJeMUO—E/800Z | @Ul Ul paAjoAul 186 0} paliaul Bulaq ale slaquiaw wnio4
‘wayl Ag wayy dnoig
Jo} 9joJ Jybu sy} jo uonos|es NoM}aN
a|geus |Im jey} suonduosep uolnoy ‘U0 N0} A8y} JeYM pUB UOoNOUN} SBIJIUNLILLIOD
8joJ pue uononpul ‘Buiures; | Aunwwo) JabBeuepy a0 sAkem ay; alojdxs 0} Buiddew dnoub ylomjaN
Buipinoid Aq 3 uswabebus pJeog 108l01d IMOANI | uonoy Alunwwod “diysiaquuiaw wnio} J8yjo pue pleog
uoddns o} ylomswel) e 108loid — PJeMpPOOAA se ||lam se diysiaquiaw |aued Jspus} pue malAI)uI
— YJOM]BN JUBWIBA|OAU| 21[gnd IHMOANI umeq -BuloBup papnoul Josloud sy} uiyum ssniunuoddo uonedioiued
‘'swnJo s|doad Jap|O Buiuoddns
sauleg uyor pue uonuarald pue uonuaaisiu| AlJes ul Bunsaau|
‘'saAjasway} Woddns 8002 ‘1B 1o11sIg "awayos pooysnoqybisN
0} saluNWW oo abeinoou] Juels | ‘Asuesg sunsuyn pooo uspJlews sy} 0} usalb woddns Juay 1se] u|
"$J99}UN|OA JO Jaquinu
3y} 1sooq 0} sAemaleo) ulypm way} Buisnoy usas
pue saJjua0 Jasjun|oA Yyum syull dn Buipjing sAemajes)
; ain}ny} ay} Joj suonesids (] ) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Bulaq aJie jeyy suono awoon
éaininy sy} 1o} Bjelldsy 29Jn0S9Y peajjaeasawi | je) bulsq jey; oy 1IN0

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 276



€¢

‘swwelboud sy} Jo uswdojaasp pue uonRoalIp
3y} spJemo) ajnguuod o} Japlo ul sbunssw pieog
puslie 0} paliAUI 3B SI19Sh 90IAI9S pue YJomiau Moddns

JUBJS) JACD) Buiobup 90I1AI8S B S| 2oy} awwelboid QSN su) Jo Hed sy
‘sjuswdojansp ainny
adeys pue WIoUI O} puB 921AI3S BY} JO SJUBWIYID |[B Yylm
uonoejsnes Jasn ssasse 0} ‘sanloud ulew oM} saey
(suswolsna ao1AI9g Aleidi aWOH 8y} jo aidwes e pue
921AI9S pJom uayods ueo| |eisod O 9,6 ‘901AI8S SBWIOY
0} AJBAIIBp 40 9%01) $S802y uadQ ul sAsAins [enuue ay|
"(SWo} JuIe|dLoo/SIUBWILIOD ‘SUoIIB}NSUOD
SaAIYOIY ‘skanins) yoeqpaa} Joj saniunuoddo Jayjo spiroid
pue saleldiT pue sdnoib spusuy pue Jasn jo abuels e aaey g
[1ebuy I ‘uoldweys 4o ybnoayy
/ JBW|OOAA W] asijewlo} pue swnioj Bunsixs yum syulj Jsieq pling
‘dn way} }8s 0} s|IDUNOD JoLISI YMm Bunjiom ale SSYY
"SBIHUNLULLOD JIsy} Ul 2oUBlsIXa Ul Apuauind jou ale Asy} alaym Ing sioLisip
9210A B aAeyY 0} a|doad Jap|O guoouel{ AejiH WS Ul }sIXe swhio4 sa|doad Jap|O US| ISOAA Y|
¢1-600¢ 10} 'SV Jof MeIAIBA0 031540
sueld sssuisng | jo Jed se Buiuies Buo a7 Jo uoisianoid sy} sousnjul
uoieonp3 Jnpy 0} JUSY JO SUBZIND +0G BY} IO} SWnio} [e20] Bujowoud
Buiyew Aoijod
‘elep Buie||02 sa21AI0S JSA0 sousnjUI
‘g|doad pjo 108y Aew ey [BID0S }NPY 0} M3IA B U)IM 3JBD |BIDOS UMO Jno Joj Aed JIay} Jexa
suolje}nsuod Aue Buipnjou 0} sue|d Buipsebal saoiAIag [B100S Y npy woly Woddns | 01 9|qe aJe pue
‘uonelssush siyi o} }salslul pue aJed jo aininy a8y} Buipnoul SUOCIBHNSUOD SWOS 90I0A B 9ARY
JO aJe jey} swa)l pue sanssl uingyoe|g paloA0d 0S|e aARY SAA "AJUNWILLOD JBpP|0 By} J0d)e s|doad Jap|o
JBA0D 0} SNUIBUOD [|M AL JUSH s|eosed Jey} sanssi 0} Bunejas SOspIA SMOYS AJUSLIND A JUSY | JByl ainsug - gy
Navi ‘uojeg |eJnjind
awin Jeis ‘sa|dels Ajles N0 [|0J PUB UOISSILUWIOD JUSY [BAISS { [BIN}ND YN
é3inyn} ay3 Joj suonelidsy (] ) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Buiaq aJe jey} suonay awoanQ
T 92JNn0Say peaj/ajeosawl | : :

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 277



124

SaAIydlY
pue saleiqi

SaAIY2Y
pue ssueiqi]
‘Jebeuey
Buluies Buojayi
‘@ousime Uel|io

"Auno2 ay} jo Jnoybnoly} pue asNoH SUOISSaS
1B PaJajio SU0I}08||00 SAIYDJe pue AIoisIYy Uo Syjel

"SOISB( 8y} YoBa) pue SanssI || Yjm }sisse
0} sallelql| swos ul AJe|nbal ajge|ieA. spiezim gapp

‘uonjewlojul s Jsuped pue sAejdsip

Aq paiuedwoooe ||y "sdnolb Ajunwwos pue sispiroid
uoiesnpa Jaylo ‘ucieanpd Jnpy usy yum diysisuped
ul Bupiom - 218 ‘Bunum aaneald ‘Aoisiy Ajwey ‘Bunjlim
AD ‘eweioniuy ‘Buiouep esjes ‘ebessew pesH uelpy|
apnjoul ssjdwexs 1sed “syaam Buluies| Ajiwe 9 ynpy
J0 Ued se palayo SaNIAIJOB/SIUBAS PUB SY B} Joyiny
"$9SJN0D JNOCE UOIBWIOUI O} SS800Y "SHSaM JNO BIA
Ajolowal pue sauelqI| Ul 3|ge[leAe sa2inosal jo abuey

"90IAJ8S JBA|IS SB yons sawayos Buusalsp

anoge sy | ul suieouo) aby "6 a suonesiuebip Aejunjop Jo 30y
Buiutes| Buoj-ayi|
"JauJea| Jap|o ay} Buipnjoul AJunwwiod ayj jo ul sjedioiued
anoge sy | sJ10108s [|e 0] puodsal 0} s9sIn09 Jo swwelboid malnsy o} Ajjige
pue Ajlunuoddo
6002 1desg '$98Jn00 SOvY | 9yl eaey sjdoad
uolleonp3 }npy Jo abuel Joj siaules| Jap|o Jo} sUoISSaoU0D pajeblie] 18pIO - OF
‘AliAoe
s|doad |[euonesado pue oibajens Jo }oadse Alaas Ul siasn
Buuoddng 90IAJ8S SaAj0AUI swwelBold ajdoad Buioddng sy
"sanss|
wnJo} Alepunog 3 $S0Joe smalA juasaldal 0} paysijgelss
J12dXGF WINJoj JUSY 1SES-URJ "SI9)I8[SMaU pue salls gam sn|d
‘assv ‘soljoydod pue sAep uado ‘s, NOV pue suodal jenuue
pue ‘S99]JILULLOD PUB SJUNOJ0R YUBq YlM pPajnlijsucd yoes
‘plojysy ul suo dojgasq | 10dMD%3 souleg uyor ‘U8 1seg Ul paysijgelse swinioj suosiad Jap|o aAl
é3inyn} ay3 Joj suonelidsy (] ) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Buiaq aJe jey} suonay awoanQ
T 92JNn0Say pesj|/ajeasawi] : :

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 278



G¢

1UsYf 10BIU0D

"alay d|ay ueo jus)| Joeju0D — buunal Jsye
SJ9aled puoosas uo uonewloul jno pulj sidoad djsH

‘s810110d OO — senunuoddo Buussiunjon

‘way} Juem Kayy

3l saniiunuoddo

[lex3 eigaq ‘g|doad Jsep|o pue siakojdwa yjoq wswAojdwa
Juingaied [8BIN | 1jauaq [|Im 1BY] suoloe uo siakojdws jusy yum abebug aney
ey ul s|idoad
‘g|doad Jap|o 0} 9|ge|ieAe ale saliunuoddo Jap|o ains
uingdie |9BiN | gol aunsus 0} sdwa ]| do] sy yum diysiauped ul JIopA ayew o] - Q¥
‘sjoefoud pejebie; woddns o} sbio |eIN}ND pue spue
NAYY | sy yum ylom — sue sy} ul juswabebus ynpe asealou|
suoneoyijenb g4 pue juswdojeAsp
Jels ybnoyy Jojoes aieo oy} Joj juswdolorsg e
uoneaIuNWwWo paaosdwi pue
2ISNW JO WUNIPSW 3y} BIA 1O} 81BD 3y} pUB SIaled
Jo Bulaqgjiem paseasoul ybnolayy uonowold yjesy e
Allap|e ayy Joj @ouspuadapul Joj Loddng e
ueds ajl| 8Y} JO pud 3Y} }B SOAI| SANDY e
:e1owoud
0} sl 109loud sy} jo wie ay] yiomiaN Buiutes] Buo )
AeMpP3a|\ pue Jus) 8y} pue UCKEPUNO] YoJBasay UeeH
1011d se (6/8002) | ap Asupig syl saAjoAUl si1aled) Jisy) pue ajdoad Ausp|g
‘sjolsIp Jayio ul dojsAasq | aSSYYISF souleg uyor | Joj juswabebug jo wnipspy onnadeiay] e se lsnpy
s|doad ‘saijiunoddo [euoljeonpa
Buuoddng s$s900e 0} a|doad sabeinoous woddns pajejal BuisnoH
"SBAIYOIY [BIpayleD Aingisiue) pue auocisplep
SaAIY2Y ‘saIpn}s Ysiuay| Joy aaius syl je Alcisiy [eao)
pue saleldiT U0 SUOISSaS pUe S9SSe|o uoljeonp3 Ynpy Jo BunsoH
; ain}ny} ay} Joj suonesids (] ) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Bulaq aJie jeyy suono awoon
éaininy sy} 1o} Bjelldsy 29Jn0S9Y peajjaeasawi | je) bulsq jey; oy 1IN0

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 279



9¢

cshemaieb

/ SSUeIqI| Ul SOSSB|0IS]SE
‘ABojouyos] mau yum
abebus o} sidoad Jepjo djay
0} sAkem puyj 0} peaN 2102
Aq swioy AusAs ul pueqpeolq
BABY 0} SALIP JUSWUISAQL)
¢suonn|os je 300] 0} Jayiabo}
MIOM 3M PIN0D “BWIoy ay}

ul ]| 0} ssao9e Yoe| s|doad
Jap|o punogasnoy Auepy

‘Asple
8y} J08)E 1By} SONSSI JOA0D
pue s|qissaooe sawwelboid

a|doad
Bunoddng

SaAIY2IY
pue saleiqi

SaAIY2IY
pue saleiqi

BuloBuo
pue jusung
uolieonp3 jinpy

"gle}ljIoe} os|e ued uoslad Apuey/sy|H

‘passa22e aq 0} sanjunuoddo yyeays|sy/ABojouyos)
aAlIsISSe paoueyus 1o} wioje|d e sjgqeus yolym sulee
Ajunwwos Joj Buipuny sapnjoul Joddns pajejal BuisnoH

‘ABojouyos) mau Buisn
saJjuao AIo}sIY |BD0] pUB S8J1US0 aAIYdJe Je sjosloid
Buixepul pue Buinbojeies uo pabebus siasjun|oA Jap|O

"sayouelq swos ul Alueinbal aoe|d aye) suoissas
SpJezim gapA PUe salieldl| Ul SUOISSas Jalse) || pue
JalINg JaA(IS "salelIdl] DD || Ul $Od 0} S$800k 9814

"uaJp|iyopuelb

Jaye Bunjoo| asoyy Joj a|geolidde Aejnoiued sausqapp
pue swooJiey) 0} aping) sjualed, pue saAle|al

yum yonoy ul Buidesy Joj oioads sesinod [lew-9
Buipnjoul Buiuses) siyy poddns o0} s8sinoo jo sbues spIpp

‘'sased Auew ul s|ge|ieAe Buligns pue soapiA
paiduosuel) Yyim a|gissaode os[e SI AL Uy "uonelsusb
SIY} 0} }SaJalul Jo aq Aew }ey} senssi pue sjsalajul
Bulianoo sospiA Jo AlalieA e ale alsy} yons sy “ajdoad

alow Bunyew ul ssaiboud uingyoe|g Japjo Buipnjoul sdnoub sbe Aue spnjoxa 0} Jou uaay } asn o} Aljige
0} SNUIIUOD [|IM AL JUSY s|eosed | sl ing ABojouyos) mau jo abpa Bulno ayy je st AL JUSY 3y} se |[am
se ABojouyos)
‘'sdnoub |eao] ypm Bunjom saolnlas M3U 0} SS800B
SJIUAA papuslx3 "(ssuelql ou alaym seale ul AlJenoied) aney g|doad
esuep ‘340 1| 01 ssao0e pue Bulutes| Aunww oo Jayo sjooyos J9pIO - I
a|doad ‘'saiiunuoddo juswAojdws pue ‘Buluiel; ‘uoneonps
Buuoddng s$s900e 0} a|doad sabeinoous woddns pajejal BuisnoH
é3inyn} ay3 Joj suonelidsy (] ) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Buiaq aJe jey} suonay awoanQ
T 92JNn0Say pesj|/ajeasawi] : :

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 280



LZ

Jebeuey jo08loid

‘lenplaipul
ay} Ag a210yo pawloul Bulgeus waejqold/pssu

JojebiaeN - pJempoopp J1ay} 0} suonnjos [eiusjod sy} [eNPIAIPUL U} Ypm
alen umeq -buloBup | alojdxs ey} suoissas auo 0} auo suoddns NO -IMOANI
‘Alunwiwog Jisy}
Ul saAl| pa||iny Juspuadapul
aAl| wayy Buidjay ui josuod
pue ao1oyd sjdoad Bulnlb ‘sjuswAed 10al1q jo dn aye} ul asealou|
sabueyo olydeiBowap 0} 1ebpng [euosiad e yyum suaip
puodsal 0} WJojal aJed [Blo0S asegq 6002 mau apiroad [ woddng pajoaliq J8S 40 uoljonpodu|
"$J9SN 82IAI8S pue siaplroid
usamjaq Juswsaalbe Aq pabueyo aq ueo seoIAIRS
"S80IAIaS paseq Jebeuew sWaYoS/USpIem YHIMm Sulewsl yoeoudde
a|doad Ajebie| snsuasuoo ay| ‘AlsAl@p @o1Ales uo gidoad | pasuad uosiad
Buuoddng | Japjo yum paynsuoo sey swwelboid sjdosd bunuoddng e uodn paseq
s1 uolsiaoad
SSWYA "Hoddng pajoalq J1eS 80IAISS - VG
- (umouy 1) | Aujiqisuodsal
é3ainyn} ayj Joj suonesidsy TG e T uaye} Buiaq aJie jeyy suonay awo9nQ

aleo Ajijenb poob pue jospu09 ‘90102 aney Appuapuadapul al| 0} Joddns pasu oym ajdoad Japjo asoy} ainsua o] — G AjuoLid

‘swwelboud sy} jo uswdojaasp pue uonoalip
3y} spJemo) ajnguuod o} Japlo ul sbunssw pieog
puslie 0} paliAUI 3B SI19Sh 90IAI9S pue YJomiau Moddns

JUBJS) JACD) Buiobup 90I1AI8S B S| 2oy} awwelboid QSN su) Jo Hed sy
‘'saquan Aeqg
SSIgpA PIABQ wisouo) by swos ul pue sswayos Buisnoy palsyays
Idd 0L0Z —600C | ©Jed eJjx3 ay} ul paplaoid a4 ||IM Joulsjul Y} 0} SS90Y
, (umouy 1) | Aujiqisuodsal
é3inyn} ay3 Joj suonelidsy B e T uaye} Buiaq aJe jey} suonay awoanQ

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 281



8¢

‘'sdnoub
1ebpnqg Nawi yoeal-0}-piey uo joedwi salisod e aAeY 0} $92IAISS
Nav pue ‘UBINA Yeles |ednyno dn-pauiof oy shkem saieaouul Buioddns
awn yeys | pue ss|dels Ajles ‘swwelboid piemio4 suo}say|04 uo indui sue pesT
‘'speay Ase]
SaAIYDIY | ‘sgAQ ‘syooq Bunyel juud abie| ‘s)yooq abenbue| [enp
pue saleldiT sn|d sabenbue| 0 JOAC Ul $00Q 320}S SalBI]IT JUSH
‘sllejspeolgd 1e JSJUMWAS B s alay}
pue ‘spJed and pue uoleyel Jo ash 69 g|qissedde
alow abeubis ayew o} BUBIOAA "WIBY)} Ul paJayo
‘ueleiqgl SJUSAD puk S3lJIAIJOE ‘SUOIIOS||0D JO 8210UD 3y} pue
Juswdojansg salelqI| 4O uonesiulapow uo Buiynsuoo sapnjoul siy|
92IAIag | “sanjigesip Bulules| yim sy npe Joj 9|qIsSa02. $90IAI9S
‘JojAe] yieqezi|g Aeuql| axew o0} sdiysiauled $$920V 1OUISI YHM YJOAA
‘pasiedwi Ajjensia se palsjsibal juay ul ajdoad 0000l
xoJdde Jo jno siswolsno QgL 0} paJaAlsp Ajuaing —
s|doad paJsiedwi Ajjensia Joj ao1Al1as Yoo Bunyjel jeisod
ooq e pjoy o} a|qeun o eixa|sAp ‘6 suoseal Jayjo
Joj d ssaooe Jouueo Jo paliedwl Aj|ensIA ale oym saAl| s,a|doad
‘weyplo4 sng s|doad Jo} syo0q Bupyjel 0} sauelql| ||e 1B SS90k 98l Jap|o jo Ayjenb
‘Buneo ay} Jiedwi ueo
anunuoo o} siaseo poddns Jey} sisuleq ay}
0} 9|ge|leAR 8q 0} palinbal el "aled asydsal a|qixa)} Buaalep suonesiueblo AJBjunjoA | aAoWS) 0} JJom
s Jeys uoisinoad Jo abuey slaien SSYM - 6002 ybnouy} siaseo Alejun|oa Joj Joddns pasealou) [l BN - S
‘Aoljod saljsianq
Navy ‘sayospod pue saiijenb3 s, 503 yum psubije ase suoielado
awin Jeis yeuua pue saolIAIas Hun Juswdojaas SUY Jey}l ainsug
; ain}ny} ay} Joj suonesids (] ) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Bulaq aJie jeyy suono awoon
éaininy sy} 1o} Bjelldsy 29Jn0S9Y peajjaeasawi | je) bulsq jey; oy  1yT0)

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 282



6¢

"JUSIUSAUOD SI }ey}

8NUBA pue awiy e Je A||eoo|
uonewJojul poob 0} sse0oy

"‘aWwloy je peal ag ued

uewoq I
Buiob-uo pue
(pJojysy) +002
JabBeuepy
S90IAI8S
uonewIoU|
‘aabgod |8)suyo

JanO eAue |

JanO eAue |

JanO eAue |

Sowy aNsaiy

‘'shemales) ‘6 8 ‘A||e20| paJaAlsp
aouepInb pue aoiApe ‘uoljewloul jo Juswdoljersg

‘Buibesssw [enuUIA pue |lews

‘lew ‘suoyd Aq Bunysodubis pue AisAljap uoleuLIoUl
JO Jul0d [eJjuad B saplaold ueleIgI] JUSY B YSY

puUE UOoIJBLLIOUI 0} SS800E |BJ0| aplaold salelqr]

"JUSIUBAUOD 3JOW SaoIAles Buisseooe
Bunjew pue uoisnjuod Buirowal ‘S82IAIBS J0}09S
alignd dn Buluiof aq [m swwelboud Jusy ss800y ay|

‘aJinbal Aew
s|doad sao1Ales Xa|dw oo ai0W By} JO BLWOS 10} JOBIU0D
20k} 0} @0k} aplrold pue saoiales dn ulol sAemales

‘uone|ndod

|[e00| 8y} Jo spasu ay} 0} Buipioooe saoiales 1abie} pue
SS900E 19UIS)UI 9314 SARH “AH[IqOW SSS| U}IM 3S0U} Jo}
seale [einl 0} sadlAles Aemales) Bulg sAkemales) ajIqoy

‘s|doad Jep|o Jo} A|jeolioads

Jey} yeulioj uiojul Ayjenb ybiy 6002 payoune (sajum-ay ) SpINS puels| Jouey ]
N
‘uoljewlojul ‘'sassalppe pue slagunu suoyd Jo/pue uonewlojul | paau Asy} usym
Jayunj ss920k 0} 9|ge Jayunj ulelqo ued Aay) alaym SSalppe gam Ypim uoljewojul
3Je SIaMB3IA Jey} ainsus 0} paluedwoooe si ‘a|gissod alaym ‘0spIA 8y ‘s|qe|ieAe dn pauial,
salisqam Jueasjal o} }sodubis uingyoe|g | aJe 1By} SallAI0E AHUNLIWIOD pUB S3DIAISS JNOJE SOBPIA 0} $$8208k aAkY
0} 8NuUIUOD ||IM A ] JUSH a|eosed Auew pawi|ly 0S|e sey pue paje|nNWnooe sey AL Jusy | S|enplAlpu] - DG
Buipuny
JOV pue Nawvi ‘sjoefoud pejebie; woddns o} sbio |eIN}ND pue spue
awli yels ‘umolg [1eS) | Juay Yum dJom — sue sy} ul juswabebus jnpe asealou|
; 81n}n} ayj Joj} suonelids A:>>o:v_ m_v >_—___Q_m:oam¢._ uaye) Bulaq ale je SUoI}d 2Wwoain
&oimny sy doy suopendsy | Lo oo | peajjeleasew] e} Bulaq aie jey) suonoy iyle]

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 283



0¢

‘'suonesiuebio Aeyunjop ybnoayy pue Apoalip palaalisp

SSYIM Buipung ‘pie) sialed pue sjusWISSasse sialen
60 Uep wodl ‘Buip|ing 82U8PHUOD pUB SSBUBAILSSSE
juswdol|aaap u| pue Buiaq|am jeuosiad ‘Bunabpng/eoueuly Buipnoul
uoieonp3 Jnpy sJaie) Woddns o} padojsasp aq 0} $8SIN02 JO 8}INS Buues
wo.j pede
6002 "'SaNUSA AHUNWILWOD Jo abuel Ul unJ 8q UBD $3SIN0YD 9Jl| & 9ABY 0}
Aenuep wol4 ‘g|gejieae saoe|d aal) yym siale) piedun Joy Buluies sJaleo uoddns
uolieonp3 jinpy pue juswdojaAs( Ul 8}eoliNad spling pue AD Jajo M 8pA - G
1ebpng ‘'siapjoyayels
nNavi nNavi Aq papaau aoinles ay) Buipiroid pue ssodind
awl} yeis ‘umolg |les J0J 114 SI ) ainsus 0} aouasald auluo NQYH @oueyu]
"s|euolissajoud
21e2 |BID0S pUB U}Bay SE [|oMm Sk SJaJed pue SJasn Yioq
"AJUNoo 8y} ssoioe 0} 9]|qISSa20k aq ||IM yoiym wope|d || ue uo ue|d aied
}JOMBWEel) JUBLUSSISSE S|ENPIAIPUI BY} SE ||oM SE Bjep D1 pue Hl jo Buueys
uoww oo ay} jo uswdojersp ay1 lofd | siy] wuope|d Buueys uonewsojul ue
By} WIOJUI [[IM |NJSSSIONS §| | JUBIS) JA0D) Bulobup Jo Juawdojaasp ayy st QSAA Uiyim syosfoud ayi jo suQ
Uy Joj sylomawel) pue sueld |20 BY} Ul pajoslILl Ble
awin Jeis NAYA - Hels IV | spesu ssedousipne sue pue sle sy} Jey) 8insus 0} YIOAA
Jabeue j08loid | "s@21A18s IMOANI Jo abpamouy Japim woddns 0] sjuans
- pJempoopp Anolgnd se |jam se paysijgelse usaq sey juswaaibe
ume( -buiobup alaym sauabins 45 swos Ul 9|gissadoe Alojoallqg
"uoiedIUNWWOD sAcldwi o}
SSYY | seanoeld 4o Ul paleoc|-0o sisbeuelp aie) aaey SSYH
1vI1q ‘B8 souepinb pue asiape spiroid
0} suonesiuebiQ AlelunjoA puny SSYY 1OBIU0D JO
BuloBup | julod e se s Aemales) jno [joJ 0} swwelboid e sey DO
; ain}ny} ay} Joj suonesids (] ) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Bulaq aJie jeyy suono awoon
éaininy sy} 1o} Bjelldsy 29Jn0S9Y peajjaeasawi | je) bulsq jey; oy  1yT0)

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 284



3%

‘salielql| ul ssusbins Aoeusy|
[eloUBULY JOAI[SP 0} SJauped
Jo} BunjooT "STH ‘seuelq|

a|doad
Bunoddng

9abqod [91sUyD

"uoISNoUI [BIDUBUL PUB 3WOOUI/SH}BUS]
alejjam Buisiwixew Buipnoul sy} 0} uoljejal ul yoddns
pue aoiApe apiaold saoiales uosiadApuey pue sy|H

‘(oG 998) UeBlLEBIQIT USY B YSY

"a0IApE
aliqow ‘salielql| BIA as1olignd aabqod [91sUyD ‘Bunsodubis 0} ss9208€ |B20| 8plrcd SaleIqi] | pUB UoBULIOUI
[elouBUl 0}
‘siaped} anboy yum Buljesp pue Ausp|e ay) Joj Buisnoy | ssadoe Buipnjoul
‘AlJaple syl 10aye 1By} Buipnjour sbuiyy jo Jaquinu e yum disy 186 01 moy a|ge[ieAe
s$oNssI U Uoljeuwloul apiaotd wingyoe|g | UO S0IAPE SISL0 [SUUEBYD 0} MOY, 3U} OS|e pue a|de|ieAe Joddns
0} SNUIIUOD [|IM AL JUSY g|eosed | SIleym Buneiisuolap SOSpIA JO Jaquinu B sey A JUs) pue saoIAIeS
3y} Jo aleme
‘dn pauiof aJe 2I0W 8 ||IM
SHUM $90JN0S3J 8INS 9B\ "S|O0YDS PUB S3IJUSD S UBIP[IYD ey ul sidoad
esuep / 340 BIA POSSID0E SI SIUY) MOY 1B Y00| — 82IAPE 193 19p|O - V9
;,3in}ny} ay} Joj suonesids PTEth] ) W LETEEET uaye} Buiaq aJie jey} suoid awoon
éaininy ayy Joy Bjelldsy 29In0S3Y m je} bulaq jeyy oy 1yTe)
9j1] J3)e| ain2ds e Joj uejd o0} ajdoad abeinoosua o] — 9 AJLoLd
‘Bules wody Aeme 81| & BuiA| "sJaJed yim Buppom ul paynuapl
ul way} Joddns o0} saolnles Jo el aAeY J0j0ag AlejunjoA sy} Jey) saolalaes Bulures
abuel 0} ssa20k aAeY SIaie) slale) SSYM | pue sidsal jo abuel jo 10)08s Alejun|oAa ul JuswdojarsQ
'$81p0q J0}08s AJBJUN|OA (6002) ey
ajeudoidde Aq |enpialpul ue 1SapA Asulead)
SB US)BHapUN JUBLISSasSSe el Aoy pue juay | -Aemuspun 10joas AJejun|oA sy} Ag SJUSLUSSSSSE SIaJED
Ue SABY UBD slale) slale) 1seg ||eH YaJeq | @elspun 0} swayos Jojid e ABajel)s siaied YIm aul U
‘Jayoui eiol | ‘auojspiey ul pajojid Buiaq dnoub Buipeas siale)
; ain}ny} ay} Joj suonesids (] ) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Bulaq aJie jeyy suono awoon
éaininy sy} 1o} Bjelldsy 29Jn0S9Y peajjaeasawi | je) bulsq jey; oy  1yT0)

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 285



ce

usy

awin Jeis navy — vy ul spe ay} sjowold o} salols pue sabessaw dojaasQq

‘Joedwi JIsy} pue $821AI8S NAVYY Jo dn-axe)}

pue Buipueisispun ‘gjjoid sy} sAcsdwi SUOCHEOIUNLILIOD

186pnq pue Buieylew ‘pueliq Jes|D ‘siap|oysyels

Nav pue Naw Ag pspasu soiales sy} Buipirodd pue ssodind

awl} yeis ‘umolg |les 10} 11} S1 } 8insud 0} aouasald suluo Ny edueyug

"S80IAISS

Hoddns o} BunsoduBis pue ‘esuepinb ‘eolApe spnjoul

[IIM U2IYM ‘panealaq AjJusosl sy} Joy) 183ood e Jayiebol

Rejwioug |19 Bumnd Ajjualing si eoiAleg uoljessibay usy sy

Jebeuey 1osloig " OAUINN A0D JUSY MWW, 3]ISCSM UO 3[dB[IBAR

- pJempoopp 0S|e pauijuspl 8q 0} S}OBIU0D / S90IAISS A9 S3|qeud

ume -BuiobuQ | 1Y} UOBLLICUI AHUNWILIOD [BOO] JO UOISIACId— IHOANI

‘uoddns s|1ouno) ybnolog

pue Sa2IAISS 0} $S9008 pue 1ouisiq ‘'sanbes||0o

anosdw| "s80IAISS [BOO] ||B 10d/SSYA [I9UNOY) JoUISIg pPUe YjesH Yyum juswdojanasp

0} apinb dojs suo jusIuaAU0D pJiemoH jalebiep Ul si joogpueH s.8|doad Jap|O UB JUSY 1SSAA U]

"30IAPE pUB UoljBuWIOoUI

[eloUBUL 0} SS800E apiroid 0] JjBlS S2IApY Slijeuayg syl

"sSuUoIED0|

pue sswi} JUSIUBAUOD "gouepinb

1e souepInb pue adIApe pue s21Ape ‘uoijeulolul jo sbuel e 0y yoeoudde

‘UoIleLLIO}UI |EDO] O} SS300Y SpJemuo 6002 (doys dojs suo, ass m sAemaleb jo Juswdojanag

;,21n}nj a3y} 1o} suonelids w10 LT uaye} buiaq aJe 3ey3 suono awoon

é9ainynj sy} 1o} jelidsy 29Jn0S9Y peajjaeasawi | je} bulaq jeys oy 1IN0

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 286



€e

assw
pig Aisho|
Jolejy wouy
(6/8002)
G3F

sauleg uyor

Jebeuey jo08loid

- pJempoopp
ume( -buiobup

"AisAllep Ul s10d

pue DO SAJOAUL UBY} ||IM ABU} paysi|gelse aouQ SISeq
pred Jo AJejun|oA e U0 Jaya ‘JuswiuoliAue Buniom e
oJul Yoeq Way} sabeincous jey) s901AI8s Jo abuel spew
Jojie} e Buidojansp Aq sjdoad Jspjo jo souspuadspul
pue Bulag|jem ay} 8seadoul 0} SOA UM piq OJ0T
SISYd B papilIgns SABY OYM S2JSLILLOYD JO slaguiey)
ay} yum diysiasuped e si sjessy Buisby inQ Buisijiqoly

‘Bulag|iem o1LIOU0D8 SJUBIO paduBYUS SBY } 8laym
0} SE Uoljedliuapl Jes|d a|geus pue ayeydn jjauaq
yoddns 0} 8,710 Aq Bunjiomau pasi[eao] — IHOANI

ds ‘(Y9 99s) saolales uosltadApuey pue sy|H sy

uiyum sdoad

‘'sallelql ul sye) /salebins Buiob-up ‘(Y9 99S) JJe1S 92IApY SHjauag Japjo Joj Buiaq
Koeuayl| [eIDUBUL JBAIIBP -||am JlLIouoD9

0} sisuped Joj BunjooT MIIS "uoIUN HPaID SPIM-JUSY B JO UOIIEaID UO YJOAA paaosdw - Dg

] YluIem

Slqeitee slqepioye

spueys /Ayolignd i SH 10 SsoUdlEMmE
‘salielqI| B[IqoWw ‘saueIq]| ‘ubredwes [jam dasy pasealoul
BIA SSANJRIHIUI 3J0W0ld aabqod [91sUyD ‘wiem deay|, Juswiuianob [esnuso [enuue sy} asIolqnd aq (1M 818y |

BulobuQ - s|doad
Bunoddng

SEEL )
Jjauag ealy

‘Hoddns pue salApe aplrold saolAles
uosJadApuey pue ssiousby Juswasoidul| swoH

"sJasn a2IAI8S 0} aoIApe aplroid S D puUe S 82140
Jjauag easy "Yjlem sjgeploye jo dn-aye) asealou]

"saAlleIUl Buines
ABisus Jo dn
-g)e] pasesaloul
ybnouy)

Ausnod jan4
20Npay - 99

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 287



ye

01-600¢
ybnoayy Buiobup

uolieanp3 jnpy

uingdie |aBIN
[ Ylwg sullned

300H of' / 340

“UaJpiiyd ey}

yum dn Buidesayy, "ol -Buiuies| jo sAem mau aio[dxs 0}
UaJp[IyD Ypm dJom o} siaied pue sjuasedpuest/siualed
Bulgeus ‘sanuad s,ualpliyd pue sjooyoss

Joj Buluies| jeuonelssuab-isiul Joj uoisiroid saisuodsey

‘'sdiyseonuaiddy
‘sjualedpuelb Jo 8j0J BY} OJUI Yoleasay

‘g|doad Japj|o Jo uoisnjoul

uoissyo9
Ajunwwod
pue AuAnoe

SHUM 8y} ainsua 0} siy} puedx3 's|ooydS papusix3 ybnolyy | jeuonessusbiaul
esuely / 340 uoisayod Ajunwwod sjowold o} Ainp e aAey sjooydss |  sobeinosug - g/
‘'sdnoub
1ebpnqg Nawi yoeal-0}-pJey uo joedwi aaiisod B sABY 0} S3DIAISS
Nav pue ‘UBINA Yeles |ednyno dn-pauiof oy shkem saieaouul Buioddns
awn yeys | pue sa|dels Ales ‘swwelboid piemioq suolsay|o4 uo nduil sue pea
sauleg uyor ‘(D9 ees) sjesse Buibe jno Buisijiqoy
‘'sawayos
SSYM Hoddns Jead pue ssiniunuoddo Bussjunjoa asealou| Ae100s
10 slaquiaw
‘abe pue Aljigeisu|na ‘'sawl} ||e 18p|0 spJemo}
JIay} Jo ssajpiebal sjenplaipul 1e 1oadsal pue Ajubip yum pajeal) aq o} ajdoad salinbali sapnye
se panjeA aJje a|doad Jep|O Buiob-up Jey} asnejo e spnjoul woddns pue aled Joj syoeqjuo) | abueyd pue sy
J9]e| JO anjeA ay}
Ve (V¥ @9s) 8AID g swi] sjowold - v/
; ainjny} ay} Joj suonesids (umouy ) Aiiqisuodsal uaye} Buiaq aJie jey} suond awoon
éaininy sy} 1o} Bjelldsy 39In0S3Y am je) bulsq jey; oy  1yT0)

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

ajdoad Japjo 10} }0adsau pue Ajubip pue 3}l 43je| jo abewi aanisod e ajowoud o] — 7 AJuoLd

Page 288



Ge

‘g|doad
JabunoA ggz pue sjnpe

"SAlJBIIUI SNjd JeMOd S U 1sea ybnouy; Isnjy YinoA
‘uonesiueblo jeuoneu sy pue yosloid jusre JnoA pul4
s Aemdays ybnouy} ‘uonepuNno 4 sAlEaID) S,8U01S9Y|04
‘siauped aanoadsold yum Aem Jspun ale syje]

‘pouad yjuow g| e Jaro pasodoud si josloid yyeasy
pue sue elpswiynw ‘jeuonelsusbisiul ‘sjeos-able)

B ‘pus SsIY} 0] -oIsSny pue suy ay; ybnouyy sjdosy

00¢ aJe siagquwinu jebuey |eniu| pajewnsa 4/13 | Jop|0 Bunoddng sjosloid |euonelsusbisiu| ;payunbuig
"SI} Uo pasieul 194 Jou |eap ihg payoeosdde usaq
aney |Dd awayos 1oiid e Jo) pig AsnoT e Bupnew sl
uolepuno} } "Wnio4 SUSZIHD JOIUSS 3|BMS 8U} SA|OAUI pUB 3|eMS
TN ul Buiels si 3} "eousdsiulLLB) pue ewelp el a|doad
‘uonealdsp jo | auo)seY|04 Jeplo yum obebus 0} anesy] YINOA [eUOlEN 8y} Yum
BaJe Ul sjuswidojaAsp Jayund | 36F ASSYMY 01/6002Z | peby eyl dieH Aq psajeulplo-0o swwelboid e si 1ybi4
Jebeuey jo08loid "glgissod aiaym uni AJunwiwiod aq o} uoisiaoid ayy
- piempoopp | Buigeus sjeudoidde sisym saiyuanoe dnodb snuiuod o}
umeq -Bulobup slaqwiaw Ajlunwiwod Bulutely aq (M S Y110 — IMOANI
‘uapJeb g pJseAunod
Buinoaduwi uo Buyiom pjo @ BunoA ‘unogleyp|od
‘uoddns 9 weybiH 1e yue3 uonoy jooyos weydosyy
Jauped yum ssiiunwiwod Jo sjidnd Aq AlJep|e jo Juswiulelsjus SeuwWsuyD
1310 0] SaIjAIIOR JB|IWIS weydosy ‘Aeigi weydosy Je suoissas Japhdw oo
N0 |joJ 0} |enuslod (V¥ [euonelauab Jsju| (LBYSSARIS) Ul SBIHAIOR Jo sajdwex]
99s) sabueyoxs |euonelausb ‘uaJpiyo jo sdnoib ypm sousiiadxs Jiayy
-18ul Bunowoud sanialoe Buueys sjdoad Jsp|o Jo ‘sallowsw Bunjos|oo sjdoad
Jayuny dojaasp o} Bunjoo BunoA paajoaul sAaey ised sy} Ul SSIJIALOE Y 9 ] SNOLIEA
"SaljluNWILLIOD 80| JIay} ulyum sjdoad BunoA jo sabew
aAllsod jo uonjowold pue sdiysuole|al pasoiduwli 0}
Buipes| ‘Jeyioue suo wolj uies| pue (s|iqs ABojouyos)
s a|doad JabunoA ‘6-9) s||Is aseys ueo sjdoad Jep|o
pue JabunoA aisaym sawayos Buluuni adiAI8S YjhoA
é3inyn} ay3 Joj suonelidsy (] ) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Buiaq aJe jey} suonay awoanQ
T 92JNn0Say peaj/ajeosawl | : :

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 289



9¢

buipunj 30V | NAVX ‘umoig |leS
swnyels | pue seidels Ajles ‘'Sue sy} ul Juswabebus ynpe asealou|
‘JUBAS 8y} Jo spied snoLeA
"JNOIABYS( |BID0SUN ui pyed axe} o} sdnoib sebunoA pue Japjo yorat 0} [oNs]
pue awLo 0} JuaLIslep joou-ssesb je seswweiboid yoeaiino aiinbai ‘eouejsul
Jolew e {AJunwiwod aAlsayod Jof sejepy (039 ‘Aueiodwiayuon sauing ‘aljealy amoLep
alow e ybnoly; ssiiuNWIWOD ‘6°9) sjoefoid spe sofew pue (2)e Yoamyjo4 siejspeolg
Buiusyibuaiys 1sjIym Teanseq Aunquejue) ‘sjeuusig a|qeiSiys ‘Jeuusiiy
‘sawioo}no ay} Aolus pue auojsayjo4 ‘B-8) sjealsay Juspuadapur spe (oje
SlIe 8y} 0} SWi} alow d}0A3pP ‘Teanysa 103sA0 8lqeISHUM ‘lenijse- Aeg euior B9)
0} auofiana abeinoous Buipuny nNavi sjusne Ayunwiwioo paf [1ounoy ‘(93e ‘el euoisprep)
0} J8PJO Ul 8JN}N2 JO Ja1sno | ‘usipp Yeleg pue sejepy Buipoddns Ajreoibajeiis aq [im NGy 810N
Buipuelsispun Jases|o uieb o} va33as | zeyoues |seYDIN "S|BAIISS) JUSY JO) YIOMISU PUB JSISN[O S|BAIISS) JUSH
sdnoub Japjo pue Jabunok Jo4 ‘aw} yeis ‘sg|dels Ajles }se3g dojaAsp ‘ucleg |ein}nD N0 |04 pPUB UOISSILULION
“Joyeads ‘sanss| [euoljeiauabiajul Jo ssausleme
}sanb Buipnjoul seainos Jjels sjelojoalig saljunwwo) asield |Im doysyiom
|[eusalxe pue Buipuape ayoue|g |[euonessusbiaiul sy "ssnssi jeuonetsusbisyul
He1s DOM Ylog wody 1oy Aep / 6002 [le uo Buisnooy Ing uoisayoD AHUNLIWOY JO
paX00] 8( ||IM SUOI}OB aInjn} AInp doysilom jo HWaJ peold B aARY [|IM UDIYM 3}eJ0}03lI(J SSiUNwwo)
Jo seapl pue suonsabbng ajep [euoISIACId 1o} pasiuebio Buiaq si doysyiom jeuonessusbisiul uy
"NDY Ssooe
ssaualieme Buiweansulew
pue ul-Ang [aAs-ybiy ayoue|g Auep ‘uodn Buioe aq pjnoys Jo ale DY YdIym uoissyod
usamiad Yul| ay} spiacid + AoUOH epuewy Alunwwo? Jo sanss! ay} sulwexs 0} dn-}as usaq sey
(M dnoub Bulesls ay / Buiobup dnolig Buusslg uoisayoD AlunNwILIOD [BUIBlUI DY V
‘uonnguisip abpsjpmouy
aonoeld 1saq ple os|e ||Im
aseqelep ay| oM uoisayod ‘aseqelep
AHUNWILLOD UMO S} JO ayoue|g | e ojul psle|0o aq 0} ale sasuodsal sy} pue usyeUspuUN
ssaualeme s, 0D Buisealou| Aepy / BuiobuQ usaq sey aJsleuuolisanb uoisayo) Aunuwiwo) v
; ain}ny} ay} Joj suonesids (] ) WEIETEEIEET uaye} Bulaq aJie jeyy suono awoon
éaininy sy} 1o} Bjelldsy 29Jn0S9Y peajjaeasawi | je) bulsq jey; oy  1yT0)

00X = NV'ld NOILOV 14vdd

Page 290



Agenda ltem 11

By: Graham Gibbens, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Services
Oliver Mills, Managing Director, Kent Adult Social Services

To: County Council — 15 October 2009

Subject: GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION ON ‘SHAPING THE FUTURE
OF CARE TOGETHER’ - THE GREEN PAPER ON CARE AND
SUPPORT

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: The Government published a Green Paper on 14 July 2009 outlining
a number of radical proposals for the reform of the care and support
system in England. The outcome of the debate around what the care
and support system will look like in the future, and how it will be
funded, will potentially have profound implications for Kent County
Council. This paper sets out the main proposals of the Green Paper
and their context, and seeks Members’ comments on and agreement
for KCC'’s draft response to the Green Paper. It also includes a copy
of KCC'’s draft response as Appendix 1.

FOR DECISION

Introduction

1. (1)  This paper informs KCC Members of the draft Kent County Council’s
draft response to the recent Government Green Paper, Shaping the Future of Care
Together, and regarding the context and significance of the Green Paper for Kent
County Council. It seeks Members’ comments on and agreement for the draft
response, and also their agreement for the manner in which any final points of detail
and editing may be approved before submission of the response.

(2) The Government is consulting on the proposals until
13 November 2009, and stakeholders including the general public have been invited
to comment. Kent County Council will be submitting a response to the consultation,
having analysed the implications of the various proposals and engaged with
stakeholders within Kent.

(3)  This paper contains details of the engagement carried out with our key
partners in Kent and the steps undertaken in developing the KCC response,
including key dates. It also provides (as an appendix) a copy of KCC’s draft
response to the consultation, which has been formed after engagement with
Members, Corporate Policy and Legal colleagues, and based on analysis produced
by the KASS policy team.

Page 291



Background

2. (1) In May 2008, the Government issued The Case for Change — Why
England needs a new care and support system, launching a six-month engagement
and consultation process. The responses received fed into the Green Paper Shaping
the Future of Care Together, which was published on 14 July 2009.

(2)  The Green Paper should be seen in the context of the Transformation
agenda, a drive by Government over recent years to modernise Adult Social Care,
particularly through an increased emphasis on Personalisation. The key policy
documents which set forth these reforms are the White Paper Our Health, Our Care,
Our Say (2006) and Putting People First (2007).

Proposals

3. (1)  The Green Paper proposes the creation of a National Care Service,
and sets out six things people should be able to expect from it:

- prevention services

- national assessment

- ajoined-up service

- information and advice

- personalised care and support
- fair funding

(2) It then goes on to detail the changes that would be required to deliver
such a system:

— more joined-up working
— a wider range of care and support services
— better quality and innovation

(3)  After which it discusses ways of making better use of existing funding,
most notably through bringing together social care and disability benefits for older
people, and ways of bringing additional funding into the system. The Green Paper
discusses five options for raising this additional money:

— pay for yourself (ruled out)
— partnership

— insurance

— comprehensive

— tax-funded (ruled out)

Developing a Kent response

Kent Adult Social Services

4, (1) A Green Paper Response Team within KASS has been working on
analysing the implications for Kent County Council, with input from colleagues in
Chief Executive’s Department (Legal, Policy and Finance) and across KASS itself.

Page 292



The implications have been set out and discussed at KASS Policy Development and
Review Board (3 September 2009) and Strategic Management Team
(4 September 2009), and was also tabled at the Chief Officer Group (COG) meeting
on 7 October 2009 in order to inform the draft response.

Liaison with Members

(2) The Green Paper Response Team has been in contact with key
Members from across all three Groups, as well as with the Independent
Member. The Team has taken a flexible approach (including meetings, email
conversations and telephone conversations) to ensure that Members were offered
an opportunity to be briefed about the Green Paper and to make early comments
about the proposals it contains. Members have also had the chance to formally
comment on the Paper and feed into the Council's response to it at Adult Social
Services Policy Overview Committee (22 September 2009). The draft response was
presented to the Cabinet meeting on 12 October 2009, in advance of being brought
to County Council on 15 October 2009.

Liaison with outside agencies, organisations and stakeholders

(3) As part of its community leadership role, the Council (through the
Green Paper response team) has contacted Local Strategic Partnerships and key
partners in Health (including the LINks), housing, the private and voluntary care
provision sectors and interested voluntary groups, to raise their awareness of the
Green Paper and encourage them to consider submitting their own responses to the
national consultation. The Team has also extended an offer through the Community
Liaison Managers to speak at Local Boards and other fora.

Kent’s response

5. (1) A copy of Kent County Council’'s draft response to the Green Paper
consultation is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. Members are asked to
comment on the draft response.

(2) Members are also asked to agree that the Cabinet Member for Adult
Social Services, together with the Managing Director for Kent Adult Social Services,
be granted authority to approve any final points of detail and editing before the
response is submitted to Government, which must be done by 13 November 2009.

Conclusion

6. (1)  The Green Paper seeks to address the future demographic pressures
facing England and their ramifications for care and support. It is critical that the
solution that is eventually decided on meets the needs and the growing expectations
of the people of Kent. It is therefore vital that Kent County Council delivers a robust
response to the consultation, to help ensure that the people of Kent have a care and
support system that will enable them to lead healthy and fulfilling lives.

Page 293



Recommendations
7. (1)  County Council is asked to:
(a) COMMENT on the draft consultation response; and,

(b) AGREE the proposed response to the Green Paper and further agree that
the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Services together with the Managing
Director for Kent Adult Social Services be granted authority to approve any
final points of detail and editing before the response is submitted to
Government which must be done by 13 November 2009.

Contact:

Michael Thomas-Sam

Head of Policy and Service Standards
7000 x4843 / 01622 694843
michael.thomas-sam@kent.gov.uk

Page 294



APPENDIX 1

DRAFT

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO ‘SHAPING THE FUTURE OF
CARE TOGETHER’ — THE GREEN PAPER ON CARE AND SUPPORT

This draft response will be further revised following Chief Officer Group,
Cabinet and County Council consideration.

A glossary of acronyms is attached as Appendix A.

1. Introduction

(1) Kent County Council endorses the view that the current system of social care
is not fit for purpose. We agree with the aspiration to build a social care system that
is fair, simple and affordable and therefore welcome the Green Paper and the
opportunity it gives us to feed into the design of a new system.

(2) Kent is the largest Council with Adult Social Services Responsibilities in
England; it contains some of the most deprived areas in the South East; it consists of
large coastal areas which contribute to it having above average residential home
capacity. This, combined with its proximity to London, leads to many individuals
being placed from out of area that can then end up becoming our funding
responsibility under the Ordinary Residence rules.

(3) Kent has a strong track record in pioneering transforming adult social care in
its broadest sense, and is already delivering many of the components of the
‘expectations’ set out in the Green Paper.

(4) Against this backdrop our delivering of social care has been assessed as
three stars by the Commission for Social Care Inspection (CSCI) since the star rating
system was introduced, all the while supporting individuals right down to the
Moderate Fair Access to Care Services (FACS) eligibility criteria. Kent has had to
raise additional funding through local taxation, but has managed to maintain a non-
residential charging policy which is generous by comparison with many other
authorities. We also believe Kent County Council is best-placed to serve the care
and support needs of its citizens, and has demonstrated that it can do this both
efficiently and to a high standard, with a national reputation for innovation.

(5) The issues covered in the Green Paper raise important legal, democratic
accountability and financial questions, and we believe it is important to build a new
system that has cross party and public support, and is sustainable in the long term.

(6) Fundamentally, we believe that the new system should be based on a
‘partnership’ between the individual and the state, which must include a strong role
for local, democratically accountable government.

(7) Kent recognises that the current system is not sustainable given the
demographic pressures and their financial implications. In line with the demographic
changes across England set out in the Green Paper, population forecasts for the
Kent County Council area project an increase in people 85 and over from 29,300 in
2006 to 64,500 in 2026, which represents a doubling in this age group.

Page 295



(8) We have taken the decision to respond to this consultation from the point of
view of Kent as a strategic authority. We have carried out our responsibility to
stimulate debate about these issues and encouraged individuals and organisations in
Kent to respond themselves to the consultation. However we have not attempted to
incorporate these views into our response given the tight timescale in order to enable
elected Members to debate such important and complex issues fully in advance of
submission.

(9) In the following response, rather than answer the questions set, we have
commented on what we consider to be the main issues raised in the Green Paper.

2. National Care Service

(1) The concept of the ‘National Care Service’ is not well defined in the Green
Paper. To the extent that it could mean a national care offer or entitlement based
around the six expectations, we would support it. However, we would not support a
‘National Care Service’ if this is intended as a body controlled by central government
as this would create a democratic deficit, by removing local political accountability for
social care.

(2) We would particularly oppose any move which removed a local authority’s
ability to decide how much should be spent on social care in their area and to raise
extra revenue from Council Tax, if required.

(3) It is clear that there is inequality in the provision of social care across the
country. The Fair Access to Care criteria introduced in 2003 attempted to bring
greater standardization and transparency to the system. Despite this it allowed local
authorities to decide the level of eligible need to use in their area. This effectively
sanctioned the continuation of the so called ‘postcode lottery’. This clearly
disadvantages some people needing care and support and dissuades people from
moving to new areas in the country, a right everyone should be able to enjoy. This is
particularly relevant in Kent as we operate to the Moderate criteria, unlike many
authorities in the surrounding areas. However, we believe that the best way to
address this is for government, through reform of the current funding system, to
provide increased funding for the social care sector rather than taking power away
from local accountable bodies.

(4) (a) We believe that the Green Paper does not adequately address the issue
of the health/social care divide, which is clearly one of the issues of most concern to
people with high level needs for care and support. In this respect, an aspiration to
create a national care and health offer could have been helpful.

(b) However, we recognise that the Green Paper does not represent an end
point in the ‘Big Care Debate’ and that proposals for the future of care and support,
and its relationship with healthcare, will continue to develop. We also appreciate
that there may be further developments to explore following the Prime Minister’s
statements regarding care and support on 27 September.

Page 296



3. National Assessment

(1) The proposal to have a national, portable assessment is something which we
would agree with in principle. However we do have concerns about where the
threshold would be set and whether this would disadvantage Kent’s residents. Kent
County Council has delivered to the Moderate level ever since the implementation of
the Fair Access to Care Services criteria in 2003, and would be opposed to any
system that prevented us continuing to provide services to people at this level of
need.

(2) The stated aim in the Green Paper is to place prevention at the heart of any
new system and this may indicate that a universal threshold would be at least
equivalent to Moderate, if not lower. CSClI’s review of eligibility criteria for social care,
Cutting the Cake Fairly, documented existing tensions between FACS and
personalisation, prevention and low-level services. One of the proposals put forward
during the engagement process carried out by CSCI was to merge the moderate and
low bands into a separate ‘prevention’ band. This would be something we would
support. However unless sufficient funding is available in the new system this may
not be achievable, as councils are already finding it increasingly difficult to maintain
existing levels of service.

(3) The introduction of a universal threshold, if equivalent to Moderate or lower,
would potentially lead to extra funding being given to those authorities who were not
yet offering services down to the chosen level. This could disadvantage Kent and
other authorities which are currently able to provide services down to Moderate level.

(4) The proposal to have the same proportion of a person’s care and support
costs paid for wherever they live is attractive superficially as it appears equitable and
may make it easier for disabled people to move around the country. However we do
have certain reservations about this proposal:

o We think the amount of money the proportion translates into should be
determined locally, based on local market conditions

e Unless we were assured of sufficient funding from national government to
provide services, we would be loath to give up the discretion available in
the charging regime for non-residential services, since this provides
councils with another mechanism to keep eligibility levels low within
existing funding. In 2007 Kent took the decision to increase the
percentage of available income used for charging purposes from 65% to
85%. This was done so that eligibility criteria could be maintained at
Moderate.

4. A joined up service

(1) Creating a more joined up service is an admirable aim, but difficult to achieve.
In particular, we believe more should be done to strengthen joint working between
health and social care services — though we acknowledge and welcome the fact that
much has already been done to align health and social care provision, for example
by the creation of joint delivery teams in the areas of learning disability, creating a
single inspection and regulation body and a single set of performance indicators and
the work around the Common Assessment Framework

Page 297



(2) There are many good examples of joined-up working in Kent, particularly
between Kent Adult Social Services, health services and the voluntary sector. The
development of preventative services relies heavily on partnership working across
the Health and social care sectors (see section 5 below)

(3) KASS and both Kent PCTs have agreed to adopt Functional Assessment in
Community Environments (FACE) with the principle of ‘do once and share’. We are
currently in discussions with the Department of Health about piloting the CAF FACE
forms for claiming Attendance Allowance.

(4) (a) Inthe long term complete merging of funding streams would seem to be
a more efficient way of distributing the finite resources available and we would be
interested in working with government to test how this may work in Kent.

(b) Specifically one of the proposals around a joined up service in the Green
Paper is to completely merge disability benefits for older people (mainly Attendance
Allowance) with the current funding for social care. We believe this should be given
serious consideration as it may offer the best of both systems. Advantages may
include:

Universal entitlement to at least a set proportion of care costs (from AA)

o Entitlement only after an assessment providing eligibility is kept low (from the
current social care system) — this could help guarantee that support would go to
those who needed it most

o Advice and help on how to best meet identified needs (from the current social
care system)

e Ability to spend the money on whatever the individual feels best meets their
needs (from AA). This would, however, require a change in the current
legislation governing councils with adult social services responsibilities’
(CASSRs) duties towards people assessed as requiring their support. Even with
Personal Budgets paid as a Direct Payment, we still have a duty to ensure that
the money given is spent on meeting assessed need.

(c) However there are various issues which need to be explored regarding
any such proposal in respect of Attendance Allowance and other disability benefits.
These issues include:

e Would eligibility for care and support be set at a level comparable with that for
current disability benefits?

o Would people have the same freedom as they currently do with disability benefits
to use it for what they feel is best? If so, this would require legislative change, as
outlined above.

o Would there be transitional arrangements for people in receipt of disability
benefits when any change was made to the system?

¢ At the moment receipt of Attendance Allowance acts to passport people and their
carers to extra benefits. A mechanism would be needed to make sure people
didn’t lose out if AA were to be phased out.

Page 298



5. Prevention, Personalised Care and Information/Advice

(1) The emphasis on prevention, personalised care and support and providing
high quality information and advice is particularly welcomed. These are integral to
the direction of travel already spelled out in ‘Our Health, Our Care, Our Say and
‘Putting People First. Kent is fully behind these objectives and has already
implemented a number of innovations to transform social care in the broader sense..
These include:

o Offering Telecare since 2004
e Whole System Demonstrator/Telehealth partnership with local PCTs — Kent
now has over 900 people using Telehealth, the largest project in Europe
e Providing a website to enable people to carry out a ‘self assessment’ of their
care and support needs anytime of the day or night, since 2004
o Working with service users, representatives from local voluntary organisations
and carers to develop our Information, Advice and Guidance Policy. The
policy will ensure a good standard of information is given to any person
requiring it, irrespective of their eligibility for public funds or support from Kent
Adult Social Services.
e Implementing Self Directed Support to meet the personalisation agenda
including:
o Offering Personal Budgets to new clients since April 2009.
o Over 900service users using the ground breaking pre-loaded Kent
Card for their Direct Payments
o Offering Enablement Support for up to 6 weeks free of charge to new
clients
o Introducing Support Planning to enable outcome focused support and
increased choice and control of support options.
o Using Partnerships for Older People Projects (POPPS) funding to provide:
o Community Matron Support Workers who work with people who have
long term conditions
o Community Information Liaison Assistants who have produced
information directories for services within local communities.
o Care Navigator Service which will visit a person’s home to explore
community solutions to meet need and provide community
information.

(2) Prevention is at the heart of the Directorate’s approach to promoting
independence and ensuring services are personalised. It has a long legacy in Kent
through funding and collaboration with Health, housing and the voluntary sector.
There are many examples of our preventive approach, as set out above. The
fundamental principle is to take a wide angled view of social capital while maintaining
our eligibility criteria at Moderate, despite significant financial and demand pressures
at the higher end.

6. Funding Options

(1) The commitment to find solutions for how the system can be funded is very
welcome, as the current arrangements are not sustainable. However it raises a
number of important questions, some of which we believe have been given
insufficient attention in the Green Paper.

Page 299



(2) We believe that the basis for any new system should be a partnership
between the individual and the state. There are various ways this can be structured
and we outline below how we feel the Voluntary Insurance option could work in Kent.
Although we acknowledge the difficulties inherent in the fully tax funded option, we
would have preferred to see more analysis of this option in the Green Paper rather
than it being simply ruled out.

(3) We agree in principle with a system in which everyone, regardless of means,
receives at least a set proportion of the cost of their care. In a sense this already
exists because Attendance Allowance, which in theory is awarded for care needs, is
given regardless of means. If AA were to be abolished and the funding transferred to
the social care budget, it would be logical to provide a similar level of funding to all,
regardless of means.

(4) The proposal that everyone should receive some state funding, regardless of
means, would inevitably lead to a huge increase in the numbers of people being
assessed and funded through councils with adult social services responsibilities
(CASSRs). We believe there is insufficient analysis in the Green Paper about the
implications of this, in particular the legal and financial consequences.

(5) CASSRs currently have a responsibility to ensure that assessed needs are
being met. Unless legislation was changed, this duty would extend to new clients
accessing support through the local authority. There would potentially need to be
many more staff involved in the council’s assessment, monitoring and review process

(6) Currently, KASS has about 34,000 clients at any one time. However, if we
use receipt of disability benefits as a measure of those with social care needs, there
are approximately 100,000 people in Kent who could potentially become clients of
KASS (60,000 people entitled to Disability Living Allowance (DLA), of which 12,000
are over 65, and 38,000 entitled to Attendance Allowance (AA)'). Using these
figures as a rough indication would suggest that we could potentially be supporting
three times the number of people we do now, before we take into account any
demographic changes. Moreover, it is difficult to accurately predict the likely
additional numbers without knowing the threshold a person would need to pass
before receiving support under any new system.

(7) It is acknowledged that the Partnership model on its own would leave many
people unable to cover the full cost of their care. The Green Paper indicates that the
least well off would get the whole cost of their care paid for by the state, but a
significant number of people would fall outside of this safety net. It is this cohort
which would need a mechanism for funding the remaining cost. Kent County
Council believes this mechanism should be voluntary insurance.

(8) We believe that the Voluntary Insurance scheme could work along the
lines of the evidence submitted by Kent to the Wanless Report in 2006. We
carried out research into the Long Term Care Insurance model in 2004 with a leading
insurance company and were keen to do further analysis in order to build a case for
some type of central government subsidy to bring down the cost of insurance to the
customer. However at that time national government did not wish to fund further
modelling work. We provide further details of our proposal as Appendix B to this
response.

' These figures include both those people in receipt of these benefits as well as those with
‘underlying entitlement’, that is those people whose benefits have ceased after entering long
term residential / nursing care.

Page 300



(9) A key point stressed in the Green Paper is that the costs of ‘care and
support’ should be viewed as being distinct from the costs of ‘housing and living’, the
rationale being that everyone is expected to buy their own food and pay their own
bills and rent / mortgage whether or not they have care and support needs. Thus, if
someone is in need of residential care, they will be expected to pay for their own
accommodation costs as they would if they were living in the community. We have
concerns about this approach as clearly in many cases the care and support required
is inextricably linked to the type of accommodation, such as a residential care home.
No consideration is given to the fact that many people in later life will have paid off
their mortgages, so it does not follow that accommodation costs in a care home
equate to housing costs in the community.

(10) It is estimated that about half the cost of living in a residential care home is
for the board and lodging element (i.e. accommodation). The proposals in the Green
Paper do not solve the problem of people possibly having to sell their homes or at
best, losing much of the equity in their properties.

(11) We believe that incentives to save for one’s old age are not sufficiently
considered in the Green Paper. The proposal to offer some state funding to all,
regardless of means, goes some way to address a perceived disincentive to save.
However, several times in the Green Paper it is stated that more help will be given to
people who are “less well off”, without defining what that means. If the government is
proposing to use the current system of means testing for residential care to
determine who gets full help (as opposed to only a proportion), then this system
needs to be reviewed and possibly reformed.

(12) Finally we have serious concerns regarding potential massive financial risks if

local authorities would have to administer all the money given to individuals and any
‘deferred payment’ system for a person’s contributions.

7. Role of local government

(1) We believe that local government should decide how much money people
should receive towards their assessed care and support needs. Local government is
best placed to understand and respond to the needs of their populations, including
the variations within a large and diverse county such as Kent, which covers one of
the most deprived districts in the South East (Thanet) and one of the least deprived
(Sevenoaks).

(2) Moreover, should the ability to determine how much care should cost locally
be taken away from CASSRs, it would partially limit our ability to shape the market of
care and support providers. We strongly agree that market shaping should be a key
element of our ongoing role in delivering care and support.

(3) As we have stated above, we have an excellent track record for innovation
and delivering good outcomes, as assessed by CSCl (now CQC). We have
maintained eligibility criteria at the Moderate level for the last six years, with cross-
party backing from County Councillors.

Page 301



(4) As public finances will be tight for the foreseeable future whatever
Government is in power, we would wish to maintain our ability to raise extra money
locally through council tax, and as a Total Place Pilot, make best use of all the
resources already deployed in Kent. Missing this opportunity will undermine the
aspiration in the Green Paper that early intervention and prevention should be
cornerstones of care and support in future.

8. Concluding Remarks

As our response makes clear, Kent County Council welcomes the Green Paper’s
drive towards greater personalisation, closer working between health and social care,
and a fairer and more sustainable long-term funding regime. However, for any
reform of the social care system to be successful, it is important to build on and learn
the lessons of previous experience. Based on our long and successful experience of
delivering high-quality social care services, we believe that Kent County Council has
an important contribution to make to the development of social care reform. We
would welcome the opportunity to co-operate with national government in future to
explore specific aspects of this area of work.

Page 302



AA
CAF
CASSRs
CcQcC
CSCl
DLA
FACE
FACS
KASS
LTCI
PCT
POPPs

Appendix A: Glossary of acronyms

Attendance Allowance

Common Assessment Framework

Councils with Adult Social Service Responsibilities
Care Quality Commission

Commission for Social Care Inspection

Disability Living Allowance

Functional Assessments in Community Environments
Fair Access to Care Services

Kent Adult Social Services

Long Term Care Insurance

Primary Care Trust

Partnerships for Older People Projects

Page 303



Appendix B: Kent County Council’s research into Long Term Care Insurance

In Kent there is a sizeable proportion of older people who start off paying for social
care as self-funders, but whose assets then erode to a level at which they need to
approach Kent County Council for funding under the means-testing rules.

We carried out research into the Long Term Care Insurance (LTCI) model in 2004
with a leading insurance company and with the advice of the Association of British
Insurers. The plan was to offer a new partnership insurance product, targeted either
at people from middle age to retirement with middle incomes and a property, or at
people with retirement pension lump sums. The LTCI partnership product would
create a new category for Kent social services of “fully funded through insurance”.
There would be no need for a means-test for policyholders.

Aside from financial considerations, Kent County Council was also aware that many
self-funders may be inappropriately admitted to care homes in the absence of any
care management advice. The proposed LTCI scheme therefore included care
management in the expectation that more people would then be supported to remain
in their own homes.

Under the scheme eligibility of the policyholders for care would be assessed by Kent
County Council, and this assessment would be accepted by the insurance company.
Any future payout by the insurer would be on the basis of the Kent County Council
eligibility criteria in force at the time the policy was originally taken out, thus
protecting the policyholder against changes over time. Those criteria would have to
be very clearly delineated, which would be one of the challenges of the scheme.

Kent County Council’'s proposed LTCI scheme followed certain guidelines, which
could be followed by other councils around the country:

o The “partnership” would be between the council and a single insurance
company (although one insurer might have agreements with several councils
in order to spread the risk)

e The product would be priced on the basis of premiums that were simple to
understand, age-related and gender-related.

e The policy would be significantly less expensive than current long-term care
products

¢ In the pricing it was assumed that Attendance Allowance would always be put
towards the costs of the care package (this could be substituted with the 1/3
or 1/4 state funding contribution suggested in the Green Paper).

e The benefits would be portable, and could be used to pay for care in another
local authority area if the insured person moved

e There could be the choice of Standard level and Enhanced level cover
The LTCI would be separately targeted but ideally with an option to “package
in” with a Stakeholder Pension in order to encourage pension saving

Financial modelling was carried out to demonstrate the impact of the proposed
insurance partnership on various types of user. The LTCI greatly reduced the
financial burden on self-funders, but also alleviated the costs to Kent County Council.
However more work is needed to look at the impact of KCC having to carry out the
needs assessment and on their legal obligations under the current legislation.

It was always anticipated that poorer users who could not afford the LTCI premiums
would not be affected by the scheme and would continue to be supported by KCC.

Page 304



The challenge, as always with LTCI, was whether the estimated premiums would be
affordable. The insurance company produced draft premiums varying from £20 a
month for a 45-year-old man to £110.75 a month for a 75-year-old woman.
Subsequent estimates were higher and it was considered that this level of premiums
would not be taken up by enough consumers to create a viable product.

Kent County Council was keen to do further analysis in order to build a case for some
type of central government subsidy to bring down the price. It was suggested that this
could possibly be through council tax reductions for policyholders, or tax breaks on
policy premiums. Wider savings might be achieved because case management
would help self-funders postpone residential care and offer preventative measures
which would reduce demands on free NHS nursing. Unfortunately we were unable
to persuade government to fund further modelling on how such a scheme could be
implemented.

Page 305



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 306



Agenda ltem 12

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee held in the Council
Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 25 June 2009.

PRESENT: Mr R W Bayford, Mr A R Chell, Mr K A Ferrin, MBE, Mr C Hibberd,
Mr D A Hirst, Mr P W A Lake, Mr J F London, Mr T Prater, Mr M V Snelling, Mr R Tolputt,
Mr C T Wells and Mrs P A V Stockell (Substitute for Mr R L H Long, TD)
OFFICERS: Mr P Sass (Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership)
: UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

15. Membership
(ltem 1)

The Committee noted its Membership as set out above

16. Election of Chairman
(ltem 3)

RESOLVED that Mr R L H Long TD be elected Chairman of the Committee.

Page 307



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 308



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee held in the Darent
Room, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Tuesday, 30 June 2009.

PRESENT: Mr R W Bayford, Mr A R Chell, Mr C Hibberd, Mr J F London,
Mr R L H Long, TD, Mr J Ozog (Substitute for Mr P W A Lake), Mr T Prater,
Mr R Tolputt and Mr C T Wells

ALSO PRESENT: Ms S J Carey and Mr J D Simmonds

OFFICERS: Ms L McMullan (Director of Finance), Mr N Vickers (Head of Financial
Services), Mr A Wood (Head of Financial Management), Mrs C Head (Chief
Accountant), Mrs D Mattingly (Corporate Risk & Insurance Manager), Miss J Purvis
(Improvement & Engagement Officer), Ms J Dawson (Head of Audit and Risk),

Mrs J Armstrong (Senior Audit Manager), Mr C Bainbridge (Director of Community
Safety & Regulatory Services), Mr P Mulholland (Group Leader, Property and
Commercial) and Mr A Tait (Democratic Services Officer)

ALSO PRESENT were Mr D Wells and Mr G Brown of the Audit Commission.

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

17. Election of Vice-Chairman
(Item 1)

Mr R Tolputt moved, seconded by Mr A R Chell that Mr M V Snelling be elected Vice-

Chairman of the Committee.
Carried with no opposition.

18. Terms of Reference and dates of future meetings
(Iltem 2)

(1)  The Committee noted its Terms of Reference subject to the following minor

amendments:-

(f) the deletion of “Best Value Inspectorate” and its replacement by “the Audit

Commission; and

(j) the deletion of “Strategic Director (Resources) and its replacement by

“Director of Finance.”

(2)  The Committee noted the following future meeting dates:-
Wednesday, 16 September 2009;
Tuesday, 1 December 2009;

Friday, 30 April 2010;
Wednesday, 30 June 2010;

Page 309



Wednesday, 15 September 2010; and
Tuesday, 30 November 2010.

(3) RESOLVED that subject to (1) above, the Terms of Reference and dates of
future meetings be noted.

19. Minutes - 4 March 2009 and 25 June 2009 (To Follow)

(ltem 4)

(1)  The Minutes of the Committee meeting held on 25 June 2009 were tabled.

(2) RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meetings held on 4 March 2009 and 25
June 2009 are correctly recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.

20. Trading Activities Sub-Group (Oral report)
(ltem 5)

(1) The Terms of Reference of the Trading Activities Sub-Group had been
circulated in the supplementary papers.

(2) The Committee agreed to a minor amendment to the Terms of Reference of
the Sub-Group so that its membership would be 2 Conservative and 1 Liberal
Democrat Member with an invitation also being extended to the Labour Group to
nominate one Member.

(3) RESOLVED that subject to (2) above, the Terms of Reference and
membership of the Trading Activities Sub-Group be agreed.

21. Draft Internal Audit Annual Report 2008/09
(Item 6)

(1)  The report has been circulated to Members with the supplementary papers.

(2) RESOLVED that approval be given to the Head of Audit and Risk’s Annual
Report.

22. External Audit Progress Report (To Follow)
(ltem 7)

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

23. Annual Audit Fee letter 2009/10
(Item 8)

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

24. Annual Inspection Fee letter 2009/10
(ltem 9)

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Page 310



25. Treasury Management Annual Review
(Item 10)

(1) Mr J D Simmonds, Cabinet Member for Finance was present for this item
pursuant to Committee Procedure Rule 2.24 and spoke.

(2) RESOLVED that the report be noted.

26. Annual Audit and Inspection Letter
(ltem 11)

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

27. Draft Statement of Accounts 2008/09 (including Annual Governance
Report)
(ltem 12)

(1)  The Audit Commission’s Annual Governance Report had previously been
circulated to the Committee.

(2) RESOLVED that:-

(@) approval be given to the Statement of Accounts for 2008/09 subject to
the Chairman and Liberal Democrat Group Spokesman being informed
of any changes which may be made to the Accounts following
completion of the external audit; and

(b)  the recommendations made in the Annual Governance Report be
noted.

28. Ombudsman Complaints
(ltem 13)

The Committee deferred consideration of this item to its next meeting.

29. Annual Report on surveillance activities carried out by KCC between
January and December 2008
(Item 14)

RESOLVED to:-
(@)  note the report;

(b)  note the manner in which KCC’s formal Policy and Protocol and
Surveillance (including the acquisition of Communications data) has
been used and followed during the previous year, including the type of
criminal offences where surveillance has been used or communications
data has been requested; and

(c) note the use of a periodic audit across KCC senior managers to

ascertain activities which may fall within the ambit of the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA).

Page 311



30. Strategic Risk Register
(ltem 15)

RESOLVED that the revised Strategic Risk Register be noted.

31. Internal Audit Progress Report
(ltem 16)

(1)  The response of the Managing Director of Children, Families and Education to
the findings of the audit on Cluster Funding had previously been circulated to the
Committee.

(2) RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Page 312



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee held in the Darent Room,
Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Wednesday, 16 September 20009.

PRESENT: Mr R L H Long, TD (Chairman), Mr M V Snelling (Vice-Chairman),
Mr A R Chell, Mr K A Ferrin, MBE, Mr C Hibberd, Mr P W A Lake, Mr J F London,
Mr R J Parry, Mr T Prater, Mr R Tolputt and Mr C T Wells

ALSO PRESENT: Ms S J Carey and Mr J D Simmonds

OFFICERS: Ms L McMullan (Director of Finance), Mr G Wild (Director of Law and
Governance), Ms J Dawson (Head of Audit and Risk), Mrs J Armstrong (Senior Audit
Manager), Mr R Fitzgerald (Performance Monitoring Manager), Ms J Hill (Performance
Manager), Mrs D Mattingly (Corporate Risk & Insurance Manager) and Mr A Tait
(Democratic Services Officer)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Mr D Wells and Mr G Brown from the Audit Commission.
UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

32. Presentation on the Role and Terms of Reference for the Governance and
Audit Committee
(ltem 3)

(1)  The Head of Audit and Risk gave a detailed presentation on the role of the
Committee. This was supplemented by the Director of Law and Governance, who
set out the governance aspects of the Committee’s work.

(2) Members of the Committee considered that it should take a more pro-active
view of its role. The Committee therefore welcomed the Chairman’s commitment to
discuss amendments to the agenda-setting process with the Committee’s lead
officers.

(3)  As this was Mrs Janet Dawson’s last meeting as Head of Audit and Risk, the
Committee thanked her for all her work on its behalf and wished her well in the
future.

33. Minutes - 30 June 2009
(ltem 4)

RESOLVED that, subject to the deletion of Mr Parry from the list of those present
and to the inclusion of Mr D Wells and Mr G Brown from the Audit Commission, the
Minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2009 are correctly recorded and that they
be signed by the Chairman.

34. Trading Activities Sub-Group Notes - 1 September 2009
(Item 5)

Page 313



35.

36.

(1) Mr M V Snelling made a declaration of personal interest for this item and the
following item (Minute 35) as he was a Director of a number of KCC Commercial
Services Trading Companies. He left the meeting for the duration of both items.

(2)  This item was considered in conjunction with the following item ion the
agenda (Minute 35).

(3) RESOLVED that the notes of the Trading Activities Sub-Group meeting held
on 1 September 2009 be noted.

External Audit Review of KCC's Commercial Operations
(Item 6)

(1)  This item was considered in conjunction with the previous item on the
agenda (Minute 34).

(2) A motion by Mr T Prater to amend the actions in Recommendation 3 on
page 13 of the agenda papers was withdrawn following an assurance from the
Director of Finance that reviews could be carried out by other bodies apart from
Internal Audit if it was considered appropriate.

(3) Mr C T Wells moved and it was duly seconded that the overarching aim of
the Trading Activities Sub-Group be amended to read: “To ensure that the trading
activities of the Council are run properly and transparently.”

Carried 6 votes to 2.

(4) Mr T Prater moved, seconded by Mr C T Wells that the membership of the
Trading Activities Sub-Group should includ3e a representative from the business
community.

Lost 2 votes to 7

(5) RESOLVED that:-

(@) the contents of the Audit Commission’s indepent review of KCC’s
commercial operations be noted;

(b)  the actions set out in Appendix B of the report to meet the Audit
Commission’s 8 recommendations be agreed; AND

(c) the overarching aim of the Trading Activities Sub-Group be amended
to read: “to ensure that the trading activities of the Council are run
properly and transparently.”

2008/09 Final Accounts and Annual Governance Report
(ltem 7)

(1)  Members of the Committee requested that there should be a report to a
future meeting on the full impact on and risks to the County Council resulting from
the Private Finance Initiative, particularly in respect of the Building Schools for the
Future programme.

(2) RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Page 314



37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

Insurance Activity and new Performance Indicators
(Item 8)

(1)  The Committee noted that Mr J D Simmonds, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for
Finance was the co-author of the report rather than Mr Long.

(2) RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Internal Audit Benchmarking Results
(ltem 9)

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Internal Audit Progress Report
(ltem 10)

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Data Quality
(ltem 11)

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Ombudsman Complaints
(ltem 12)

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Page 315



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 316



Agenda ltem 13

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

MINUTES of A meeting of the Planning Applications Committee held in the Council
Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 25 June 2009.

PRESENT: Mr R Brookbank, MrARChell, MrT Gates, MrW A Hayton,
Mr C Hibberd, Mr G A Horne MBE, MrRE King, MrJD Kirby, MrRJ Lees,
MrJ F London, MrRF Manning, MrRJParry, MrK Pugh, MrM Robertson,
Mr C P Smith, Mr K Smith, Mrs P A V Stockell and Mr A Willicombe

ALSO PRESENT:

IN ATTENDANCE: MrP Sass (Head of Democratic Services and Local
Leadership)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

33. Membership
(ltem A1)

The Committee noted its membership as set out below:-

Conservative (16): Mr R Brookbank, Mr A R Chell, Mr T Gates, Mr W A Hayton, Mr
C Hibberd, Mr G A Horne MBE, Mr R E King, Mr J Kirby, Mr J F London, Mr R F
Manning, Mr R J Parry, Mr K Pugh, Mr C Smith, Mr K Smith, Mrs P A V Stockell, Mr
A Willicombe

Liberal Democrat (1): Mr M Robertson
Independent (1): Mr R Lees

34. Election of Chairman
(ltem A3)

RESOLVED that Mr R E King be elected Chairman of the Committee.

Page 317



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 318



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

35.

36.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

MINUTES of A meeting of the Planning Applications Committee held in the Council
Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Tuesday, 14 July 2009.

PRESENT: Mr R E King (Chairman), Mr R Brookbank, Mr A R Chell, Mr T Gates,
Mr W A Hayton, Mr C Hibberd, Mr G A Horne MBE, MrJ D Kirby, MrR J Lees,
MrJ F London, MrRF Manning, MrRJParry, MrKPugh, MrCP Smith,
Mrs P AV Stockell and Mr D S Daley (Substitute) (Substitute for Mr M Robertson)

ALSO PRESENT: Mrs V J Dagger

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr G Wild (Director of Law and Governance), Mrs S Thompson
(Head of Planning Applications Group), Mr M Clifton (Team Leader - Waste
Developments), Mr J Crossley (Team Leader - County Council Development),
Mr J Wooldridge (Team Leader - Mineral Developments), Mr N Sarrafan (County
Transport & Development Manager) and Mr A Tait (Democratic Services Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

Election of Vice-Chairman
(ltem A2)

Mr R E King moved, seconded by Mrs P A V Stockell that Mr J F London be elected
Vice-Chairman of the Committee.
Carried Unanimously

Terms of Reference and dates of future meetings
(ltem A3)

The Committee noted its terms of Reference and the following future meeting
dates:-

Tuesday, 18 August 2009
Tuesday, 8 September 2009
Tuesday, 6 October 2009
Tuesday, 3 November 2009
Tuesday, 8 December 2009
Thursday, 21 January 2010
Tuesday, 16 February 2010
Tuesday, 16 March 2010
Tuesday, 13 April 2010
Tuesday, 11 May 2010
Tuesday, 15 June 2010
Tuesday, 27 July 2010

Tuesday, 17 August 2010 (Provisional)
Tuesday, 7 September 2010
Tuesday, 12 October 2010
Tuesday, 2 November 2010; and
Tuesday, 7 December 2010.

Page 319



37.

38.

39.

40.

Minutes - 26 May 2009 and 25 June 2009
(Iltem A5)

RESOLVED that, subject to the deletion of Mr R J Parry and Mr C Smith from the
list of those present on 25 July 2009, the Minutes of the meetings held on 26 May
2009 and 25 July 2009 are correctly recorded and that they be signed by the
Chairman.

Site Meetings and Other Meetings
(Item A6)

The Committee agreed to the following site visit and training dates:-

(@)  Tilmanstone composting proposal on 18 August 2009;

(b)  Sevenoaks Quarry extension on 8 September 2009 (provisional);

(c) Northfleet Works — Bulk aggregates import terminal on 6 October 2009;
(d)  Training on 3 November 2009; and

(e)  Coach Tour of permitted development sites on 24 November 20009.

Probity in Planning
(ltem B1- Report by Director of Law and Governance)

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Application TM/08/3715/R8 - Dust Control Scheme pursuant to Condition 8 of
Permission TM/08/3715 at Borough Green Quarry, Wrotham Road, Borough
Green, Sevenoaks; Cemex UK Materials Ltd

(ltem C1- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)

(1) Mrs V J Dagger was present for this item and spoke pursuant to Committee
Procedure Rule 2.24.

(2) The Head of Planning Applications informed the Committee of
correspondence from Wrotham Parish Council raising a number of questions in
respect of the application. A response was given to the questions raised.

(3) Mr M Taylor of Borough Green PC and Mr H Rayner of Wrotham PC
addressed the Committee in opposition to the application. Mrs K Hannaford-Hill
from Cemex spoke in reply.

(4)  The Committee agreed to include an additional condition requiring all loaded
vehicles (in and out) to be sheeted. It also asked for an Informative asking Cemex
to invite representatives from Tonbridge and Malling BC (Environmental Health)
and the Environment Agency to attend the Liaison Group meetings.

(5) RESOLVED that;-

Page 320



41.

42,

(a) approval be given pursuant to condition 8 of Permission TM/08/3715
for the dust control scheme subject to conditions including the
operator reporting complaints to the Quarry Liaison Group on a
regular basis and providing contact details for those wishing to make
complaints; the speed limit on internal haul roads being restricted to
10mph with signs being erected to this effect within the site; and all
loaded vehicles (in and out) being sheeted; and

(b) the operator be informed by Informative of the Committee’s view that
representatives from Tonbridge and Malling BC (Environmental
Health) and the Environment Agency should be invited to its Liaison
Group meetings.

Application DA/09/364 - Variation of Conditions 6 (infilling restoration) and 15
(Noise) of Permission DA/98/805/MR27 at Stone Pit I, St James Lane,
Greenhithe, Dartford; Stone Pit Restoration Ltd

(ltem C2- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)

RESOLVED that:-

(@) permission be granted to the to the variation of Conditions 6 and 15 of
permission DA/98/805/MR27 subject to conditions including conditions
relating to hours of working (0800 to 1800 Mondays to Fridays, with no
operations including deliveries and collections to and from the site on
Saturdays, Sundays or Public Holidays, and when working along the
eastern boundary 1000 to 1600 on Mondays to Fridays only); operations
being undertaken in accordance with the proposed scheme of infilling;,
noise limits; submission of noise, dust and vibration monitoring details;
and details of final landscaping and restoration; and

(b) the applicants be advised by Informative that all other conditions imposed
under Permission DA/98/805/MR remain in force, and of the
requirements of National Grid and EDF Energy in terms of the need to
safeguard their interests.

Application SE/08/2141 - Amendment of Condition 3 of Permission SE/00/2739
to allow additional time for completion of development and enable restoration
to approved levels and to amend the approved Ecological Management
Scheme to reflect a delay in commencement of operations at Greatness
Quarry, Bat and Ball Road, Sevenoaks; Cory Environmental Ltd

(ltem C3- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)

(1) Mr G A Horne and Mr J F London made declarations of personal interest in
respect of this item.

(2)  Correspondence from Sevenoaks Town Council objecting to the application
was tabled.

Page 321



43.

44,

(3) The Head of Planning Applications Group informed the Committee of
correspondence from Mr N J D Chard, the Local Member supporting the
recommendations.

(4) RESOLVED that:-

(a) subject to the applicant entering into and satisfactory completing a Section
106 Agreement (and paying reasonable legal and administrative costs
and disbursements incurred by the County Council) permission be
granted to the proposed variation of Condition 3 of permission
SE/00/2739 and the proposed amendment to the approved Ecological
Management Scheme subject to Condition 3 being reworded as follows:-

Unless otherwise approved in writing by the County Planning Authority,
all waste treatment and disposal operations shall cease by 15 August
2017 and the site shall be restored in accordance with details approved
pursuant to condition (10)(a) of this permission on 7 October 2002 by 15
August 2017”; and

(b) the applicant be reminded that all other conditions imposed under
Permission SE/00/2739 remain in effect.

Application CA/09/341 - Motor control centre kiosk and vent stack as part of
sewer upgrade works at Maxted Court, Highfields View, Herne Bay; Southern
Water Ltd

(ltem C4- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)

The Head of Planning Applications Group informed the Committee that this
application had been withdrawn.

Application AS/09/530 - Wastewater pumping station, including construction
of a motor control centre kiosk, sub station kiosk, standby generator and
steel palisade fencing at Land to south of Alsops Road, Willesborough,
Ashford; Southern Water Ltd

(ltem C5- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)

RESOLVED that:-

(@) permission be granted to the application subject to conditions
including the standard time condition; noise controls; construction
hours; details of parking and loading arrangements; measures to
prevent mud or debris on the highway; and details of methods of
disposing of surface water within the site; and

(b) Informatives sought by the Environment Agency regarding

groundwater vulnerability, drainage, land contamination and storage
of fuels and chemicals be attached to any permission.

Page 322



45.

46.

Proposal TW/09/79 - Fenced and floodlit synthetic multi-sports pitch with
associated car parking and landscaping at Tunbridge Wells Grammar School
for Boys, St John's Road, Tunbridge Wells; Governors of Tunbridge Wells
Grammar School for Boys

(ltem D1- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)

(1)  MrJ F London made a declaration of personal Interest as his grandson was
a pupil at the School.

(2) The Head of Planning Applications Group reported the further views of Mr
Edwards, a local resident asking for further restrictions on hours of use.

(3) RESOLVED that permission be granted to the Proposal subject to
conditions, including conditions covering the standard time limit; the
development being carried out in accordance with the permitted details; the
School’s changing facilities being kept available for use after school hours,
unless another arrangement is secured; details of the cycling storage being
submitted for approval and then installed before the commencement of use
of the pitch; the new car park not being used until the floodlit pitch is built;
the development being carried out in accordance with the lighting and other
details specified in the application and not varied without prior written
approval of the County Planning Authority; no trees being removed without
County Planning Authority approval and a Tree protection plan being
submitted; the submission of Landscaping scheme details, including bund
details (existing vegetation along the bank to the east of the pitch should be
strengthened through further planting and additional planting should be
incorporated along the existing bank to the south of the pitch and extended
along the western extent of the pitch), illustration of the changes in
topography in relation to the existing banks and existing vegetation; Light
levels not exceeding the levels applied for; Hours of use for the pitch and the
floodlighting being restricted to between 0900 and 2200 hours Mondays to
Fridays, 1000 and 2000 hours on Saturdays, 1000 and 1800 hours Sundays
and no use on Bank Holidays; Lighting not being in use when the pitch is not
in use; Community Use agreements being submitted and approved; and the
development being carried out in accordance with the permitted details.

Proposal SH/09/418 - Modular building for use as a dining hall including
associated groundwork at Pent Valley Technology College, Surrenden Road,
Folkestone; Governors of Pent Valley Technology College

(ltem D2- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)

(1) Mrs M Brown, a local resident addressed the Committee in opposition to the
proposal. Mrs J Rose (Business Manager at Pent Valley School) spoke in reply.

(2)  The Committee agreed to the inclusion of an Informative asking the School
to consider the installation of semi-fixed seating.

(3) RESOLVED that:-

(a) permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions, including
conditions covering the building being removed from the site by the
end of 2012; no amplified or musical equipment being used in the
building; the building only being used between 0800 and 1800 hours

Page 323



47.

48.

49.

on weekdays and in term time only; and the development being
carried out in accordance with the permitted details; and

(b)  the applicants be advised by Informative about the boundary planting
along the southern boundary to help with the ongoing conflict with the
neighbours, and of the Committee’s view that semi-fixed seating
should be installed in order to reduce noise levels.

Proposal SE/09/889 - 6KW wind turbine with 15m mast on the front lawn of
college buildings and installation of solar photovoltaic panels on college flat
roof at Swanley Technology College, St Mary's Road, Swanley; Governors of
Swanley Technology College

(ltem D3- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)

(3) RESOLVED that permission be granted to the Proposal subject to
conditions, including conditions covering the standard time limit; white finish
of the blades and turbine head; and the development being carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

Proposal MA/09/594 -Siting of a mobile catering van at Teston Bridge Country
Park, Teston Lane, Teston, Maidstone; KCC Country Parks Service
(ltem D4- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)

(1)  Correspondence from Teston Parish Council was tabled

(2) Mrs O Oxley (Chairman of Teston PC), Mrs E Henderson (a local resident)
and Mrs F Gooch (the local Borough Councillor) addressed the Committee in
opposition to the proposal. Mr L Grover (Area Country Parks Manager) spoke in

reply.

(3) In approving the proposal, the Committee included a condition restricting the
Permission to a period of 2 years.

(4) RESOLVED that temporary permission be granted to the proposal for a
period of two years subject to conditions, including restrictions on the hours of use;
the development being in accordance with the approved plans; the permission be
restricted specifically to the catering van (and menu) applied for within the
application; the provision of adequate litter facilities and the area being kept clean
and tidy; no advertisements being displayed on the highway; and no music being
emitted or played in the van when on site.

Proposal SH/09/440 - Conversion of existing bicycle shed for vocational
hairdressing unit for use of Pent Valley Technology College students
studying hair and beauty at Morehall Primary School, Chart Road,
Folkestone; Governors of Pent Valley Technology College

(ltem D5- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)

RESOLVED that permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions,
including the development being commenced within 3 years; the development

Page 324



50.

51.

being carried out in accordance with the permitted details; the development being
constructed using the materials detailed in the application; and the provision of
replacement cycle parking;

Proposal DA/09/583 - Two five-bay mobile classroom units at Craylands
Primary School, Craylands Lane, Swanscombe; KCC Children, Families and
Education

(ltem D6- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)

(1) Mr R Lees made a declaration of interest as Chairman of Governors of
Craylands Primary School. He took no part in the discussion or decision making on
this item.

(2) RESOLVED that:-

(a) temporary permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions,
including a temporary consent for the period of 3 years from the date
of permission; removal of classroom units at the expiration of the 3
year period and the subsequent restoration of the site thereafter; the
development being carried out in accordance with the permitted
details; and the use of the mobile buildings being restricted to
ancillary teaching accommodation, community use and storage in
connection with a one form entry Primary School; and

(b) the applicants be advised by Informative of the concerns raised by the
Parish Council.

Proposal SE/09/1028 - Retention of a single storey modular building and
installation of a new modular building and link corridor at Milestone School,
Ash Road, New Ash Green; KCC Children, Families and Education

(ltem D7- Report by Head of Planning Applications Group)

(1) The Head of Planning Applications Group informed the Committee of
correspondence from Sevenoaks DC withdrawing its objection to the proposal.

(2) RESOLVED that:-

(@) permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions, including
the buildings being removed and the site restored within 5 years of
the grant of planning permission; and the additional modular unit
matching the existing building in colour, style and finish; and

(b)  the applicant be advised by Informative that the mobile classrooms
have been granted temporary permission on Green Belt land on the
basis of very special circumstances which outweigh any potential
harm, and on the understanding that the post 16 facilities will be
provided off site in the future.

Page 325



52.

County matters dealt with under delegated powers
(ltems E1-E5- Reports by Head of Planning Applications Group)

RESOLVED to note matters dealt with under delegated powers since the last
meeting relating to:-

(@)
(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

County matter applications;

consultations on applications submitted by District Councils or
Government Departments;

County Council developments;

Screening opinions under Environmental Impact Assessment
Regulations 1999; and

Scoping opinions under Environmental Impact Assessment
Regulations 1999 (None).

Page 326



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Planning Applications Committee held in the Council
Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Tuesday, 18 August 2009.

PRESENT: Mr R E King (Chairman), Mr R Brookbank, Mr A R Chell, Mr T Gates,
Mr W A Hayton, MrJ D Kirby, MrJF London, Mr R F Manning, Mr R A Pascoe,
Mr M Robertson, Mr C P Smith and Mr A Willicombe

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr M Clifton (Team Leader - Waste Developments),
Mr J Crossley (Team Leader - County Council Development) and Mr R White
(Transport and Development Business Manager) and Mr G Mills, Democratic
Services.

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

53. Membership
(ltem A1)

The Committee noted the appointment of Mrs Dagger and Mr Pascoe to the
Committee in place of Mrs P Stockell and Mr K Pugh.

54. Minutes - 21 July 2009
(ltem A4)

RESOLVED that, subject to the month of July being amended to read June in
paragraph 37, the minutes are correctly recorded and that they be signed by the
Chairman.

55. Site Meetings and Other Meetings
(Item AS)

(1)  The Committee were advised of the following site visits:

(a) Tilmanstone composting proposal, site visit will commence at 17.00 on 16
September 2009. The Public Meeting will then follow at 19.00 in Eastry
Village Hall.

(b) Sevenoaks Quarry extension, site visit will commence at 14.00 on 8
September 2009.

(2)  Mr King emphasised the importance of as many Members as possible to
attend public meetings as it is a good opportunity to listen and learn.

(3)  Discussion took place whether to change the date of the Planning Committee
meeting on 6 October to 16 October 2009 as it had become apparent that as
the 6™ clashed with the Conservative Conference in Manchester the number of
Members being able to attend the Committee meeting. It was decided that

Page 327



both dates would be left open and a decision taken at the Committees meeting
on 8 September 2009.

56. Application TM/09/1414 - Variation of Condition 4 of Permission
TM/04/2028 to allow time for completion of quarry restoration until 30
November 2010 at Workhouse Quarry, Workhouse Road, Ryarsh; Gallagher
Aggregates Ltd

(Iltem C1)

(1)  The views of Mrs Hohler as the Local Member were reported to the meeting.

(2) RESOLVED that permission be granted subject to conditions covering
amongst other matters; infilling and final restoration to be completed by November
2010, hours of working, vehicle number restrictions, implementation of drainage
scheme approved, wheel cleaning, noise and dust controls and requiring that upon
completion of restoration that reinstatement of Workhouse Road be completed in
accordance with Keith Funnell drawing number RQ/L10B received with
accompanying letter dated 15 November 2004 as approved on 23 December 2004.

57. Proposal CA/09/702 - New slip road linking the existing A28 Thanington
Road to the existing A2 dual carriageway to provide access onto the A2
London bound from the Wincheap and Thanington Without area, including
demolition of former community centre building, relocation of existing BMX
track and formalisation of parking spaces for existing community centre
building at A28 Thanington Road and A2 Canterbury By-pass, Thanington
Without, Canterbury; KCC Major Projects

(Iltem D1)

(1)  Mr J Benger and Miss Differ addressed the Committee and raised a number of
concerns on behalf of local residents. Mr G Cripps spoke in reply.

(2) The Committee agreed to include as an additional informative about the
installation of a Urban Traffic Management Control (UTMC) system and also
requested the applicant to investigate any reasonably possible options for providing
alternative off street parking facilities should these be put forward to them prior to the
commencement of the development.

(3) RESOLVED that planning permission be granted, subject to conditions,
including amongst others, conditions to cover the following aspects:

- 5 year time limit for implementation;

- The development to be carried out in accordance with the permitted details;

- Overall landscaping scheme to be submitted to and approved prior to the
commencement of operations on site, and thereafter be fully implemented as
approved within the first planting season following the completion of works;

- Planting scheme retention and maintenance requirement for a period of not
less than 5 years;

- Tree protection measures be imposed (in accordance with British Standard
5837:2005) on trees to be retained in the locality of the development site;

Page 328



- The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the various
ecological mitigation measures detailed within the Environmental Report;

- Traffic monitoring strategy;

- Traffic signal operation protocol;

- Construction management plan;

- Surface water drainage, ground contamination and oil & chemical storage
details;

- Programme of archaeological works;

- Construction environmental management plan demonstrating measures to
mitigate the risk of contamination of surface waters on the River Stour;

- Details of contractors compound;

- Dust suppression measures and controls to limit mud/debris on the highway;

- Hours of construction be limited to between 0700 and 1900 Monday to
Saturday, and no operations shall take place on Sundays and Bank Holidays,
except as may be agreed in writing by the County Planning Authority in liaison
with the City Council as a result of a clearly demonstrated need to work
outside of the ‘standard’ working hours during construction operations;

- Removal of all plant and equipment and restoration of site following
completion of works.

(4) An INFORMATIVE be placed on any decision notice to require the applicant to
fully investigate any reasonably possible compensatory parking measure put forward
to them prior to the commencement of the development. Also, to require the
applicant to investigate the scope for installing a UTMC in Canterbury.

58. Proposal CA/09/680 - Partial demolition of existing school buildings and
alterations and extension to form a multi-use sports arena and activity hall, and
creation of additional car parking spaces at Herne Bay High School,
Bullockstone Road, Herne Bay; Kent Local Education Partnership 1.

(ltem D2)

(1)  The views of Mr D Hirst and Mrs J Law as the Local County Members were
reported to the meeting. Mr Hirst supported the application subject to the provision of
parking spaces in the High School grounds and the highway improvements as
described in the Officer report. He noted that the pavement to Greenhill East is not
continuous from the main school entrance. Mrs Law considered that unless all the
highway matters are dealt with under this application then she was not minded to
accept this application as footway improvements along both lengths of Bullockstone
Road where none exist should be included as a matter of course.

(2)  The views of the Lawn Tennis Association were reported to the meeting. The
Lawn Tennis Association formally object to the proposals on the basis of the loss of
tennis facilities at the High School site.

(3)  During the course of discussion on this item Mr King proposed and Mr Hayton

seconded that the application be approved subject to the premises being closed on a
Saturday at 23:00 hours and not 24:00 hours as proposed in the report.

Page 329



Carried 8 for with 3 against

(2) RESOLVED that subject to the satisfactory resolution of outstanding highway
improvements, that planning permission be granted, subject to conditions, including
amongst others, conditions to cover the following aspects:

- Standard time limit ;

- The development to be carried out in accordance with the permitted details;

- Full details of all external materials to be submitted to and approved prior to
the commencement of operations;

- Details of mechanical ventilation measures be submitted for approval,;

- Site levels and finished floor levels shall be submitted to and approved prior to
any works commencing;

- School travel plan be updated prior to first occupation of development to take
account of the new sports complex;

- Parking to be made available out of school hours within the site in connection
with the sports centre use;

- Adequate measures be taken to ensure that vehicles leaving the site engaged
in the construction work do not deposit mud or other debris on the public
highway;

- Construction works only take place between the hours of 08:00 to 18:00
Monday to Fridays; 09:00 to 13:00 Saturdays; and no working on Sundays or
Bank Holidays;

- Landscaping scheme to be submitted to and approved prior to the
commencement of operations on site, and thereafter be fully implemented as
approved within the first planting season following the completion of works;

- Programme of archaeological evaluation;

- Surface water drainage scheme be submitted for approval by the County
Planning Authority in liaison with Environment Agency and Canterbury City
Council;

- Land contamination;

- Fuel, oil and chemical storage measures;

- Submission of a Community Use Scheme and Sports Development Plan to be
approved in writing by the County Planning Authority in conjunction with Sport
England;

- Details of external lighting to be approved by County Planning Authority;

- Control of mud and debris on highway in connection with construction
activities;

- Coach turning facilities made available at all times on site;

- Coaches leaving site do so in a forward gear and park off site in designated
coach parking;

- Sports hall to be marked out for intended multi-use;

- Internal layout designed in accordance with Sport England Guidance Notes;

- Implementation of new car park prior to bringing the sports complex into use
by the community;

(3) Hours of use of internal facilities of new sports centre be limited to - Mondays to

Fridays: 08:00 to 23:00 hours, Saturdays: 08:00 to 23:00 hours, Sundays and Bank
Holidays 08:00 to 22:30 hours;

Page 330



59. Proposal AS/09/460 - Victoria Way Initial Phase. Single carriageway (2-
way) with footways between the existing Leacon Road and Victoria Road ,
Ashford; Kent Highways Services

(ltem D3)

(1) Mr Wolna of National Grid Property addressed the Committee on behalf of the
Company and said it did not object to the application as such but did object to the
lack of provision of a second access point to the company’s land in Victoria Way thus
affecting its future development potential. Mr Watson of Jacobs spoke in reply.

(2) RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to conditions,
including conditions covering the following:

o 5-year time limit to commence the scheme, given the extra time that is
typically required to complete all the statutory procedures for major
development proposals;

o details of the carriageway design and all finished surfaces, including the
kerb lines; dropped kerbs; tactile paving, pedestrian crossings and vehicle
Crossovers;

o details of all structures, signage and other street furniture; including
seating; litter bins; bollards; cycle racks; pedestrian signage and bus
shelters;

o details of all lighting and CCTV elements;

o details of further noise mitigation measures;

o details of landscaping (including tree and hedge protection during the
installation);

o details of surface drainage; including prevention of discharges to the
highway; and details of the underground storage system for discharge to
the River (at a rate 4 litres per second per hectare) and of flood pathways
under the proposed road;

o details of Victoria Square (including dimensions, materials, street furniture,
public art and other materials);

o details of the finished road and site levels;

details of each of the proposed access points to adjacent development
sites prior to the construction of such accesses.

the provision and maintenance of visibility splays;

the widths and design details of the Public Rights of Way;

submission of a Waste Management Plan;

submission of a Management and Maintenance Strategy;

submission of a Code of Construction Practice;

provisions for contractor’s parking, deliveries, off-loading and turning;
submission of a full highway and public realm Safety Audit;

implementation of a programme of archaeological work;

recommendations of the habitat survey to be carried forward, and a long
term habitat mitigation strategy to be submitted,

measures to prevent groundwater contamination;

precautions to prevent the deposit of mud on the public highway;

a sustainability statement for construction materials;

the implementation of all details to be submitted.

(3) It was further agreed that the applicants be advised of the need to investigate
the following aspects:

Page 331



o the scope for using renewable energy sources for the proposed lighting,
such as solar power,

o the scope for minimising the extent of any street works by the Utility
companies and ensuring the quality of any associated restoration work;

o the use of porous paving surfaces and Sustainable Urban Drainage
Systems generally on this scheme;

o the habitat survey recommendations to be carried forward, such as the
impact of lighting on bats.

60. Proposal AS/09/102 - Twelve 1-bed supported apartments at Ashford
Disabilities Opportunity Service, St Stephen's Walk, Ashford; Kent Adult Social
Services.
(Iltem D4)

RESOLVED that permission be granted, subject to conditions, including the following:

. standard time conditions for an outline permission;

= the submission of reserved matters relating to scale, design and
landscaping;

» the development to be carried out in accordance with the permitted layout
and access arrangements;

* no development to occur on site unless suitable alternate community
services are provided, as set out in the statement received from Kent Adult
Social Services;

= the height of the building not to exceed 10 metres;

= measures to be taken if contamination not previously identified on site is

found;

tree protection measures;

details of all hard landscaping including fencing proposed on site;

details of foul and surface water drainage;

hours of operation during construction;

dust suppression measures;

measures to ensure no mud is deposited on the public highway;

no external lighting to be installed without prior approval,

the provision of vehicle parking spaces prior to first occupation;

the provision of cycle parking; and

the use of the building be restricted solely for the use applied for.

61. Proposal GR/09/440 - A2 Activity Park Scheme consisting of an outdoor
activity park including car parking, pavilion and associated buildings, cycle
tracks, footpaths, boundary treatments and landscaping on the A2 Corridor
and adjacent agricultural land at land between the new A2 Watling Street from
the Pepper Hill Junction to the Marling Cross Junction, Gravesend; Kent
Highways Services.

(ltem D5)

(1) Mrs K Van Beveren addressed the Committee and raised a number of
objections to the application on behalf of some local residents.

(2) The views of Mr M Snelling as a Local County Member and Leader of
Gravesham Borough Council were reported to the meeting, together with further

Page 332



views from Gravesham Borough Council arguing that the proposed development did
not constitute appropriate development in the Green Belt issues and therefore
needed to be justified by very special circumstances. Mr Snelling supported the
application provided there were appropriate safeguards put in place regarding nearby
resident amenities. Mr L Christie and Mr H Craske also attended the meeting as
Local County Members. Both expressed their general support for the application but
also brought to the attention of the Committee some concerns which had been made
known to then by local residents and which they asked the Committee to note in its
consideration of this application. Mr L Tricker spoke in reply and Mr Crossley
provided further advice on a number of planning points which had been raised.
(3) During the course of debate, the view of Members was that the application
should be approved subject to some changes to the list of conditions as follows:-
- deletion of the ‘subject to’ relating to the Highway Agency in favour of
an extra condition requiring the submission of a Travel Plan and
Parking Management Strategy;
- adjustment of the first condition relating to external lighting to refer to
details of the pavilion and car park security lighting only;
- addition of a condition prohibiting any external lighting within the Activity
Park other than security and car park lighting; and
- addition of a condition prohibiting the use of the proposed pavilion and
ancillary buildings for privately hired functions.
(4) RESOLVED that permission be granted subject to conditions, covering:
. a 5 year time limit for implementation;
. the submission of a Travel Plan and Parking Management Strategy
. the development to be carried out in accordance with the permitted details;
. no ‘major weekend events’ to be held on site until such time as an
application for such events is submitted to and permitted by the County
Planning Authority;
. the submission of details of all materials to be used externally for the
pavilion and ancillary buildings, and design details of the ancillary

buildings;

. the submission of details of all external security lighting of the pavilion and
car park;

. no lighting of the existing parks cycle/footpath or bridle way without
approval,

. all external lighting within the Activity Park is prohibited other than security
lights and car park lighting;

. all lighting on site, except security lighting, to be extinguished by 10pm, or
15 minutes after last use of the facility if earlier;

. details of CCTV,

. a scheme of hard and soft landscaping, its implementation and

maintenance, and details of earth works and land contours;

measures to protect trees to be retained;

details of fencing, gates and means of enclosure, including colour finishes;

contaminated land assessment;

control of surface water drainage;

limit on noise levels from public address/tannoy systems;

details of foundation design/below ground excavations;

implementation of a programme of archaeological work;

development to accord with the recommendations made in the submitted

Ecological Scoping Survey;

. protection of nesting birds;

Page 333



identified ecological enhancements to be incorporated into the scheme;

the provision of car parking and access prior to occupation;

the provision of overflow parking, should in be required;

restrictions on hours of use of the Core Activity Park, and the pavilion and

car park;

. hours of working during construction;

. construction code of practice to include measures to prevent dust etc
during construction, prevention of the deposition of mud on the local
highway network and details of construction methodology;

" the use of the proposed pavilion and ancillary building for privately hired

functions to be prohibited;

62. Proposal SW/09/513 - New detached single storey timber clad dining hall
with ramped access, playground extension and pond at lower Halstow Primary
School, School Lane, Lower Halstow; Governors of Lower Halstow Primary
School

(Item D6)

RESOLVED that permission be granted subject to the imposition of conditions,
including:

—  the standard time limit;

—  the development to be carried out in accordance with the permitted details;

—  the development to be constructed using the materials set out in the
drawings received.

63. County matter applications
(ltem E1)

RESOLVED to note matters dealt with under delegated powers since the last
meeting relating to:-

(@) County matter applications;

(b) consultations on applications submitted by District Councils or Government
Departments;

(c) County Council developments;

(d) Screening opinions under Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations
1999; and

(e) Scoping opinions under Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations
1999 (None).

Page 334



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Planning Applications Committee held in the Council
Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Tuesday, 8 September 2009.

PRESENT: Mr R E King (Chairman), Mr J F London (Vice-Chairman),
Mr R Brookbank, Mr AR Chell, MrsV J Dagger, MrT Gates, MrW A Hayton,
Mr C Hibberd, Mr J D Kirby, Mr S J G Koowaree (Substitute for Mr M Robertson),
MrR J Lees, MrRF Manning, Mr R A Pascoe, MrC P Smith, MrK Smith and
Mr A Willicombe

IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs S Thompson (Head of Planning Applications Group),
Mr J Crossley (Team Leader - County Council Development), Mr R White (Transport
and Development Business Manager) and Mr A Tait (Democratic Services Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

64. Minutes - 18 August 2009
(ltem A3)

RESOLVED that subject to the amendment of the start time for the visit to Sevenoaks
Quarry (Minute 55) being amended to 1400, the Minutes of the meeting are correctly
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.

65. Site Meetings and Other Meetings
(Iltem A4)

The Committee noted that its meeting in February 2010 would now be held on
Wednesday, 17 February 2010. It also agreed that the Tour of permitted
development sites, previously scheduled for 24 November, would now take place on
Wednesday, 16 December 2009.

66. Application CA/09/55 - Application to extend the existing Certificate of
Lawful Use to include the mechanical sorting and crushing of incoming
generally inert waste material to recover a greater percentage of reusable
materials Rear of Kemberland, Herne Bay Road, Fox Hill, Sturry, Canterbury;
Mr Martin J Thomas.

(Item C1)

The Committee agreed to the applicants’ request for this item to be deferred to a

future meeting of the Committee in order to enable them to complete an assessment
of predicted noise levels.

Page 335



67. Proposal TW/09/1033 - New Sports Hall and extended Tennis Courts at
The Skinners' School, St John's Road, Tunbridge Wells; Governors of The
Skinners' School

(Item D1)

(1)  The views of the local Member, Mr J R Bullock were tabled and the Head of
Planning Applications Group reported the receipt of a late representation from a
resident in Stephen’s Road together with a petition on behalf of local residents
objecting to the proposed development.

(2) Mr C Woodward, a local Borough Council and Mr S Norris, a local resident
addressed the Committee in opposition to the Proposal. Mr S Everson, Head
Teacher at The Skinners School and Mr S Eatock from the Architects, Michael Cook
Associates spoke in reply.

(3) On being put to the vote, the Head of Planning Applications Group’s
recommendations were unanimously agreed.

(4) RESOLVED that permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions
including covering the standard time limit; the development being carried out in
accordance with the permitted details; the submission of details of all materials
to be used externally; details of all external lighting; a scheme of landscaping,
its implementation and maintenance, including planting to the southern and
eastern site boundaries, the area between the sports hall and the southern site
boundary and the southern and eastern elevations of the building; details of
fencing, gates and means of enclosure, including colour finishes, fencing of
the tennis courts and the area to the rear of the sports hall; kick boards
surrounding the tennis courts being covered in a noise absorbing material;
windows on the southern elevation not being opened and doors remaining
closed when the building is in use; the noise rating level from all fixed plant
associated with the sports hall not exceeding the measured background noise
level (Lago) at the closest residential receiver; contaminated land; details of
sustainable urban drainage system; restriction on hours of use, including
school and community use (0800 to 2200 Mondays to Fridays. 0900 to 1800
on Saturdays and 1000 to 1800 on Sundays); restrictions on the type of use,
including school and community use; hours of working during construction;
and details of a ‘construction code of practice’.

68. Matters dealt with under delegated powers
(ltems E1- E6)

RESOLVED to note matters dealt with under delegated powers since the last
meeting relating to:-

(@)  County matter applications;

(b)  consultations on applications submitted by District Councils or
Government Departments (None);

(c) County Council developments;

Page 336



(e)

Screening opinions under Environmental Impact Assessment
Regulations 1999; and

Scoping opinions under Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations
1999 (None).

Page 337



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 338



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

REGULATION COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Regulation Committee held in the Council Chamber,
Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 25 June 2009.

PRESENT: Mr A H T Bowles, Mr R Brookbank, Mr C J Capon, Mr | S Chittenden
(Substitute for Mr S J G Koowaree), Mr H Craske, Mr A D Crowther, Mr J Cubitt,
Mr W A Hayton, Mr M J Harrison, Mr R JLees, MrS Manion, Mr R F Manning,
MrJ Ozog, MrR A Pascoe, Mrs P AV Stockell (Substitute for Mr T Gates),
Mr J Wedgbury and Mr M Whiting

ALSO PRESENT:

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr P Sass (Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

15. Membership
(Item 1)

The Committee noted its membership as set out above.
16. Election of Chairman
(Item 3)

RESOLVED that Mr M J Harrison be elected Chairman of the Committee.

Page 339



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 340



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

REGULATION COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Regulation Committee held in the Council Chamber,
Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 10 September 2009.

PRESENT: Mr M J Harrison (Chairman) Mr R Brookbank, Mr C J Capon,
Mr H Craske, Mr A D Crowther, Mr T Gates, MrW A Hayton, Mr S J G Koowaree,
MrR JLees, MrS Manion, MrRF Manning, MrJOzog, MrJWedgbury,
Mr M Whiting and Mr A Willicombe (Substitute for Mr A H T Bowles)

ALSO PRESENT: Mr P J Homewood

IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs S Thompson (Head of Planning Applications Group),
Mr R Gregory (Principal Planning Officer Enforcement), Mr A Goodison (Planning
Contraventions Officer), Miss M McNeir (Public Rights Of Way Officer (Definition
Team)) and Mr A Tait (Democratic Services Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

17. Election of Vice Chairman
(Item 3)

Mr C J Capon moved, seconded by Mr H Craske that Mr A D Crowther be elected
Vice-Chairman of the Committee.
Carried unanimously.

18. Terms of Reference and dates of future meetings
(ltem 4)

RESOLVED that the Terms of Reference and future meeting dates set out in the
report be noted, together with the procedure rules for the various Member Panels
appended to these Minutes.

19. Minutes
(Item 5)

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Committee meetings held on 19 May 2009 and
25 June 2009 and of the member Panel held on 7 August 2009 are correctly
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.

20. Update on Planning Enforcement Issues
(Item 6)

(1)  Mr P Homewood was present for this item pursuant to Committee Procedure
Rule 2.24 and spoke.

Page 341



(2) The Head of Planning Applications Group introduced this item by giving a
presentation on the role of the Committee in Planning Enforcement and on the work
of the Enforcement Team.

(3) RESOLVED to endorse the actions taken or contemplated on the respective
cases set out in paragraphs 9 to 21 of the report and those contained in the
Schedules set out in Appendices 1 to 3.

21. Public Rights of Way and Village Greens
(Item )

(1)  The Chairman invited the Public Rights of Way Officer to give a brief
introduction on the Committee’s role in respect of Public Rights of Way and
Town/Village Greens.

(2) RESOLVED that the Public Rights of Way Officer be thanked for her
presentation.

EXEMPT ITEMS
(Open Access to Minutes)

(Members resolved under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 that the
public be excluded from the meeting for the following business on the grounds that it
involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 5 and 6

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act)

22. Update on Planning Enforcement issues at Deal Field Shaw, Charing
(ltem 8)

(1)  The head of Planning Applications Group reported on the latest enforcement
position concerning the Deal Field Shaw (Shaw Grange) former landfill site, Charing.

(2) RESOLVED that the enforcement and site strategy set out in paragraphs 5 to
7 of the report be endorsed.
23. Update on Planning Enforcement issues at Four Gun Field, Upchurch

(ltem 9)

(1)  The Head of Planning Applications Group reported the latest enforcement
strategy concerning the Four Gun Field site, Otterham Quay Lane, Upchurch.

(2) RESOLVED to endorse the enforcement strategy outlined in paragraphs 4 to 8
of the report.

24. Update on Planning Enforcement Issues at Woodgers Wharf, Upchurch
(ltem 10)

Page 342



(1)  The Head of Planning Applications Group reported on the latest enforcement
position concerning the Woodgers Wharf site, Upchurch.

(2) RESOLVED to endorse the enforcement strategy set out in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the report.

Page 343



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 344



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2009 and if in order, to be approved as a correct record.
	7 Towards 2010 Annual Report
	Annual Report 2009

	9 Local Act for amendment of Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 - The Kent County Council (Filming on Highways) Bill
	Draft Bill - Filming on Highways

	10 Kent's Policy Framework for Living Later Life to the Full
	policyframeworkforlaterlife
	KCCActionsJune2009

	11 Government Consultation on "Shaping the Future of Care Together" - The Green Paper on Care and Support
	FINAL draft Green Paper Response I

	12 Minutes for Approval - Governance and Audit Committee
	Minutes , 30/06/2009 Governance and Audit Committee
	Minutes , 16/09/2009 Governance and Audit Committee

	13 Minutes for Information
	Minutes , 14/07/2009 Planning Applications Committee
	Minutes , 18/08/2009 Planning Applications Committee
	Minutes , 08/09/2009 Planning Applications Committee
	Minutes , 25/06/2009 Regulation Committee
	Minutes , 10/09/2009 Regulation Committee


